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PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To the Listing Prospectus Dated November 27, 2012)

mo\il

América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V.

Ps.3,500,000,000
7.125% Senior Notes due 2024

We are offering Ps.3,500,000,000 aggregate prihaipaunt of our 7.125% senior notes due 2024 (tloée's”). The notes will be part of the
same series as, and will be fungible with, Ps.7@I0000 aggregate principal amount of our 7.12&8tos notes due 2024 that we issued on
June 9, 2014 (the “original notes”).

We will pay interest on the notes on June 9 anceB¥er 9 of each year, beginning on June 9, 201&ndtes will mature on December 9,
2024.

The notes will rank equally in right of payment hwill of our other unsecured and unsubordinatet @glyations from time to time
outstanding. The notes will not be guaranteed yyofuiour subsidiaries.

In the event of certain changes in the applicadile of Mexican withholding taxes on interest, weymadeem the outstanding notes, in whole
but not in part, at a price equal to 100% of theincipal amount plus accrued interest thereohéaé&demption date.

The notes are concurrently being offered in Mexiacsuant to a prospectus approved byGbmision Nacional Bancaria y de Valorgke
Mexican National Banking and Securities Commiss@riCNBV”). The notes will be registered with tReegistro Nacional de Valorgthe
“Mexican National Securities Registry”) maintairiegthe CNBV.

Application has been made to list the notes orBitlea Mexicana de Valores, S.A.B. de @the “Mexican Stock Exchange”) and on the
Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange faading on the Euro MTF Market.

This Prospectus Supplement and Prospectus datezhitb@r 27, 2012 constitute a prospectus for thegserpf the Luxembourg Law dated
July, 10, 2005 on Prospectuses for Securitiesireended. This Prospectus Supplement and Prospeted dovember 27, 2012 may only be used
for the purpose for which they have been published.

Investing in the notes involves risks. See “Risk [E#ors” beginning on page S-7 of this prospectus spfement and page 5 of the
accompanying prospectus.

Underwriting Price to Proceeds to
Price to Public® Discount Underwriters América Movil®
7.125% Senior Notes due 2024..........coeveeeeeeeeeineinnnn, 99.481% 0.250% 99.231% Ps. 3,473,085,000

(1) Plus accrued interest from December 9, 2014.tdtal amount of accrued interest payable by msets of the notes on March 11, 2015 will be
Ps.63,729,166.

THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT AND THE ACCOMPANYING PRO SPECTUS ARE SOLELY OUR RESPONSIBILITY AND
HAVE NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR AUTHORIZED BY THE CNBV. T HE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS OFFER WILL BE
NOTIFIED TO THE CNBV FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY AND SUCH NOTICE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A
CERTIFICATION AS TO THE INVESTMENT VALUE OF THE NOT ES OR OUR SOLVENCY. THE REGISTRATION OF THE
NOTES WITH THE MEXICAN NATIONAL SECURITIES REGISTRY DOES NOT IMPLY ANY CERTIFICATION AS TO THE
INVESTMENT VALUE OF THE NOTES, OUR SOLVENCY OR THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN,
AND DOES NOT VALIDATE ANY ACT DONE IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAWS.

Neither the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissi@the “SEC”) nor any state securities commission haapproved or disapproved of
these securities or determined if this prospectusipplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthfiuor complete. Any representation to
the contrary is a criminal offense.

Delivery of the notes was made on March 11, 20150bk-entry form through the facilities of Cleagstm Banking, société anonyme
(“Clearstream”), and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (“Bdiear”), for the accounts of their direct and redt participants, including.D. Indeval
Institucion para el Depésito de Valores, S.A. d€.C.

Joint Book-Running Managers

BBVA Citigroup Credit Suisse Deutsche Bank Securities HSBC Morgan Stanley

The date of this prospectus supplement is Marcl2@05
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We are responsible for the information contained irthis prospectus supplement, the accompanying prosptus and the
documents incorporated by reference herein and thein. Neither we nor any of the underwriters has autorized any person to
give you any other information, and neither we norany of the underwriters takes any responsibility fo any other information
that others may give you. This document may only besed where it is legal to sell the notes. You sHdwnot assume that the
information contained in this prospectus supplementthe accompanying prospectus and the documents iorporated by
reference is accurate as of any date other than thigespective dates. Our business, financial conddn, results of operations
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and prospects may have changed since those dates ®e not making an offer of the notes in any jurigiction where the offer
is not permitted.



IMPORTANT CURRENCY INFORMATION

You are required to pay for the purchase of thesiot Mexican pesos. The underwriters may, in their
discretion and upon your request, arrange for dmeersion of your payment in U.S. dollars or anotherency
into Mexican pesos in order to facilitate the pasd of the notes. All conversions will be madehgyunderwriters
at the applicable exchange rate quoted by theimeiin &bsolute discretion and on the terms that thay from time
to time establish in accordance with their regédaeign exchange practice. You will be responsiblepaying all
commissions and fees for any currency conversilaee to the purchase of the notes.

We will make all payments on the notes, includiagrpents of interest and the payment of principal at
maturity, in Mexican pesos. Consequently, investatls accounts that cannot accept payments ondtesnin
Mexican pesos must determine how to convert thagments into U.S. dollars or another currency. Yfmancial
institution may automatically convert payments fritexican pesos into U.S. dollars or another cutyehgou do
not arrange for account facilities denominated exMan pesos. You will be responsible for payingammissions
and fees for any currency conversion related topayment on the notes.



PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

This summary highlights key information describedreater detail in this prospectus supplementer t
accompanying prospectus, including the documentsforated by reference. You should read carethily entire
prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospantlithe documents incorporated by reference hdrefare
making an investment decision.

América Movil

We provide telecommunications services in 25 coesitiVe are the largest provider of wireless
communications services in Latin America based umber of subscribers, with the largest market shahkdéexico
and the third-largest in Brazil, in each case basethe number of subscribers. We also have mixjed-line or
Pay TV operations in Mexico, Brazil, Colombia ar@ldther countries.

Summary of the Offering

The following summary contains basic informationaithe notes and is not intended to be completids
not contain all the information that is importaotyou. For a more complete description of the teams conditions
of the notes, see “Description of Notes” in thi®gpectus supplement and “Description of MXN Notaghe
accompanying prospectus.

Issuer América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V

Notes Offered Ps.3,500,000,000 aggregate principal amount ofb#4dl3enior Note
due 2024. The notes will be part of the same saseand will be
fungible with, Ps.7,500,000,000 aggregate princmabunt of our
7.125% senior notes due 2024 that we issued onQE2@4. The
aggregate principal amount of the original noted thie notes offered
hereby will be Ps.11,000,000,000.

Price to Public 99.481% of principal amount, plus accrued intefresh Decembe 9,
2014 to the Issue Date (totaling Ps.63,729,166).

Issue Date The notes will be issued on March 11, 2C
Maturity The notes will mature on Decembe 2024.
Interest Rate The notes will bear interest at the rate of 7.12&¥oyear fron

December 9, 2014 (the most recent interest paydaetfor the
original notes).

Interest Payment Dates Interest on the notes will be payable on June SDecember 9 of eac
year, beginning on June 9, 2015. Purchasers ofdtes will be entitles
to receive the full amount of the first interesyme@nt on June 9, 2015.

Currency of Payment All payments of principal of and premium, if anydainterest on the
notes will be made in Mexican pesos.

Calculation of Interest Interest will be computed on the basis of the dctuember of day:
during the relevant interest period and a 360-dsy.y

Ranking The notes will be our unsecured . unsubordinated obligations a
will rank equally in right of payment with all olio other unsecured a
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Use of Proceeds

Further Issuances

Payment of Additional Interest

Tax Redemption

Listings

unsubordinated debt. The notes will be effectiweligordinated to all ¢
our existing and future secured obligations analltexisting and futur
liabilities of our subsidiaries. All of our outs@ing debt securities that
were issued in the Mexican and international markatugh mid-
September 2011 are unconditionally guaranteed bgwosidiary
Radiomovil Dipsa, S.A. de C.V. (“Telcel”). Accordjly, the holders of
those outstanding debt securities will have pnyaviter the holders of
the notes with respect to claims to the asset®loiell The notes do not
restrict our ability or the ability of our subsidies to incur additional
indebtedness in the future.

As of Decembe 31, 2014, we had, on an unconsolidated basis (p
company only), unsecured and unsubordinated indebgs of

(a) approximately Ps.477.2 billion (U.S.$32.4 bit) excluding
guarantees of our subsidiaries’ indebtedness grapfiyoximately
Ps.491.0 billion (U.S.$33.4 billion) including gaatees of our
subsidiaries’ indebtedness. As of December 31, 20d¥subsidiaries
had indebtedness (excluding guarantees of indeessdsf us and
our other subsidiaries) of approximately Ps.114libib

(U.S.$8.1 billion).

We intend to use the net proceeds from the sateeafiotes for gener
corporate purposes. See “Use of Proceeds” in thispgctus
supplement.

We may, from time to time without the consent ofdeos of either th
notes or the original notes, issue additional notethe same terms and
conditions as the notes and the original notesef@xor issue date,
issue price and the date from which interest vatirae and, if
applicable, the date on which interest will first faid), which
additional notes will increase the aggregate ppalcamount of, and

will be consolidated and form a single series wittle, notes and the
original notes.

If you are not a resident of Mexico for tax purpggsayments ¢
interest on the notes to you will generally be sabjo Mexican
withholding tax at a rate of 4.9%. See “Taxation—an Tax
Considerations” in the accompanying prospectuswillgpay
additional interest in respect of those paymentstefest so that the
amount you receive after Mexican withholding tapasd equals the
amount that you would have received if no such kexiwithholding
tax had been applicable, subject to some excepéisniescribed under
“Description of Notes—Payment of Additional Inte’as this
prospectus supplement and “Description of MXN Net&ayment of
Additional Interest” in the accompanying prospectus

If, due to changes in Mexican laws relating to Mexi withholding
taxes, we are obligated to pay additional intenaghe notes in excess
of the additional interest attributable to a Mexiegthholding tax rate
of 4.9%, we may redeem the outstargdnotes, in whole but not in pe
at any time, at a price equal to 100% of their g@gal amount plus
accrued interest thereon to the redemption date.

The original notes are listed, aapplication has been made to list"
notes, on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stdekchange for
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ISIN and Common Code

Form and Denomination

Trustee, Security Registrar, Paying
Agent and Transfer Agent

London Paying Agent

trading on the Euro MTF Mark The original notes and the noare
listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange. However, wenet be
required to maintain such listings.

The ISIN for the notes is XS1075314911 (the sanid K3 the origina
notes). The Common Code for the notes is 10753 (th@lsame
Common Code as the original notes).

The notes will be issued only in registered forrthout coupons and i
minimum denominations of Ps.2,000,000 and integuatiples of
Ps.10,000 in excess thereof.

Except in limited circumstances, the notes wilisgsied in the form ¢
global notes. See “Form of MXN Notes, Clearing &adtlement” in
the accompanying prospectus. Beneficial interestise global notes
will be shown on, and transfers of beneficial iests in the global not
will be made only through, records maintained bgatétream and
Euroclear.

The Bank of New York Mellon

The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branc

Luxembourg Paying Agent and TransferThe Bank of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.

Agent
Luxembourg Listing Agent

Governing Law

Risk Factors

The Bank of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.

The indenture, the supplemental indenture, thetiaddi notes
supplement relating to the notes and the notesoeitjoverned by the
laws of the State of New York.

Before making an investment decision, prospectivetmasers of th
notes should consider carefully all of the inforimatncluded in this
prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospactiithe
documents ioorporated by reference herein, including, in pafér, the
information under “Risk Factors” in this prospectupplement, the
accompanying prospectus and under “ltem 3—Riskdfstin the
2013 Form 20-F (as defined herein), incorporatecelsrence herein.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This prospectus supplement incorporates by referencaudited consolidated financial statementsf as
December 31, 2012 and 2013 and for the years dddeeimber 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, which are indlidéhe
2013 Form 20-F (as defined herein), and our unedditterim financial data as of September 30, 201difor the
three and nine months ended September 30, 201204 which are included in our report on Form 6&d with
the SEC on March 4, 2015. See “Incorporation ot&erDocuments by Reference” in this prospectuplsumpent.

Our audited consolidated financial statements lh@es prepared in accordance with Internationalrfeiiad
Reporting Standards as issued by the Internatido@dunting Standards Board as of December 31, 20018.
audited consolidated financial statements are pteden Mexican pesos. The financial statementsiohon-
Mexican subsidiaries have been translated to Maxpegsos. Note 2(b)(iii) to our audited consolidétedncial
statements describes how we translate the finastesis@gments of our non-Mexican subsidiaries.

Our consolidated financial statements as of anthferyear ended December 31, 2014 are not yet ebenpt
available, and the independent audit of those Giizustatements has not yet been completed. Thippctus
supplement includes certain preliminary finanabrmation as of and for the year ended DecembgP @14, but
that information is subject to change as we corepdet financial closing procedures and prepareconsolidated
financial statements for publication, and as odependent registered public accounting firm coneglés audit of
such consolidated financial statements. As of tite df this prospectus supplement, our indeperdgidtered
public accounting firm has not expressed an opioioany other form of assurance on any financifarmation as
of or for the year ended December 31, 2014, orusrindernal control over financial reporting ash¥cember 31,
2014. Our audited consolidated financial statemfemt2014 may differ materially from this prelimiya
information and will also include notes providingensive additional disclosures.

References herein to “Mexican pesos” or “Ps.” arte lawful currency of Mexico. References hetein
“U.S. dollars” or “U.S.$” are to the lawful currepnof the United States.

This prospectus supplement contains translationaréus Mexican peso amounts into U.S. dollars at
specified rates solely for your convenience. Yoousth not construe these translations as represamsdty us that
the Mexican peso amounts actually represent theddl&r amounts or could be converted into U.Sadoat the
rates indicated. Unless otherwise indicated, westiaanslated U.S. dollar amounts from Mexican pesdise
exchange rate of Ps.14.7348 to U.S.$1.00, whichtlagate reported anco de Méxicdor December 31, 2014,
as published in the Mexican Official Gazette of Heelerationiario Oficial de la Federacidnor the “Official
Gazette”). For historical information regarding thss. dollar/Mexican peso exchange rate, see "Engh&ates”
in our report on Form 6-K filed with the SEC on Mar4, 2015.
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INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

This prospectus supplement incorporates importdatration about us that is not included in or died
with this prospectus supplement. The SEC allow® Uscorporate by reference” the information wie fivith it,
which means that we can disclose important infoionab you by referring you to those documents. The
information incorporated by reference is consideoge part of this prospectus supplement, ancioditer
information that we file with the SEC will automeslly update and supersede this information. Werparate by
reference the following documents:

. our annual report on Form 20-F for the year dridecember 31, 2013, filed with the SEC on April 30
2014 (SEC File No. 001-16269) (the “2013 Form 2p-F"

. our report on Form 6-K, filed with the SEC onneta 4, 2015 (SEC File No. 001-16269), containing ou
unaudited interim condensed consolidated finarstétements as of September 30, 2014 and for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2012041

. our report on Form 6-K, filed with the SEC on a4, 2015 (SEC File No. 001-16269), containing a
discussion of our results of operations for theyemded December 31, 2013 and 2014 and our
financial position as of December 31, 2014;

. any future annual reports on Form 20-F filechvtite SEC under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), after the dathis prospectus supplement and prior to the

termination of the offering of the notes; and

. any future reports on Form 6-K that we file with furnish to, the SEC after the date of this peasus
supplement and prior to the termination of therafig of the notes offered by this prospectus
supplement that are identified in such reportsesgoincorporated by reference in our Registration
Statement on Form F-3 (SEC File No. 333-182394).

Any statement contained in any of the foregoingudoents shall be deemed to be modified or superdeded
purposes of this prospectus supplement to the etktaha statement contained in this prospectugleopent
modifies or supersedes such statement. Any sutdnstat so modified or superseded shall not be de:eexeept
as so modified or superseded, to constitute agb#inis prospectus supplement.

You may request a copy of any and all of the infation that has been incorporated by referenceisn th
prospectus supplement and that has not been dalivéth this prospectus supplement, at no costyriting or
telephoning us at Lago Zurich 245, Edificio Telc@blonia Ampliacion Granada, Delegacion Miguel Hiigba
11529, México D.F., México, Attention: Investor R&bns, telephone (5255) 2581-4449. Our 2013 F@+R and
our Form 6-K, filed with the SEC on May 28, 2014£&(SFile No. 001-16269), will be published on thégite of
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at www.bourse.lu.

We file reports, including annual reports on Foi@rF2 and other information with the SEC pursuarth
rules and regulations of the SEC that apply toifpr@rivate issuers. You may read and copy any madddiled
with the SEC at its Public Reference Room at 1@rEet, N.E. Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain
information on the operation of the Public RefeeeRoom by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Alygs we
make electronically will be available to the puliiger the Internet at the SEC’s web sitevatwv.sec.gav
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RISK FACTORS

You should refer to the risk factors discussed ufidesk Factors” in the accompanying prospectus ‘dien
3—Risk Factors” in the 2013 Form 20-F, incorporatgdeference in this prospectus supplement.

Risks Relating to Our Preliminary 2014 Financial Irformation

Our consolidated financial statements for the yeraded December 31, 2014 have not yet been completed
audited and, accordingly, the preliminary 2014 figal information included in this prospectus swgpént is
subject to change

Our consolidated financial statements as of anthferyear ended December 31, 2014 are not yet ebenpt
available, and the independent audit of those tGiizstatements has not yet been completed. Thippctus
supplement includes certain preliminary finanabrmation as of and for the year ended DecembgP @14, but
that information is subject to change as we corepdet financial closing procedures and prepareconsolidated
financial statements for publication, and as odependent registered public accounting firm coneglés audit of
such consolidated financial statements. As of tite df this prospectus supplement, our indeperndgtered
public accounting firm has expressed no opinioary other form of assurance on any financial inforon as of
or for the year ended December 31, 2014, or orinbeimal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31,
2014. Our audited financial statements for suclogenay differ materially from this preliminary iofmation and
will also include notes providing extensive addiabdisclosures.

For a discussion of our results of operationstieryears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 and our

financial condition as of December 31, 2014, saeeport on Form 6-K, filed with the SEC on March2915,
incorporated by reference herein.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the sale of the notes, pdigment of underwriting discounts and transactiqreases,
are expected to be approximately Ps.3,467,815adr&pproximately U.S.$230,341,592 calculated ustieg
exchange rate of Ps.15.0551 to U.S.$1.00 as ofiM&r2015). We intend to use the net proceeds fhansale of
the notes for general corporate purposes.
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The following table sets forth our consolidateditzation as of December 31, 2014 and as adjusted

CAPITALIZATION

reflect the issuance and sale of the notes, buheapplication of the net proceeds of the offgrin

U.S. dollar amounts in the table are presentedysieyour convenience using the exchange rate of

Ps.14.7348 to U.S.$1.00, which was the rate reppday®anco de Méxicéor December 31, 2014, for the settlement
of obligations in foreign currencies.

Debt:
Denominated in
Bank loan

U.S. dolla

5.750% NOtes due 20 ......covueivniiieiieeiieeeieeieeeane,
3.625% Senior Notes due 2(.......cccveeeieivieinneinnnnnn,
5.500% Senior Notes due 2(........ccoveeveevieinneinnnnns,
2.375% Senior Notes due 2(......cccccoveevveivieinneinnnnnn,

Floating R

ate Senior Notes due 2..........ccoovvevnnenee.

5.625% NOtesS due 20 ......covveevnieiiiiieeieeeieeieeeane,
5.000% Seior Notes due 201.......ccccoveeveivieinneinnnnns,
5.500% Senior Notes due 2(.......cccoveevveevieinneinnnnns,
5.000% Senior Notes due 2(.......cccveevieeveinneinnnnnn,
7.500% Senior Notes due 2(......ccceveeveeivieinneinnnnes,
3.125% Senior Notes € 202:.......cccevveeveeeiieinneinnnnnn,
6.375% NOteS du€ 20 ......civviiiieiieiiieeieeeeeeeeeae,
6.125% NOteS due 20 ......ccovviiiieieiieeiieeeieeeeeeane,
6.125% Senior Notes due 2(........ccoveevievvieinneinnnnns,
4.375% Senior Notes due 2(........ccoeevveeveinneinnennnn,

Denominated in
Bank loan

Mexican pes

Domestic senior notecertificados bursatile)............
8.75% SenicNotes due 207 .......ccocevvevviiiiiiiieiinnnn,
9.00% Senior Notes due 2(.......cccceoveeveivieeineiennnnn.
6.000% Senior Notes due 2(......c.cccoveeveeiveinneinnnnns,
6.45% Senior Notes due 2(........cccovevvieiiieeineiennnnn.
7.125% Senior Notes due Z4.........ccooeevveivieineinnnnnn,
7.125% Senior Notes due 2024 offered he.............
8.46% Senior Notes due 2(.........covevvieiiieeieiennnnn.

As of December 31, 2014

Actual As Adjusted
(millions of (millions of (millions of (millions of
Mexican pesos) U.S. dollars) Mexican pesos) U.S. dollars)
(unaudited)

Ps. 14,707 U.S.$ 999 14,707 U.S.$ 999
10,482 712 10,482 712
10,891 740 10,891 740

8,166 555 8,166 555
29,201 1,984 29,201 1,984
11,038 750 11,038 750

8,582 583 8,582 583
11,039 750 11,039 750

5,554 378 5,554 378
31,273 2,125 31,273 2,125

5,151 350 5,151 350
23,549 1,600 23,549 1,600
14,443 981 14,443 981

5,434 369 5,434 369
29,436 2,000 29,436 2,000
16,926 1,150 16,926 1,150

235,872 16,026 235,872 16,026
310 21 310 21
27,429 1,864 27,429 1,864

4,500 306 4,500 306

5,000 340 5,000 340
10,000 679 10,000 679
22,500 1,529 22,500 1,529

7,500 509 7,500 509

— — 3,500 238

7,872 535 7,872 535

Ps. 85,111 U.S.$ 5,783 Ps. 88,611 U.S.$ 6,021
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As of December 31, 2014

Actual As Adjusted
(millions of (millions of (millions of (millions of
Mexican pesos) U.S. dollars) Mexican pesos) U.S. dollars)
(unaudited)
Denominated in eur
BanK [0@N.........cooiiiiiiiiiiece e Ps 10,73: U.S.9 73C Ps 10,73: U.S4 73C
6.375% Senior Notes due 2(........ccueeeeriiiiiieeinneeniiien, 13,35¢ 907 13,35¢ 907
3.75% Senior Notes due 2(..........cooovueeeeriniiiiiiieeeees 17,80¢ 1,21¢( 17,80¢ 1,21¢(
4.25% Senior Notes due 2C.........cceeeeiiiieeeeiiieeiiieenn, 8,90: 60= 8,90: 605
1.00% Senior Notes due 2(........ccovvveeeeeniiiiieeneeee e, 10,68« 72€ 10,68« 72€
4.125% Senior Notes due 2(........cccveeeeiniiieeeeinen e, 17,80¢ 1,21¢( 17,80¢ 1,21¢(
3.00% Senior Notes due 20........coccuveeeeiniiieeeeneee e, 17,80¢ 1,21¢( 17,80¢ 1,21¢(
3.125% Senior Notes due 2(........ccuuvveeriiiiieeeeeineeeieeen, 13,35¢ 907 13,35¢ 907
4.75% Senior Notes due 2C........cceeveeiiiiieeeeeiieeeiiieenn, 13,35¢ 907 13,35« 907
4.00% Senior Notes due 2C.........ceeeeeiiiieeeeeiieeiiieeeenn 13,35¢ 907 13,35« 907
3.259% Senior Notes due 2(........ccuueveeiiiiiieeeeineeeiieen, 13,35¢ 907 13,35¢ 907
3.50% Senior Notes due 2(..........coooveieeeriniiiiiiieeeees 5,34 363 5,34 362
Euro NC5 (Euro Siies A) Capital Securitie
AUE 2073 16,025 1,089 16,025 1,089
Euro NC10 (Euro Series B) Capital Securities du#s..... 9,79: 66E 9,79: 66E
TOAL e 181,66 12,34 181,66 12,34
Denominated in pounds sterlil
5.00% Senior Notes due 2(..........ccoovuieeeriniiiiniieeeeeas 11,46 77¢ 11,46 77¢
5.75% Senior Notes due 2(..........cooovcueiiininiiiniieeeees 14,90: 1,01t 14,90: 1,01t
4.948% Senior Notes due 2(........cccueeeeiniiieeeeinen e, 6,87¢ 467 6,87¢ 467
4.375% Senior Notes due 2(.........ccveeeeiniiieeeeinen e, 17,19¢ 1,16¢ 17,19¢ 1,16¢
GBP NC7Capital Securities due 20.........ccccoecuvveeeennnn 12,60¢ 857 12,60¢ 857
TOAL ..o 63,04" 4,28¢ 63,04" 4,28¢
Denominated in Swiss fran
2.25% Senior Notes due 2(..........cccccvvvvviveeeeeeiviieeeneen. 3,40¢ 231 3,40¢ 231
2.00% Senior Notes due 2(..........cooovuieeeriniiiiiiieeeees 3,991 272 3,997 272
1.13% Senior Notes due 2(........ccovveeeeiiiiiiiieneeee e, 8,141 55 8,141 55
TOAL ...t 15,54. 1,05¢ 15,54. 1,05¢
Denominated in Japanese )
1.53% Senior Notes due 2(........ccccceevveeeiieeeiiiieieeeeee, 627 43 627 43
2.95% Senior Notes due 2(..........coooviuiieeriniiiiiieeeees 1,597 108 1,597 10¢
TOAL ..o 2,22¢ 151 2,22¢ 151
Denominated in Colombian pe.......ccccccvvieeeeeiiiiiiie e 2,76¢ 18¢ 2,76¢ 18¢
Denominated in Brazilian rei...........cccccvvvieeiiieiiiiieiieeee e 4,43¢ 301 4,43¢ 301
Denominated in other CUMeNC.........ccoeeeeeeeiiccciies e, 5,72% 38¢ 5,72: 38¢
TOtAl AED .. 596,39: 40,52: 599,89: 40,75¢
Less sho-term debt and current portion of I¢-
term debt ... 57,324 3,895 57,324 3,895
Total long-term deb..........oooviiiiiiiiiiecee e, Ps 539,06° U.S.9 36,62¢ Ps.54256 U.S.{ 36,86
Equity:
Capital STOC.....ccceeiiiiiiie i 96,38: 6,54¢ 96,38: 6,54¢
Total retained earnin..........ccccccvveeieeeeiineiieeee e 192,111 13,05 192,111 13,05
Other comprehensive income (loss) it................ (99,229 (6,742 (99,229 (6,742
Non-controlling INteres .......ccccvcvvveeeeeeiiiiiieeeeee e 50,47¢ 3,43C 50,47¢ 3,43(
TOtAl EQUILY ..eeeiie e 239,74 16,28¢ 239,74( 16,28¢
Total capitalization (total lor-term debt plus equit ................. Ps 778,80° U.S.{ 52,91! Ps 782,300 U.S.y 53,15!
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As of December 31, 2014, we had, on an unconsetlidadsis (parent company only), unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness of (a) approximatel/<2 billion (U.S.$32.4 billion) excluding guataas of our
subsidiaries’ indebtedness and (b) approximatel@s0 billion (U.S.$33.4 hillion) including guartaes of our
subsidiaries’ indebtedness. As of December 31, 20ddsubsidiaries had indebtedness (excludingaguees of
indebtedness of us and our other subsidiariespmfoximately Ps.119.1 billion (U.S.$8.1 billion).
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DESCRIPTION OF NOTES

The following description of the specific terms amhditions of the notes supplements the descnpifdhe
general terms and conditions set forth under “Dpson of MXN Notes” in the accompanying prospectiiss
important for you to consider the information conéal in the accompanying prospectus and this pobgpe
supplement before making an investment in the ndtesy specific information regarding the noteshis
prospectus supplement is inconsistent with the rgeneral terms and conditions of the notes destiibéhe
accompanying prospectus, you should rely on trenndtion contained in this prospectus supplement.

In this section of this prospectus supplementyeefees to “we,” “us” and “our” are to América Mave.A.B.
de C.V. only and do not include our subsidiarieafbliates. References to “holders” mean those Waee notes
registered in their names on the books that whetrtistee maintain for this purpose, and not thdse own
beneficial interests in notes issued in book-efarsn through Clearstream and Euroclear, or in netgsstered in
street name. Owners of beneficial interests imtbtes should refer to “Form of MXN Notes, Clearand
Settlement” in the accompanying prospectus.

General
Base I ndenture and Supplemental Indenture

The notes will be issued under a base indentuteddes of June 28, 2012, and under a supplemental
indenture dated June 9, 2014, as supplemented &gditional notes supplement. References to thaefiture” are
to the base indenture as supplemented by the sopptal indenture and the additional notes supplémeespect
of the notes. The indenture is an agreement amgnghe Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, seguegistrar,
paying agent and transfer agent, The Bank of Nevk ¥éellon, London Branch, as London paying agent &he
Bank of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A., as Luxieourg paying agent and transfer agent.

The notes will be part of the same series as, aththavfungible with, the original notes. The notedl vote
together with the original notes as from their essate.

Principal and Interest

The aggregate principal amount of the notes offaereby will be Ps.3,500,000,000. The aggregateipal
amount of the original notes and the notes offéra@by will be Ps.11,000,000,000.

The notes will mature on December 9, 2024. Theswtk bear interest at a rate of 7.125% per yeamf
December 9, 2014 (the most recent interest paydaetfor the original notes).

Interest on the notes will be payable on June 9CewEmber 9 of each year, beginning on June 9,,201be
holders in whose names the notes are registetae atose of business on the last day on whichr€tlesam and
Euroclear are open for business immediately precgtttie related interest payment date. Purchas¢he afotes
will be entitled to receive the full amount of tfirst interest payment on June 9, 2015.

We will pay interest on the notes on the interasinpent dates stated above and at maturity. Eachquayof
interest due on an interest payment date or atrityauill include interest accrued from and incladithe last date
to which interest has been paid or made availablpdyment, or from the issue date, if none has pagd or made
available for payment, to but excluding the reléyaayment date. Interest on the notes will be caegon the
basis of the actual number of days during the egleinterest period and a 360-day year.

Ranking of the Notes

We are a holding company, and our principal assetshares that we hold in our subsidiaries. Thesnaill
not be secured by any of our assets or propeAea.result, by owning the notes, you will be ohew unsecured
creditors. The notes will not be subordinated tp @inour other unsecured debt obligations. In teneof a
bankruptcy or liquidation proceeding against us,rbtes would rank equally in right of payment véthour other
unsecured and unsubordinated debt.

S-12



The notes will not be guaranteed by any of our islidrses. Claims of creditors of our subsidiaries]uding
trade creditors and bank and other lenders, wilehaiority over the holders of the notes in claimsssets of our
subsidiaries.

All of our outstanding debt securities that wesied in the Mexican and international markets thinamid-
September 2011 are unconditionally guaranteed el éccordingly, the holders of those outstandiiedpt
securities will have priority over the holders loétnotes with respect to claims to the assetsloglle

Form and Denominations

The notes will be issued only in registered forrthaut coupons and in minimum denominations of
Ps.2,000,000 and integral multiples of Ps.10,00¢xoess thereof.

Except in limited circumstances, the notes wilisgsied in the form of global notes. See “Form of WX
Notes, Clearing and Settlement” in the accompanghnogpectus.

Further Issues

We reserve the right, from time to time without tomsent of holders of either the notes or thermigiotes,
to issue additional notes on terms and conditidestical to those of the notes and the originaési¢except for
issue date, issue price and the date from whi@nest will accrue and, if applicable, the date drictvinterest will
first be paid), which additional notes will increathe aggregate principal amount of, and will hesctidated and
form a single series with, the notes and the aaigiotes.

Payment of Additional Interest

We are required by Mexican law to deduct Mexicatihkolding taxes from payments of interest to inest
who are not residents of Mexico for tax purposedessribed under “Taxation—Mexican Tax Consideregion
the accompanying prospectus.

Subject to the limitations and exceptions descrihéescription of MXN Notes—Payment of Additional
Interest” in the accompanying prospectus, we vall o holders of the notes all additional intetkat may be
necessary so that every net payment of intergstirecipal or premium, if any, to the holder will e less than the
amount provided for in the notes. By net paymertyrean the amount that we or our paying agentpaillthe
holder after deducting or withholding an amountdoion account of any present or future taxesedyissessments
or other governmental charges imposed with redpdbtiat payment by a Mexican taxing authority. See
“Description of MXN Notes—Payment of Additional &rest” in the accompanying prospectus.

Any references in this prospectus supplement tecywal, premium, if any, interest or other amoypggable
in respect of the notes by us will be deemed to @dfer to any additional interest that may be peeyan accordance
with the provisions described under “DescriptiodN Notes—Payment of Additional Interest” in the
accompanying prospectus.

Tax Redemption

We will have the right to redeem the notes uporotteirrence of certain changes in the tax laws eftibb
as a result of which we become obligated to paytiaddl interest on the notes in respect of witldireg) taxes at a
rate in excess of 4.9%, in which case we may redbemutstanding notes, in whole but not in pdrs sedemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount ofloées to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thevabe
redemption date. See “Description of MXN Notes—Op#l Redemption—Redemption for Taxation Reasons” in
the accompanying prospectus.
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Covenants

Holders of the notes will benefit from certain cogats contained in the indenture and affectingadility to
incur liens to secure debt, enter into sale angkleack transactions, sell shares of capital stbTkloel, merge or
consolidate with other entities and take other ifipelcactions, as well as requiring us to providetain reports or
information to holders of notes. See “DescriptioMiXN Notes—Covenants” and “Description of MXN Nate-
Merger, Consolidation or Sale of Assets” in theoagpanying prospectus.

Defaults, Remedies and Waiver of Defaults

Holders of the notes will have special rights ifem@ent of default with respect to the notes ocamdis not
cured. See “Description of MXN Notes—Defaults, Reiiles and Waiver of Defaults” in the accompanying
prospectus.

Notices

So long as the notes are represented by a globalityedeposited with The Bank of New York Mellon,
London Branch, as the common depositary (the “ComBepositary”) for Clearstream and Euroclear, restito be
given to holders will be given to Clearstream amddglear in accordance with their applicable pebcas in effect
from time to time. If we issue notes in certificferm, notices to be given to holders will be deymail to the
respective addresses of the holders as they ajptber trustee’s records, and will be deemed givean mailed.

In addition, so long as the notes are listed orCffigial List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange faxding
on the Euro MTF Market and it is required by thikeswof such exchange, all notices to holders césaiill be
published in English:

(1) in aleading newspaper having a general citiculan Luxembourg (which currently is expectechto
Luxemburger Wojt or

(2) on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchaatdptp://www.bourse.lu

All notices required by Mexican law or regulatiantte given to holders of notes will be given byrus
Spanish through the facilities of the Mexican Stasichange.

Notices will be deemed to have been given on the alamailing or of publication as aforesaid or, if
published on different dates, on the date of tret §uch publication. If publication as providededis not
practicable, notices will be given in such othenmer, and shall be deemed to have been given dndsite, as the
trustee may approve.

Neither the failure to give any notice to a paftacinolder, nor any defect in a notice given taetipular
holder, will affect the sufficiency of any noticesgn to another holder.

Our Relationship with the Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon is initially serving #ise trustee for the notes. The Bank of New Yorkiddhe
London Branch is serving as London paying agentthadCommon Depositary for Clearstream and Euroclédee
Bank of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A. is sergias Luxembourg paying agent and transfer agent and
Luxembourg listing agent. The Bank of New York Melland its affiliates may have other businessioglahips
with us from time to time.
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SUPPLEMENTAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The information in this section supplements, aralkhbe read together with, the information under
“Taxation—U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerationsthhe accompanying prospectus. It is importantyfau to
consider the information contained in the accompamprospectus and this prospectus supplement.

Qualified Reopening

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the notes)grected to be treated as issued in a “qualikegening”
of the original notes. For U.S. federal incomepgarposes, debt instruments issued in a qualifiedering are
deemed to be part of the same issue as the orggtalinstruments. Under the treatment describélaisn
paragraph, the notes will have the same issue tli@same issue price and the same adjusted issaep the
original notes for U.S. federal income tax purpo3éss discussion assumes that the notes offerebiare issued
in a qualified reopening.

Premium

If you are a U.S. holder that purchases notescasagreater than the principal amount of thoses)gtou
will be considered to have purchased those notapetmium, and you may elect to amortize the prenas an
offset to interest income, using a constant yieedhad, over the remaining term of those notesolf jake this
election, it generally will apply to all debt ingimnents that you hold at the time of the electiawall as any debt
instruments that you subsequently acquire. In amgiyou may not revoke the election without thasent of the
U.S. Internal Revenue Service. If you elect to dmerthe premium, you will be required to reducerytax basis in
the notes by the amount of the premium amortizeshgwyour holding period. If you do not elect to entize
premium, the amount of premium will be included/gur tax basis in the notes. Therefore, if you dbetect to
amortize premium and you hold the notes to matuyity generally will be required to treat the premias capital
loss when the notes mature.

Pre-Reopening Accrued Interest

The initial offering price for the notes will inde amounts attributable to interest accrued frorceBwber 9,
2014, which we call “pre-reopening accrued inteté&te-reopening accrued interest will be includethe accrued
interest to be paid on the notes on the first @edepayment date after the issuance of the noteecbrdance with
applicable U.S. Treasury regulations, for U.S. fatlimcome tax purposes, we will treat the notelsaasng been
purchased for a price that does not include anygwpening accrued interest. If the notes areesadd, the portion
of the first stated interest payment equal to tleerpopening accrued interest will be treated asrdéiaxable return
of such pre-reopening accrued interest and, acugisdiwill not be taxable as interest on the notes.
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SUPPLEMENTAL EUROPEAN UNION TAX CONSIDERATIONS

European Union Savings Directive

Under Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxatibisavings income (the “Savings Directive”), each
member state of the European Union (each a “Mer8tae”) is required to provide to the tax authestof another
Member State details of payments of interest oeragimilar income paid by a person within its jdrcsion to, or
secured by such a person for, an individual bera¢foevner resident in, or certain limited typeseotity established
in, that other Member State. However, for a tréamsétl period, Austria will (unless during such erit elects
otherwise) instead operate a withholding systenelition to such payments. The rate of withholds§5%.
However, the beneficial owner of the interest {orilsr income) payment may elect that certain psimn of
information procedures should be applied insteasliththolding, provided that certain conditions aret. The
transitional period is to terminate at the encheffirst full fiscal year following agreement byrtzén non-European
Union countries to exchange of information proceduelating to interest and other similar income.

A number of non-European Union countries and aerdapendent or associated territories of certaimivés
States have adopted similar measures to the Sabingrgive.

The Council of the European Union has adopted adiire amending the Savings Directive (the “Amegdin
Directive™) which, when implemented, will broadédretSavings Directive’s scope. The Member Statdshaile
until January 1, 2016 to adopt national legislati@eessary to comply with the Amending Directivljch
legislation must apply from January 1, 2017. Thanges made under the Amending Directive includersing
the scope of the Savings Directive to payments n@da secured for, certain other entities andllegrangements
(including certain trusts and partnerships), wioeméain conditions are satisfied. They also brogterdefinition of
“interest payment” to cover certain additional tyjd income.

The Savings Directive may, however, be repealatigicourse in order to avoid overlap with the areend
Council Directive 2011/16/EU on administrative ceogtion in the field of taxation, pursuant to whidember
States will be required to apply other new measonasiandatory automatic exchange of informatiomfro
January 1, 2016.

Investors who are in any doubt as to their posisisould consult their professional advisers.

If a payment under a note were to be made by apénsa Member State or another country or ternyitor
which has opted for a withholding system and anuwarhof, or in respect of, tax were to be withhelzhi that
payment pursuant to the Savings Directive or ahgrotlirective implementing the conclusions of ti&FIN
Council meetings of November 26 and 27, 2000, Déeerh3, 2001, and January 21, 2003, or any law or
agreement implementing or complying with, or intiodd in order to conform to, such a directive,maitve nor
any other person would be obliged to pay additiamabunts under the terms of such note as a rdghi¢ o
imposition of such withholding tax. Holders shoatzhsult their tax advisors regarding the implicasiof the
Savings Directive in their particular circumstances

The Proposed Financial Transactions Tax (“FTT")

The European Commission has published a propdsal'@Qommission’s Proposal”) for a Directive for a
common FTT in Austria, Belgium, Estonia, Francerr@ay, Greece, Italy, Portugal, Slovenia, Slovalkid Spain
(the “participating Member States”).

The Commission’s Proposal has very broad scopeauld, if introduced in its current form, applydertain
dealings in the notes (including secondary mariegtsactions) in certain circumstances.

Under the Commission’s Proposal, the FTT couldyajpptertain circumstances to persons both withid a
outside of the participating Member States. Gehgridlwould apply to certain dealings in the novdsere at least
one party is a financial institution, and at leas¢ party is established in a participating Menthate. A financial
institution may be, or be deemed to be, “estabtisivea participating Member State in a broad raofje
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circumstances, including (a) by transacting witieason established in a participating Member Sia{b) where
the financial instrument which is subject to thelthgs is issued in a participating Member State.

The FTT remains subject to negotiation betweerp#récipating Member States and the legality of the
proposal is uncertain. It may therefore be altgméal to any implementation. Additional EuropeanidénMember
States may decide to participate and/or certatheparticipating Member States may decide to wiihd

In May 2014, a joint statement by ministers of plaeticipating Member States (excluding Sloveniappsed
“progressive implementation” of the FTT, with timétial form applying the tax only to transactionsshares and
some derivatives. On January 27, 2015, a furthiet gpatement by ministers of the participating MemStates
(excluding Greece) was released, confirming thegiglon that the FTT should be based on the pilimcpthe
widest possible base and low rates while takinigcfutsideration of the impacts on the real econamyrisk of
relocation of the financial sector. The statemésu eeiterated a willingness to create the conulitioecessary to
implement the FTT on January 1, 2016.

Prospective holders of the notes are advised totee@ own professional advice in relation to FET.

United Kingdom Provision of Information Requirements

The comments below are of a general nature andased on current United Kingdom (“UK”) tax law as
applied in England and Wales and published praabcelM Revenue & Customs (*HMRC”), the UK tax
authorities. Such law may be repealed, revokedaitified and such practice may not bind HMRC andhasy
change (in each case, possibly with retrospectifee®, resulting in UK tax consequences diffefemt those
discussed below. The comments below deal onlyUMtrules relating to information that may need ®trovided
to HMRC in connection with the notes. They do eal &ith any other UK tax consequences of acqujravening
or disposing of the notes. Each prospective invesiould seek advice based on its particular cirstances from
an independent tax adviser

HMRC has powers to obtain information relatingéolgities in certain circumstances. This may inelud
details of the beneficial owners of the notes [jer persons for whom the notes are held), detailseopersons to
whom payments derived from the notes are or mgyaland information and documents in connectidh wi
transactions relating to the notes. Information tm@yequired to be provided by, amongst othershdhders of the
notes, persons by or through whom payments defread the notes are made or credited or who recgich
payments (or who would be entitled to receive sumyments if they were made), persons who effeat®ia party
to transactions relating to the notes on behattioérs and certain registrars or administratorsehtain
circumstances, the information obtained by HMRC ayxchanged with tax authorities in other coestri
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UNDERWRITING
Subject to the terms and conditions in the undéngragreement between us and the underwritersawe
agreed to sell to the underwriters, and the undmsrhave agreed to purchase from us, severatiyanjointly,
the principal amounts of notes set forth below.

Principal Amount of

Underwriter Notes

BBVA SeCUMEES INC.uuuiiiiiiiieiieiiii e Ps. 583,340,000
Citigroup Global Markets In ..., 583,340,000
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) Ll.......coovvirriiiiiiiiieieiineeeeen, 583,330,000
Deutsche Bank Secuies INC.........ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee, 583,330,000
HSBC Securities (USA) IN......ccooiiiiiiiii e 583,330,000
Morgan Stanle & Co. LLC.........ouvviiiiiiiiieiiiiiieieeeeeee 583,330,000
TOUAI et Ps. 3,500,000,000

The underwriting agreement provides that the obliga of the underwriters to purchase the noteswalogect
to approval of legal matters by counsel and torotlbaditions. The underwriting agreement provides the
underwriters are obligated to purchase all of thies if any are purchased.

The underwriters propose to offer the notes aptite to public set forth on the cover page of fhrisspectus
supplement. The underwriters may also offer thestit securities dealers at that price less amastoselling
concession. After the initial offering of the ngtdse underwriters may from time to time vary tlfierong price and
other selling terms. The underwriters may offer aelithe notes through certain of their affiliates

We estimate that our out-of-pocket expenses fardfiering will be approximately U.S.$350,000.

The notes are a new issue of securities with rebbshed trading market. The original notes atedisand
application has been made to list the notes, o®ffieial List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange foading on
the Euro MTF Market. The original notes and theesare listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange. Horyeve
will not be required to maintain such listings.

We have selected the underwriters named above esamderwriters for this offering and for futwféerings
of our Mexican peso-denominated notes. We antieiffat each of the underwriters will make a seconaearket
for these notes and, in connection therewith, pokt bid and offer price quotations. If any undéevrdoes not
make a market in these notes to our reasonabgfasdion, we currently do not intend to engage timaterwriter for
future offerings of our Mexican peso-denominatetes.o

Each underwriter will engage in any market-makintijvéties with respect to these Mexican peso-
denominated notes independently from us, eithe@riasipal for its own account or as agent for tobecant of its
clients. We plan to request reports or informafram the underwriters regarding their respectivekaamaking
activities with respect to these notes. An unddammay discontinue market-making activities wigspect to these
notes at any time. Although we can provide no ass@s concerning the actual future trading mavketelieve
that the market-making activities will contributethe liquidity of the trading market for these et

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters agéadslities under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933
amended, or contribute to payments which the undtens may be required to make in that respect.

Stabilization and Short Positions

In connection with the offering of the notes, tmelerwriters may, subject to applicable law, engage
overallotment, stabilizing transactions and syndi@@vering transactions. Overallotment involvdesa excess
of the offering size, which creates a short posifar the underwriters. Stabilizing transactiongoive bids to
purchase the notes in the open market for the parpbpegging, fixing or maintaining the price loé thotes.
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Syndicate covering transactions involve purchaséseonotes in the open market after the distrdutias been
completed in order to cover short positions. Siahify transactions and syndicate covering transastmay cause
the price of the notes to be higher than it wodkieowise be in the absence of those transactibtie Linderwriters
engage in stabilizing or syndicate covering tratisas, they may discontinue them at any time.

Selling Restrictions

The notes are offered for sale in those jurisdigim the United States, Europe, Asia and elsewlvbege it
is lawful to make such offers.

European Economic Area

The underwriters have represented, warranted aregddghat, in relation to each Member State of the
European Economic Area which has implemented tbspg@ctus Directive (each, a “Relevant Member Syateth
effect from and including the date on which thesdpeztus Directive is implemented in that Relevaetrier State,
it has not made and will not make an offer of notethe public in that Relevant Member State pioathe
publication of a prospectus in relation to the satdich has been approved by the competent authiorihat
Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approvanother Relevant Member State and notifigdiéo
competent authority in that Relevant Member Staten accordance with the Prospectus Directiveepx that it
may, with effect from and including the Relevanplementation Date, make an offer of notes to thH#ipin that
Relevant Member State at any time:

(a) toany legal entity which is a qualified invasas defined in the Prospectus Directive;

(b) to fewer than 100, or, if the Relevant Membet&has implemented the relevant provisions o201
PD Amending Directive, 150, natural or legal pess@ther than qualified investors as defined in the
Prospectus Directive), as permitted under the fagp Directive, subject to obtaining the prior
consent of the representative or representativesnaded by us for any such offer; or

(c) in any other circumstances falling within Al§3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, provided tiasuch
offer of notes shall require us or any underwttitepublish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 ef th
Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expresarotioffer of notes to the public” in relation toyanotes in
any Relevant Member State means the communicatianyi form and by any means of sufficient informaton
the terms of the offer and the notes to be offeeds to enable an investor to decide to purchrasebscribe for
the notes, as the same may be varied in that Rel&@mber State by any measure implementing thspeaus
Directive in that Relevant Member State; “Prosped@irective” means European Council Directive 2GQB£C
(and amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD AlingrDirective) and includes any relevant implenrant
measure in the Relevant Member State; and “201@Bnding Directive” means Directive 2010/73/EU.

United Kingdom
Each underwriter has represented, warranted amegddghat:

(1) it has only communicated or caused to be conicated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated an invitation or inducement to engagevestment activity (within the meaning of
Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets2800 (the “FSMA”)) received by it in connection
with the issue or sale of the notes in circumstartavhich Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply
to us; and

(2) it has complied and will comply with all apgiale provisions of the FSMA with respect to anyghin
done by it in relation to the notes in, from orethise involving the United Kingdom.

Hong Kong

The notes may not be offered or sold by meansytlanument other than (i) in circumstances whicmdb
constitute an offer to the public within the meanai the Companies Ordinance (Cap.32, Laws of Hoorag), or
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(ii) to “professional investors” within the meaninfithe Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 5&8is of Hong
Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) meotcircumstances which do not result in the doeurbeing a
“prospectus” within the meaning of the Companiediance (Cap.32, Laws of Hong Kong), and no adsemient,
invitation or document relating to the notes maydseied or may be in the possession of any pemdhé purpose
of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong omgisee), which is directed at, or the contents ofchvfare likely
to be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kergept if permitted to do so under the laws of ¢i&ng) other
than with respect to notes which are or are inténidée disposed of only to persons outside Honggkar only to
“professional investors” within the meaning of tBecurities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Lawoofy
Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

Japan

The notes have not been and will not be registenei@ér the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of
Japan (as amended, the “FIEL") and each undervirétsragreed that it will not offer or sell any rsotdirectly or
indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit @y resident of Japan (which term as used hereamsa@ny person
resident in Japan, including any corporation oeo#ntity organized under the laws of Japan), athers for re-
offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japer to a resident of Japan, except pursuant examption from the
registration requirements of, and otherwise in demnpe with, the FIEL and any other applicable |lamegulations
and ministerial guidelines of Japan.

Singapore

This prospectus supplement and the accompanyirgpectus have not been registered as a prospedtus wi
the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordinglyig prospectus supplement and the accompanyingqrns
and any other document or material in connectidh tiie offer or sale, or invitation for subscriptior purchase, of
the notes may not be circulated or distributed,may the notes be offered or sold, or be madeuhjed of an
invitation for subscription or purchase, whetheedily or indirectly, to persons in Singapore otthemn (i) to an
institutional investor under Section 274 of theB&®s and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singaptire (SFA”),

(ii) to a relevant person, or any person pursua@ection 275(1A), and in accordance with the doors, specified
in Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise punsutn, and in accordance with the conditions of; afer
applicable provision of the SFA.

Where the notes are subscribed or purchased uedgois275 of the SFA by a relevant person whicliasa
corporation (which is not an accredited investbg) $ole business of which is to hold investmentstha entire
share capital of which is owned by one or moreviddials, each of whom is an accredited investofppa trust
(where the trustee is not an accredited investbgse sole purpose is to hold investments and ezrotfibiary is an
accredited investor, shares, debentures and ursteaces and debentures of that corporation obéneficiaries’
rights and interest in that trust will not be triemable for six months after that corporation @tttust has acquired
the notes under Section 275 of the SFA excepto(&j institutional investor under Section 274haf EFA or to a
relevant person, or any person pursuant to Se2ib(1LA) of the SFA and in accordance with the cbous,
specified in Section 275 of the SFA; (2) where apstderation is given for the transfer; or (3) Ipgiation of law.

Mexico

The notes are concurrently being offered in Mexiaosuant to a prospectus approved by the CNBV. The
notes will be registered with the Mexican NatioBakurities Registry maintained by the CNBV.

Peru

The notes and the information contained in thispeotus supplement have not been and will not be
registered with or approved by the Peruvian Caplialkets Superintendenc8(perintendencia del Mercado de
Valoreg or the Lima Stock Exchange. Accordingly, the satannot be offered or sold in Peru, except if such
offering is considered a private offering under slkeeurities laws and regulations of Peru. The Ranusecurities
market law establishes, among others, that anicpkat offer may qualify as private if it is dir@ct exclusively to
institutional investors.
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Chile

Neither the issuer nor the notes are register#ueiiBecurities Registrjrégistro de Valorgr the Foreign
Securities RegistryRegistro de Valores Extranjefpsf the Chilean Securities and Insurance Comnmissio
(Superintendencia de Valores y Seguros de L{8/S”), or subject to the control and superwsif the SVS.
The notes may not be offered or sold in Chile,dlyeor indirectly, by means of a “Public Offer"qaefined under
Chilean Securities Law (Law No 18,045 and regutetifstom the SVS of the Republic of Chile)), and raily be
offered and sold to a limited number of purchapersuant to a private offering within the meanifd\dicle 4 of
the Chilean Securities Market Adtdy de Mercado de Valorehilean institutional investors (such as banks,
pension funds and insurance companies) are requirgsmply with specific restrictions relating teetpurchase of
the notes.

T+5 Settlement

We expect that delivery of the notes will be magaiast payment therefor on or about the closing dat
specified on the cover page of this prospectuslsommt, which is the fifth business day followimg tdate hereof
(this settlement cycle being referred to as “T+8%Mder Rule 15¢6-1 under the Exchange Act, tragdsa
secondary market generally are required to settlleree business days, unless the parties tortus expressly
agree otherwise. Accordingly, purchasers who wasinatde notes on the date hereof or the next sditapé).S.
business day will be required, by virtue of the that the notes initially will settle in T+5, tpacify an alternate
settlement cycle at the time of any such traded¢ugnt a failed settlement and should consult it advisor.

Other Matters

The underwriters and their respective affiliategehangaged in, and may in the future engage isinvent
banking, commercial banking, financial advisory atiger transactions and matters in the ordinaryssoaf
business with us and our affiliates. They haveivedecustomary fees and commissions for thesedrdioss.

In the ordinary course of their various busineds/iies, the underwriters and their respectivaliates may
make or hold a broad array of investments and @gtivade debt and equity securities (or related/deve
securities) and financial instruments (includingkboans) for their own account and for the accewftheir
customers. Such investments and securities aeumtiay involve securities and/or instruments ofcampany or
our affiliates. If any of the underwriters or theffiliates has a lending relationship with ustaier of those
underwriters or their affiliates may routinely hedyeir credit exposure to us consistent with thegtomary risk
management policies. Typically, underwriters arairthffiliates would hedge such exposure by enggirito
transactions which consist of either the purchdseadlit default swaps or the creation of shoritpmss in our
securities, including potentially the notes offereteby. Any such credit default swaps or shoritjpos could
adversely affect future trading prices of the natésred hereby. The underwriters and their respedffiliates
may also make investment recommendations and/dishudy express independent research views in cegfpe
such securities or instruments and may, at any, tirolel or recommend to clients that they acquaeglor short
positions in such securities and instruments.
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VALIDITY OF NOTES

The validity of the notes offered and sold in tifering will be passed upon for us by Cleary Gektl
Steen & Hamilton LLP, our United States counsed] fon the underwriters by Simpson Thacher & BartgiP,
United States counsel to the underwriters. Certadtters of Mexican law relating to the notes wdlgmssed upon
for us by Bufete Robles Miaja, S.C., our Mexicanrcgel, and for the underwriters by Greenberg Tea@iC.,
Mexican counsel to the underwriters.
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EXPERTS

Our consolidated financial statements appearirtgar?013 Form 20-F, and the effectiveness of diermal
control over financial reporting as of December A113, have been audited by Mancera, S.C., a mepnaetice of
Ernst & Young Global Limited, an independent regiistl public accounting firm, as set forth in threports
thereon, included therein, and incorporated hdrgireference. Such consolidated financial statesnere
incorporated herein by reference in reliance upah seports given on the authority of such firmeggerts in
accounting and auditing.
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LISTING AND GENERAL INFORMATION

We have applied to have the notes admitted fandjsin the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange for trading on the Euro MTF Market.

The notes have been accepted for clearance afedrsatt through Euroclear and Clearstream. The ISIN
number and the Common Code for the notes is kil
ISIN Number Common Cod

7.12%% Senior Notes due 20: XS107531491 10753149

We have obtained all necessary consents, apprandlauthorizations in connection with the issuaara
performance of the notes. Resolutions of our be&directors, dated August 5, 2013 authorized the
issuance of the notes.

Except as described in this listing prospectuduifing the documents incorporated by referenceitere
there are no pending actions, suits or proceediggsist or affecting us or any of our subsidiacieany of
their properties, which, if determined adverselysoor any such subsidiary, would individually oithe
aggregate have an adverse effect on our finanaialitton and that of our subsidiaries taken as alevbr
would adversely affect our ability to perform ounligations under the notes or which are otherwise
material in the context of the issue of the nahesl, to the best of our knowledge, no such actigunts or
proceedings are threatened.

Except as described in this listing prospectusiaride documents incorporated by reference, since
December 31, 2013, there has been no change (aleaelopment or event involving a prospective cleang
of which we are or might reasonably be expectdattaware) which is materially adverse to our financ
condition and that of our subsidiaries taken asialev

For so long as any of the notes are outstandingdnmtted for listing on the Official List of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and trading on the Eufé Market, copies of the following items in
English will be available free of charge from ThanR of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A., our
listing agent, at its office at Vertigo BuildingRelaris, 2-4 rue Eugene Ruppert, L-2453 Luxembourg,
Luxembourg:

» our audited consolidated financial statements &eakmber 31, 2013 and 2012 and for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012;

» our interim financial data for the year ended Deoen81, 2014;

» our unaudited interim condensed consolidated filmdustatements as of September 30, 2014 and
for the three and nine months ended Septembel033, @nd 2014; and

» any related notes to these items.

For as long as any of the notes are outstandingdmitted for listing on the Official List of theukembourg
Stock Exchange and trading on the Euro MTF Mart@tjes of our current annual financial statements a
unaudited financial information may be obtainedrfrour Luxembourg listing agent at its office lisedabve. We
do not prepare non-consolidated financial statesaent

During the same period, the indenture, the additiootes supplement, supplemental indenture aopy af
our articles of incorporation will be availabletlaé offices of The Bank of New York Mellon and TBank of New
York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A. We will, for so lores any notes are admitted for listing on the Cffitist of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and trading on the Eufé Market, maintain a paying agent in New York adlas
in Luxembourg.

Copies of our constitutive documents are availablée office of The Bank of New York Mellon
(Luxembourg) S.A., the paying agent in Luxembourg.
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The trustee for the notes is The Bank of New Yordltvh, having its office at 101 Barclay Street, Néark,
New York 10286. The terms and conditions of ouraipiment of The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee,
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including the terms and conditions under which Baek of New York Mellon may be replaced as trustee,
contained in the indenture and the supplementahitaies available for inspection at the office3loé Bank of
New York Mellon and The Bank of New York Mellon (kembourg) S.A.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V. is a corporatiosotiedad andnima bursatil de capital varighteganized
under the laws of Mexico with its principal exeeetregistered offices at Lago Zurich 245, Edifilcel, Colonia
Ampliacion Granada, Delegacién Miguel Hidalgo, 195RIéxico D.F., México. We were incorporated on
September 29, 2000. Our corporate object, as stat&dicle Third of our bylaws, is to carry outyanbject not
prohibited by law. We were registered in fRRegistro Publico de Comerc{®ublic Registry of Commerce) of
Mexico City on October 13, 2000 under the numb&7Z6. We are a holding company and our principsé@sare
shares that we hold in our subsidiaries. The amoluoar paid-in, authorized capital stock was P98 million as
of December 31, 2013. The total issued and outstgrsthares as of December 31, 2013 was 70,475milDur
capital stock is comprised of three classes: Gds<Class A; and Class L. Each AA Share and A Sleatéles the
holder thereof to one vote at any meeting of oareiolders. Each L Share entitles the holder thépeme vote
solely on certain limited matters. For further mf@tion about our capital structure, including mfation about the
number of shares outstanding in each class, sa® Tt—Major Shareholders and Related Party Trarsesst-
Major Shareholders” in our 2013 Form 20-F.
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PROSPECTUS

moa~-il

América Maovil, S.A.B. de C.V.

Debt Securities

Denominated and Payable in Mexican Pesos

We may from time to time offer debt securities danm@ted and payable in Mexican pesos (the “MXN si9tpursuant to this
prospectus. This prospectus describes some oktherg terms that may apply to the MXN notes aedggneral manner in which
they may be offered. The specific terms of eaclesaf MXN notes will be described in a prospecupplement to this prospectus.

We may also concurrently offer MXN notes in Mexjmarsuant to a prospectus that will be subject @@l by theComision
Nacional Bancaria y de Valordthe Mexican National Banking and Securities Consiois, or “CNBV”). The MXN notes will be
registered with th®egistro Nacional de Valordthe “Mexican National Securities Registry”) maimed by the CNBV.

Unless we provide otherwise in the applicable peosps supplement, the MXN notes will have the feifay general terms:

* The MXN notes will be our unsecured and unsulmaidid obligations and will rank equally in rightpEfyment with all
of our other unsecured and unsubordinated debt.

* The MXN notes will bear interest at a fixed adting rate. If the MXN notes bear interest aiatihg rate, the floating
interest rate formula will be based on one or nbarge rates plus or minus a fixed amount or muttipliy a specified
percentage.

*  We will pay all amounts due on the MXN notedviaxican pesos.

Investment in the MXN notes involves risks. See “Rk Factors” beginning on page 5 of this
prospectus.

Neither the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissidthe “SEC”) nor any state securities commission reapproved or
disapproved of these securities or determined if th prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supphent is truthful or
complete. Any representation to the contrary is areminal offense.

THIS PROSPECTUS IS SOLELY OUR RESPONSIBILITY AND HA S NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR AUTHORIZED
BY THE CNBV. THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ANY OFFER OF MXN NOTES OUTSIDE OF MEXICO WILL BE
NOTIFIED TO THE CNBV FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY AND SUCH NOTICE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A
CERTIFICATION AS TO THE INVESTMENT VALUE OF THE MXN  NOTES OR OUR SOLVENCY. THE
REGISTRATION OF THE MXN NOTES WITH THE MEXICAN NATI ONAL SECURITIES REGISTRY DOES NOT
IMPLY ANY CERTIFICATION AS TO THE INVESTMENT VALUE  OF THE MXN NOTES, OUR SOLVENCY OR THE
ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, AND D OES NOT VALIDATE ANY ACT DONE IN
VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAWS.
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We are responsible for the information contained irthis prospectus, any accompanying prospectus sugphent and the
documents incorporated by reference herein and thein. We have not authorized any person to give yany other
information, and we take no responsibility for anyother information that others may give you. This deument may only be
used where it is legal to sell the MXN notes. Youlnsuld not assume that the information contained irthis prospectus, any
accompanying prospectus supplement and the documenincorporated by reference is accurate as of anyate other than their
respective dates. Our business, financial conditiomesults of operations and prospects may have chgad since those dates.
We are not making an offer of MXN notes in any jursdiction where the offer is not permitted.



ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statertteattwe filed with the SEC using a “shelf’ regadton process. Under this
shelf process, América Mdvil, S.A.B. de C.V. maynfrtime to time offer debt securities.

As used in this prospectus, “América Mévil,” “wegur” and “us” refer to América Mdvil, S.A.B. de €. and its consolidated
subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requoiresmless otherwise specified.

This prospectus only provides a general descriifdhe MXN notes. Each time we offer MXN notes, widl prepare a
prospectus supplement containing specific inforamagibout the particular offering and the specé#iarts of the MXN notes. If any
information in the prospectus supplement, including changes in the terms of the MXN notes, isnsaent with this prospectus,
you should rely on the information in the prospecupplement. We may also add, update or changeiafiormation contained in
this prospectus by means of a prospectus supplemnéytincorporating by reference information we fivith the SEC. The
registration statement that we filed with the SECludes exhibits that provide more detail on thétens discussed in this prospectus.

Before you invest in the MXN notes, you should réad prospectus, any related prospectus suppleamehthe related exhibits
filed with the SEC, together with the additionabinrmation described under the headings “Where Yan Eind More Information”
and “Incorporation of Certain Documents by Refesehc



IMPORTANT CURRENCY INFORMATION

You are required to pay for the purchase of the Migies in Mexican pesos. The agents or the underaninay, in their
discretion and upon your request, arrange for tmeersion of your payment in U.S. dollars or anotherency into Mexican pesos
in order to facilitate the purchase of the MXN rsotall conversions will be made by the agents eruhderwriters at the applicable
exchange rate quoted by them in their absoluteetiso and on the terms that they may from timene establish in accordance
with their regular foreign exchange practice. Yall lae responsible for paying all commissions aeelsffor any currency conversion
related to the purchase of the MXN notes.

We will make all payments on the MXN notes, inchglpayments of interest and the payment of priheipmaturity, in
Mexican pesos. Consequently, investors with aceotinatt cannot accept payments on the MXN notesari®dn pesos must
determine how to convert these payments into Wbfard or another currency. Your financial instibat may automatically convert
payments from Mexican pesos into U.S. dollars attaer currency if you do not arrange for accounilifies denominated in
Mexican pesos. You will be responsible for payiig@ammissions and fees for any currency conversatgited to any payment on
the MXN notes.



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information contained or incorporatgeddierence in this prospectus may constitute “émaMooking statements”
within the meaning of the safe harbor provision¥loé Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of98 Although we have based
these forward-looking statements on our expectatiord projections about future events, it is péssiat actual events may differ
materially from our expectations. In many casesjnglide together with the forward-looking statesahemselves a discussion of
factors that may cause actual events to differ foomforward-looking statements. Examples of fomvimoking statements include
the following:

. projections of operating revenues, net incorassfl, net income (loss) per share, capital expamditindebtedness levels,
dividends, capital structure or other financiairiteor ratios;

. statements of our plans, objectives or goatduding those relating to acquisitions, competiti@gulation and rates;
. statements about our future economic performandeat of Mexico or other countries in which weeoate;

. competitive developments in the telecommunicegti®ector in each of the markets where we operat¢cowhich we
may expand,;

. other factors and trends affecting the telecomations industry generally and our financial dtind in particular; and

. statements of assumptions underlying the foregetatements.

” ow ” o« [T

We use words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “pldiexpect,” “intend,” “target,” “estimate,” “projet,” “predict,” “forecast,”
“guideline,” “should” and other similar expressidesdentify forward-looking statements, but theg aot the only way we identify
such statements.

Forward-looking statements involve inherent riskd ancertainties. We caution you that a numbemgiortant factors could
cause actual results to differ materially from hens, objectives, expectations, estimates andtiotes expressed in such forward-
looking statements. These factors, some of whietdecussed under “Risk Factors” in our most reaenual report on 20-F, which
is incorporated in this prospectus by referencg raports on Form 6-K that may be incorporatedis prospectus by reference or a
prospectus supplement, include economic and pallitisnditions and government policies in MexicoaBr or elsewhere, inflation
rates, exchange rates, regulatory developmentmaoagical improvements, customer demand and catigretSee “Where You
Can Find More Information” for information aboutwdo obtain a copy of these documents. We cautiontlyat the foregoing list of
factors is not exclusive and that other risks amecettainties may cause actual results to diffelenedty from those in forward-
looking statements.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the ttety are made. We undertake no obligation toigyhlpdate or revise
any forward-looking statements, whether as a regulew information or future events or for anyetheason.

You should evaluate any statements made by ughhdf these important factors.



AMERICA MOVIL

América Mavil provides telecommunications servige48 countries. América Mdvil is the largest paesi of wireless
communications services in Latin America, basethemumber of subscribers, with the largest maskate in Mexico and the third-
largest market share in Brazil, in each case basde number of subscribers. América Moévil alse major fixed-line operations in
Mexico, Brazil and 12 other countries. As of Sepdtem30, 2012, América Movil had 255.9 million wiess subscribers and
62.8 million fixed revenue generating units in fmaericas.

América Mdvil, S.A.B. de C.V. is sociedad anonima bursétil de capital varialdlganized under the laws of Mexico with its
principal executive offices at Lago Zurich 245, figild Telcel, Colonia Granada Ampliacion, Delegaciiguel Hidalgo, 11529,
México D.F., México. Our telephone number at tbisation is (5255) 2581-4449.



RISK FACTORS

We have set forth risk factors in our most recemtual report on Form 20-F, which is incorporatedregjerence in this
prospectus. We have also set forth below certatfitiathal risk factors that relate specifically tbeg MXN notes. We may include
further risk factors in more recent reports on FoBAK incorporated in this prospectus by refererardn a prospectus supplement.
You should carefully consider all these risk fastior addition to the other information presentedrarorporated by reference in this
prospectus.

Risks Relating to the MXN Notes
Creditors of our subsidiaries will have priority @vthe holders of the MXN notes in claims to assktsir subsidiaries

Our MXN notes will be obligations of América M&éihd not any of our subsidiaries. We conduct subatnall of our
business and hold substantially all of our as$etsigh our subsidiaries. Claims of creditors of suipsidiaries, including trade
creditors and bank and other lenders, will haverjtyi over the holders of MXN notes in claims t@ets of our subsidiaries. Our
ability to meet our obligations, including undee XN notes, will depend, in significant part, oar @eceipt of cash dividends,
advances and other payments from our subsidiaries.

All of our outstanding debt securities that wesied in the Mexican and international markets thinamid-September 2011
are unconditionally guaranteed by our subsidiargi®advil Dipsa, S.A. de C.V. (“Telcel”). Accordinglthe holders of those
outstanding debt securities will have priority otlee holders of the unguaranteed MXN notes offénethis prospectus with respect
to claims to the assets of Telcel.

Our obligations under the MXN notes would be comeein the event of bankruptcy

Under Mexico’'sLey de Concursos Mercantiléisaw on Mercantile Reorganization), if we were @eetl bankrupt or in
concurso mercantilbankruptcy reorganization), our obligations unither MXN notes:

» would be converted from Mexican pesos into tidlaadjusted units, ddnidades de Inversién
» would be satisfied at the time claims of all oteditors are satisfied;

» would be subject to the outcome of, and priesitiecognized in, the relevant proceedings;

* would cease to accrue interest; and

* would not be adjusted to take into account arpreigation of the Mexican peso against the U.Sadok other currency
occurring after such declaration.

There may not be a liquid trading market

If an active market for our MXN notes does not depgethe price of the MXN notes and the abilityadfiolder of MXN notes
to find a ready buyer will be adversely affected.&result, we cannot assure you as to the liguidiany trading market for the
MXN notes.

Risks Relating to Mexican Pesos as Currency of Paynts

There are risks inherent in investments in se@sitdenominated and payable in Mexican pesos fanesstor whose home currency
is not Mexican pesos

You should consult your financial, legal and taxiadrs as to the specific risks of investing inuseies that are denominated
and payable in a currency other than the currehttyeocountry in which you are resident or in whydu conduct your business. We
refer to the currency of your home country as ybwme currency.” For U.S. investors, the U.S. dolfauld be the home currency.
The MXN notes are not appropriate investmentsrfeestors who do not understand foreign currencii@nge risks.

Any depreciation of the Mexican peso against yaumé currency will reduce the effective yield onNheN notes in home currency
terms, and the amount payable at maturity may & tlean your investment in home country termsjtregun a loss to you

Exchange rates between the Mexican peso and aitr@ncies vary significantly from period to periddistorical exchange
rates are not necessarily indicative of future gearin rates and should not be relied upon asdtidecof future trends.



Exchange rates can be volatile and unpredictahllee IMexican peso depreciates against your honreroey, the effective
yield on the MXN notes, measured in your home cwayewill be less than the interest rate on the Mixatkes, and the amount
payable on the MXN notes at maturity may be leas tyour investment in home country terms, resuliting loss to you.
Depreciation of the Mexican peso against your hoareency could also adversely affect the markatevalf the MXN notes.

Mexican governmental policy and other factors caddersely affect the exchange rate between théchtepeso and your home
currency, which could adversely affect your investiin the MXN notes

Mexican governmental policy or action could advisradfect the exchange rate between the Mexican pad other
currencies, which may, in turn, negatively affét tharket value of the MXN notes as well as, in baurrency terms, the yield on
the MXN notes and the amount payable on the MXNsiat maturity. Thus, a special risk in purchasiregMXN notes is that their
liquidity, trading value and amount payable coudddlffected by the actions of sovereign governmibatiscould change or interfere
with previously freely determined currency valuatipfluctuations in response to other market foecesthe movement of currencies
across borders. There will be no offsetting adjesthor change made during the term of the MXN niotdise event that the
exchange rate between Mexican pesos and any atfrency should become fixed. Nor will there be affgetting adjustment or
change in the event of any devaluation or revatnadr imposition of exchange or other regulatonytoals or taxes or in the event of
other developments affecting the Mexican peso.

Exchange rate movements are also influenced signiliy from time to time by political or economiexelopments, and by
macroeconomic factors and speculative actionsaelat the Mexican peso or other currencies. Chaingbg exchange rate result
over time from the interaction of many factors dilgor indirectly affecting economic and politicanditions in Mexico and
elsewhere, including: (i) existing and expecte@saif inflation; (ii) existing and expected intdresge levels; (iii) levels of interest
rate and exchange rate volatility, which impactency bid/offer spreads; (iv) balance of paymeants} (v) the extent of
governmental surpluses or deficits in Mexico arelitinited States. All of these factors are in t@ns#ive to the monetary, fiscal and
trade policies pursued by the governments of Meaind the United States and other countries impottainternational trade and
finance. Fluctuations in the exchange rates betweeiMexican peso and your home currency couldaffee value of your interest
and principal payments measured in your home coyras well as the value of the MXN notes in theordary market.

Exchange controls could impair our ability to mak@yments or negatively affect payments on the Mx{ékn

The Mexican government currently does not restaict| for many years has not restricted, the riglbdity of Mexican or
foreign persons or entities to convert Mexican pesto another currency or to transfer other cuiesout of Mexico. However, the
government could institute restrictive exchange patlicies or regulations which could result in kgmation of the Mexican peso
against your home currency, resulting in a redyeeld to holders of the MXN notes, a possible lossyour investment in the MXN
notes and a possible decline in the market valukeoMXN notes. In addition, any restrictive excharcontrols could impair our
ability to make payments on the MXN notes in acao® with the terms of the MXN notes.



USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless otherwise provided in the applicable proggesupplement, we intend to use the net proceedsthe sale of the MXN
notes for general corporate purposes.



DESCRIPTION OF MXN NOTES

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable progesupplement, the MXN notes will be issued uradiease indenture, dated
as of June 28, 2012 (the “base indenture”), anglsuapental indentures relating to particular seoieIXN notes (collectively, the
“indenture”). The indenture is an agreement ama)d'he Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, and atimer applicable party
thereto.

The following section summarizes the material tetimas are common to all series of MXN notes isdoyedmérica Movil
under the indenture, unless otherwise indicatedimsection or in the prospectus supplement nglat a particular series of MXN
notes. We will describe the particular terms oteseries of MXN notes in a prospectus supplemetitisoprospectus.

Because this section is a summary, it does notitbesevery aspect of the MXN notes and the indentlihis summary is
subject to and qualified in its entirety by refererto all the provisions of the indenture, inclgpthe definition of various terms used
in the indenture. For example, we describe the igarfor only the more important terms that haverbgiven special meanings in
the indenture. We also include references in phssgis to some sections of the base indenture.

The indenture and the documents relating to eadbssaf MXN notes will together contain the fulbie text of the matters
summarized in this section. We have filed a copthefbase indenture with the SEC as an exhibhi¢gegistration statement of
which this prospectus forms a part. We will file@py of the supplemental indentures relating tdigaar series of MXN notes with
the SEC. Upon request, we will provide you withopyof the indenture. See “Where You Can Find Mofermation” for
information concerning how to obtain a copy.

In this section, references to “we,” “us” and “oare to América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V. only and dat mclude our
subsidiaries or affiliates. References to “holdengan those who have MXN notes registered in tiegimes on the books that we or
the trustee maintain for this purpose, and notalvadso own beneficial interests in MXN notes issireook-entry form or in MXN
notes registered in street name. Owners of beakfiterests in MXN notes should refer to “FormMXN Notes, Clearing and
Settlement.”

The MXN notes will be issued in one or more serléee following discussion of provisions of the MXMtes, including,

among others, the discussion of provisions destnilneler “—Optional Redemption,” “—Defaults, Remedand Waiver of
Defaults,” “—Modification and Waiver” and “—Defeasee,” applies to individual series of MXN notes.

General

Trustee

The trustee has the following two main roles:

* First, the trustee can enforce your rights adaiasf we default in respect of the MXN notes. fidhare some limitations
on the extent to which the trustee acts on youalielvhich we describe under “—Defaults, Remedied Waiver of
Defaults.”

» Second, the trustee performs administrativeedutir us, such as making interest payments ardingenotices to holders
of MXN notes.

Ranking of the MXN Notes

We are a holding company and our principal assetslaares that we hold in our subsidiaries. Our MXtes will not be
secured by any of our assets or properties. Asudtydy owning the MXN notes, you will be one afrainsecured creditors. The
MXN notes will not be subordinated to any of ounetunsecured debt obligations. In the event @frikituptcy or liquidation
proceeding against us, the MXN notes would rankalgin right of payment with all our other unseedrand unsubordinated debt.

The MXN notes will not be guaranteed by any of suipsidiaries. Claims of creditors of our subsiéigrincluding trade
creditors and bank and other lenders, will haverjtyi over the holders of the MXN notes in claimsassets of our subsidiaries.

All of our outstanding debt securities that wesied in the Mexican and international markets thinamid-September 2011
are unconditionally guaranteed by Telcel. Accortlinthe holders of those outstanding debt securitidl have priority over the
holders of the MXN notes with respect to claim#ie assets of Telcel.



Stated Maturity and Maturity

The day on which the principal amount of the MXNegois scheduled to become due is called the tstatgurity” of the
principal. The principal may become due beforestia¢ed maturity by reason of redemption or acctterafter a default. The day on
which the principal actually becomes due, whethéhastated maturity or earlier, is called the tundy” of the principal.

We also use the terms “stated maturity” and “m#tuto refer to the dates when interest paymenteive due. For example,
we may refer to a regular interest payment datenvaimeinstallment of interest is scheduled to becduoeeas the “stated maturity” of
that installment. When we refer to the “stated migtuor the “maturity” of the MXN notes without geifying a particular payment,
we mean the stated maturity or maturity, as the ozesy be, of the principal.

Payments of Interest

The MXN notes will bear interest at a fixed or tiog rate. If the MXN notes bear interest at atilograte, the floating interest
rate formula will be based on one or more bases fates or minus a fixed amount or multiplied bypadfied percentage.

Form and Denominations

The MXN notes will be issued only in registerednfionvithout coupons and in minimum denominations 200,000
principal amount and integral multiples of Ps.10,00excess thereof, unless otherwise specifigderapplicable prospectus
supplement(Section 302)

Except in limited circumstances, the MXN notes Wil issued in the form of global debt securitie®e $orm of MXN Notes,
Clearing and Settlement.”

Further Issues

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable progmesupplement, we reserve the right, from tim@nte without the consent
of holders of the MXN notes, to issue additional NIKotes on terms and conditions identical to thajsbe previously issued MXN
notes of a series (except for issue date, issge prid the date from which interest will accrue, @nabplicable, first be paid), which
additional MXN notes will increase the aggregaiag@pal amount of, and will be consolidated andrfa single series with, the
MXN notes of that seriegSection 203)

Payment Provisions
Payment of Purchase Price

You are required to pay for the purchase of MXNesah Mexican pesos. The agents or the underwritess in their
discretion and upon your request, arrange for dmeersion of a payment in U.S. dollars or anotherency into Mexican pesos in
order to facilitate the purchase of MXN notes. @dhversions will be made by the agents or the wmiters at the applicable
exchange rate quoted by them in their absoluteetiso and on the terms that they may from timene establish in accordance
with their regular foreign exchange practice. Yall lae responsible for paying all commissions aeelsffor any currency conversion
related to the purchase of MXN notes.

Currency of Payments

We will pay principal, interest, additional intetesd any other amounts due in respect of the M&fdsin Mexican pesos.
Investors with accounts that cannot accept paynm@ntie MXN notes in Mexican pesos must determove to convert these
payments into U.S. dollars or another currency.rffmancial institution may automatically convegyments from Mexican pesos
into U.S. dollars or another currency if you do aotinge for Mexican pesos denominated accourditi@gi You will be responsible
for paying all commissions and fees related to@myency conversion with respect to any paymertherMXN notes.

Payments on MXN Notes

We will pay interest on the MXN notes on the ingtngayment dates stated in the applicable prospscieplement and at
maturity. Each payment of interest due on an istggayment date or at maturity will include intérascrued from and including the
last date to which interest has been paid or maakaale for payment, or from the issue date, ii@bas been paid or made available
for payment, to but excluding the relevant payndaie.



For interest due on MXN notes on an interest payrdate, we will pay the interest to the holder imose name the MXN notes
are registered at the close of business on théaregacord date relating to the interest paymeid.deor interest due at maturity but
on a day that is not an interest payment date, W@ay the interest to the person or entity eatitto receive the principal of the
MXN note. For principal due on MXN notes at matyrive will pay the amount to the holder of the MXhtes against surrender of
the MXN notes at the proper place of payméaection 306)

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable progmesupplement, we will compute interest on MXNesdoearing interest at
a fixed rate on the basis of the actual numbeagfdluring the relevant interest period and a 380year.

The regular record dates relating to the interaghent dates for any series of MXN notes will befeeh in the applicable
prospectus supplement.

Payments on Global MXN Notes. For MXN notes issued in global form, we will maka&yments on the MXN notes in
accordance with the applicable procedures of tipegitary as in effect from time to tim@ection 1002Under those procedures, we
will make payments directly to the depositary,temiominee, and not to any indirect holders who beumeficial interests in a global
MXN note. An indirect holder’s right to receive geopayments will be governed by the rules and igescof the depositary and its
participants.

Payments on Certificated MXN Notes. For MXN notes issued in certificated form, we vgly interest that is due on an interest
payment date by check mailed on the interest paydege to the holder at the holder’s address stmwihe trustee’s records as of
the close of business on the regular record dateywe will make all other payments by check topghging agent described below,
against surrender of the MXN note. All paymentsbgck may be made in next-day funds, that is, funatsbecome available on the
day after the check is cashed. If we issue MXN s\oiecertificated form, holders of MXN notes in tifitated form will be able to
receive payments of principal and interest on tNe{N notes at the office of our paying agent maim¢a in New York City.

(Sections 202 and 306)

Payment When Offices Are Closed

If any payment is due on a MXN note on a day thaidt a business day, we will make the paymenherday that is the next
business day. Payments postponed to the next lsgsiiagy in this situation will be treated underitidenture as if they were made on
the original due date. Postponement of this kintineit result in a default under the MXN notes loe indenture, and no interest will
accrue on the postponed amount from the originalddue to the next day that is a business day.

“Business day” means any day that is (a) not SajyrS8unday or any other day on which banking utstibs in London, New
York City or Mexico City generally are authorizedabligated by law, regulation or executive ordectose and (b) a day on which
banks and financial institutions in Mexico are of@nbusiness with the general publiBection 101)

Paying Agents

If we issue MXN notes in certificated form, we maypoint one or more financial institutions to acbar paying agents, at
whose designated offices the MXN notes may be sdamred for payment at their maturity. We may adglace or terminate paying
agents from time to timgyrovidedthat if any MXN notes are issued in certificatedhripso long as such MXN notes are outstanding,
we will maintain a paying agent in New York City.8/&hay also choose to act as our own paying agetially, we have appointed
the trustee, at its corporate trust office in Neark/City, as a paying agent. We must notify yoeloénges in the paying agents as
described under “—Notices.”

Unclaimed Payments

All money paid by us to the trustee or any payiggra that remains unclaimed at the end of two yafies the amount is due to
a holder will be repaid to us. After that two-y@ariod, the holder may look only to us for paymamd not to the trustee, any paying
agent or anyone elsgsection 1003)

Payment of Additional Interest

We are required by Mexican law to deduct Mexicathlolding taxes from payments of interest to haddgrMXN notes who
are not residents of Mexico for tax purposes asri®sl under “Taxation—Mexican Tax Considerations.”
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We will pay to holders of the MXN notes all additad interest that may be necessary so that evenyayenent of interest or
principal or premium to the holder will not be lekan the amount provided for in the MXN notes.r&y payment, we mean the
amount that we or our paying agent will pay thedeolafter deducting or withholding an amount foooraccount of any present or
future taxes, duties, assessments or other govetahuharges imposed or levied with respect toplagment by a Mexican taxing
authority.

Our obligation to pay additional interest is, ho@ewsubject to several important exceptions. Weneil pay additional interest
to or on behalf of any holder or beneficial owrmrio the trustee, for or on account of any offtillewing:

* any taxes, duties, assessments or other govatahoharges imposed solely because at any timne th@r was a
connection between the holder and Mexico (other tha mere receipt of a payment or the ownershiplating of a
MXN note);

* anytaxes, duties, assessments or other govetahobrarges imposed solely because the holderyootiwer person fails
to comply with any certification, identification other reporting requirement concerning the natipnaesidence,
identity or connection with Mexico of the holderamy beneficial owner of the MXN note if complianisgequired by
law, regulation or by an applicable income taxtiyréa which Mexico is a party, as a preconditiorek@mption from, or
reduction in the rate of, the tax, assessmenth@r @overnmental charge and we have given the tsotddeast 30
calendar days’ notice prior to the first paymertedaith respect to which such certification, idéostion or reporting
requirement is required to the effect that holdehsbe required to provide such information andntification;

e any taxes, duties, assessments or other govetahoharges with respect to a MXN note presertegdyment more
than 15 days after the date on which the paymesarbe due and payable or the date on which paymeredf is duly
provided for and notice thereof given to holdericlvever occurs later, except to the extent thahtbiders of such
MXN note would have been entitled to such additiamzrest on presenting such MXN note for paymamany date
during such 15-day period,;

* any estate, inheritance, gift or other similas, @ssessment or other governmental charge impasedespect to the
MXN notes;

* any tax, duty, assessment or other governmehgaje payable otherwise than by deduction or withihg from
payments on the MXN notes;

+ any payment on a MXN note to a holder thatfislaciary or partnership or a person other thanstble beneficial owner
of any such payment, to the extent that a beneficasettlor with respect to such fiduciary, a niiemof such a
partnership or the beneficial owner of the paynvemild not have been entitled to the additionalrggehad the
beneficiary, settlor, member or beneficial ownegrbthe holder of such MXN note;

* any taxes, duties, assessments or other govatahuharges that are imposed on a payment todiwidnal and are
required to be made pursuant to European Couniecbive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings ine@nany other
directive implementing the conclusions of the ECl®Elouncil meetings of November 26 and 27, 2000,ehdxer 13,
2001, and January 21, 2003, or any law or agreemmgimenting or complying with, or introduced irder to conform
to, such a directive; and

* any combination of the items in the bullet poiab®ve.(Section 1009)

The limitations on our obligations to pay additibimterest described in the second bullet pointvabwill not apply if the
provision of information, documentation or otherdence described in the applicable bullet point lkdae materially more onerous,
in form, in procedure or in the substance of infation disclosed, to a holder or beneficial ownea 8i1XN note, taking into account
any relevant differences between U.S. and Mexiaan tegulation or administrative practice, than pamble information or other
reporting requirements imposed under U.S. tax laalyding the United States/Mexico Income Tax Tygategulations (including
proposed regulations) and administrative prac{ection 1009(a))

Applicable Mexican regulations currently allow wsawithhold at a reduced rate, provided that we dgmyith certain
information reporting requirements. Accordinglyg fimitations on our obligations to pay additioimgerest described in the second
bullet point above also will not apply unless & provision of the information, documentation tires evidence described in the
applicable bullet point is expressly required by #pplicable Mexican regulations, (b) we cannohiobthe information,
documentation or other evidence necessary to comifitythe applicable Mexican regulations on our dtwough reasonable
diligence and (c) we otherwise would meet the neoents for application of the applicable Mexicagulations.
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In addition, the limitation described in the sectnutiet point above does not require that any perswluding any non-
Mexican pension fund, retirement fund or finanaiatitution, register with the Ministry of Finanead Public Credit§ecretaria de
Hacienda y Crédito Publigdo establish eligibility for an exemption front, @reduction of, Mexican withholding tax.

We will remit the full amount of any Mexican tax@ghheld to the applicable Mexican taxing authestin accordance with
applicable law. We will also provide the truste¢tmdocumentation satisfactory to the trustee eiognthe payment of Mexican
taxes in respect of which we have paid any additiorterest. We will provide copies of such docutaéon to the holders of the
MXN notes or the relevant paying agent upon req(gsttion 1009(a))

In the event that additional interest actually paith respect to the MXN notes pursuant to the gdéty paragraphs is based
on rates of deduction or withholding of withholditaxes in excess of the appropriate rate applidaiiiee holder of such MXN
notes, and as a result thereof such holder ideshtih make a claim for a refund or credit of seghess from the authority imposing
such withholding tax, then such holder shall, byepting such MXN notes, be deemed to have assigmedransferred all right, title
and interest to any such claim for a refund or itrefdsuch excess to us. However, by making susigament, the holder makes no
representation or warranty that we will be entitiedeceive such claim for a refund or credit amztlirs no other obligation with
respect theretdSection 1009(d))

Any reference in this prospectus, the base indentury applicable supplemental indenture or the Mées to principal,
premium, if any, interest or any other amount psyabrespect of the MXN notes by us will be deeratsb to refer to any additional
interest that may be payable with respect to tiraduant under the obligations referred to in thissgahion (Section 1009(e))

Optional Redemption

We will not be permitted to redeem the MXN notefobetheir stated maturity, except as set forttowelThe MXN notes will
not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking funeheaning that we will not deposit money on a regbéeis into any separate
account to repay your MXN notes. In addition, ydll mot be entitled to require us to repurchaserydXN notes from you before
the stated maturityf{Section 1101(a))

Optional Redemption

If so indicated in the applicable prospectus suppl&, we will be entitled, at our option, to redesosme or all of the
outstanding MXN notes of any series from time ioetiat the redemption price set forth in the applegrospectus supplement. If
the MXN notes of a series are redeemable only a@fter a specified date or upon the satisfactioadafitional conditions, the
prospectus supplement will specify the date ormiesdhe conditions. In each case we will also yay accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, through the redemption date. MXN notes witip bearing interest on the redemption date, gy@u do not collect your
money.(Sections 301, 1101 and 1104)

Redemption for Taxation Reasons

If, as a result of any amendment to, or changth@m|aws (or any rules or regulations thereundeljexico or any political
subdivision or taxing authority thereof or theraifecting taxation, or any amendment to or changami official interpretation or
application of such laws, rules or regulations,cilamendment to or change of such laws, rulesgodagons becomes effective on
or after the date on which the MXN notes of anyeseare issued, we would be obligated, after takingh measures as we may
consider reasonable to avoid this requirementatogulditional interest in excess of the additiontgrest attributable to a Mexican
withholding tax rate of 4.9% with respect to the MXotes of that series (see “—Payment of Additidntérest” and “Taxation—
Mexican Tax Considerations”), then, at our optialh,but not less than all, of the MXN notes ofttearies may be redeemed at any
time on giving not less than 30 nor more than 8@&daotice, at a redemption price equal to 100%hefoutstanding principal
amount of the MXN notes being redeemed, plus adcane unpaid interest, any premium applicable énciese of a redemption prior
to maturity and any additional interest due thengpro but not including the date of redemptiprgvided however that (1) no
notice of redemption for tax reasons may be giaties than 90 days prior to the earliest date baiciwwe would be obligated to pay
such additional interest if a payment on the MXNesmf that series were then due and (2) at the $imch notice of redemption is
given such obligation to pay such additional interemains in effec(Section 1101(c))

Prior to the publication of any notice of redemptfor taxation reasons, we will deliver to the tegs

» acertificate signed by one of our duly authadirepresentatives stating that we are entitledféctethe redemption and
setting forth a statement of facts showing thatctraditions precedent to our right of redemptiantéxation reasons
have occurred; and
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* an opinion of Mexican legal counsel (which maydur counsel) of recognized standing to the effeatt we have or will
become obligated to pay such additional interest @sult of such change or amendméséction 1101(d))

This notice, after it is delivered to the holdevd| be irrevocable(Section 1102)

Covenants

The following covenants will apply to us and centaf our subsidiaries for so long as any MXN n@ains outstanding.
These covenants restrict our ability and the ahifftthese subsidiaries to enter into certain tatisns. However, these covenants do
not limit our ability to incur indebtedness or régws to comply with financial ratios or to maimtapecified levels of net worth or
liquidity.

Limitation on Liens

We may not, and we may not allow any of our resdcsubsidiaries to, create, incur, issue or asamadiens on our restricted
property to secure debt where the debt secureddbylgens, plus the aggregate amount of our ataltide debt and that of our
restricted subsidiaries in respect of sale andehsask transactions, would exceed an amount eqaal éggregate of 15% of our
Consolidated Net Tangible Assets unless we seber®XN notes equally with, or prior to, the debtwed by such liens. This
restriction will not, however, apply to the follawg:

» liens on restricted property acquired and existin the date the property was acquired or arefteg such acquisition
pursuant to contractual commitments entered intw po such acquisition;

» liens on any restricted property securing debtiired or assumed for the purpose of financingutshase price or the
cost of its construction, improvement or reppiigvidedthat such lien attaches to the restricted propeittyin 12 months
of its acquisition or the completion of its constiian, improvement or repair and does not attacmtpoother restricted

property;
* liens existing on any restricted property of aestricted subsidiary prior to the time that th&tnieted subsidiary became

a subsidiary of ours or liens arising after thatetiunder contractual commitments entered into poi@nd not in
contemplation of that event;

» liens on any restricted property securing detxaby a subsidiary of ours to us or to anotheunfsubsidiaries; and

» liens arising out of the refinancing, extensimmewal or refunding of any debt described abpxayided that the
aggregate principal amount of such debt is noemsed and such lien does not extend to any adalitiestricted
property.(Section 1006)

“Consolidated Net Tangible Assets” means total obdated assets less (1) all current liabiliti€y, &l goodwill, (3) all trade
names, trademarks, patents and other intellectopkpty assets and (4) all licenses, each asmtdo our most recent consolidated
balance sheet and computed in accordance witmatienal Financial Reporting Standards (“IFR3ection 101)

“Restricted property” means (1) any exchange amasmission equipment, switches, cellular baseoststimicrocells, local
links, repeaters and related facilities, whethen@dvas of the date of the indenture or acquirest #fait date, used in connection with
the provision of telecommunications services in Mexincluding any land, buildings, structures atider equipment or fixtures that
constitute any such facility, owned by us or owtnieted subsidiaries and (2) any share of capitalk of any restricted subsidiary.
(Section 101)

“Restricted subsidiaries” means our subsidiarias ¢hvn restricted propertgSection 101)

Limitation on Sales and Leasebacks

We may not, and we may not allow any of our reidcsubsidiaries to, enter into any sale and |leasefpansaction without
effectively providing that the MXN notes will bectgred equally and ratably with or prior to the sale leaseback transaction,
unless:

» the aggregate principal amount of all debt thetstanding that is secured by any lien on anyicéstl property that does
not ratably secure the MXN notes (excluding anyisst indebtedness permitted under “—Limitation @@nk”) plus the
aggregate amount of our attributable debt andtthibw@able debt of our restricted subsidiariesdspect of sale and
leaseback transactions then outstanding (otherahwisale and leaseback transaction permitted uheédollowing
bullet point) would not exceed an amount equald% bf our Consolidated Net Tangible Assets; or
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* we or one of our restricted subsidiaries, withthmonths of the sale and leaseback transacttre an amount of our
secured debt which is not subordinate to the MXMso an amount equal to the greater of (1) therueeeds of the
sale or transfer of the property or other assetisate the subject of the sale and leaseback témsand (2) the fair
market value of the restricted property leag8ection 1008)

“Sale and leaseback transaction” means an arrangdregveen us or one of our restricted subsidiaesa bank, insurance
company or other lender or investor where we orresiricted subsidiary leases a restricted progertgn initial term of three years
or more that was or will be sold by us or our liettd subsidiary to that lender or investor foakerice of U.S.$1 million (or its
equivalent in other currencies) or mof@ection 101)

“Attributable debt” means, with respect to any saié leaseback transaction, the lesser of (1)aihenfarket value of the asset
subject to such transaction and (2) the preseneyaliscounted at a rate per annum equal to ticeudi$ rate of a capital lease
obligation with a like term in accordance with IERBthe abligations of the lessee for net rentgiments (excluding amounts on
account of maintenance and repairs, insurances,tassessments and similar charges and contireges} during the term of the
lease(Section 101)

Limitation on Sale of Capital Stock of Telcel

We may not, and we may not allow any of our subsiés to, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose gfsirares of capital stock of
Telcel if following such sale, transfer or dispasitwe would own, directly or indirectly, less thék) 50% of the voting power of all
of the shares of capital stock of Telcel and (2)58F all of the shares of capital stock of Tel¢8ection 1007)

Provision of Information

We will furnish the trustee with copies of our anhreport and the information, documents and atbgorts that we are
required to file with the SEC pursuant to Secti@nof 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act384, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), including our annual reports on Form 20-FlaBports on Form 6-K, within 15 days after we fhem with the SEC. In
addition, we will make the same information, docatseand other reports available, at our expend®ltters who so request in
writing. (Section 1005)

In the event that, in the future, we are not regfuio file such information, documents or otheoreppursuant to Section 13 or
15(d) of the Exchange Act, we will furnish on aseaably prompt basis to the trustee and holderssstrequest in writing,
substantially the same financial and other inforamathat we would be required to include and fileih annual report on Form 20-F
and reports on Form 6-KSection 1005)

If we become aware that a default or event of defawan event that with notice or the lapse ofd¢imould be an event of
default has occurred and is continuing, as the wasebe, we will deliver a certificate to the tessidescribing the details thereof and
the action we are taking or propose to tg&ection 1004)

Merger, Consolidation or Sale of Assets

We may not consolidate with or merge into any offe¥son or, directly or indirectly, transfer, cogyvsell, lease or otherwise
dispose of all or substantially all of our assetd properties and may not permit any person toatmlate with or merge into us,
unless all of the following conditions are met:

» if we are not the successor person in the tctiosg the successor is organized and validly exgstinder the laws of
Mexico or the United States or any political sulglon thereof and expressly assumes our obligatiodsr the MXN
notes or the indenture;

* immediately after the transaction, no defaultemttie MXN notes has occurred and is continuing.tiis purpose,
“default under the MXN notes” means an event ofidkfor an event that would be an event of defaith respect to the
MXN notes if the requirements for giving us defandtice and for our default having to continuedapecific period of
time were disregarded. See “—Defaults, Remedied/daider of Defaults”; and

* we have delivered to the trustee an officerisifoeate and opinion of counsel, each stating, agiother things, that the
transaction complies with the indentu{®@ection 801)

If the conditions described above are satisfiedywllenot have to obtain the approval of the ho&klgr order to merge or
consolidate or to sell or otherwise dispose offmaperties and assets substantially as an entireddition, these conditions will
apply only if we wish to merge into or consolidati¢h another person or sell or otherwise disposalladr substantially all of our
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assets and properties. We will not need to satge conditions if we enter into other types afisactions, including any transaction
in which we acquire the stock or assets of angtleeson, any transaction that involves a changemtal of our company, but in
which we do not merge or consolidate, and any &etitn in which we sell or otherwise dispose o lggan substantially all our
assets.

Defaults, Remedies and Waiver of Defaults

You will have special rights if an event of defawlth respect to the MXN notes you hold occurs &bt cured, as described
below.

Events of Default
Each of the following will be an “event of defaultiith respect to the MXN notes of any series:
» we fail to pay interest on any MXN note of tisaties within 30 days after its due date;
» we fail to pay the principal or premium, if arof,any MXN note of that series on its due date;

e we remain in breach of any covenant in the itulenfor the benefit of holders of the MXN notedtwht series for 60 days
after we receive a notice of default (sent by thetee or the holders of not less than 25% in pal@amount of the MXN
notes of that series) stating that we are in breach

* we or Telcel experience a default or event chdifunder any instrument relating to debt havingggregate principal
amount exceeding U.S.$50 million (or its equivalenther currencies) that constitutes a failurpag principal or
interest when due or results in the acceleratich@iebt prior to its maturity;

« afinal judgment is rendered against us or Téhcan aggregate amount in excess of U.S.$50anillor its equivalent in
other currencies) that is not discharged or borialéall within 30 days; or

* we or Telcel file for bankruptcy, or other eventdankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization orilamproceedings occur
relating to us or Telcel.

Remedies Upon Event of Default

If an event of default with respect to the MXN reot# any series occurs and is not cured or watbhedirustee, at the written
request of holders of not less than 25% in prin@paount of the MXN notes of that series, may decthe entire principal amount
of all the MXN notes of that series to be due aayhjple immediately, and upon any such declaralierptincipal, any accrued
interest and any additional interest shall becooeeahd payable. If, however, an event of defaudtixbecause of a bankruptcy,
insolvency or reorganization relating to us or €klthe entire principal amount of all the MXN netf that series and any accrued
interest and any additional interest will be autboadly accelerated, without any action by the tisesor any holder and any principal,
interest or additional interest will become immeeliadue and payabléSection 502)

Each of the situations described in the precedarggraph is called an acceleration of the matofithe MXN notes. If the
maturity of the MXN notes of any series is accdkmtaand a judgment for payment has not yet beairsd, the holders of a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the MXbles of that series may cancel the acceleratioalffdne MXN notes of that
series, provided that all amounts then due (otieer amounts due solely because of such acceleratwe been paid and all other
defaults with respect to the MXN notes of thateghave been cured or waivé8ection 502)

If any event of default occurs, the trustee wiNdapecial duties. In that situation, the trustédeb& obligated to use those of
its rights and powers under the indenture, andéotiie same degree of care and skill in doinghst at prudent person would use
under the circumstances in conducting his or her affairs.

Except as described in the prior paragraph, thetdeus not required to take any action underrtteriture at the request of any
holders unless the holders offer the trustee rederprotection, known as an indemnity, from experend liability. If the trustee
receives an indemnity that is reasonably satisfa¢toit, the holders of a majority in principal aont of the MXN notes of any series
may direct the time, method and place of conductimglawsuit or other formal legal action seeking eemedy available to the
trustee. These majority holders may also directriigtee in performing any other action under tfenture with respect to the MXN
notes of that seriegSections 512 and 603(e))
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Before you bypass the trustee and bring your owsu# or other formal legal action or take oth&pstto enforce your rights
or protect your interests relating to the MXN natésiny series, the following must occur:

you must give the trustee written notice thataent of default has occurred and the event ofulldf@as not been cured
or waived;

the holders of not less than 25% in principabant of the MXN notes of that series must make igtemr request that the
trustee take action with respect to the MXN nofethat series because of the default and theytardiolders must offer
to the trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactothédtrustee against the cost and other liabilfesking that action;

the trustee must not have taken action for 6@ déter the above steps have been taken; and

during those 60 days, the holders of a majanifgrincipal amount of the MXN notes of that seniesst not have given
the trustee directions that are inconsistent viighwritten request of the holders of not less @& in principal amount
of the MXN notes of that serieSection 507)

You will be entitled, however, at any time to briadawsuit for the payment of money due on your MXdtes on or after its
due date(Section 508)

Book-entry and other indirect holders should canthdir banks or brokers for information on howgtee notice or direction to
or make a request of the trustee and how to dectacancel an acceleration of the maturity.

Waiver of Default

The holders of not less than a majority in princgraount of the MXN notes of any series may waiyat default for all the
MXN notes of that series. If this happens, the défaill be treated as if it had been cured. No oar waive a payment default on
any MXN note, however, without the approval of faeticular holder of that MXN notéSection 513)

Modification and Waiver

There are three types of changes we can make todbeture and the outstanding MXN notes undeirttienture.

Changes Requiring Each Holder’s Approval

The following changes cannot be made without thee@al of each holder of an outstanding MXN nofectéd by the change:

a change in the stated maturity of any princgrahterest payment on a MXN note;

a reduction in the principal amount, the interage or the redemption price for a MXN note;

a change in the obligation to pay additionatiiast;

a change in the currency of any payment on a Ni¥i¢ other than as permitted by the MXN note;
a change in the place of any payment on a MXN;not

an impairment of the holder’s right to sue fayment of any amount due on its MXN note;

a reduction in the percentage in principal anafithe MXN notes of any series needed to chahgénidenture or the
outstanding MXN notes of such series under thenhae; and

a reduction in the percentage in principal amadithe MXN notes of any series needed to waivecounpliance with
the indenture or to waive defaul{Section 902)

Changes Not Requiring Approval

Some changes will not require the approval of hrsldé MXN notes. These changes are limited to $jgddnds of changes,
like the addition of covenants, events of defaukexrurity, and other clarifications and changes would not adversely affect the
holders of outstanding MXN notes under the indeminrany material respe¢Gection 901)
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Changes Requiring Majority Approval

Any other change to the indenture or the MXN natiesny series will be required to be approved gyhblders of a majority
in principal amount of the MXN notes of the sedfected by the change or waiver. The required @a@dmust be given by written
consent(Section 902)

The same majority approval will be required fotagbtain a waiver of any of our covenants in tigenture. Our covenants
include the promises we make about merging andicgeliens on our interests, which we describe urtdeMerger, Consolidation
or Sale of Assets” and “—Covenants.” If the holdmpprove a waiver of a covenant, we will not havedmply with it. The holders,
however, cannot approve a waiver of any provisioa particular MXN note or the indenture, as ieeff§ that MXN note, that we
cannot change without the approval of the holdehaf MXN note as described under in “—Changes RemquEach Holder’s
Approval,” unless that holder approves the wai{®ection 1011)

Book-entry and other indirect holders should canthdir banks or brokers for information on how iagyal may be granted or
denied if we seek to change the indenture or théMXtes or request a waiver.

Defeasance

We may, at our option, elect to terminate (1) &bbur obligations with respect to the MXN notesaoly series (“legal
defeasance”), except for certain obligations, iditig those regarding any trust established foradsface and obligations relating to
the transfer and exchange of the MXN notes, thiacement of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolenNV6tes and the maintenance
of agencies with respect to the MXN nof8gctions 1201 and 120&) (2) our obligations under the covenants in tigenture, so
that any failure to comply with such obligationdlwbt constitute an event of default (“covenantedsance”) in respect of the MXN
notes of that serigSections 1201 and 1203 order to exercise either legal defeasanc®weertant defeasance, we must irrevocably
deposit with the trustee Mexican pesos, governmleligations of the Mexican government, Mexican gaweental agency or
Mexican central bank or any combination thereofunh amounts as will be sufficient to pay the @gal, premium, if any, and
interest (including additional interest) in respeftthe outstanding MXN notes of the affected sede the maturity date, and comply
with certain other conditions, including, withourhlitation, the delivery of opinions of counsel aspecified tax and other matters.
(Sections 1201, 1204 and 1205)

If we elect either legal defeasance or covenargadaince with respect to any MXN note of any sewesnust so elect it with
respect to all of the MXN notes of that seri&ection 1201)

Special Rules for Actions by Holders

When holders take any action under the indentuieh as giving a notice of default, declaring aredaration, approving any
change or waiver or giving the trustee an instamctive will apply the following rules.

Only Outstanding MXN notes are Eligible for ActimnHolders

Only holders of outstanding MXN notes will be elitf to vote or participate in any action by holdénsaddition, we will
count only outstanding MXN notes in determining Wiee the various percentage requirements for vaiirtgking action have been
met. For these purposes, a MXN note will not bestanding” if it has been surrendered for candetadr if we have deposited or
set aside, in trust for its holder, money for iyment or redemptiorfSection 101)

Determining Record Dates for Action by Holders

We will generally be entitled to set any day as@ord date for the purpose of determining the hsltheat are entitled to take
action under the indenture. In some limited circiamees, only the trustee will be entitled to setcrd date for action by holders. If
we or the trustee set a record date for an appanvather action to be taken by holders, that wotaction may be taken only by
persons or entities who are holders on the recatrel @hd must be taken during the period that weifgder this purpose, or that the
trustee specifies if it sets the record date. Wihertrustee, as applicable, may shorten or lengthie period from time to time. This
period, however, may not extend beyond the 180ytaftar the record date for the action. In additr@tord dates for any global
MXN note may be set in accordance with procedustabished by the depositary from time to tirf8ection 104)

Transfer Agents

We may appoint one or more transfer agents, atevtlesignated offices any MXN notes in certificaftmth may be
transferred or exchanged and also surrenderedebpéyment is made at maturity. Initially, we happ@inted the trustee, at its
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corporate trust office in New York City, as transégent. We may also choose to act as our ownfétraagent. We must notify you of
changes in the transfer agent as described undiiotices.” If we issue MXN notes in certificated rioyholders of MXN notes in
certificated form will be able to transfer their MDhotes, in whole or in part, by surrendering th¥NVhotes, with a duly completed
form of transfer, for registration of transfer la¢ toffice of our transfer agent in New York CityeWill not charge any fee for the
registration or transfer or exchange, except treamay require the payment of a sum sufficient iecany applicable tax or other
governmental charge payable in connection withridwesfer.(Sections 304 and 1002)

Notices

As long as we issue MXN notes in global form, negito be given to holders will be given to EurocBank S.A./N.V.
(“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, société gnum (“Clearstream”), in accordance with their apglile policies as in effect
from time to time. If we issue MXN notes in certdited form, notices to be given to holders wilsbat by mail to the respective
addresses of the holders as they appear in thedtsisecords, and will be deemed given when ma(iektion 106)

Neither the failure to give any notice to a pafacinolder, nor any defect in a notice given tastipular holder, will affect the
sufficiency of any notice given to another hold&ection 106)

Governing Law

The indenture and the MXN notes will be governedamd construed in accordance with, the laws oSStiage of New York,
United States of AmericdSection 113)

Submission to Jurisdiction

In connection with any legal action or proceedingiag out of or relating to the MXN notes or tmelénture (subject to the
exceptions described below), we have:

» submitted to the jurisdiction of any U.S. fedemaNew York state court in the Borough of ManhattThe City of New
York, and any appellate court thereof;

» agreed that all claims in respect of such legtibn or proceeding may be heard and determinedah U.S. federal or
New York state court and waived, to the fulleseexipermitted by law, the defense of an inconverfmmum to the
maintenance of such action or proceeding and ahy of jurisdiction in such action or proceedingamtount of our
place of residence or domicile; and

* appointed CT Corporation System, with an ofitd11 Eighth Avenue, New York, New York 10011, tddiStates of
America, as process agent.

The process agent will receive, on our behalf,iserof copies of the summons and complaint andosimgr process which may
be served in any such legal action or proceedingdirt in such New York state or U.S. federal csiiting in New York City.
Service may be made by mailing or delivering a cofosuch process to us at the address specifiecedbothe process agent.
(Section 115)

A final judgment in any of the above legal actiangroceedings will be conclusive and may be emifdiin other jurisdictions,
in each case, to the extent permitted under thicapfe laws of such jurisdiction.

In addition to the foregoing, the holders may séegal process in any other manner permitted bYicgipe law. The above
provisions do not limit the right of any holderliong any action or proceeding against us or oapgrties in other courts where
jurisdiction is independently establish€8ection 115)

To the extent that we have or hereafter may acaquitave attributed to us any sovereign or othenumity under any law, we
have agreed to waive, to the fullest extent peeatilly law, such immunity from jurisdiction or tagee of process in respect of any
legal suit, action or proceeding arising out ofaating to the indenture or the MXN notéSection 115)

Currency Indemnity

Our obligations under the MXN notes will be disde only to the extent that the relevant holdahbie to purchase Mexican
pesos with any other currency paid to that holdexdacordance with any judgment or otherwise. Ifttbleler cannot purchase
Mexican pesos in the amount originally to be paie,have agreed to pay the difference. The holdwrveker, agrees that, if the
amount of Mexican pesos purchased exceeds the amdginally to be paid to such holder, the holddt reimburse the excess to
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us. The holder will not be obligated to make tisnbursement if we are in default of our obligatiemder the MXN notegSection
1010)

Our Relationship with the Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon is initially serving #ise trustee for the MXN notes. The Bank of NewRybtellon or its
affiliates may have other business relationshigls ws from time to time.
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FORM OF MXN NOTES, CLEARING AND SETTLEMENT

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable progmesupplement, the following information relat@she form, clearing and
settlement of the MXN notes.

We will issue the MXN notes as one or more glolealsities registered in the name of a common d&pgdior Clearstream
and Euroclear. Investors may hold book-entry irgisren the global securities through organizatibias participate, directly or
indirectly, in Clearstream and/or Euroclear. Booltrg interests in the MXN notes and all transfelating to the MXN notes will be
reflected in the book-entry records of Clearstresh Euroclear.

Holders of MXN notes may own beneficial interestshie global security through the facilitiesSD. Indeval Institucion para
el Deposito de Valores, S.A. de G(Vhdeval”), which is a participant in each of @tetream and Euroclear. Indeval is a privately
owned securities depositary that is authorizedaatsl as a clearinghouse, depositary and centriidtan for securities in Mexico.

As such, Indeval provides settlement and trangirices and is the registration agent for Mexicacusties transactions, eliminating
the need for physical transfer of securities. Hadeho own beneficial interests in the MXN note®tigh Indeval may be required to
certify as to their residency in accordance with phocedures of Indeval.

The distribution of the MXN notes will be carridarough Clearstream and Euroclear. Any secondarkeh#nading of book-
entry interests in the MXN notes will take placeotigh participants in Clearstream and Euroclearvafigettle in same-day funds.
Owners of book-entry interests in the MXN noted véteive payments relating to their MXN notes ieitan pesos. Clearstream
and Euroclear have established electronic secsidtid payment transfer, processing, depositargasiddial links among
themselves and others, either directly or througgtarlians and depositaries. These links allow geesito be issued, held and
transferred among the clearing systems withouplysical transfer of certificates. Special procedup facilitate clearance and
settlement have been established among thesengesistems to trade securities across bordergisdtondary market.

The policies of Clearstream and Euroclear will goyeayments, transfers, exchange and other madletsg to the investor’s
interest in securities held by them. We have npoesibility for any aspect of the records kept lgaCstream or Euroclear or any of
their direct or indirect participants. We do nopstvise these systems in any way.

Clearstream and Euroclear and their participan®ipe these clearance and settlement functionsriegteements they have
made with one another or with their customers. 3foould be aware that they are not obligated t@perbr continue to perform
these procedures and may modify them or discontinera at any time.

Except as provided below, owners of beneficialriedein the MXN notes will not be entitled to halie MXN notes registered
in their names, will not receive or be entitledeoeive physical delivery of the MXN notes in défire form and will not be
considered the owners or holders of the MXN notetetthe indenture governing the MXN notes, inaigdior purposes of
receiving any reports delivered by us or the trigtarsuant to the indenture. Accordingly, eachgemsvning a beneficial interest in
a MXN notes must rely on the procedures of the (Stemam and Euroclear and, if that person is m@irticipant, on the procedures
of the participant through which that person owasrterest, in order to exercise any rights obllér of MXN notes.

This description of the clearing systems reflectsunderstanding of the rules and procedures air€ieeam and Euroclear as
they are currently in effect. These systems cohkthge their rules and procedures at any time. We blatained the information in
this section concerning Clearstream and Eurocleattzeir book-entry systems and procedures fromcesuthat we believe to be
reliable, but we take no responsibility for thewwecy of this information.

Clearstream and Euroclear

Clearstream has advised that: it is a duly licersetk organized assmciété anonymiacorporated under the laws of
Luxembourg and is subject to regulation by the Imizeurg Commission for the supervision of the finahsector Commission de
surveillance du secteur financjeit holds securities for its customers and féai#s the clearance and settlement of securities
transactions among them, and does so through @éctoook-entry transfers between the accountsafistomers, thereby
eliminating the need for physical movement of fedtes; it provides other services to its cust@nigrcluding safekeeping,
administration, clearance and settlement of intesnally traded securities and lending and borr@aeh securities; it interfaces with
the domestic markets in over 30 countries throwggaldished depositary and custodial relationshipgustomers include worldwide
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust comgand clearing corporations and may include cedther professional financial
intermediaries; its U.S. customers are limitedetusities brokers and dealers and banks; and ttdiceess to the Clearstream
system is also available to others that clear tjindDlearstream customers or that have custodeiarkhips with its customers, such
as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies.
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Euroclear has advised that: it is incorporated utigelaws of Belgium as a bank and is subjecetmiation by the Belgian
Banking and Finance Commissidddmmission Bancaire et Financi@¢rand the National Bank of BelgiurBgngque Nationale de
Belgiqug; it holds securities for its participants andilitates the clearance and settlement of secutitégssactions among them; it
does so through simultaneous electronic book-etetliyery against payments, thereby eliminatingrtbed for physical movement of
certificates; it provides other services to itstiggyants, including credit, custody, lending armrowing of securities and tri-party
collateral management; it interfaces with the ddioesarkets of several countries; its customerkiohe banks, including central
banks, securities brokers and dealers, banks,dongpanies and clearing corporations and certaier girofessional financial
intermediaries; indirect access to the Euroclestesy is also available to others that clear thrdogtoclear customers or that have
custodial relationships with Euroclear customenst all securities in Euroclear are held on a fulegifasis, which means that specific
certificates are not matched to specific securitiearance accounts.

Clearance and Settlement Procedures

We understand that investors that will hold theiXIWIinotes through Clearstream or Euroclear accouwitit$ollow the
settlement procedures that are applicable to gexsiim registered form. MXN notes will be creditedthe securities custody
accounts of Clearstream and Euroclear participamtie business day following the settlement dat@dlue on the settlement date.
They will be credited either free of payment oriaghpayment for value on the settlement date.

We understand that secondary market trading bet@ésarstream and/or Euroclear participants willunén the ordinary way
following the applicable rules and operating prares of Clearstream and Euroclear. Secondary maddng will be settled using
procedures applicable to securities in registeoech f

You should be aware that investors will only besatbl make and receive deliveries, payments ana odmemunications
involving the MXN notes through Clearstream anddélear on business days. Those systems may nqenefor business on days
when banks, brokers and other institutions are dpebusiness in the United States or Mexico.

In addition, because of time zone differences,etimeay be problems with completing transactionslinng Clearstream and
Euroclear on the same business day as in the UBitgds or Mexico. U.S. and Mexican investors wishwo transfer their interests
in the MXN notes, or to make or receive a paymerdativery of the MXN notes on a particular day nfiaigl that the transactions
will not be performed until the next business dajzuxembourg or Brussels, depending on whetherr€tiemm or Euroclear is used.

Clearstream or Euroclear will credit payments ®dhsh accounts of participants in Clearstreanmuopdiear in accordance
with the relevant systemic rules and procedure)d@xtent received by its depositary. Clearstreaturoclear, as the case may be,
will take any other action permitted to be takerabhyolder under the indenture on behalf of a Cle=am or Euroclear participant
only in accordance with its relevant rules and pdoces.

Clearstream and Euroclear have agreed to the forggoocedures in order to facilitate transfershaf MXN notes among
participants of Clearstream and Euroclear. Howethery are under no obligation to perform or congito perform those procedures,
and they may discontinue those procedures at arey ti

Same-Day Settlement and Payment

The underwriters will settle the MXN notes in imnegdly available funds. We will make all paymentgincipal and interest
on the MXN notes in immediately available fundsc@alary market trading between participants in KSteeam and Euroclear will
occur in accordance with the applicable rules gretating procedures of Clearstream and Euroclehnéhbe settled using the
procedures applicable to securities in immediatghilable funds. See “—Clearstream and Euroclear.”

Certificated MXN Notes
We will issue MXN notes to you in certificated reggred form only if:

» Clearstream or Euroclear is no longer willingabie to discharge its responsibilities properlyd agither the trustee nor
we have appointed a qualified successor within&@@&dor

* we, at our option, notify the trustee that wecete cause the issuance of certificated MXN notes;

» certain other events provided in the indentineuid occur, including the occurrence and contimeasf an event of
default with respect to the MXN notes.
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If any of these three events occurs, the trustdeeissue the MXN notes in fully certificated retgred form and will recognize
the registered holders of the certificated MXN sats holders under the indenture.

In the event that we issue certificated securitieder the limited circumstances described aboes ttolders of certificated
securities may transfer their MXN notes in wholeémopart upon the surrender of the certificateadrnsferred, together with a
completed and executed assignment form endors#tearefinitive MXN note, at the offices of the tefer agent in New York City.
Copies of this assignment form may be obtainedebffices of the transfer agent in New York CHgach time that we transfer or
exchange a new MXN note in certificated form footrer MXN note in certificated form, and after thansfer agent receives a
completed assignment form, we will make availabledelivery the new definitive MXN note at the offis of the transfer agent in
New York City. Alternatively, at the option of tlperson requesting the transfer or exchange, wenail, at that person’s risk, the
new definitive MXN note to the address of that parthat is specified in the assignment form. Initiald if we issue MXN notes in
certificated form, then we will make payments dhpipal of, interest on and any other amounts pi@abder the MXN notes to
holders in whose names the MXN notes in certifidditem are registered at the close of busineséi@mecord date for these
payments. If the MXN notes are issued in certidaform, we will make payments of principal and aagemption payments against
the surrender of these certificated MXN notes atdffices of the paying agent in New York City.

Unless and until we issue the MXN notes in fullytfeeated, registered form,
» you will not be entitled to receive a certificagpresenting our interest in the MXN notes;

» allreferences in this prospectus or any prdsigesupplement to actions by holders will refeattions taken by a
depositary upon instructions from their direct jggpaints; and

« all references in this prospectus or in any pectus supplement to payments and notices to reold#refer to payments
and notices to the depositary as the registeretehof the MXN notes, for distribution to you incacdance with its
policies and procedures.
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TAXATION

The following summary of certain Mexican federatlan S. federal income tax considerations contaides&ription of the
principal Mexican federal and U.S. federal incomre dconsequences of the purchase, ownership anasdisp of the MXN notes,
but does not purport to be a comprehensive degaripf all the tax considerations that may be rateto a decision to purchase the
MXN notes. This summary does not describe any tas@quences arising under the laws of any stat@jtpor taxing jurisdiction
other than the United States and Mexico, or U.&erfal taxes other than income taxes.

This summary is based on the tax laws of MexicothedJnited States as in effect on the date ofgiospectus (including the
tax treaty described below), as well as on rulesragulations of Mexico and regulations, rulingd a@ecisions of the United States
available on or before such date and now in effsitf the foregoing are subject to change, whibtange could apply retroactively
and could affect the continued validity of this saary.

Prospective purchasers of MXN notes should cotiseit own tax advisors as to the Mexican, Uniteaté3t or other tax
consequences of the purchase, ownership and dispasi the MXN notes, including, in particular gtlapplication to their particular
situations of the tax considerations discussedveds well as the application of state, local, ifgmeor other tax laws.

Mexican Tax Considerations

The following is a general summary of the principahsequences under the Mexitay del Impuesto sobre la Reifthe
“Mexican Income Tax Law”) and rules and regulatitinsreunder, as currently in effect, of the purehasvnership and disposition
of the MXN notes by a holder that is not a resid#ritlexico and that will not hold MXN notes or arfadicial interest therein in
connection with the conduct of a trade or busirtlessugh a permanent establishment in Mexico (aetfpr holder”).

For purposes of Mexican taxation, tax residen@yligghly technical definition that involves the &pgtion of a number of
factors. Generally, an individual is a residenMaxico if he or she has established his or her hionMexico, and a corporation is
considered a resident if it has established itscjpal place of business management or its effec®at of business management in
Mexico. However, any determination of residenceuithtake into account the particular situation ate person or legal entity.

U.S./Mexico and Other Tax Treaties

The United States and Mexico have entered intorev€tion for the Avoidance of Double Taxation (eotively, with
subsequent Protocols thereto, referred to as #xetréaty”). Provisions of the tax treaty that nadfect the taxation of certain United
States holders are summarized below. The Unitee@<sSéad Mexico have also entered into an agreetiantovers the exchange of
information with respect to tax matters. Mexico hbs® entered into and is negotiating several dthetreaties that may reduce the
amount of Mexican withholding tax to which paymeatsnterest on the MXN notes may be subject. Reotpe purchasers of MXN
notes should consult their own tax advisors abeddx consequences, if any, of such treaties.

Payments of Interest, Principal and Premium in Respf MXN Notes

Under the Mexican Income Tax Law, payments of egewe make in respect of the MXN notes (inclugiagments of
principal in excess of the issue price of such Mixdtes, which, under Mexican law, are deemed toteedst) to a foreign holder
will generally be subject to a Mexican withholditaxx assessed at a rate of 4.9% if (1) the MXN nategplaced through banks or
brokerage housesdsas de bolgan a country with which Mexico has entered intiaa treaty for the avoidance of double taxation,
which is in effect, (2) the CNBV has been notif@fdhe issuance of the MXN notes pursuant to theibésm Income Tax Law and
Article 7 of the Mexican Securities Market Lalaefy del Mercado de Valoreand its regulations, and (3) the information
requirements specified in the general rules oMimgstry of Finance and Public CredBécretaria de Hacienda y Crédito Publoo
the “SHCP”) are satisfied. In case such requiremarg not met, the applicable withholding tax weitebe 10%. We believe that
because the conditions described in (1) througlal§dye will be satisfied, the applicable withhotgltax rate will be 4.9%.

A higher income tax withholding rate will be applite when a party related to us, jointly or induadly, directly or indirectly,
is the effective beneficiary of more than 5% of #uygregate amount of payments treated as intangbiedVIXN notes, as set forth in
Mexican Income Tax Law.

Payments of interest we make with respect to théNNi¥tes to a non-Mexican pension or retirement failidbe generally
exempt from Mexican withholding taxes, providedtttig the fund is the effective beneficiary of sucterest income, (2) the fund is
duly established pursuant to the laws of its cquaotrorigin, (3) the relevant interest income igept from taxation in such country,
and (4) the fund is duly registered with the SHCP.
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We have agreed, subject to specified exceptiondimuitdtions, to pay additional interest to thedeis of MXN notes in
respect of the Mexican withholding taxes mentioabdve. If we pay additional interest in respeciuafh Mexican withholding
taxes, any refunds of such additional interest beéllfor our account. See “Description of MXN NoteBayment of Additional
Interest.”

Holders or beneficial owners of MXN notes may bguested to provide certain information or documignrianecessary to
enable us to establish the appropriate Mexicanhwitling tax rate applicable to such holders or beia¢ owners. In the event that
the specified information or documentation conaggrihe holder or beneficial owner, if requesteahasprovided on a timely basis,
our obligations to pay additional interest mayiba@ted as set forth under “Description of MXN NetePayment of Additional
Interest.”

Under the Mexican Income Tax Law, payments of ppalove make to a foreign holder of MXN notes witit be subject to
any Mexican withholding or similar taxes.

Taxation of Disposition of MXN Notes

The application of Mexican tax law provisions t@ital gains realized on the disposition of MXN reobyy foreign holders is
unclear. We expect that no Mexican tax will be isgmbon transfers of MXN notes between foreign hrsléffected outside of
Mexico.

Other Mexican Taxes

A foreign holder will not be liable for estate, tgihheritance or similar taxes with respect tdibddings of MXN notes. There
are no Mexican stamp, issue registration or sintilzes payable by a foreign holder with respef’ XN notes.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following is a summary of the principal U.Sddeal income tax considerations that may be releeaa beneficial owner of
MXN notes that is a citizen or resident of the l@diStates or a domestic corporation or otherwibgsuto U.S. federal income tax
on a net income basis in respect of the MXN nate®J)(S. holder”) and certain U.S. federal incomedansiderations that may be
relevant to a beneficial owner of MXN notes (ottre&n a partnership or other entity treated as t@eaship for U.S. federal income
tax purposes) that is not a U.S. holder (a “non-Udbder”). It does not purport to be a comprehensiescription of all of the tax
considerations that may be relevant to a partidolastor’s decision to invest in MXN notes.

This summary is based on provisions of the U.&riratl Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Caated)regulations,
rulings and judicial decisions as of the date hiefBoose authorities may be changed, perhaps atively, so as to result in U.S.
federal income tax consequences different frometfsosnmarized below. In addition, except where nated summary deals only
with investors that are U.S. holders who acquiseNtXN notes in the United States as part of thigainoffering of the MXN notes of
that series, who will own the MXN notes as capisdets, and whose functional currency is the WifardIt does not address U.S.
federal income tax considerations applicable testors who may be subject to special tax rules) asdanks, financial institutions,
partnerships (or entities treated as a partnefehig.S. federal income tax purposes) or partrieesdin, tax-exempt entities,
insurance companies, traders in securities that wlaise the mark-to-market method of accountimdtfeir securities, persons
subject to the alternative minimum tax, dealerseourities or currencies, certain short-term hael@éMXN notes, or persons that
hedge their exposure in the MXN notes or will hBIAN notes as a position in a “straddle” or convensiransaction or as part of a
“synthetic security” or other integrated finandiansaction. U.S. holders should be aware thattBe federal income tax
consequences of holding the MXN notes may be nadliedifferent for investors described in the préentence. This discussion also
does not address all of the tax considerationgtiagtbe relevant to particular issuances of MXNespsuch as MXN notes offered at
a price less or more than their stated principadamh For information regarding any such speciaktansiderations relevant to
particular issuances, you should read the appkgatdspectus supplement.

Payments of Interest and Additional Interest

Payments of the gross amount of interest and additinterest (as defined in “Description of MXN tds—Payment of
Additional Interest”)|.e.,including amounts withheld in respect of Mexicathhiblding taxes, with respect to an MXN note wal b
taxable to a U.S. holder as ordinary interest ine@atthe time that such payments are accrued oeeee/ed, in accordance with the
U.S. holder’s regular method of tax accounting. Staash method U.S. holders will report interesthenMXN note when it is
received or unconditionally made available for ietgeand accrual method U.S. holders will repaatestl interest as it accrues. The
amount of interest income realized by a cash meth&d holder will be the U.S. dollar value of theitan peso payment based on
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the exchange rate in effect on the date of receggrdless of whether the payment in fact is caadéanto U.S. dollars. A cash
method U.S. holder will not recognize foreign caeggain or loss with respect to the receipt ohspayment, but may have foreign
currency gain or loss attributable to the actuspdsition of the foreign currency so received. Aoraal method U.S. holder will
accrue interest income on an MXN note in Mexicasogeand translate the amount accrued into U.Sardddased on the average
exchange rate in effect during the interest acqoeebd (or portion thereof within the U.S. holdetaxable year), or, at the accrual
method U.S. holder’s election, at the spot ratexchange on the last day of the accrual perioth@@tast day of the taxable year
within such accrual period if the accrual periodrspmore than one taxable year), or at the spobfaxchange on the date of
receipt, if such date is within five business dafythe last day of the accrual period. A U.S. holtlat makes such an election must
apply it consistently to all debt instruments frgear to year and cannot change the election witth@itonsent of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Service (the “IRS”). An accrual method Wi@der will recognize foreign currency gain ordpas the case may be, on the
receipt of an interest payment made with respeaht®XN note if the exchange rate in effect ondage the payment is received
differs from the rate applicable to a previous aatof that interest income. This foreign curregeyn or loss will be treated as
ordinary income or loss, and will not be treatedmasdjustment to interest income received on aiNMXte. Foreign currency gain
or loss recognized by a U.S. holder generally bellU.S. source gain or loss.

The Mexican withholding tax that is imposed on iiag will be treated as a foreign income tax eleiBubject to generally
applicable limitations and conditions under the €ddr credit against a U.S. holder’s federal inedax liability or, at the U.S.
holder’s election, for deduction in computing thatder’s taxable income (provided that the U.S. boklects to deduct, rather than
credit, all foreign income taxes paid or accruadtie relevant taxable year). Interest and additiorterest paid on the MXN notes
generally will constitute foreign source passiveegary income.

The calculation and availability of foreign tax dits and, in the case of a U.S. holder that ekectieduct foreign taxes, the
availability of deductions, involves the applicatiof complex rules (including, in the case of fgretax credits, relating to a
minimum holding period) that depend on a U.S. haddearticular circumstances. U.S. holders shoolusalt their own tax advisors
regarding the availability of foreign tax creditsdathe treatment of additional interest.

Sale or Other Taxable Disposition of MXN Notes

A U.S. holder generally will recognize gain or lagsthe sale or other taxable disposition of theNvi6tes in an amount equal
to the difference between (i) the amount realizeduch sale or other taxable disposition (othen #raounts attributable to accrued
but unpaid interest, including any additional iettrthereon, which will be taxable as ordinary medo the extent not previously
included in income) and (ii) the U.S. holder’s ad@d tax basis in the MXN notes. A U.S. holder’misigd tax basis in an MXN note
generally will be the U.S. dollar value of the puase price for that MXN note on the date of pureh#sa U.S. holder receives
Mexican pesos in exchange for MXN notes, the amopesidized generally will be the U.S. dollar valddie Mexican pesos received,
calculated at the exchange rate in effect on tietti®@ MXN notes are sold or otherwise disposedf tie MXN notes are traded on
an established securities market, however, a cashat U.S. holder (and, if it so elects, an accmethod U.S. holder) will
determine its adjusted basis in, or amount realarecan MXN note by translating the amount paideceived at the spot rate of
exchange on the settlement date of the purchadismosition of the MXN note, respectively. Exceptdescribed below with respect
to foreign currency gain or loss, gain or lossired by a U.S. holder on such sale or other tax@isjgosition generally will be
capital gain or loss and will be long-term capgain or loss if, at the time of the dispositiore #iXN notes have been held for more
than one year. Certain non-corporate U.S. holdectu@ing individuals) may be eligible for prefet& rates of taxation in respect of
long-term capital gains. The deductibility of capibsses is subject to limitations.

Gain or loss realized by a U.S. holder on the salether taxable disposition of an MXN note gerlgraill be treated as
foreign currency gain or loss taxable as ordinacpime to the extent that the gain or loss is atttaible to changes in exchange rates
during the period in which the holder held such MiXdte. For these purposes, the amount of foreigretcay gain or loss recognized
will be equal to the difference between (i) the W8llar value of the principal amount of the MXNta determined on the date of the
sale or other taxable disposition of the note @hthe U.S. dollar value of the principal amoumtioe MXN note determined on the
date the U.S. holder purchased the note. In addlitipon the sale or other taxable disposition d¥laN note, an accrual method
U.S. holder may realize foreign currency gain aslattributable to amounts received in respectafugd and unpaid interest. The
amount of foreign currency gain or loss realizethwespect to principal and accrued interest Widever, be limited to the amount
of overall gain or loss realized on the sale oeptaxable disposition of the note.

Gain or loss (including foreign currency gain agdprecognized by a U.S. holder on the sale or ¢dixable disposition of the
MXN notes generally will be U.S.-source gain orsloSonsequently, if any such gain would be sultfeblexican income tax, a U.S.
holder may not be able to credit the tax agaisstiS. federal income tax liability unless suclditrean be applied (subject to
applicable conditions and limitations) againstdae on other income treated as derived from fore@mnces. U.S. holders should
consult their own tax advisors as to the foreigndadit implications of a disposition of the MXNtes.
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Non-U.S. Holders

A non-U.S. holder generally will not be subjeclics. federal income or withholding tax on intenesteived on the MXN
notes or on gain realized on the sale or othebtexd@isposition of MXN notes unless in the casgaih realized by an individual
non-U.S. holder, the non-U.S. holder is presethénUnited States for 183 days or more in the texgdar of the sale or other
taxable disposition and certain other conditioresraet.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Payments on the MXN notes, and proceeds of theosalther disposition of the MXN notes, that aredpaithin the United
States or through certain U.S.-related financidrimediaries to a U.S. holder generally are sulfectformation reporting and
backup withholding unless (i) the U.S. holder ogporation or other exempt recipient and demotestrénis fact when so required or
(i) in the case of backup withholding, the U.Sldsw provides an accurate taxpayer identificatiomhber, certifies that it is not
subject to backup withholding and otherwise consplith applicable requirements of the backup wittimg rules.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any@mts withheld under the backup withholding rulél e allowed as a
refund or a credit against the U.S. holder’s UeBefal income tax liability provided the requirabrmation is timely furnished to
the IRS.

Although non-U.S. holders generally are exempt fioformation reporting and backup withholding, arld.S. holder may, in
certain circumstances, be required to comply wattifoication procedures to prove entitlement te takemption.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

At the time of offering any MXN notes, we will supment the following summary of the plan of distition with a description
of the offering, including the particular terms aswhditions thereof, set forth in a prospectus &mpnt.

We may sell MXN notes in any of three ways: (1ptigh underwriters or dealers; (2) directly to on@ édmited number of
institutional purchasers; or (3) through agents.iéy also concurrently offer MXN notes in Mexicodhigh Mexican underwriters,
dealers or agents. Each prospectus supplementasipect to a series of MXN notes will set forth téyxens of the offering of such
MXN notes, including the name or names of any uwdeers or agents, the offering price and the metgeds to us, any
underwriting discounts, commissions or other it@msstituting underwriters’ or agents’ compensatamy discount or concessions
allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers and anuyriges exchanges on which such MXN notes maydiedi

If underwriters are used in the sale, the MXN netiélsbe acquired by the underwriters for their oatcount and may be
resold from time to time in one or more transaajancluding negotiated transactions, at a fixedlipwffering price or at varying
prices to be determined at the time of sale. We offey the MXN notes to the public either througiderwriting syndicates of
investment banking firms represented by managimtgriters, or directly through one or more sucrestment banking firms or
others, as designated. Unless otherwise set fotttiei applicable prospectus supplement, the oigabf the underwriters to
purchase the MXN notes will be subject to certainditions precedent and the underwriters will biggalbed to purchase all of the
MXN notes offered thereby if any are purchased. fuityal public offering price and any discountsaamcessions allowed or
reallowed or paid to dealers may be changed froma tb time.

We may sell MXN notes either directly to one or maorstitutional purchasers, or through agents desagl by us from time to
time. Any agent involved in the offer or sale o thiXN notes will be named, and any commissions lpigyay us to such agent will
be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplénusriess otherwise indicated in such prospectpplsment, any such agent will be
acting on a reasonable best efforts basis for éhieg of its appointment.

If indicated in the applicable prospectus supplamea will authorize agents, underwriters or desatersolicit offers by certain
specified institutions to purchase the MXN notesrfrus at the public offering price set forth in grespectus supplement plus
accrued interest, if any, pursuant to delayed dgficontracts providing for payment and deliveryoore or more specified dates in
the future. Institutions with which such contractay be made include commercial and saving bangsrance companies, pension
funds, investment companies, educational and eliéeiinstitutions and others, but in all such cagesnust approve such
institutions. Such contracts will be subject ordytliose conditions set forth in such prospectuglsupent and the prospectus
supplement will set forth the commission payablesficitation of those contracts.

Agents and underwriters may be entitled under ageeés entered into with us to indemnification byagainst certain civil
liabilities, including liabilities under the U.Seéurities Act of 1933, as amended, or to contrdsutvith respect to payments which
the agents or underwriters may be required to nrakespect thereof.

Agents and underwriters may engage in transactiathsus or perform services for us in the ordineoyrse of business.

In compliance with guidelines of the Financial Istty Regulatory Authority (“FINRA"), the maximum amant of
underwriting compensation, including underwritirmpamissions or discounts, to be received by any AIMiember or independent
broker dealer may not exceed 8% of the aggregateiainof the MXN notes offered pursuant to this pesdus; however, it is
anticipated that the maximum underwriting compengab be received in any particular offering of MXotes will be significantly
less than this amount.
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EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of AméricariM&.A.B. de C.V. appearing in its annual repmitForm 20-F for the
year ended December 31, 2011, and the effectiveridsmérica Mévil, S.A.B. de C.V.’s internal controver financial reporting as
of December 31, 2011, have been audited by Man8&eta, a member practice of Ernst & Young Globalirmlependent registered
public accounting firm, as set forth in their regsdhereon, included therein, and incorporatedihdrgreference. Such consolidated
financial statements are incorporated herein lsregice in reliance upon such reports given onuhesty of such firm as experts in
accounting and auditing.

VALIDITY OF MXN NOTES

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable progmesupplement, Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilta lwill provide an
opinion regarding the validity of the MXN notes @ndNew York law, and Bufete Robles Miaja, S.C. \pilbvide an opinion
regarding the authorization of the MXN notes undexican law.

Mr. Rafael Robles Miaja, our Corporate Pro-Secyetard formerly our Corporate Secretary and membeuioBoard of
Directors, is a partner at the firm Bufete Roblaaji] S.C.

ENFORCEABILITY OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

América Mdvil is a corporation organized under ldags of Mexico, with its principal places of busisglomicilio socia) in
Mexico City. In addition, most of our directorsfioérs and controlling persons, as well as cerajoerts named in this prospectus,
reside outside the United States, and all or atantial portion of their assets and our asset$oasted outside of the United States.
As a result, it may be difficult for investors tifext service of process within the United Statesruthese persons or to enforce
against them, either inside or outside the UnitiadeS, judgments obtained against these persdusSincourts, or to enforce in U.S.
courts judgments obtained against these persamiitts in jurisdictions outside the United Stategach case, in any action
predicated upon civil liabilities under the U.Sddeal securities laws. Based on the opinion of BuRobles Miaja, S.C., our Mexican
counsel, there is doubt as to the enforceabiligireg these persons in Mexico, whether in origawiions or in actions for
enforcement of judgments of U.S. courts, of lidieii predicated solely upon the U.S. federal sgearaws.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus is part of a registration statemealuding exhibits, which we have filed with t8&&C on Form F-3 under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. This prospetdas not contain all of the information set fartlthe registration statement.
Statements made in this prospectus as to the derdkany contract, agreement or other documematraecessarily complete. We
have filed certain of these documents as exhibitsit registration statement and we refer you és¢rdocuments. Each statement in
this prospectus relating to a document filed aexdmbit is qualified in all respects by the filexhébit.

We file reports, including annual reports on Foi@rF2 and other information with the SEC pursuarth&rules and
regulations of the SEC that apply to foreign prvessuers. You may read and copy any materiats fiiéh the SEC at its Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washingta@, 20549. You may obtain information on the ogerabf the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Anyn{jk we make electronically will be available to gublic over the Internet at
the SEC’s web site at www.sec.gov.
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INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to “incorporate by reference”ittiermation we file with it, which means that wancdisclose important
information to you by referring you to those documse The information incorporated by referenceoissidered to be part of this
prospectus, and certain later information thatileeviith the SEC will automatically update and suggele earlier information filed
with the SEC or included in this prospectus or@spectus supplement. We incorporate by refererecéoltowing documents:

our annual report on Form 20-F for the year eridecember 31, 2011, filed with the SEC on April 2012 (SEC File
No. 001-16269);

our report on Form 6-K, filed with the SEC onvdmber 27, 2012 (SEC File No. 001-16269), contgitirdiscussion of
our results of operations for the nine months erfsiggtember 30, 2012 and 2011 and of our finanoiadlition as of
September 30, 2012;

our report on Form 6-K, filed with the SEC onvember 27, 2012 (SEC File No. 001-16269), contgimmar unaudited
interim condensed consolidated financial statemants September 30, 2012 and for the three aredmonths ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011,

any future annual reports on Form 20-F filechvtite SEC under the Exchange Act, after the datiei®prospectus and
prior to the termination of the offering of the MXibtes; and

any future reports on Form 6-K that we furnisiihte SEC after the date of this prospectus and ithe termination of
the offering of MXN notes offered by this prospexcthat are identified in such reports as beingripaated by reference
in our Registration Statement on Form F-3.

You may request a copy of any and all of the infaion that has been incorporated by referenceismptiospectus and that has
not been delivered with this prospectus, at no, diystriting or telephoning us at Lago Zurich 2&sdlificio Telcel, Colonia Granada
Ampliacion, Delegacion Miguel Hidalgo, 11529, Mé&xiD.F., México, Attention: Investor Relations, @ene (5255) 2581-4449.
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ANNEX A

AMERICA MOVIL

We provide telecommunications services in 25 countries. We are the largest provider of wireless
communications services in Latin America based on the number of subscribers, with the largest market share in
Mexico and the third-largest in Brazil, in each case based on the number of subscribers. We also have major fixed-
line or Pay TV operations in Mexico, Brazil, Colombia and 16 other countries. The table below provides a summary
of the principal businesses we conduct and the principal brand names we use in each country where we operated as
of December 31, 2014.

Country Principal Brands Principal Businesses
Mexico Telcel Wireless

Telmex Fixed line
Argentina Claro Wireless, Fixed line
Austria Al Wireless, Fixed line
Belarus Velcom Wireless
Brazil Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Bulgaria Mobitel Wireless, Fixed line
Chile Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Colombia Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Costa Rica Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Croatia Vipnet Wireless, Fixed line
Dominican Republic Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Ecuador Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
El Salvador Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Guatemala Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Honduras Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Macedonia Vip operator Wireless
Nicaragua Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Panama Claro Wireless, Pay TV
Paraguay Claro Wireless, Pay TV
Peru Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Puerto Rico Claro Wireless, Fixed line, Pay TV
Serbia Vip mobile Wireless
Slovenia Si.mobil Wireless
Uruguay Claro Wireless
United States TracFone Wireless

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2013 and 2014, the number of our wireless

subscribers and our revenue generating units (“RGUs”) in the countries in which we operate. RGUs consist of fixed
lines, broadband accesses and cable or direct-to-home Pay TV units. The table includes total subscribers and RGUs
of all of our consolidated subsidiaries, without adjustment where our equity interest is less than 100%. The table
reflects the geographic segments that we use in our consolidated financial statements, including the following:

(a) Southern Cone refers to Argentina, Chile, Paraguay and Uruguay; (b) Andean Region refers to Ecuador and
Peru; (c) Central America refers to Costa Rica, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Nicaragua and Panama;

(d) Caribbean refers to the Dominican Republic and Puerto Rico and (e) Europe refers to Austria, Belarus, Bulgaria,
Croatia, Macedonia, Serbia and Slovenia.



As of December 31,
2013 2014
(in thousands)

Wireless subscribers:

IMIEXICO 1.ttt ettt et ebe e e st e b e 73,505 71,463
T =74 | DO 68,704 71,107
(000] (0] 111 o - VS 28,977 29,776
1011 (T4 TG0 T 28,166 27,754
ANAEAN REGION......eiiiiiiiieiiiie e 23,886 24,270
(=T o) = AN 411 o7 17,222 13,973
(0T (=0 I = (R 23,659 26,006
Caribbhean .......cvv i 5,764 5,092
BUMOPE ...t — 20,008
Total Wireless SUDSCIIDEIS .......cccuvvivveeiei e 269,883 289,449
RGUs:

1Y 1= ol T 22,452 22,250
T =74 | DO 32,683 36,096
(000] (0] 111 o - VS 4,749 5,307
10111 (T4 TG0 3T 1,714 1,827
ANAEAN REGION......ciiiiiriiciiiie et 1,343 1,576
Central AMEIICA ...c..ccivvieceee ettt 4,261 4,606
Caribbhean .......ovv i 2,244 2,347
BUFOPE .o — 4,402
TOtal RGUS ...ttt 69,445 78,411

Our principal operations are described below. Unless otherwise indicated, we operate in all of our
geographic segments under the Claro brand.

Mexico Wireless. Our subsidiary Radiomdvil Dipsa, S.A. de C.V., which operates under the
name Telcel, is the largest provider of wireless telecommunications services in Mexico based on
the number of subscribers.

Mexico Fixed Line. Our subsidiary Teléfonos de México, S.A.B. de C.V., which operates under
the name Telmex, is the largest nationwide provider of fixed-line telecommunications services
in Mexico based on the number of subscribers.

Brazil. Our subsidiary Claro S.A. (“Claro”) provides wireless, fixed-line and Pay TV services
under the brand names Claro, Embratel and Net Servigos. Claro became one of the leading
providers of telecommunications services in Brazil, following a reorganization of our
subsidiaries on December 31, 2014, in which our subsidiaries Embratel Participagdes S.A.,
Empresa Brasileira de Telecomunicacgdes and Net Servigos de Comunicacdo merged into Claro.
We are one of the three largest providers of wireless telecommunications services in Brazil and
the largest cable television operator in Brazil, in each case based on the number of subscribers.
We offer quadruple-play services in Brazil, with a cable television network that passed

21.1 million homes as of December 31, 2014.

Colombia. We provide wireless services in Colombia, where we are the largest wireless service
provider based on the number of subscribers. We also provide fixed-line telecommunications
and Pay TV services. As of December 31, 2014, our network passed 7.1 million homes.

Southern Cone. We provide wireless and fixed-line services in Argentina, Paraguay, Uruguay
and Chile. In Chile and Paraguay, we offer nationwide Pay TV services.



. Andean Region. We provide wireless services in Peru and Ecuador. We also provide fixed-line
telecommunications and Pay TV services in Peru, where our network passed 1.2 million homes,
and Ecuador, where our network passed 0.5 million homes, in each case as of December 31,
2014.

. Central America. We provide fixed-line telecommunications, wireless and Pay TV services in
Guatemala, El Salvador, Honduras and Nicaragua. We also provide wireless and Pay TV
services in Panama and Costa Rica.

. United States. Our subsidiary TracFone Wireless Inc. (“TracFone”) is engaged in the sale and
distribution of no-contract wireless services and wireless phones throughout the United States,
Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. It operates under the brands TracFone, Straight Talk,
SafeLink Wireless, Net10 Wireless and Simple Mobile.

. Caribbean. We provide fixed-line telecommunications, wireless and Pay TV services in the
Dominican Republic and Puerto Rico, where we are, in each case, the largest
telecommunications services provider based on the number of subscribers.

. Europe. Our subsidiary Telekom Austria AG (“Telekom Austria”) is a leading provider of
wireless and fixed-line telecommunications services in Central and Eastern Europe. It is listed
on the Vienna Stock Exchange.

Other Investments

We have a substantial investment in Koninklijke KPN N.V. (“KPN”). KPN is the leading
telecommunications and IT services provider in the Netherlands and is listed on the Amsterdam Stock Exchange
(Euronext Amsterdam). In our consolidated financial statements, we account for KPN using the equity method.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014, AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2014

The following is a summary and discussion of our unaudited preliminary consolidated financial
information as of December 31, 2014, and unaudited preliminary consolidated results of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2014. For comparative purposes, the tables include financial information as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The following tables and discussion should be read in conjunction with our audited
annual consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, which are included in our
2013 Form 20-F.

Our consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, are not yet
available, and the independent audit of those financial statements has not yet been completed. The unaudited
preliminary financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, presented below is preliminary
and subject to change as we complete our financial closing procedures and prepare our consolidated financial
statements for publication, and as our independent registered public accounting firm completes its audit of such
consolidated financial statements. As of the date of this report on Form 6-K, our independent registered public
accounting firm has not expressed an opinion or any other form of assurance on any financial information as of or
for the year ended December 31, 2014, or on our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014.
Our audited consolidated financial statements for such period may differ materially from this preliminary
information and will also include notes providing extensive additional disclosures.

References herein to “U.S.$” are to U.S. dollars. References herein to “Ps.” are to Mexican pesos. U.S.
dollar amounts in the tables are presented solely for convenience, using the exchange rate of Ps.14.7348 to
U.S.$1.00, which was the rate reported by Banco de México as of December 31, 2014, as published in the Mexican
Official Gazette of the Federation (Diario Oficial de la Federacion, or the “Official Gazette™). You should not
construe these translations or any other currency translations included herein as representations that the Mexican
peso amounts actually represent the U.S. dollar or other foreign currency amounts or could be converted into U.S.
dollars or such other foreign currency at the rate used or indicated.

For the year ended December 31,

2013 2014
(in thousands of Mexican pesos) (in millions of U.S.
dollars)
(audited) (unaudited preliminary)
Income Statement Data
Operating revenues:
Mobile VOICE SEIVICES........cocvcereieiieeciee e Ps. 265,039,903  Ps. 255,606,335 U.S.$ 17,367
FixXed VOICE SEIVICES ......ccveiiiriie s 111,785,611 114,687,475 7,792
Mobile data SEIVICES........cveevcveieiciie e, 159,589,580 194,882,905 13,241
Fixed data SErVICES .......ccvevviireiieieieeire e 85,039,329 97,533,378 6,627
PAY TV e 60,829,310 68,378,623 4,646
Equipment, accessories and computer sales............ 84,544,261 95,632,868 6,498
Other SEIVICES......cveecviiiiieciie et 19,273,027 21,540,237 1,464
Total operating reVENUES ........cc.coveveeierierieriesieieeenen e, 786,101,021 848,261,821 57,635
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of sales and SErViCeS........cocvevvvvveeviieeesieee e, 358,291,177 386,102,139 26,233
Commercial, administrative and general expenses ...... 167,184,570 185,683,205 12,616
Other EXPENSES ......coueivereeieeeieie e 4,832,685 8,100,893 550
Depreciation and amortization ............cccceeveeveienenns 101,534,833 119,174,587 8,097
Total operating costs and eXPenses.........ccoevereeerenerenenn. 631,843,265 699,060,824 47,496
Operating iNCOME .......ccvcviieieieiee e 154,257,756 149,200,997 10,139
INEErESt INCOME ....vviieviiciiice e 6,245,323 12,482,949 848
INEEreSt EXPENSE ...t (30,349,694) (39,599,241) (2,691)
Foreign currency exchange 10SS, Net...........ccoceeereiinenennn, (19,610,465) (28,615,459) (1,944)
Valuation of derivatives, interest cost from labor
obligations and other financial items, net..................... (5,211,983) (4,372,003) (297)
Equity interest in net (losses) income of associated
COMPANIES. ..ttt 36,282 (2,647,180) (180)
Profit before inCOME taX .........coovvvvivciiiiiiie e 105,367,219 86,450,063 5,875



INCOME taX ....ooovverriiieeiiceie
Net profit for the period............

Net profit for the period attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent...........c.ccocooeiiininnnnns

Non-controlling interests

For the year ended December 31,

2013 2014
(in thousands of Mexican pesos) (in millions of U.S.
dollars)
(audited) (unaudited preliminary)
30,392,731 38,952,340 2,647
Ps. 74,974,488  Ps. 47,497,723 U.S.$ 3,228
74,624,979 45,922,214 3,120
349,509 1,575,509 108
Ps. 74,974,488  Ps. 47,497,723 US.$ 3,228




At December 31,

2013 2014
(in thousands of Mexican pesos) (in millions of U.S.
dollars)
(audited) (unaudited preliminary)
Balance Sheet Data
Total current assets ........coeveevveeeeeeinnns Ps. 236,698,068  Ps. 281,080,377 uss$ 19,097
Total non-current assets........c.ccoeueenenn 788,894,365 979,639,461 66,562
Total aSSEtS ...covvevveiieiieieecreecre e 1,025,592,433 1,260,719,838 85,659
Total current liabilities.............cceenen. 273,954,953 359,901,441 24,453
Long-termdebt ........cccooovviviviieieenn, 464,478,366 539,066,569 36,626
Deferred taxes.....coccovvveeeeeiieeveeeeiieenn, 1,628,409 22,886,281 1,555
Deferred reVeNUES........cocvevvveeeeeeinneene, 1,105,294 1,330,757 90
Asset retirement obligation.................. 7,516,460 13,496,202 917
Employee benefits ..........ccoovveiviinnne, 66,607,874 84,298,264 5,728
Total liabilitieS.......ccovvvveiiieiicecien, 815,291,356 1,020,979,514 69,369
Equity:
Capital StocK.........coevvevevericrnnns 96,392,339 96,382,631 6,549
Retained earnings: .........cccocevvene.
Prior period.......c.cccocevvennn 122,693,933 146,188,038 9,934
Profit for the period .......... 74,624,979 45,922,214 3,120
Total retained earnings............... 197,318,912 192,110,252 13,054
Other comprehensive income
(10SS) ItEMS ...ovevecvrerceenen, (91,310,640) (99,228,732) (6,742)
Equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent ........cccoevvveveveccienn, 202,400,611 189,264,151 12,861
Non-controlling interests..................... 7,900,466 50,476,173 3,429
Total eQUILY ..o, 210,301,077 239,740,324 16,290
Total liabilities and equity ................... Ps. 1,025592,433 Ps. 1,260,719,838 U.S.$ 85,659

Consolidated Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2014

Our financial statements are presented in Mexican pesos, but our operations outside Mexico account for
a significant portion of our revenues. Currency variations between the Mexican peso and the currencies of our non-
Mexican subsidiaries, especially the Brazilian real, affect our results of operations as reported in Mexican pesos. In
the following discussion regarding our operating revenues and operating costs and expenses, we include a discussion
of the change in the different components of our revenues and costs and expenses between periods at constant
exchange rates (i.e., using the same exchange rate to translate the local-currency results of our non-Mexican
operations for both periods). We believe that this additional information helps investors better understand the
performance of our non-Mexican operations and their contribution to our consolidated results.

As of December 31, 2014, we owned, directly and indirectly, 59.70% of the total equity of Telekom
Austria. We began consolidating Telekom Austria from July 1, 2014. Prior to July 1, 2014, we accounted for
Telekom Austria using the equity method. The consolidation of Telekom Austria affects the comparability of our
results for 2014 to our results for 2013.



Operating Revenues

Total operating revenues for 2014 increased by 7.9%, or Ps.62.2 billion, over 2013. At constant
exchange rates, total operating revenues for 2014 increased by 10.9% over 2013, or 6.1% excluding the effects of
consolidating Telekom Austria. This increase was principally attributable to increases in revenues from our mobile
data, fixed data and Pay TV operations, partially offset by a decrease in revenues from our mobile and fixed voice
operations.



Mobile Voice—Mobile voice revenues for 2014 decreased by 3.6%, or Ps.9.4 billion, over 2013. At
constant exchange rates, mobile voice revenues for 2014 decreased by 0.7% over 2013, or 3.5% excluding the
effects of consolidating Telekom Austria. This decrease principally reflects reductions in the effective price per
minute for calls, the elimination in Mexico of interconnection rates and national roaming charges and the reduction
of interconnection rates in other jurisdictions where we operate, principally Colombia.

Fixed Voice—Fixed voice revenues for 2014 increased by 2.6%, or Ps.2.9 billion, from 2013. At
constant exchange rates, fixed voice revenues for 2014 increased by 4.2% from 2013, or decreased by 2.6%
excluding the effects of consolidating Telekom Austria. This decrease was principally attributable to reduced traffic,
principally long-distance, in part explained by increased penetration of wireless technology, and new regulatory
measures affecting companies operating in the telecommunications sector, such as in Colombia and Mexico.

Mobile Data—Mobile data revenues for 2014 increased by 22.1%, or Ps.35.3 billion, over 2013. At
constant exchange rates, mobile data revenues for 2014 increased by 25.2% over 2013, or 17.5% excluding the
effects of consolidating Telekom Austria. This increase was principally attributable to increased use of services such
as media and content downloading, web browsing, content streaming and machine-to-machine services, driven in
part by increased use of social networking websites and content downloading on handsets, tablets and notebooks.

Fixed Data—Fixed data revenues for 2014 increased by 14.7%, or Ps.12.5 billion, over 2013. At
constant exchange rates, fixed data revenues for 2014 increased by 17.9% over 2013, or 12.6% excluding the effects
of consolidating Telekom Austria. The principal factors in the increase were residential broadband services growth,
fueled by higher quality services with greater coverage, and the growth of corporate data services such as cloud,
dedicated lines, leasing and data center services.

Pay TV—Pay TV revenues for 2014 increased 12.4%, or Ps.7.5 billion, over 2013. At constant
exchange rates, pay TV revenues for 2014 increased by 17.4% over 2013, or 16.9% excluding the effects of
consolidating Telekom Austria. This increase reflects subscriber growth and increased revenues driven by new plans
and channel packages that integrate multiple services, particularly in Brazil, Colombia, Peru, the Dominican
Republic and Ecuador.

Equipment, Accessories and Computer Sales—Revenues from equipment, accessories and computer
sales for 2014 increased by 13.1%, or Ps.11.1 billion, over 2013. At constant exchange rates, revenues from
equipment, accessories and computer sales for 2014 increased by 18.1% over 2013, or 13.9% excluding the effects
of consolidating Telekom Austria. This increase reflects new commercial plans and promotions among prepaid and
postpaid subscribers, which contributed to an increase in handset, tablet and electronics sales.

Other Services—Revenues from other services for 2014 increased by 11.8%, or Ps.2.3 billion, over
2013. At constant exchange rates, revenues from other services for 2014 increased by 25.4% over 2013, or
decreased by 7.6% excluding the effects of consolidating Telekom Austria. This decrease reflects a fall in revenues
from other services such as wireless security services, yellow pages and call-center services.

Operating Costs and Expenses

Cost of sales and services—Cost of sales and services for 2014 increased by 7.8%, or Ps.27.8 billion,
over 2013, representing 45.5% of operating revenues compared to 45.6% of operating revenues for 2013. At
constant exchange rates, cost of sales and services for 2014 increased by 10.4% over 2013, or 6.4% excluding the
effects of consolidating Telekom Austria.

Cost of sales was Ps.129.6 billion for 2014 and Ps.122.0 billion for 2013. Excluding the effects of
consolidating Telekom Austria, cost of sales was Ps.125.1 billion for 2014 and Ps.122.0 billion for 2013. This 5.3%
increase primarily reflects the purchase of increasing quantities of smartphones for sale to customers in all countries
in which we operate, and an increase in subsidies we provide in order to acquire and retain subscribers and to
incentivize prepaid subscribers to switch to postpaid plans.



Cost of services was Ps.256.5 billion for 2014 and Ps.236.3 billion for 2013, an increase of 8.5%.
Excluding the effects of consolidating Telekom Austria, cost of services was Ps.246.9 billion for 2014 and Ps.236.3
billion for 2013. This 7.0% increase primarily reflects an increase in costs related to the growth of our Pay TV
business, increased costs to support the growth of our mobile data business, higher royalty payments, an increase in
real estate, leasing, electricity, network maintenance and labor costs and an increase in annual concession fees.

Commercial, administrative and general expenses—Commercial, administrative and general expenses
for 2014 increased by 11.1%, or Ps.18.5 billion, over 2013. As a percentage of operating revenues, commercial,
administrative and general expenses for 2013 and 2014 were 21.3% and 21.9%, respectively. At constant exchange
rates, commercial, administrative and general expenses for 2014 increased by 14.9% over 2013, or 7.1% excluding
the effects of consolidating Telekom Austria. This primarily reflects increased expenses related to higher customer-
service costs, including increases in the number of customer service centers and employees, in order to provide
better customer care and quality of service.

Other expenses—Other expenses for 2014 increased by 67.6%, or Ps.3.3 billion, over 2013 principally
as a result of the consolidation of Telekom Austria.

Depreciation and amortization—Depreciation and amortization for 2014 increased by 17.4%, or Ps.17.6
billion, over 2013 principally as a result of the consolidation of Telekom Austria and capital expenditures made in
recent years. As a percentage of operating revenues, depreciation and amortization for 2014 increased slightly to
14.0% compared to 12.9% for 2013. Excluding the effects of consolidating Telekom Austria, depreciation and
amortization for 2014 increased by 12.0% at constant exchange rates.

Operating Income

Operating income for 2014 decreased by 3.3%, or Ps.5.1 billion, from 2013. Operating margin
(operating income as a percentage of operating revenues) for 2014 was 17.6% compared to 19.6% for 2013.
Excluding the effects of consolidating Telekom Austria, operating income for 2014 decreased by 1.2%, due
principally to higher costs for subscriber acquisition, network maintenance and customer service, as well as the
growth of lower-margin businesses such as Pay TV and TracFone.

Non-Operating Items

Net Interest Expense—Net interest expense (interest expense less interest income) for 2014 increased by
Ps.3.0 billion, or 12.5%, over 2013, or 7.1% excluding the effects of consolidating Telekom Austria, attributable to a
small increase in our net debt and appreciation of some of the currencies in which our indebtedness is denominated,
particularly the U.S. dollar.

Foreign Currency Exchange Loss, Net—We recorded a net exchange loss of Ps.28.6 billion for 2014,
compared to a net exchange loss of Ps.19.6 billion for 2013. Excluding the effects of consolidating Telekom Austria,
net exchange losses increased by 45.6% from 2013, primarily attributable to the appreciation of some of the
currencies in which our indebtedness is denominated, particularly the U.S. dollar.

Valuation of Derivatives, Interest Cost from Labor Obligations and Other Financial Items, Net—The
net change in valuation of derivatives and other financial items represented a loss of Ps.4.4 billion for 2014,
compared to a loss of Ps.5.2 billion for 2013. This item reflects the loss recorded on our sale of KPN shares, which
was partially offset by value gains on the derivative instruments we use to hedge against exchange rate risk in our
indebtedness.

Income Tax—Our income tax expenses for 2014 increased by 28.2% over 2013. In Mexico, for tax
purposes we recognize a taxable gain attributable to the effects of inflation on our financial liabilities. Our effective
rate of provisions for corporate income tax as a percentage of profit before income tax was 45.1% for 2014,
compared to 28.8% for 2013. Our effective tax rate differed from the Mexican statutory rate of 30% principally
because of the higher level of taxable inflationary effects and non-deductible expenses, including the impairment in
the value of associated companies and the loss associated with our sale of shares in KPN.



Net Profit

We recorded net profit of Ps.47.5 billion for 2014, a decrease of 36.6%, or Ps.27.5 billion, from net
profit of Ps.75.0 billion in 2013. Excluding the effects of consolidating Telekom Austria, net profit in 2014
decreased by 40.5% compared to 2013. This decrease in net profit was primarily attributable to our foreign exchange
losses and a higher tax burden.
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Segment Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2014

The following table sets forth the exchange rates used to translate the results of our significant non-Mexican
operations, as expressed in Mexican pesos per foreign currency unit, and the change from the rate used in the prior
period indicated. The U.S. dollar is our functional currency in several countries in addition to the United States,
including Ecuador and Puerto Rico.

Mexican pesos per foreign
currency unit (average for
the period) for the
years ended December 31,

2013 2014 % Change
Brazilian real ... 5.9334 5.6574 4.7)
ColombIAN PESO ....vvviieiiiiiriecre e 0.0068 0.0067 (2.5)
ATFGENLINE PESO....ceiviieiiiieieie et 2.3410 1.6406 (29.9)
U.S. dOHAN .. 12.7660 13.2969 4.2
BUIOD .o 16.966 17.651 4.0

The tables below set forth operating revenues and operating income for each of our segments for the periods
indicated.

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Operating Operating
revenues income (loss)
(in millions of Mexican Pesos)
(audited)
MEXICO WITEIESS .....eeeivieiieee e Ps. 193,178 Ps. 78,761
MEXICO FIXEU.....oviveeiiiii e 105,869 20,038
Brazil .....cooveeiviiiei e 199,887 11,101
(0701 (0] 131 o] F- N 74,210 21,351
SOULNEIN CONE ...t 61,521 6,174
Andean REGION .......ccovveiiiiiiee e 45,113 11,910
Central AMErICA.......coeevveiiiieiie e 24,219 (1,129)
UNited StateS.....cveeiiieeciecciie et 77,167 939
Caribbean.......coccocvi e 25,509 4,478
ElMINAtioNS......c.coviirieiiecce e (20,572) 635
TOtAl cuee e Ps. 786,101 Ps. 154,258

For the Year ended December 31, 2014

Operating Operating
revenues income (loss)
(in millions of Mexican Pesos)
(unaudited)
MEXICO WITFEIESS .....veeiviicceeece e Ps. 195,710 Ps. 70,290
MEXICO FIXEU.....vviveiiieii et 107,518 22,284
Brazil .....cooveeiviiiei e 204,647 12,669
(0701 (0] 121 o] F- AP 75,992 17,669
SOULNEIN CONE ..cevveireece et 56,532 6,593
Andean REGION .......ccovveiiiiiiee e 47,802 12,132
Central AMEriCa........covvvreiririeire s 27,023 (212)
UNited StateS.....cveiivieeceeccie et 91,097 1,520
Caribbean.......coccocvi e 25,842 4,923
BUMOPE....oviiiiiciec 37,392 1,048



For the Year ended December 31, 2014

Operating Operating
revenues income (loss)

(in millions of Mexican Pesos)
(unaudited)

ElMINAtions.........cccoovveiiiicceee e (21,293) 285
TOAL oo Ps. 848,262 Ps. 149,201

In the following discussion of our segment results of operations, we use certain operating measures that are
defined below:

ARPU—Average revenues per user. This measure analyzes revenues from wireless data and voice services.
We calculate ARPU for a given period by dividing service revenues for such period on a local-currency basis by the
simple average number of wireless subscribers for such period. The result is then presented in Mexican pesos, and
comparability from one period to the next is therefore affected by changes in exchange rates. The figure includes
both prepaid and postpaid customers.

MOUs —Average minutes of use per user. This measure analyzes usage of wireless services. We calculate
MOUs by dividing total wireless traffic in a given period by the simple average number of wireless subscribers for
such period.

Churn—This measure analyzes the rate at which customers disconnect from our services (wireless, fixed or
Pay TV). We calculate churn rate as the total number of customer disconnections for a period divided by total
subscribers at the beginning of such period. For wireless customers, postpaid subscribers are considered
disconnected at the expiration of their contracts or earlier if they voluntarily discontinue service or following a
specified period of time after they become delinquent, and prepaid customers are considered disconnected following
a specified period after they cease using our services so long as they have not activated a calling card or received
traffic.

The following discussion addresses the financial performance of each of our operating segments by
comparing results for the years ended 2014 and 2013. In the period-to-period comparisons for each segment, we
include percentage changes in operating revenues, percentage changes in operating income and operating margin
(operating income as a percentage of operating revenues). Comparisons in the following discussion are calculated
using figures in Mexican pesos. We also include percentage changes in adjusted segment operating revenues,
percentage changes in adjusted segment operating income and adjusted operating margin (adjusted operating income
as a percentage of adjusted operating revenues). The adjustments eliminate (a) certain intersegment transactions,

(b) for our non-Mexican segments, the effects of exchange rate changes, and (c) for the Mexican Wireless segment
only, revenues and costs of group corporate activities and other businesses that are allocated to the Mexico Wireless
segment.

Mexico Wireless

Mexico Wireless segment operating revenues for 2014 increased by 1.3% over 2013. Adjusted segment
operating revenues increased by 0.7%. Mobile voice revenues for 2014 decreased by 9.6% from 2013, principally
due to the elimination of roaming charges within Mexico and a reduction in long distance charges. Mobile data
revenues increased by 14.2% over 2013, offsetting the decreases in mobile voice revenues. This was principally due
to increased customer usage of value-added services, including messaging, content downloading, mobile
applications and e-commerce, and an increase in revenues from service plans offering higher data capacity.

MOUs for 2014 decreased by 2.6% over 2013. ARPU for 2014 decreased by 1.1% from 2013,
principally as a result of the reduction of interconnection rates and roaming and long distance charges. The wireless
churn rate for our Mexican Wireless operations for 2014 increased to 4.3% from 3.8% for 2013.

Mexico Wireless segment operating income for 2014 decreased by 10.8% from 2013. Adjusted segment
operating income increased by 0.6%. Segment operating margin was 35.9% for 2014 and 40.8% for 2013. The
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decrease in segment operating margin for 2014 was principally due to costs related to network maintenance and
expansion, increased capacity to absorb higher bandwidth usage and customer service.

Mexico Fixed

Mexico Fixed segment operating revenues for 2014 increased by 1.6% over 2013. Adjusted segment
operating revenues increased by 1.3%. Fixed voice revenues for 2014 decreased by 4.5% from 2013, reflecting
reductions in national and international long-distance rates and usage, fewer fixed lines and lower interconnection
revenues. Fixed data revenues increased by 9.5% over 2013, reflecting an increase in revenues from broadband and
corporate network services, principally due to an increase in the subscriber base.

Mexico Fixed segment operating income for 2014 increased by 11.2% from 2013. Adjusted segment
operating income increased by 1.4%. Segment operating margin was 20.7% for 2014 and 18.9% for 2013. The
increase in segment operating margin for 2014 was principally due to greater cost efficiencies and lower personnel
costs, despite increases in costs associated with customer service improvements and network maintenance.

Brazil

Brazil segment operating revenues for 2014 increased by 2.4% from 2013. Adjusted segment operating
revenues increased by 7.2% due to increases in mobile and fixed data revenues. Mobile data revenues for 2014
increased by 25.2% and fixed data revenues for 2014 increased by 14.4%, in each case compared to 2013. The
increase in mobile data revenues and fixed data revenues primarily reflects an increase in the subscriber base and
increased data usage for media and content downloading, as well as greater use of value-added services, such as
SMS messaging and web browsing.

Pay TV revenues for 2014 increased by 16.6% over 2013, as a result of a growing subscriber base and
an increase in the purchase of additional services such as video-on-demand.

Wireless and fixed voice revenues for 2014 decreased by 10.9% and increased by 0.2%, respectively.
The principal factors in the decrease in revenues were the reduction of interconnection rates and reduced long
distance and fixed-to-mobile charges. The slight increase in fixed voice revenues is primarily attributable to
increased subscribers for fixed-line services offered by the NET Fone brand, partially offset by reduced revenues
from local services and increased costs associated with promotions and bundled packages of services offered by
NET Fone.

MOUs for 2014 decreased by 5.5% over 2013. ARPU for 2014 decreased by 6.2% from 2013.

Brazil segment operating income for 2014 increased by 14.1% from 2013. Adjusted segment operating
income increased by 23.8%. Segment operating margin was 6.2% for 2014 and 5.6% for 2013. Adjusted segment
operating margin was 4.9% for 2014 and 4.2% for 2013. Segment operating income for 2014 was positively affected
by increased revenues and operational efficiencies resulting from the merger of three subsidiaries into Claro,
partially offset by increased costs associated with network maintenance, leases, electricity and human resources.

Colombia

Colombia segment operating revenues for 2014 increased by 2.4% over 2013. Adjusted segment operating
revenues increased by 5.2%. Fixed and mobile data revenues for 2014 increased by 13.3% and 5.8%, respectively,
over 2013, primarily due to increased purchase of bundled packages of services, higher demand for data plans and
an increase in subscribers for internet services.

Fixed voice revenues increased by 4.2%, while mobile voice revenues decreased by 4.9% for 2014, in each
case from 2013. Pay TV revenues for 2014 increased by 13.4% over 2013, reflecting an increase in the use of
services such as video-on-demand and an increase in subscribers.

MOUs for 2014 decreased by 0.6% from 2013. ARPU for 2014 decreased by 7.4% over 2013.
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Colombia segment operating income for 2014 decreased by 17.2% from 2013. Adjusted segment operating
income decreased by 12.6%. Segment operating margin was 23.3% for 2014 and 28.8% for 2013. Adjusted segment
operating margin was 26.3% for 2014 and 31.7% for 2013. Segment operating margin in 2014 was affected by
higher electricity, lease, maintenance and customer service costs and an obligation imposed by the Colombian
government to provide free tablets and handsets to certain people in low-income brackets as a condition for our
acquisition of 4G spectrum.

Southern Cone—Argentina, Chile, Paraguay and Uruguay

Southern Cone segment operating revenues for 2014 decreased by 8.1% from 2013. Adjusted segment
operating revenues decreased by 7.9%. The decrease in operating revenues was driven primarily by lower
interconnection tariffs due to regulatory measures in Chile, partially offset by increased revenues in Chile and
Argentina from higher data usage, such as data purchased in bundled service packages.

MOUs for 2014 decreased by 8.9% from 2013. ARPU for 2014 decreased by 14.8% in Argentina, Paraguay
and Uruguay and decreased by 14.9% in Chile, in each case compared to 2013. ARPU was negatively affected by a
decrease in revenues from voice services, primarily in Chile and Argentina.

Southern Cone segment operating income for 2014 increased by 6.8% from 2013. Adjusted segment operating
income increased by 7.3%. Segment operating margin was 11.7% for 2014 and 10.0% for 2013. Adjusted segment
operating margin was 13.2% for 2014 and 11.3% for 2013. Results of operations in all countries in the segment in
2014 reflected cost efficiencies related to maintenance, leases, spare parts and customer services, which grew at a
lower rate than operating income, as well as a decrease in spectrum costs in Chile.

Andean Region—Ecuador and Peru

Andean Region segment operating revenues for 2014 increased by 6.0% over 2013. Adjusted segment
operating revenues increased by 6.0%. This increase in operating revenues reflected, in both Ecuador and Peru,
higher mobile data and postpaid plan usage, increased charges for airtime and data in connection with prepaid plans,
as well as higher revenues from fixed data and corporate network services, slightly offset by a decrease in revenues
from our mobile and fixed voice operations.

MOUs for 2014 increased by 4.6% from 2013 and ARPU for 2014 increased by 4.0% in Ecuador and by 3.8%
in Peru, in each case compared to 2013. ARPU in both countries was positively affected by greater usage of data
services.

Andean Region segment operating income for 2014 increased by 1.9% over 2013. Adjusted segment operating
income increased by 2.4%. Segment operating margin was 25.4% for 2014 and 26.4% for 2013. Adjusted segment
operating margin was 28.7% for 2014 and 29.7% for 2013.

Central America—Guatemala, El Salvador, Honduras, Nicaragua, Panama and Costa Rica

Central America segment operating revenues for 2014 increased by 11.6% over 2013. Adjusted segment
operating revenues increased by 7.1% over 2013. This increase was driven primarily by increased revenues from
mobile voice and fixed and mobile data services in each country and, in Nicaragua, in Pay TV, partially offsetting
declining fixed voice usage and prices per minute for calls in El Salvador and Guatemala.

MOUs for 2014 increased by 11.7% over 2013. ARPU for 2014 increased by 15.6% from 2013.

Central America segment operating loss for 2014 decreased by 81.2% from 2013. Operating margin for 2014
was (0.8)% compared to (4.7)% for 2013. Adjusted segment operating margin was (0.6)% for 2014 and (4.5)% for
2013. This increase in adjusted segment operating margin reflected the increase in operating income, offsetting the
growth in costs related to maintenance, customer service and new acquisitions associated with increasing our
network capacity, quality and coverage in each country.
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United States

United States segment operating revenues for 2014 increased by 18.1% over 2013. Adjusted segment
operating revenues increased by 13.4%. This increase reflected higher mobile voice and data usage and revenues
driven by the success of new and existing plans, principally those offered by TracFone and Net10 Wireless and often
including unlimited data plans.

MOUs for 2014 increased by 2.3% over 2013. ARPU for 2014 increased by 7.7% over 2013.

United States segment operating income for 2014 increased to Ps.1.5 billion from an operating loss of Ps.1.0
billion during 2013. Segment operating margin was 1.7% for 2014 and 1.2% for 2013. Adjusted segment operating
margin was 8.9% for 2014 and 8.4% for 2013. The increase in operating income primarily reflected greater cost
efficiencies, despite an increase in mobile airtime and data fees and costs associated with customer service.

Caribbean—Dominican Republic and Puerto Rico

Caribbean segment operating revenues for 2014 increased by 1.3% from 2013. Adjusted segment operating
revenues decreased by 2.8%. This decrease in adjusted segment operating revenues was driven primarily by lower
fixed and mobile voice and Pay TV revenues, partially offset by an increase in fixed and mobile data usage and
revenues.

MOUs for 2014 decreased by 3.6% from 2013. On a U.S. dollar basis, ARPU for 2014 increased by 4.9%
compared to 2013.

Caribbean segment operating income for 2014 increased by 9.9% over 2013. Segment operating margin was
19.1% in 2014 and 17.6% for 2013. Adjusted segment operating margin was 19.0% for 2014 and 17.2% for 2013.
The increase in segment operating income and operating margin for 2014 reflected a reduction in costs associated
with accrued liabilities, principally our pension obligations in Puerto Rico, offsetting increased costs associated with
human resources, network maintenance and subscriber acquisition.

Europe

We began consolidating Telekom Austria in July, 2014,

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2014, we had net debt (total debt minus cash and cash equivalents of Ps.529.9
billion, compared to Ps.442.2 billion at December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2014, cash and cash equivalents
amounted to Ps. 66.5 billion, compared to Ps.48.2 billion as of December 31, 2013.

Our total indebtedness as of December 31, 2014 was Ps.596.4 billion, of which Ps.57.3 billion was
short-term debt (including the current portion of long-term debt). Without considering the effect of hedging
instruments used to manage our interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, approximately Ps.235.9 billion, or
39.5% of our total indebtedness as of December 31, 2014 was denominated in U.S. dollars. Approximately Ps.28.3
billion or 4.7% of our total indebtedness at that date, bore interest at variable rates, while approximately Ps.568.1
billion, or 95.3% bore interest at fixed rates.

The maturities of our long-term debt as of December 31, 2014 were as follows:

Years Amount

(in millions of
Mexican pesos)

2016 ... Ps. 71,309
2007 o 42,831
2018 ... 25,547



Years Amount

(in millions of
Mexican pesos)

P20 ) R TR 45,275
2020 AN thEIATIEN .. .vvvei ettt e s e e e s e e s s e e 354,105
[0 | TR Ps. 539,067

We regularly assess our interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, and we often manage those
exposures by using derivative financial instruments. As of December 31, 2014, the net fair value of our derivatives
and other financial items was a net asset of Ps.14.0 billion.

During 2014, we used approximately Ps.146.7 billion to fund capital expenditures, including for new 4G
and LTE technology, network deployment and network capacity, and Ps.17.1 billion to pay dividends. We have also
continued to repurchase shares of our capital stock under our share repurchase program: during 2014, we
repurchased approximately 2,320.9 million Series L shares and 4.1 million Series A shares for an aggregate
purchase price of Ps.35.0 billion.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

For more information on recent developments since the filing of our 2013 Form 20-F, see “Recent
Developments” in our report on Form 6-K filed with the SEC on May 28, 2014. The information presented below
concerns recent developments since the filing of such report through the date of this report on Form 6-K.

Telekom Austria

In July 2014, we purchased 103.9 million shares of Telekom Austria in a public tender offer at €7.15 per
share. Holders of shares of Telekom Austria who did not participate in the public tender offer were permitted to
tender their shares during a subsequent sell-out period that expired on October 16, 2014. During such sell-out
period, we were required to purchase 38.4 million shares of Telekom Austria at €7.15 per share.

On November 27, 2014, Telekom Austria completed a capital increase of approximately €1 billion, in
which we contributed approximately €604 million to subscribe for 132.2 million new shares. We now hold, directly
and indirectly, 396.7 million shares, representing approximately 59.70% of the share capital of Telekom Austria.

AT&T Divestment

On June 30, 2014, AT&T International, Inc. (“AT&T?”) sold all of its interest in our capital stock in
order to facilitate its acquisition of DIRECTV. Inmobiliaria Carso, S.A. de C.V. and its subsidiary Control
Empresarial de Capitales, S.A. de C.V., both of which are our shareholders, acquired from AT&T 5,739,341,928 of
our AA shares, representing 8.27% of our capital stock and 23.81% of our voting stock, and 72,822,656 of our L
shares. Upon consummation of this transaction, AT&T ceased to be our shareholder.

Mexican Telecommunications Regulation

In July 2014, the Mexican Congress passed secondary legislation implementing the package of
constitutional amendments that became effective in June 2013 and establishing the new Federal Law on
Telecommunications and Broadcasting (Ley Federal de Telecomunicaciones y Radiodifusion). The implementing
legislation conformed closely to the bill the Mexican President submitted to Congress on March 24, 2014, which is
described in our 2013 Form 20-F and, among other things, it eliminated interconnection rates and domestic long-
distance call charges for fixed-line and mobile services in Mexico. The Federal Telecommunications Institute
(Instituto Federal de Telecomunicaciones), the new agency established by the 2013 constitutional amendments, has
continued to implement the extensive reforms provided for in the Federal Law on Telecommunications and
Broadcasting.

Spin-off

We are planning to spin off a new company that will own Telcel’s towers and certain related
infrastructure in Mexico. The transaction was approved by our Board of Directors in July 2014, and its
implementation is subject to certain corporate, regulatory and governmental approvals.

Fine Imposed on Telmex by the Instituto Federal de Telecomunicaciones

In January 2015, the Federal Telecommunications Institute (Instituto Federal de Telecomunicaciones, or
“IFT™) imposed a fine of Ps.14.4 million on Telmex for failing to file a notification of merger (concentracion) with
the IFT, in November 2008, with respect to arrangements between Telmex and Dish México Holdings, S. de R.L. de
C.V. and its related companies. Telmex has challenged the IFT’s resolution imposing such fine, since we believe
such arrangements do not constitute a merger (concentracon) as defined by the IFT.

TracFone Settlement with the U.S. Federal Trade Commission

In January 2015, our subsidiary TracFone agreed to pay U.S.$40 million to settle with the U.S. Federal
Trade Commission (“FTC”) and plaintiffs to four civil class actions, in each case with respect to certain advertising
practices for TracFone’s unlimited data plans. The funds will be used to provide refunds to consumers through a
claims process that will be jointly administered by the FTC and the civil class plaintiffs” counsel.
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Acquisition of Spectrum in Four Countries

Between the months of October 2014 and February 2015, we paid a total of U.S.$1.755 billion to
purchase additional spectrum to expand our 4G LTE and 3G networks in four countries: Brazil (20 MHz of
spectrum in the 700 MHz band); Argentina (20 MHz of spectrum in the 1,700 MHz band and 30 MHz of spectrum
in the 700 MHz band); Ecuador (20 MHz of spectrum in the 1,900 MHz band and 40 MHz of spectrum in the 700
MHz band); and Puerto Rico (10 MHz of spectrum in the 1,700 MHz band).
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RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The following table sets forth our consolidated ratios of earnings to fixed charges for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013. ™ The ratio for the year ended December 31, 2014, is based on unaudited preliminary
results and, accordingly, is subject to change.

Year ended December 31, 2013 Year ended December 31, 2014
3.9 3.0

(1) Earnings, for this purpose, consist of profit before income tax, plus interest expense, interest implicit in
operating leases and current period amortization of interest capitalized in prior periods, minus equity interest
in net income (losses) of affiliates, during the periods.
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Assets

AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Current assets:

Other

(In thousands of Mexican pesos)

Subscribers, distributors, recoverable taxes and other, net..........ccc..........

Related parties (Note 6)
Derivative financial instruments
INVENLONIES, NEL....eoevvviieeee e
ASSELS, NEBL..eiveiicrie et

Total current assets

Non-current assets:

Other
Total assets

Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 3)
Licenses and rights of use, net
Trademarks, NEt ......ccocovveevereeiieeiie e,
GoOdWIll ..o
Investment in associated companies (Note 4)
Deferred taXxes.....coovevvevvereresivrvseeiereennns
ASSELS, NEL.iviieiieiee e

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt (Note 5)
Accounts payable...........ccoioiiiiiiiiinns
Accrued liabilities...........ccocoviiiiiniiinnns
Taxes payable ...
Derivative financial instruments
Related parties (Note 6)
Deferred reVenues.........cocoovvvenecrenienene

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt (Note 5)

Deferred taXes......ccocvvverererenenisieeee e
Deferred reVEeNUES ........ccovvvvvieevereee e sie e
Asset retirement obligations
Employee benefits........ccooovvviniiniiiiiiee,

Total [IabilitieS ........cocovveeieiiiicie e,

Equity (Note 8):

Total retained earnings

Other comprehensive loss items

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

At September 30, At December 31,
2014 2013
Unaudited Audited
Ps. 89,728,451 Ps. 48,163,550
128,624,546 127,872,657
1,041,655 1,346,392
16,796,723 10,469,316
34,122,732 36,718,953
19,811,406 12,127,200
290,125,513 236,698,068
565,354,110 501,106,951
60,384,792 37,053,832
14,598,375 1,166,306
129,670,483 92,486,284
48,165,752 88,887,024
58,283,410 50,853,686
33,202,698 17,340,282
Ps. 1,199,785,133 Ps. 1,025592,433
Ps. 51,096,833 Ps. 25,841,478
160,861,188 154,137,312
41,729,563 36,958,922
27,160,200 22,082,241
9,997,397 5,366,323
1,389,375 2,552,337
39,722,115 27,016,340
331,956,671 273,954,953
525,525,957 464,478,366
19,143,382 1,628,409
1,315,762 1,105,294
11,653,903 7,516,460
73,184,212 66,607,874
962,779,887 815,291,356
96,385,288 96,392,339
156,286,971 122,693,933
42,839,347 74,624,979
199,126,318 197,318,912
(105,673,197) (91,310,640)
189,838,409 202,400,611
47,166,837 7,900,466
237,005,246 210,301,077
Ps. 1,199,785,133 Ps. 1,025592,433

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.



AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(In thousands of Mexican pesos, except for earnings per share)

For the nine-month periods
ended September 30,

2014 2013
Unaudited Unaudited
Operating revenues:
MODIIE VOICE SEIVICES .......viecvee ittt ettt e e s sb e e eb e s sb e s be e s sbaeebes s sreneens Ps. 191,513,206 Ps. 199,088,447
FIXEO VOICE SEBIVICES .vocvviiieeie it e stee sttt ste ettt s sttt s e st e s te s sabe s sabessabesssbeesnbessnbessnbesanreeans 85,023,563 84,383,517
MODIIE dAtA VOICE SEIVICES ....vviiviiiree ettt ettt e e s ee b e s b s s be e s sbesesbe s s sreseens 141,383,887 118,160,686
FIXEO AAA SENVICES ...veiiiiiiiee ittt ettt et e et e e s abe e s beesabe e s beesabeeanbeeens 71,076,955 63,293,075
Lo I (= (AT o] o OO SROT RO OPRROPRPPPO 51,016,821 44,853,893
Sales of equipment, accessories and COMPULETS ........ccvrvevrerieiireriee e 63,772,418 58,597,644
OtNEE SEIVICES ...ttt ettt ettt et e et e st e et e e s bt e e sbee e sbbeeebeeesbbeesaeeesbbeesnbeesabeeaanen, 15,170,789 13,603,427
618,957,639 581,980,689
Operating costs and expenses:
COSt OF SAIES ANA SEIVICES ....veiiveeccreie ettt ettt s e sb e e sbe e eb e e sbe e e srte e sreeesaeeesrees, 278,416,257 262,869,103
Commercial, administrative and general EXPENSES. .......cvcviveierierereseseseereereeieseesieseenes, 133,041,882 123,869,904
OFNEE EXPENSES ..veuverteteeteeieerierteste e s testesseeseeseesteseestestesaesteaseeseeseessesaesresteaneeseeneenseneenseneesne, 6,791,500 3,064,058
Depreciation and amortization ...........coeeviiiriiniree e 85,137,880 75,168,019
503,387,519 464,971,084
OPEIALING INMCOIME ... tiieiete ettt ettt ettt b ettt s et e b e bt b e s b e bt b et e st e nbeebesb e be et e eneeneenaenbe b 115,570,120 117,009,605
QLT AT 0T 9,666,717 4,155,344
LIS EXPENSE. 1. ettt b bbbt b bbb bbb bbb et (29,233,301) (21,673,700)
Foreign currency eXChange 10SS, NEL ..o e (5,797,076) (9,401,442)
Valuation of derivatives, interest cost from labor obligations and other financial items, net...... (6,951,270) (3,307,555)
Equity interest in net (loss) income of associated companies (NOte 4)........ccocevvevererinieneniriennenn, (1,851,613) 20,370
Profit DEFOrE INCOME TaX.....eicuiiicrie ittt e e eb s e eb e st e s s b e e s b essebee s sbeeenns 81,403,577 86,802,622
INCOME TAX (NOTE ) .vieiieieie et ettt st e s et e b e tesbesaeaneenee e eneenee e 37,293,663 29,000,163
Net profit fOr the PEFIOU .......coeiii e Ps. 44,109,914 Ps. 57,802,459
Net profit for the period attributable to:
Equity holders 0f the PArent ... Ps. 42,839,347 Ps. 57,448,148
NON-CONTOIIING INTEIESES ....e.vevieieeeeie et e e e nee 1,270,567 354,311
Ps. 44,109,914 Ps. 57,802,459
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the parent.............c..cc..... Ps. 0.62 Ps. 0.78
Other comprehensive income items:
Net other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Effect of translation of foreign entitieS...........coocieiiieiisee e, Ps. (12,837,814) Ps. (20,800,457)
Effect of fair value of derivatives, net of deferred taxes .............ccoovviiiciiiiiicn, (327,651) (537,013)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan, net of deferred taxes..........ccccoevvevviviivcercicnnns, (701,309) 1,232,442
Total other comprehensive loss items for the period, net of deferred taxes.........c.ccccoerviivnenn, (13,866,774) (20,105,028)
Total comprehensive income for the PEriod..........ccveiveveieiiri i, Ps. 30,243,140 Ps. 37,697,431
Comprehensive income for the period attributable to:
Equity holders of the PArent ..o Ps. 28,740,795 Ps. 37,419,102
NON-CONIOIIING INTEIESES ...ttt bt 1,502,345 278,329
Ps. 30,243,140 Ps. 37,697,431

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.



Operating revenues:
Mobile voice services

Fixed voice services

Mobile data voice services
Fixed data SErVICES .......covvvviiiiieiie i
Paid teleViSION .........ccvveeiviiiicieee e
Sales of equipment, accessories and computers
Other SEIVICES .....eveiii it

Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of sales and services
Commercial, administrative and general expenses
Other EXPENSES ...vvveverriieieirieeese e
Depreciation and amortization

Operating INCOME.........coerererirereeeeeee e

INtErest INCOME......vvviveeieee e
INEreSt EXPENSE.....eiveeeiieeerreereeree e
Foreign currency exchange loss, net

Valuation of derivatives, interest cost from labor obligations and other financial items, net......

Equity interest in net income of associated companies
Profit before income tax

Income tax (Note 9)

Net profit for the period
Net profit for the period attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the parent

Other comprehensive income items:

Net other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods:

Effect of translation of foreign entities
Effect of fair value of derivatives, net of deferred taxes
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan, net of deferred taxes

Total other comprehensive (loss) income items for the period, net of deferred taxes.................

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the period

Comprehensive income for the period attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(In thousands of Mexican pesos, except for earnings per share)

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the three-month periods
ended September 30,

2014 2013
Unaudited Unaudited
Ps. 65,703,764 Ps. 65,804,811

31,066,736 27,476,439
52,445,744 40,511,146
25,863,394 21,089,583
17,688,735 14,978,895
22,242,629 19,705,327
5,872,982 4,654,894
220,883,984 194,221,095
97,574,897 87,446,511
49,262,583 42,313,292
4,857,277 1,143,639
31,550,974 25,522,596
183,245,731 156,426,038
37,638,253 37,795,057
3,857,737 1,481,968
(10,953,496) (8,139,652)
(8,969,850) (2,917,007)
5,765,711 (1,255,817)
(2,033,330) (642,593)
25,305,025 26,321,956
14,101,204 9,670,512
Ps. 11,203,821 Ps. 16,651,444
Ps. 10,119,700 Ps. 16,384,305
1,084,121 267,139

Ps. 11,203,821 Ps. 16,651,444
Ps. 0.15 Ps. 0.22
Ps. (12,329,281) Ps.  (2,635,595)
(328,968) 3,784
(1,478,004) 815,621
(14,136,253) (1,816,190)
Ps. (2,932,432) Ps. 14,835,254
Ps. (3,707,771) Ps. 14,085,449
775,339 749,805

Ps. (2,932,432) Ps. 14,835,254

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.



Capital
stock

Legal
reserve

AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Retained
earnings

For the nine-month period ended September 30, 2014

(In thousands of Mexican pesos)

Effect of derivative

financial instruments

acquired for hedging

purposes, net of
deferred taxes

Remeasurement

benefit plan, net of

of defined

deferred taxes

Effect of translation of

foreign entities

Total equity attr

to equity hold
the paren

Balance at
December 31,
2013 (audited)......
Net profit for the
period.......ccocevneene
Remeasurement of
defined benefit
plan, net of
deferred taxes.......
Effect of fair value of
derivative
financial
instruments
acquired for
hedging purposes,
net of deferred

Ps.96,392,339

Effect of translation of
foreign entities .....

Ps.358,440

Ps.196,960,472

42,839,347

Ps.

(1,237,332)

(328,035)

Ps.

(56,367,265)

(699,009)

Ps.

(33,706,043)

(13,071,508)

Ps.

202,

42,

(13,

Comprehensive
income for the
period........ccceve.

Dividends declared ....

Repurchase of
shares........ccccoeene.

Acquisitions of none-
controlling interest
arising on business
combination of
Telekom Austria
(Note 4¢) .....cvueee.

Other acquisitions of
non-controlling
interests................

(7,051)

42,839,347
(16,677,120)

(24,335,587)

(19,234)

(328,035)

7,935

(699,009)

100

(13,071,508)

(279,000)

6,960

28,
(16,

(24,

Balance at
September 30,

2014 (unaudited).... Ps.96,385,288

Ps.358,440

Ps.198,767,878

Ps.

(1,557,432)

Ps.

(57,066,174)

Ps.

(47,049,591)

Ps.

189,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.



Capital
stock

AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Retained
earnings

Legal
reserve

For the nine-month period ended September 30, 2013

(In thousands of Mexican pesos)

Effect of derivative
financial instruments
acquired for hedging

purposes, net of
deferred taxes

Remeasurement
of defined
benefit plan, net of
deferred taxes

Total equity attr
to equity hold
the paren

Effect of translation of
foreign entities

Balance at
December 31,
2012 (audited)......

Net profit for the
period.......ccocevneene

Effect of fair value of
derivative
financial
instruments
acquired for
hedging purposes,
net of deferred

Ps.96,414,841

Remeasurement of
defined benefit
plan, net of
deferred taxes.......

Effect of translation of
foreign entities .....

Ps.358,440  Ps.210,598,355

57,448,148

Ps. (496,011)

(537,373)

Ps.  (54,077,454)

1,232,442

Ps. (7,220,700) Ps. 245,57

57,4

(5:

1,2¢

(20,724,115) (20,7

Comprehensive
income for the
period.......cccocevneene

Dividends declared ....

Repurchase of
shares ......c.ccoeenee

Other acquisitions of
non-controlling
interests...............

(18,773)

57,448,148
(16,256,247)

(58,157,021)

(236,337)

(537,373)

1,232,442

(20,724,115) 37,41

(16,2¢

(58,17

(2

Balance at
September 30,

2013 (unaudited).. Ps.96,396,068

Ps.358,440  Ps.193,396,898

Ps. (1,033,384)

Ps.  (52,845,012)

Ps. (27,944,815)  Ps. 208,3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.



AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands of Mexican pesos)

For the nine-month period

ended September 30,
2014 2013
Unaudited Unaudited
Operating activities
Profit DEFOIrE INCOME TAX .....viiiviiieii ettt ettt et e et s st e et e s sb e s s bt e st e et esebeesabessbassabesbessbessbeesseesbesanbeeses Ps. 81,403,577 Ps. 86,802,622
Items NOt requiring the USE OF CASN: .........ciiiiiiiiiic s
(DT o =Tot I LA o o OO PTRRSPR 76,797,535 69,882,311
Amortization of intangible assets 8,340,345 5,285,708
Loss on derecognition of equity method investment (NOtE 4)..........ccoverveirereine s 3,172,218
Equity interest in net loss (income) of associated COMPANIES ...........cevriiiiiriieeiii e 1,851,613 (20,370)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 114,238 8,362
Net period cost Of 1abor ODIIGAtIONS.........cccceieiiirecer e 5,221,709 5,464,261
Foreign currency eXChange 0SS, NEL........coiiiiiiriiiceee ettt 2,263,621 4,484,207
Interest iNCOME ......cccccvvevvveevecrecreene. e (9,666,717) (4,155,344)
Interest expense .............. e 29,233,301 21,673,700
EMPIOYEE Profit SNATING .....cveiiiteiiie ettt ettt 3,135,686 3,410,916
Gain in valuation of derivative financial instruments, capitalized interest expense and other, net............... (6,996,872) (7,166,639)
Loss on partial sale of investment in associated company (NOte 4a) ..........ccocerveirerenneniinenese s 5,327,283 —
Working capital Changes:........ccvvieiiireeere e e ——————————
Accounts receivable from subscribers, distributors and other.... e ———— 6,466,890 (4,450,561)
Prepaid XPENSES .....civeviiirieieiisierieeeies st e 2,092,591 3,813,670
L= Y (=T I o U SRS (858,225) (207,398)
RNl L(o =TSR 3,325,464 (8,883,254)
Other assets (6,592,808) (831,588)
EMPIOYEE DENETIES ... (9,481,777) (12,934,361)
Accounts payable and accrued labilitIES ............ccvvereriiirerecere e (12,137,181) (7,621)
Employee profit sharing paid (4,412,466) (4,098,759)
Financial iNStruments aNd OTNET ..........ooiviiiie ettt re e sre s be e sbeesbeeebeenns 2,688,249 (3,541,010)
DETEITEA FTBVENUES.......c.vieivieieee ettt ettt te et e et e et e e te e et e e ebeesbeeeatesbesbeeabaeasseesbeesabeebeesbsesnteenteenseesnreesns (28,500) 321,685
Interest received 3,853,342 1,633,096
Income taxes paid (24,247,756) (30,679,413)
Net cash flows provided by OPerating ACtIVITIES. .......ccc.civiiererieiierie sttt tesae e esesreseeeerennens 160,865,360 125,804,220
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and eqUIPMENt (NOTE 3)........ccviuiieiieeisere e ereneens (80,173,779) (86,521,020)
Proceeds from sale of plant, property and equipment ... 102,103 37,465
Dividends reCeiVed frOM @SSOCIALES .......c.viiieiireeireiiie ettt ettt re et e e e be e sbe e s beesrbeebeeebeesasessreesbeeanbeebeesreesseas 99,953 83,165
Purchase of teleCOMMUNICALIONS TICENSES .......ccvviieiiiii ettt ettt et e st e st e st e e sba e st e st e e sbessbaesabessbassnbeenes (1,018,190) (2,915,542)
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (Note 4c) (11,075,229) (1,711,152)
Proceeds from partial sale of investment in associated company (NOte 4a)...........cccoveerinieiiniiniiieee 12,066,037 —
Investments in associated COMPANIES (NOLE 4).......ceoiriiiiiriiiiiriiei e s (3,784,676) (14,541,122)
Net cash flows used in INVESING ACTIVITIES. ..........ciiiiiiiiici s (83,783,781) (105,568,206)
Financing activities
[0 Tg N 0] o] U1 4 [=To FO SRRSO 45,372,479 121,446,582
Repayment of loans .. (22,185,648) (29,026,448)
Interest paid.................. (25,375,440) (17,504,041)
Repurchase of shares (24,721,105) (58,331,134)
Dividends paid.........ccccocervrrrnnnen (8,232,537) (7,870,732)
Derivative financial instruments..........cc.cccceevevenn. 489,560 (400,178)
Acquisitions of other non-controlling interests (148,116) (237,304)
Net cash flows (used in) provided by financing activities (34,800,807) 8,076,745
Net increase in cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS. ...........ciiiiiiieeecc ettt se s testesterasteseesensennens 42,280,772 28,312,759
Adjustment to cash flows due to exchange rate fIUCTUALIONS............cciiriiiiieie e (715,871) (1,573,917)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the PErIOU........cc..civ i 48,163,550 45,487,200
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the PEFIOT. ..o Ps. 89,728,451 Ps. 72,226,042
Non-cash transactions related to:
2014 2013
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment in accounts payable at period end...........cccoovovererieiiierieien s Ps. 5,096,567 Ps. 11,123,623

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.



AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of Mexican pesos and thousands of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise indicated)

1. Description of the business

América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V. and subsidiaries (hereinafter, the “Company”, “América Movil” or “AMX”) was incorporated under
laws of Mexico on September 25, 2000. The Company provides telecommunications services include mobile and fixed voice services,
mobile and fixed data services, internet access and paid TV, as well as other related services.

. The voice services provided by the Company, both mobile and fixed, mainly include the following: airtime, local, domestic and
international long-distance services, and network interconnection services.

. The data services provided by the Company include the following: value added services, corporate networks, data and Internet
services.

. Paid TV represents basic services, as well as pay per view and additional programming and advertising services.

. Related services mainly include equipment and computer sales, and revenues from advertising in telephone directories
publishing and call center services.

In order to provide these services, América Mavil has the necessary licenses, permits and concessions (collectively referred to herein
as “licenses”) to build, install, operate and exploit public and/or private telecommunications networks and provide miscellaneous
telecommunications services (mostly mobile and fixed telephony services), as well as to operate frequency bands in the radio-electric
spectrum to be able to provide fixed wireless telephony and to operate frequency bands in the radio-electric spectrum for point-to-
point and point-to-multipoint microwave links. The Company holds licenses in the countries where it has a presence, and such licenses
have different dates of expiration through 2046.

Certain licenses require the payment to the respective governments of a share in sales determined as a percentage of revenues from
services under concession. The percentage is set as either a fixed rate or in some cases based on certain size of the infrastructure in
operation.

The corporate offices of América Mavil are located in Mexico City at Lago Zurich # 245, Colonia Ampliacion Granada, Miguel
Hidalgo, zip code 11529.

The accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements were approved for their issuance by the Company’s
Chief Financial Officer on March 2, 2015. Subsequent events have been considered through the same date.

Relevant events

a) On September 30, 2014, Claro Brazil (a subsidiary of the Company) was granted the use of 20MHz of spectrum nationwide in the
700MHz frequency for a 15-year period through a public auction process. The spectrum will be used in conjunction with our 4G-LTE
network. Such licenses were paid and recorded in December 2014 for an amount of Ps.9,662,052.

b) In July 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the implementation of various measures to reduce its national market
share in the Mexican telecommunications market to under 50% in order to cease to be a “preponderant economic agent”, which are
still under the analysis of the Company’s management and subject to approval of the Mexican telecommunication regulator.

The Company’s Board of Directors also decided that all cellular sites, including towers and related passive infrastructure, are to be
separated from its Mexican subsidiary of mobile services for their corresponding operation and commercialization to all interested
parties. As of the date of the preparation of these financial statements, the Company is still analyzing the cellular sites, towers and
related passive infrastructure that could be separated from its Mexican subsidiary of mobile services. Also the conditions required in
IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” have not been met for such assets to be considered as held for
sale.

¢) On April 23, 2014, Osterreichische Industrieholding AG (“OIAG”) entered into a shareholders’ agreement, effective since June 27,
2014, with AMX, by which the parties have contractually undertaken to jointly pursue a long-term policy with regard to the
management of Telekom Austria AG (TKA), by exercising voting rights on a concerted basis (“Syndicate Agreement”). Furthermore,
the Syndicate Agreement contains rules on the uniform exercise of voting rights in the corporate bodies of TKA, nomination rights for
members of the Supervisory and Management Boards and share transfer restrictions. The shareholders agreement and Public offer
were subject to certain regulatory approvals. Once the conditions were satisfied, AMX obtained operational responsibilities in
Telekom Austria and enhanced its role in their supervisory and Management Board resulting in power to direct relevant activities of
TKA.



On May 15, 2014, AMX published a voluntary public takeover offer for all shares of TKA (“Offer”). On July 17, 2014, at the end of
the Offer period, AMX held in total 50.81% of the share capital of TKA, while OIAG continued to hold 28.42%. The Syndicate
Agreement currently covers 351.0 million shares of TKA, which equates to a shareholding of 79.23%.

See further disclosures related to the acquisition of Telekom Austria in Note 4c. and subsequent events in Note 13.

2. Basis of Preparation of the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and Changes in Significant
Accounting Policies and Practices

a) Basis of preparation

The accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the
International Accounting Standard No. 34, Interim Financial Reporting (“IAS 34”), and using the same accounting policies applied in
preparing the annual financial statements, except as explained below.

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the
annual consolidated financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited annual consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2012 and 2013, and for the three year period ended December 31, 2013 as included in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2013 (the “2013 Form 20-F”).

The preparation of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with IAS 34 requires the use of
critical estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for certain assets and liabilities, as well as certain income and
expenses. It also requires that management exercise judgment in the application of the Company’s accounting policies.

The Mexican peso is the functional and reporting currency of the Company in Mexico and the ones used in these unaudited interim
condensed consolidated financial statements.

b) New standards, interpretations and amendments thereof

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2013, except for the standards/interpretations which became effective on January 1, 2014. The nature and the impact of each new
standard/amendment are described below.

e The Company has concluded that the 1AS 32, Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Amendments to
IAS 32 did not have an impact in its unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

e The Company adopted the IFRIC Interpretation 21, Levies (IFRIC 21) did not have an impact in its unaudited interim
condensed consolidated financial statements.

e The Company has concluded that the 1AS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting —
Amendments to 1AS 39 did not have an impact in its unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

*  The Company adopted the 1AS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets — Amendments to 1AS
36 did not have an impact in its unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

e The Company has concluded that the 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets did not
have an impact in its unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

e The Company adopted the IAS 24 Related Parties Disclosures did not have an impact in its unaudited interim condensed
consolidated financial statements.

e The Company has concluded that the Annual Improvements to IFRSs — 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle did not
have an impact in its unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of the IASB’s work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in IAS 39. The standard was initially effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013, but Amendments to IFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures,
issued in December 2011, moved the mandatory effective date to January 1, 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB is addressing hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the Classification and
measurement of the Company’s financial assets, but will not have an impact on classification and measurements of the Company’s
financial liabilities. The Company is in the process of analyzing the effect that the other phases of final standard will have on its
consolidated financial statements.



IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May, 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, a new revenue recognition standard that will
supersede virtually all revenue recognition guidance existing in IAS 18 Revenue. The new standard provides accounting guidance for
all revenue arising from contracts with customers and affects all entities that enter into contracts to provide goods or services to their
customers. The guidance also provides a model for the measurement and recognition of gains and losses on the sale of certain
nonfinancial assets, such as property and equipment, including real estate. This standard is effective for periods beginning on
January 1, 2017, with retrospective application. Two methods are available for entities to choose from (i) a full retrospective approach
or (ii) a modified retrospective approach. Public companies that choose to adopt on a full retrospective basis will need to apply the
standard to amounts they report for 2015 and 2016 on the face of their 2017 financial statements. Under the modified retrospective
approach, in the year of adoption, entities will be required to disclose the amount that each financial statement line item was affected
by as a result of applying the new standard and an explanation of significant changes. Under the modified retrospective approach,
entities are not required to restate prior periods.

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact that this new standard will have in its consolidated financial statements and its
disclosures as well as the method that it will use for retrospective application.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments
The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarifies that:

i) An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation criteria in paragraph 12 of IFRS
8, including a brief description of operating segments that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g.,
sales and gross margins) used to assess whether the segments are ‘similar’

The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM), similar to the required disclosure for segment liabilities. This disclosure has not been included as
the CODM does not review this reconciliation as part of financial information.

The Company adopted this new standard and has made the disclosures related to the aggregation of segments in the disclosures
included in Note 12.

¢) Reclassification

During 2014, the Company separated revenue from the sales of equipment, accessories and computer and revenue from other services
as follow:

For the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2013

As previously reported Reclassification As reclassified

Unaudited condensed consolidated

statement of Comprehensive

Income nine months:
Equipment, accessories, computer sale

and other Services.........cocoveveivieinenns Ps. 72,201,071  Ps.  (72,201,071) Ps. —
Sales of equipment, accessories and

COMPULET <. — 58,597,644 58,597,644
Other SEIVICES .......ceevvveeiieecieeiree e, — 13,603,427 13,603,427

Ps. 72,201,071 Ps. — Ps. 72,201,071

For the three-month periods ended September 30, 2013

As previously reported Reclassification As reclassified

Unaudited condensed consolidated

statement of Comprehensive

Income three months:
Equipment, accessories, computer sale

and other Services...........oeveveveevevennne, Ps. 24,360,221  Ps.  (24,360,221) Ps. —
Sales of equipment, accessories and

(O70] 1] 01U (1 S — 19,705,327 19,705,327
Other ServiCeS .....ccovevverereresnseseeieinens — 4,654,894 4,654,894

Ps. 24,360,221  Ps. — Ps. 24,360,221




3. Property, plant and equipment

During the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company made cash payments as an investment in plant and
equipment in order to increase and update its transmission network and other mobile and fixed assets for an amount of Ps.80,173,779
and Ps.86,521,020, respectively.

4. Investments in Associates and Business Combinations
a) Changes in the balance in associates

The balance of the Company’s investments in associates primarily represents the Company’s European investment (Koninklijke KPN
N.V.“KPN™). During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the carrying value of the Company’s investments in associates
decreased by Ps. 40,721,272 billion. This net decrease was a result of:

. The sale of certain shares of KPN during the period. The Company received proceeds for the sale of Ps. 12,066,037, and then
derecognized a total of Ps. 17,393,320 (measured using the average cost basis), resulting in a loss on the sale of the shares of Ps.
5,327,283 which was recorded in Valuation of derivatives, interest cost from labor obligation and other financial items, net in
the accompanying unaudited condensed statement of comprehensive income.

. The equity method in earnings on investments in associates, and the changes in the carrying value of the Company’s
investments in associates attributable to the translation of foreign currencies for the nine month period was a loss of Ps. 4.8
billion.

. The derecognition of the investment in the associate TKA of Ps 18.5 billion upon consolidation of this associate in July 2014.
As part of the derecognition of its previous equity investment on TKA, the Company recognized a loss of Ps. 3.1 billion in its
unaudited condensed statements of comprehensive income.

b) Fair Value of Publicly traded investment

As September 30, 2014, the Company owns 912,989,841 shares of KPN, which represents 21.4% of the outstanding shares. The
carrying value of the investment in KPN is Ps.45.6 billion. KPN’s shares are traded in the Amsterdam Stock Exchange, and the
closing price for such shares was €2.5 per share at September 30, 2014, equating to a Level 1 fair value of the Company’s investment
in KPN of Ps.39.4 billion at September 30, 2014 exchange rates; accordingly, the carrying value of the investment is Ps. 6.2 billion
higher than its Level 1 fair value. However, at March 2, 2015 the closing price for KPN traded in the Amsterdam Stock Exchange is
€3.073 per share, equating to a Level 1 fair value of the Company’s investment in KPN of Ps.46.8 million, an amount in excess of its
carrying value.

c) Business Combination

On July 10, 2014, the Company through share acquisition and a Shareholders’ Agreement obtained control of the telecommunications
company Telekom Austria AG, acquiring an additional 22.9% of the outstanding shares to reach share ownership of 50.8%. The main
goal for the Company was the further development of Telekom Austria. This acquisition was valuated at its fair value at the purchase
date. The total purchase price was Ps. 13,256,128. As the transaction related costs are deemed to be immaterial were expensed by the
Company as incurred and recorded as a part of “other expenses” in the accompanying unaudited interim consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. TKA was included in operating results from July 1, 2014.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price was based upon a preliminary valuation and the Company’s estimates and
assumptions are subject to change within the purchase price allocation period (generally one year form the acquisition date). The
primary areas of the purchase price allocation that are not yet finalized related to other currents assets, licenses and right of use,
trademarks Property and equipment an long term debt.

The Company’s preliminary fair values of the net identifiable assets and liabilities as at the date of the transaction is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents...........c.ccocvveveiververeenn, Ps. 2,180,899
Trade receivables.........cocevvvveeicei e 12,023,422
Other current assets ......ccccvvveecveeeiieecireesre e 4,745,510
Property and equipment...........ccccoovenireniciennns 79,168,329
Licenses and rights of USE..........ccccovriiiiininnnn 27,504,303
TrademarkS .....c..cocveiieeeiee et 12,535,127
Other non current assets ........occeevveecveevveecveennne. 11,939,628

Total assets acqUIred..........ccoceverenerenenenieeens 150,097,218




Liabilities and account payable short-term.............
Liabilities and account payable long-term..............
Deferred tax liability............ccooiviiiiiniiiis
Long term debt .......ccoveieiiiiiie

33,930,605
18,557,245
13,946,782
55,038,155

Total liabilities assumed ...........ccccevvciiiiviieee i,

121,472,787

Total identified net assets at fair value ................

Non-controlling interest measured at fair value
(49.2% Of Net aSSetS) .....ccoververerierierereeieieenn

Goodwill arising on acquisition............c.cccceeeenee.

28,624,431

(37,899,868)
37,913,072

Fair value of the investment in Telekom Austria

at the acquisition date ..........ccceeeevevivririeririnenas Ps.

28,637,635

Consideration transferred:
Fair value of the prior investment............ccccocevenene.
Cash paid ..o

Total consideration transferred

Ps. 15,381,507

13,256,128

Ps. 28,637,635

Cash-flow on acquisition
at September 30, 2014

Cash paid ......cccooevvvieii e Ps. (13,256,128)
Cash acquired with the subsidiary ..................... 2,180,899
Net cash flow on acquisition Ps. (11,075,229)
Goodwill acquired:
Goodwill
Controlling interest.........cooeoeieieienineneceeee, Ps. 19,263,632
Non-controlling iNterest.............ccoovvveniiiniciennns 18,649,440
Total Ps. 37,913,072

The fair value of the trade receivables amounts to Ps. 12,023,422 However, none of the trade receivables have been impaired and it is

expected that the full contractual amounts can be collected.

The preliminary goodwill of Ps. 37,913,072 comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition. Goodwill is
allocated entirely to the European segment. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

d) Unaudited pro forma financial data

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial data for the periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 has not been
audited and is based on the unaudited historical financial statements of the Company adjusted to give effect to (i) the acquisition of
Telekom Austria; and (ii) certain accounting adjustments of the assets and liabilities of the acquired company.



The pro forma results of operations assume that the acquisition was completed at the beginning of the acquisition year and are based
on the information available and some assumptions that the management believes are reasonable. The pro forma financial data not

intended to indicate what the operations of the Company had been if the operations were occur at that date, or predict the results of the
operations of the Company.

Unaudited pro forma
consolidated financial
data for the nine month
period ended on
September 30, 2014

Operating reVENUES ..........coevverervereeeeie e Ps. 654,527,629
Income before income taxes.........ccccevveeveennen. 82,924,875
Net income

........................................................ 43,570,284



5. Debt

The Company’s short-and long-term debt consists of the following:

At September 30, 2014

Maturity
Currency Loan Interest rate From 2014 to Total
U.S. dollars..............
Fixed-rate Senior notes (i) ......c.ccocevvverereennen, 2.375% - 7.5% 2042 Ps. 192,149,425
Floating rates Senior notes (i) ......cc.cceveernene. L +1.0% 2016 10,090,575
Financial Leases.........ccccvvvvereriiieneriseniennn, 3.75% 2015 129,652
4.00% -
7.70% and L +
Lines of credit (iii) .......ccoovveereeeeiiceiiennn, 2.10% 2023 13,487,343
Subtotal U.S. dollars.........cccccereeviirciincnnn, 215,856,995
Mexican pesos.........
Fixed-rate Senior Notes (i) ......coocoeevervreniene, 6.00% - 9.00% 2037 78,132,058
TIIE + 0.40% -
Floating rate Senior Notes (i)........ccocevvreruene. 1.50% 2016 15,600,000
TIIE + 0.05% -
Lines of credit (ii1) .....cocoovvvirervirienciienne, 1.00% 2015 311,048
Subtotal Mexican pesos ........c.cceeereeeereenienn. 94,043,106
EUrOS ..o,
3.10% - 5.41% and
Eurolibor + 0.78% -
Lines of credit (ii1) .....cocoovvirerviiiincienne, 0.92% 2020 13,449,913
Fixed-rate Senior Notes (i) ......cooovevervreniene, 13.0% - 6.375% 2073 163,141,188
Subtotal EUr0S.......coevveieinieiciie e 176,591,101
Sterling Pounds........
Fixed-rate Senior notes (i) ......c.cceoeevveveruennen, 4.375% - 6.375% 2073 59,986,114
Subtotal Sterling pounds..........cccooeeiiienenn, 59,986,114
Swiss francs.............
Fixed-rate Senior Notes (i) ......coocoeevervrennene, 1.125% - 2.25% 2018 14,790,917
Subtotal Swiss francs.........cccevevvvereiinenenn, 14,790,917
Reals......ccccoovvvnennn.
Lines of credit (iii) ......cooeerenininiiicc 3.0% - 6.00% 2018 4,030,981
Subtotal Brazilian reais..........c.ccccvvevvienenne, 4,030,981
Colombian pesos.....
Fixed-rate Senior Notes (i) ......coocoevvervreniene, 7.59% 2016 2,984,671
Subtotal Colombian pesos..........ccoceeverenennn. 2,984,671
Other currencies......
Fixed-rate Senior Notes (i) .......ccoevervvvvreninns 1.23% - 3.96% 2039 7,972,131
Financial Leases ........cc.ccocevvvereiinercencnienn 5.05% - 8.97% 2027 366,774
Subtotal other currencies .........ccccoveviiriennnn, 8,338,905
Total debt.......oooiiiiiic e, Ps. 576,622,790
Less: Short-term debt and current portion
of long-term debt ..o, 51,096,833

Long-term debt........ccccooevvviviivineieece e, Ps. 525,525,957




At December 31, 2013

Maturity
Currency Loan Interest rate From 2014 to Total
U.S. dollars
ECA credits (fixed rate) ........ccocevvvrennnn, 2.52% 2017 Ps. 973,269
ECA credits (floating rate) ..........ccccoevnen, L+0.35%yL +0.75% 2018 3,602,208
Fixed-rate Senior notes (i).......c.cooverennen, 2.375% - 7.50% 2042 197,427,022
Floating rate Senior notes (i) .......c.ccoeevneen, L +1.0% 2016 9,807,375
Financial Leases........ccocvvvrevverieieninnnnnn, 3.75% 2015 217,525
Lines of credit (i) .....c.ocovvrennriieeninnn, 7.25% - 7.75% 2023 2,183,776
Subtotal U.S. dollars ........c.cooeevveviiineinn, 214,211,175
Mexican pesos
Fixed-rate Senior notes (i) .........cooeerrrnan, 6.45% - 9.00% 2037 61,732,805
Floating rate Senior notes (i)...........c.......... TIHE + 0.40% - 1.50% 2016 15,600,000
Subtotal Mexican Pesos.........c.cceverereeeenn, 77,332,805
Euros
Fixed-rate Senior notes (i).......c.cocvvvvrernnnn, 3.0% - 6.375% 2073 106,927,652
Subtotal EUF0S ......cccoveiieieceecenee, 106,927,652
Sterling pounds
Fixed-rate Senior notes (i) .........cooevrrrnan, 4.375% - 6.375% 2073 59,539,593
Subtotal Sterling pounds ............ccocevvennnen, 59,539,593
Swiss francs
Fixed-rate Senior notes (i) ...........coovvevenenn, 1.125% - 2.25% 2018 15,377,226
Subtotal Swiss francs .........ccoceevveininennnn, 15,377,226
Reals
Lines of Credit ......cocovveeeeneneceen, 3.0% y 4.50% 2018 2,842,941
Subtotal Brazilian reais ...........cc.ccocoeereennn, 2,842,941
Colombian pesos
Fixed-rate Senior notes (i).......c.ccovvrennnen, 7.59% 2016 3,053,941
Subtotal Colombian pesos..........ccccevvenennn, 3,053,941
Other currencies
Fixed-rate Senior notes (i) ...........cooeeevenaan, 1.23% - 3.96% 2039 10,493,312
Financial Leases.......c.coeeeeerrnrererereennnnnn, 5.05% - 8.97% 2027 473,117
Lines of credit (iii) ......ccoovvvvvrireiiirien, 19.00% 2014 68,082
Subtotal other currencies.........ccccoevveerecann, 11,034,511
Total debt........coovviiiiiiiic s 490,319,844
Less: Short-term debt and current portion
of long-term debt ..., 25,841,478
Long-termdebt........cccccvvvivniviiiiniien, Ps. 464,478,366

L = LIBOR o London Interbank Offer Rate

THE = Tasa de Interés Interbancaria de Equilibrio
ECA = Export Credit Agreement

Euribor = Euro Interbank Offered Rate

Except for the fixed-rate notes, interest rates on the Company’s debt are subject to variances in international and local rates. The
Company’s weighted average cost of borrowed funds at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was approximately 4.7% and

4.8%, respectively.



Such rates do not include commissions or the reimbursements for Mexican tax withholdings (typically a tax rate of 4.9%) that the
Company must make to international lenders. In general, fees on financing transactions add ten basis points to financing costs.

An analysis of the Company’s short-term debt as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, is as follows:

2014 2013
Domestic Senior NOteS........cccceevvevceeeiiec e, Ps. 13,600,000 Ps. 9,000,000
International Bonds ...........cccoeeiiiieeiiieciiiee e, 33,280,188 13,576,670
Lines of credit used ..........ccoveeeeeiiiieccie e 1,955,184 617,295
LBASES....veeiteeeitie ettt ettt ettt 129,652
Subtotal short-term debt...........cocveeveriiireienne Ps. 48,965,024 Ps. 23,193,965
Weighted average interest rate .........c.coceevvnenee 4.3% 5.0%
An analysis of the Company’s long-term debt maturities is as follows:

Year Amount

2005 e e be e e e renre e Ps. 14,166,209

2016 ... be b e et resrenre e 67,535,061

2007 o et benre e 40,761,315

0 R 34,922,138

0 K 43,235,107

2020 aNd ther ATTEN ......c.veeiviiecee et 324,906,127

B o) | SRR Ps. 525,525,957

(i) Senior Notes

The outstanding Senior Notes at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Currency* 2014 2013

LRSI (o] |- $ 202,240,000 $ 207,234,397
MEXICAN PESOS ... veveeeirrareereesieseesressesreereeeeseeseessessesseesesseeseenes 97,732,058 77,332,805
Lo 163,141,188(*) 106,927,652
StErling POUNS .....cveeeieiesere e 59,986,114 59,539,593
SWISS TrANCS.....eviiiiieiiie ettt et 14,790,917 15,377,226
JaAPANESE YEN ..ottt 3,067,510 3,104,287
ChiNESE YUAN ..ot 2,191,436 2,159,870
COloOMDBIAN PESOS ...evevveveiieieie sttt 2,984,671 3,053,941
Chilan PESOS ....ccueeiiiiiie et 2,713,185 5,229,155

* Thousands of Mexican pesos
(*) Includes Ps. 51,831,315 of Telekom Austria in 2014.

During the second quarter of 2014, América Mavil issued notes for Euro 600,000 due 2018 with a coupon of 1%. Likewise, the
Company has issued two new notes under the program of peso-denominated notes for Ps.10,000,000 due 2019 with a coupon of 6%
and for Ps.7,500,000 due 2024 with a coupon of 7.125%. The notes are registered with both the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission and the Mexican Banking and Securities Commission (“CNBV”).

(if) Domestic Notes

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, debt under domestic bonds aggregates to Ps.36,360,359 and Ps.37,461,105,
respectively. Some bear interest at fixed rates and others at variable rates based on TIIE (a Mexican interbank rate).



(iii) Lines of Credit

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, debt under Lines of Credit aggregates to Ps.31,279,285 (including Ps. 13,449,913 of
Telekom Austria) and Ps.5,094,799, respectively.

Likewise, the Company has two revolving syndicated facilities — one for U.S.$2,000,000 and one for the Euro equivalent of
U.S.$2,000,000 currently unwilling. The Euro equivalent revolving syndicated facility was amended in July 2013 to increase the
amount available to U.S.$2,100,000. Loans under the facility bear interest at variable rates based on LIBOR and EURIBOR.

Restrictions (TELMEX):

A portion of the debt is subject to certain restrictions with respect to maintaining certain financial ratios, as well as restrictions on
selling a significant portion of groups of assets, among others. At September 30, 2014, the Company was in compliance with all these
requirements.

A portion of the debt is also subject to early maturity or repurchase at the option of the holders in the event of a change in control of
the Company, as so defined in each instrument. The definition of change in control varies from instrument to instrument; however, no
change in control shall be considered to have occurred as long as Carso Global Telecom or its current shareholders continue to hold
the majority of the Company’s voting shares.

Covenants

In conformity with the credit agreements, the Company is obligated to comply with certain financial and operating commitments.
Such covenants limit in certain cases, the ability of the Company or the guarantor to: pledge assets, carry out certain types of mergers,
sell all or substantially all of its assets, and sell control over Telcel.

Such covenants do not restrict the ability of AMX’s subsidiaries to pay dividends or other payment distributions to AMX. The more
restrictive financial covenants require the Company to maintain a consolidated ratio of debt to EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization) that do not exceed 4 to 1, and a consolidated ratio of EBITDA to interest paid that is not below 2.5 to 1
(in accordance with the clauses included in the credit agreements). Telmex Internacional is subject to financial covenants of
maintaining a ratio of debt to EBITDA that does not exceed 3.5 a 1, and a consolidated ratio of EBITDA to interest paid that is not
below 3 to 1 (in accordance with the clauses included in the credit agreements).

Several of the financing instruments of the Company are subject to early extinguishment or re-purchase, at the option of the debt
holder in the case that a change in control occurs.

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company complied with all the conditions established in the Company’s debt
agreements.

At September 30, 2014, approximately 40% of America Movil’s total outstanding consolidated debt is guaranteed by Telcel.



6. Related Parties

a) The following is an analysis of the balances with related parties at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. All of the
companies are considered as associates or affiliates of América Movil since the Company or the Company’s principal shareholders are
also direct or indirect shareholders in the related parties.

2014 2013

Accounts receivable:

Sanborn Hermanos, S.A. ......ccccveeveevvveveeens Ps. 62,227 Ps. 235,075

Sears Roebuck de México, S.A. de C.V......... 165,379 353,724

AT&T Corp. (AT&T) oo, — 80,438

Patrimonial Inbursa, S.A.......ccoccooieieiiiiieens 241,655 245,318

Other .o 572,394 431,837
TOMAL oot Ps. 1,041,655 Ps. 1,346,392
Accounts payable:

Fianzas Guardiana Inbursa, S.A. de C.V. ...... Ps. 148,057 Ps. 212,765

Operadora Cicsa, S.A.de C.V. ...ccoveevvvvnnnen. 372,868 280,374

PC Industrial, S.A. de C.V.....coceeevvvvieeeen, 57,684 176,095

Microm, S A. de C.V. oo, 18,985 77,690

Grupo Financiero Inbursa, S.A.B. de C.V..... 35,135 36,366

Conductores Mexicanos Eléctricos y de

Telecomunicaciones, S.A. de C.V. ........... 108,405 52,268
Acer Computec México, S.A. de C.V............ 10,205 32,214
Sinergia Soluciones Integrales de Energia,
SA . deCV. i 19,404 35,826

Eidon Software, S A. de C.V....ocovvvvvecrennn 7,574 25,461

ATET oo — 1,039,043

Other v 611,058 584,235
TOUAL vttt Ps. 1,389,375 Ps. 2,552,337

b) For the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company conducted the following transactions with related
parties:

2014 2013
Revenues:
Sale of long-distance services and other

telecommunications services................. Ps. 227,151 Ps. 361,771
Sale of materials and other services........... 349,986 258,123
Call termination revenues and other .......... 200,393 316,727
(011 11 £ 216 3,177
Ps. 777,746 Ps. 939,798

2014 2013

Investments and expenses:
Construction services, purchases of
materials, inventories and property,
plant and equipment..........cc.ccoevvivevennnn, Ps. 3,588,426 Ps. 3,150,130
Insurance premiums, fees paid for
administrative and operating services,

brokerage services and others ............... 1,421,412 1,574,452
Interconnection CoSt...........ccveeevcviieeiinnnnn, 6,121,450 11,325,991
Other SEIVICES ......vveivceeiee s, 739,305 873,024

Ps. 11,870,593 Ps. 16,923,597




On June 27, 2014, Inmobiliaria Carso, S.A. de C.V. and Control Empresarial de Capitales, S.A. de C.V. acquired the share that AT&T
had of the Company’s stock. Therefore, since such date AT&T is no longer considered a related party and is thus not included in the
September 30, 2014 related party disclosures with respect to the analysis of the balances with related parties. AT&T is included as a
related party the September 30, 2013 disclosures above and in 2014 up to the period ended June 27, 2014.

c) For the three-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company conducted the following transactions with related
parties:

2014 2013
Revenues:
Sale of long-distance services and other
telecommunications Services............ooveuv.... Ps. 74,853 Ps. 154,138
Sale of materials and other services................. 117,753 131,513
Call termination revenues and other ................ 3,973 64,429
(@] 12 1=] £ 75 364
Ps. 196,654 Ps. 350,444
2014 2013

Investments and expenses:
Construction services, purchases of
materials, inventories and property, plant
and equUIPMENt.....cccvevereere e Ps. 1472414 Ps. 1,025,731
Insurance premiums, fees paid for
administrative and operating services,

brokerage services and others .................. 559,243 708,529
Interconnection CoSt.........ccccvvviveecieciiieeeneen, 120,557 3,120,786
Other SEIVICES .....vvveeieeiee s 445,055 337,492

Ps. 2,597,269 Ps. 5,192,538

7. Contingencies

Included in Note 17 on pages F-72 to F-84 of the Company’s 2013 Form 20-F is a disclosure of the material contingencies outstanding
as of December 31, 2013.

8. Equity

a) At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company’s capital stock was represented by 68,787,850,000 (23,384,632,660
series “AA” shares, 648,990,662 series “A” shares and 44,754,226,678 registered “L” shares) and 70,475,000,000 (23,424,632,660
series “AA” shares, 680,805,804 series “A” shares and 46,369,561,536 registered “L” shares), respectively.

b) The capital stock of the Company consists of a minimum fixed portion of Ps.397,873 (nominal amount), represented by a total of
95,489,724,196 shares (including treasury shares available for re-subscription in accordance with the provisions of the Mexican
Securities Law), of which (i) 23,424,632,660 are common series “AA” shares; (ii) 776,818,130 are common series “A” shares; and
(iii) 71,288,273,406 are series “L” shares, all of them fully subscribed and paid.

c) At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company’s treasury shares included shares for re-subscription, in accordance
with the provisions of the Mexican Securities Law, in the amount of 26,701,874,196 shares (26,701,219,883 series “L” shares and
654,313 series “A” shares) and 25,014,724,196 (25,007,472,235 series “L” shares and 7,251,961 series “A” shares), respectively.

d) The holders of Series “AA” and Series “A” shares are entitled to full voting rights. The holders of series “L” shares may only vote
in certain circumstances, and they are only entitled to appoint two members of the Board of Directors and their respective alternates.
The matters in which the shareholders who are entitled to vote are the following: extension of the term of the Company, early
dissolution of the Company, change of corporate purpose of the Company, change of nationality of the Company, transformation of
the Company, a merger with another company, as well as the cancellation of the registration of the shares issued by the Company in
the National Securities Registry (Registro Nacional de Valores) and any other foreign stock exchanges where they may be registered,
except for quotation systems or other markets not organized as stock exchanges. Within their respective series, all shares confer the
same rights to their holders. The Company’s bylaws contain restrictions and limitations related to the subscription and acquisition of
Series “AA” shares by non-Mexican investors.



e) In accordance with the bylaws of the Company, series “AA” shares must at all times represent no less than 20% and no more than
51% of the Company’s capital stock, and they also must represent at all times no less than 51% of the common shares (entitled to full
voting rights, represented by Series “AA” and Series “A” shares) representing said capital stock.

Series “AA” shares may only be subscribed to or acquired by Mexican investors, Mexican corporations and/or trusts expressly
empowered for such purposes in accordance with the applicable legislation in force. Common series “A” shares, which may be freely
subscribed, may not represent more than 19.6% of capital stock and may not exceed 49% of the common shares representing such
capital. Common shares (entitled to full voting rights, represented by Series “AA” and Series “A” shares) may represent no more than
51% of the Company’s capital stock.

Lastly, the combined number of series “L” shares, which have limited voting rights and may be freely subscribed, and series “A”
shares may not exceed 80% of the Company’s capital stock. For purposes of determining these restrictions, the percentages mentioned
above refer only to the number of the Company’s shares outstanding.

Dividends
f) On April 28, 2014, the Company’s shareholders approved:

i) the payment of a cash dividend from the consolidated net profit tax account (cuenta de utilidad fiscal neta consolidada), of
Ps.0.24 (twenty-four peso cents), payable in two installments, for each shares of its capital stock series “AA”, “A” and “L”
outstanding as of the date of the dividend payment, subject to adjustments arising from other corporate events (including
repurchase or placement of its own shares) that may vary the number of shares outstanding as of the date of said dividend
payment; and

g) On April 22, 2013, the Company’s shareholders approved, among others resolution, the (i) payment of a cash dividend of $0.22
pesos per share to each of the shares of its capital stock series “AA”, “A” and “L”. The amount of the cash dividend declared was paid
in two exhibitions of $0.11 pesos, on July 19", and November 15, 2013, respectively.

Undated Subordinated Fixed Rate Bond

On January 24, 2013, Telekom Austria issued a Undated Subordinated Fixed Rate Bond with a face value of $ 600 million euros,
which is subordinated with indefinite maturity which is, based on its conditions, classified as stockholders equity according to IFRS.

The bond pays an annual coupon of 5.625%. The company has the right (call), to redeem the bond on February 1, 2018. Telekom
Austria has an early termination right under certain conditions. After that period (2018), the bond establishes conditions and increases
the coupon rate every five years. After analyzing the conditions of the issue, Telekom Austria recognized the cash received with a
credit to equity in the consolidated statement of financial position and valued the instrument in equity, since it considers that it did not
meet the criteria for classification as financial liability, not because it does not represent an obligation to pay.

The Company recognized this bond as an item of equity (non-controlling interest), following the same recognition criteria as Telekom
Austria. At the date of issuance of these interim financial statements, the Company is currently in negotiations with the financial
institutions involved to achieve the necessary modification of the terms of this bond to allow it to meet the criteria for classification as
a financial liability.

9. Income Tax

An analysis of income tax expense charged to results of operations for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 is
as follows:

2014 2013
Current period iINCOME taX........cevvrveeeerenerenenne. Ps. 39,767,701 Ps. 37,008,056
Deferred iNCOME taX .......ccovvreririeeinieenerieieesiene (2,474,038) (8,007,893)

Total ..o Ps. 37,293,663 Ps. 29,000,163




Other comprehensive Income

2014 2013
Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI
during the year
Effect of fair value of derivatives............ccceeevevvrreinneen. Ps. 6,260 Ps. 6,542
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan....................... (280,309)
Deferred tax charged to0 OCl .........cccovvvicciiiinne, Ps.  (274,049) Ps. 6,542

An analysis of income tax expense the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the three-month periods ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014 2013
Current period iINCOME taX........cceevriereerenenenene. Ps. 14,730,489 Ps. 12,312,003
Deferred iNCOME taX......ccovviviveciriiie e (629,285) (2,641,491)
TOMAL vt Ps. 14,101,204 Ps. 9,670,512
Other comprehensive Income
2014 2013
Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI
during the year

Effect of fair value of derivatives...........cccooeovnirinnnne Ps. 8,154 Ps. (4,492)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan....................... (280,309)

Deferred tax charged to0 OCl .........ccoovviccciiinnne, Ps. (272,155) Ps.  (4,492)

The Company’s effective tax rate was 45.8% and 33.4% for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Significant differences between the effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate for such interim periods relates to the loss on
derecognition of equity method investment in equity investment and the loss on sale of shares of KPN during the period as these items
are not tax deductible.

The Company’s effective tax rate was 55.7% and 36.7% for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
primarily due to the expiration of tax credits and other non-deductible expenses.

10. Components of other comprehensive loss

An analysis of the changes in the components of the other comprehensive loss for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014
and 2013 is as follows:

2014 2013
Valuation of the derivative financial
instruments acquired for hedging purposes,
net of deferred taX.......ocvvveveeve e, Ps. (327,651) Ps. (537,013)
Translation effect of foreign entities ................. (12,837,814) (20,800,457)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, net
of income tax effeCt.........ccevvveviiviiiiiiininins (701,309) 1,232,442

Total other comprehensive loss items for the
period, net of deferred taxes............ccecevvrnnne Ps. (13,866,774) Ps.  (20,105,028)




11. Financial Assets and Liabilities

Set out below is the categorization of the financial instruments, other than cash and cash equivalents, held by AMX as of
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

September 30, 2014

Fair value
Loans and through Fair value
receivables profit or loss through OCI
Financial Assets:
Accounts receivable from subscribers,
distributors, and other, net.................... Ps. 114,206,109 Ps. — Ps. —
Related parties.......ccovveriveieiencieiee, 1,041,655 — —
Derivative financial instruments .............. — 16,796,723 —
TOtal.cvecciec e Ps. 115,247,764 Ps. 16,796,723 Ps. —
Financial Liabilities:
DEDL ... Ps. 576,622,790 Ps. — Ps. —
Accounts payable ..., 160,861,188 — —
Related parties.......ccovvriieeeeiencnciee, 1,389,375 — —
Derivative financial instruments .............. — 9,831,187 166,210
TOtal.cveeciei e Ps. 738,873,353 Ps. 9,831,187 Ps. 166,210
December 31, 2013
Fair value
Loans and through Fair value
receivables profit or loss through OCI
Financial Assets:
Accounts receivable from subscribers,
distributors, and other, net................... Ps. 96,756,472 Ps. — Ps. —
Related parties.......ocoovevverensieneisienen, 1,346,392 — —
Derivative financial instruments .............. 10,469,316 —
K] -1 S Ps. 98,102,864 Ps. 10,469,316 Ps. —
Financial Liabilities:
(<] o Ps. 490,319,844 Ps. — Ps. —
Accounts payable ..o, 154,137,312 — —
Related parties.......ococvevvenensieneicsenen 2,552,337 — —
Derivative financial instruments .............. — 5,179,024 187,299
K] -1 S Ps. 647,009,493 Ps. 5,179,024 Ps. 187,299

Fair value hierarchy

The Company’s valuation techniques used to determine and disclose the fair value of its financial instruments are based on the
following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Variables other than quoted prices in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (prices) or
indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Variables used for the asset or liability that are not based on any observable market data (hon-observable variables).



The fair value for the financial assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents) and financial liabilities shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Measurement of fair value at September 30, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Derivative financial instruments............ —  Ps. 16,796,723 Ps. 16,796,723
Pension plan assets .......c.ccocvveveiveiveriennns Ps. 246,322,399 — 246,322,399
TOtal o Ps. 246,322,399 Ps. 16,796,723 Ps. — Ps. 263,119,122
Liabilities:
DEDL oo Ps. 390,951,256 Ps. 212,511,258 Ps. — Ps. 603,462,514
Derivative financial instruments............ 9,997,397 9,997,397
TOtal o Ps. 390,951,256 Ps. 222508655 Ps. — Ps. 613,459,911
Measurement of fair value at December 31, 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Derivative financial instruments............ Ps. —  Ps. 10,469,316 Ps. —  Ps. 10,469,316
Pension plan assets ........ccccvevvrrenecnn 230,393,171 — — 230,393,171
TOtal o Ps. 230,393,171 Ps. 10,469,316 Ps. — Ps. 240,862,487
Liabilities:
DEDL .o Ps. 319,838,222 Ps. 200,011,820 Ps. — Ps. 519,850,042
Derivative financial instruments............ — 5,366,323 — 5,366,323
TOtal o Ps. 319,838,222 Ps. 205,378,143 — Ps. 525,216,365

The carrying amount of accounts receivable, accounts payable and related parties approximate their fair value.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments are valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs. To determine its
Level 2 fair value, the Company applies valuation techniques including forward pricing and swaps models, using present value
calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates
and interest rate curves. Fair value of debt Level 2 has been determined using a model based on present value calculation
incorporating credit quality of AMX.

For the nine-month period ended September 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013, no transfers were made between Level 1
and Level 2 fair value measurement hierarchies.

12. Segments

América Movil operates in different countries. The Company has operations in Mexico, Guatemala, Nicaragua, Ecuador, El Salvador,
Costa Rica, Brazil, Argentina, Colombia, United States, Honduras, Chile, Peru, Paraguay, Uruguay, Dominican Republic, Puerto
Rico, Panama, Austria, Bulgaria, Croatia, Belarus, Liechtenstein, Slovenia, Macedonia and Serbia.

The CEO, who is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?”), analyzes the financial and operating information by geographical
segment, except for Mexico, which shows América Movil (Corporate and Telcel) and Telmex as two segments. All significant
operating segments that (i) represent more than 10% of consolidated revenues, (ii) more than the absolute amount of its reported 10%
of profits or loss or (iii) more than 10% of consolidated assets, are presented separately.

The Company has aggregated operating segments into the following reporting segments for the purposes of its consolidated financial
statements: (i) Mexico (includes Telcel and Corporate operations and Assets), Telmex, Brazil, Southern Cone (includes Argentina
Chile, Paraguay and Uruguay), Colombia, Andean (includes Ecuador and Per0), Central- América (includes Guatemala, El Salvador,
Honduras, Nicaragua, Costa Rica and Panama), U.S.A. (excludes Puerto Rico), Caribbean (includes Dominican Republic and Puerto
Rico), and Europe (includes Austria, Bulgaria, Croatia, Belarus, Liechtenstein Slovenia, Macedonia and Serbia).

The Company is of the view that the quantitative and qualitative aspects of the aggregated operating segments are similar in nature for
all periods presented. In evaluating the appropriateness of aggregating operating segments, the key indicators considered included but
were not limited to: (i) all entities provide telecommunications services, (ii) similarities of customer base, services, (iii) the methods to
distribute services are the same, based on telephone plant in both cases, wireless and fixed lines, (iv) similarities of governments and
regulatory entities that oversee the activities and services that telecom companies, (v) inflation trends and, (vi) currency trends.



Southern Central-
México Cone Andean América US.A. Caribbean
1) Telmex Brazil ) Colombia ®3) 4) (5) (6)
For nine-month period
ended September 30,
2014:
Operating revenues........... Ps. 144,224,964 Ps. 79,981,771 Ps. 153,271,904 Ps. 41,298,532 Ps. 56,524,740 Ps. 35,156,298 Ps. 19,589,491 Ps. 66,829,650 Ps. 19,075,281
Depreciation and
amortization..... 12,445,105 11,708,787 30,961,033 4,952,267 7,174,681 4,033,585 6,264,782 335,742 3,642,942
Operating income (loss)...... 52,808,430 16,323,255 9,404,824 4,686,679 13,889,312 9,402,453 (296,388) 2,592,418 3,405,812
Interest income.................. 10,754,759 218,936 3,990,486 2,137,724 532,153 831,758 145,983 112,488 346,865
Interest expense................ 24,927,045 1,468,597 9,430,554 623,431 349,816 292,997 114,220 39,332
INCOME taX ....cocvvvverriiinns 20,705,530 3,759,480 275,898 2,130,590 4,325,337 3,237,306 849,081 1,035,777 532,917
Equity interest in net
income (loss) of
associated
COMPANIES ....vvvvrrerrenes (1,840,560) 38,741 (52,875) 2,349
Net profit (loss)
attributable to equity
holders of the
Parent ......cocoeveveveennn. 22,350,336 7,748,545 (1,475,680) (3,556,565) 7,650,996 5,962,779 (1,105,200) 1,811,397 2,733,180
Assets by segment.............. 954,512,497 139,064,602 338,206,799 84,912,430 99,246,921 76,493,619 51,927,914 34,173,092 67,267,631
Liabilities by segment........ 618,502,441 106,504,319 195,388,355 67,162,215 33,873,054 23,754,907 23,566,309 29,520,426 25,122,070
Southern Central-
México Cone Andean América US.A. Caribbean
1) Telmex Brazil ) Colombia 3) 4) (5) (6)
For nine-month period
ended September 30,
2013:
Operating revenues ............. 141,820,702 79,089,372 148,624,432 45,624,345 54,622,389 33,224,312 17,775,201 57,062,179 19,018,145
Depreciation and
amortization...... 8,370,460 12,576,954 28,031,977 5,408,357 6,813,552 3,701,737 6,312,769 349,181 3,603,032
Operating income
([~ 59,647,723 15,208,349 8,167,092 4,824,768 16,346,528 9,127,021 (890,648) 995,463 3,248,551
Interest income...... 8,735,745 116,426 1,010,573 2,295,525 680,828 544,073 117,123 95,396 209,446
Interest expense....... 21,412,680 2,471,292 5,299,454 925,770 357,546 174,565 113,833 121 32,005
Income tax............. 15,892,965 3,525,186 (999,687) 2,665,843 4,654,180 3,001,826 168,890 18,391 72,569
Equity interest in
net income
(loss) of
associated
Companies........ 30,954 (17,578) (75) 7,527 (458)
Net profit (loss) attributable
to Equity holders of the
PNt ......oveooerverrerieeennns 32,324,049 6,881,388 (2,571,523) 1,676,498 9,968,616 6,759,588 (1,236,013) 1,212,422 2,713,158
Assets b
segn¥ent ............. 863,053,147 134,624,144 306,466,659 98,411,851 106,359,154 68,144,249 52,028,386 27,109,181 67,310,963
Liabilities by segment ......... 605,329,734 103,842,409 176,771,139 63,755,618 30,426,338 18,990,795 25,132,380 24,282,092 29,323,273

(1) Mexico includes Telcel and corporate operations and assets
(2) Southern Cone includes Argentina, Chile, Paraguay and Uruguay.

(3) Andean includes Ecuador and Peru.

(4) Central America includes Guatemala, EI Salvador, Honduras, Nicaragua, Costa Rica and Panama.

(5) Excludes Puerto Rico.

(6) Caribbean includes the Dominican Republic and Puerto Rico.
(7) Europe includes Austria, Bulgaria, Croatia, Belarus, Liechtenstein Slovenia, Macedonia and Serbia



Mexico
()] Telmex Brasil

Southern
Cone

@

Colombia

Andean

®

Centro-
America

Q)

USA.
)

Caribbean

(6)

For three-month period ended
September 20, 2014

Operating revenues..... Ps.47,093,211 Ps.26,896,095 Ps.52,193,080 Ps.13,975,587 Ps.19,043,066 Ps.11,861,444 Ps. 6,658,047 Ps.22,624,917 Ps. 6,320,945

Operating income (l0sS)......... 15,028,384 5,782,137 2,578,362
Depreciation and
amortization 4,420,433 3,865,581 10,743,763
Interest income.. 3,807,185 83,439 1,592,617
Interest expense. . 8,471,832 486,240 3,659,803
INCOME taX.......evvvrvnrnen, 10,224,538 1,254,324 (2,177,514)
Equity interest in net
income (loss) of
associated
Companies.............. (2,020,745) 10,482 (33,207)
Net profit (loss) attributable to
Equity holders of the
O 1111 SRR 9,059,233 2,696,922 (3,734,765)
Assets by segment...........cc....... 954,512,497 139,064,602 338,206,799
Liabilities by segment.............. 618,502,441 106,504,319 195,388,355

For three-month period ended
September 20, 2013............
Operating revenues..... 47,636,405 26,456,084 47,979,933

Operating income (l0sS)......... 19,226,611 4,899,988 1,347,713
Depreciation and
amortization 2,915,534 4,109,780 9,622,290
Interest income.. 3,057,599 53,278 311,545
Interest expense. 8,066,560 653,583 2,005,782
Income taX.......ccocevnene. 5,475,865 1,129,867 (512,324)
Equity interest in net
income (loss) of
associated
Companies.............. (637,300) (22,025) (75)
Net profit (loss) attributable to
Equity holders of the
PAIENt ....ovvorrveeereerserieneies 7,864,578 2,239,044 (942,593)
Assets by segment...........cc.o..... 863,053,147 134,624,144 306,466,659
Liabilities by segment.............. 605,329,734 103,842,409 176,771,139

(1) Mexico includes Telcel and corporate operations and assets
(2) Southern Cone includes Argentina, Chile, Paraguay and Uruguay.
(3) Andean includes Ecuador and Peru.

1,447,459

1,608,399
745,601
182,897
819,395

9,408

(3,399,280)
84,912,430
67,162,215

15,509,118
1,575,397

1,824,000
809,652
314,666
909,248

16,807

1,082,056
98,411,851
63,755,618

4,565,321

2,452,320
128,761
118,123

1,461,421

2,596,095
99,246,921
33,873,054

18,425,266
5,364,218

2,279,694
254,220
118,871

1,681,127

3,028,960
106,359,154
30,426,338

(4) Central America includes Guatemala, EI Salvador, Honduras, Nicaragua, Costa Rica and Panama.

(5) Excludes Puerto Rico.
(6) Caribbean includes the Dominican Republic and Puerto Rico.

(7) Europe includes Austria, Bulgaria, Croatia, Belarus, Liechtenstein Slovenia, Macedonia and Serbia

3,195,440

1,346,650
279,375
112,399
972,741

2,012,372
76,493,619
23,754,907

11,428,462
2,919,080

1,241,126
193,453
63,980
1,203,812

1,789,336
68,144,249
18,990,795

(85,287)

2,159,461
51,222
44,122

296,626

(342,268)
51,927,914
23,566,309

6,155,498
(314,474)

2,186,307
39,286
35,469

(66,004)

(424,312)
52,028,386
25,132,380

265,513

112,645
45,435

143,177

182,904
34,173,092
29,520,426

19,299,932
1,138,057

118,281
33,395

65,185

1,163,434
27,109,181
24,282,092

1,185,099

1,222,766
116,963
13,813
664,749

533,950
67,267,631
25,122,070

6,428,470
1,156,487

1,225,584
70,045
10,851

(216,264

1,060,121
67,310,963
29,323,273



13. Subsequent Events

a)

b)

c)

d)

On October 16, 2014 finished the three months’ additional acceptance (“sell-out™) period, on which the shareholders were
able to tender their shares to AMX under the Offer conditions. During this extended period, AMX acquired another
38.4 million shares of TKA, which equates to a shareholding of approximately 8.68%.

On January 9, 2015, the Federal Telecommunications Institute (Instituto Federal de Telecomunicaciones, or “IFT”)
imposed a fine of Ps.14.4 million on Telmex for failing to disclose to the IFT, in November of 2008, what the IFT has
called a merger (concentracion) between Telmex and Dish México Holdings, S. de R.L. de C.V., and its related
companies. AMX will exercise any and all legal remedies to challenge the IFT’s resolution.

In January 2015, the Company (through its subsidiary “Tracfone”) and the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) finalized the
terms of a stipulated order, related to the Company’s prior practice of marketing data. The order included payment of
US3$40 million to the FTC to be deposited into a fund administered by the FTC or its designee to be used for consumer
redress as a fixed payment amount, and for any expenses for the administration of the fund.

During the period ended September 30, 2014, the Company had recorded a provision of US$35.1 million for settlement of
the FTC and class action law suits. The total amount of $45.1 million was included in Account Payable in the Balance
Sheet as of December 31, 2014, and as Other expenses in the Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31,
2014.

On July 31, 2014, was approved by the Agencia National de Telecomucacoes - Anatel, corporate restructuring aims to
consolidate the structures and activities of Claro, S.A., Embratel Participacdes S.A. (Embrapar), Empresa Brasileira de
Telemunicagdes, S.A. (Embratel) and Net Servigos de Comunicacdo, S.A. (NET) of its subsidiaries, and of course, all
indirectly controlled by America Movil in a single society. The implementation of this incorporation will involve, among
other things, the incorporation of Embrapar, Embratel and NET by Claro. On December 17, 2014, the Board approved the
merger of Embratel, Claro and NET into Claro. The effect of those mergers is January 1, 2015.



SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on

its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 4, 2015

AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V.

By:  /s/ Carlos José Garcia Moreno Elizondo

Name: Carlos José Garcia Moreno Elizondo
Title: Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of América Movil, S.A.B.
de C.V. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2013 and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2013. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of América Mévil, S.A.B. de C.V. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and
2013, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company retrospectively adopted International Accounting Standard 19,
Employee Benefits (Revised) in 2013, which included the disclosure of the January 1, 2012 consolidated
statement of financial position.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992 Framework) and our report dated
April 28, 2014, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Mancera, S.C.
A member practice of
Ernst & Young Global Limited

/sl Carlos Carrillo Contreras

C.P.C. Carlos Carrillo Contreras

Mexico City, Mexico
April 28, 2014
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AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(In thousands of Mexican pesos)

At December 31,
2012
At January 1, Restated Millions of
2012 (Note 3) 2013 U.S. dollars 2013
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) ............. Ps. 59,123,996 Ps. 45,487,200 Ps. 48,163,550 US$ 3,683
Accounts receivable:
Subscribers, distributors, recoverable taxes and
other,net (Note5) ......................... 124,973,353 120,205,954 127,872,657 9,779
Related parties (Note 18) . ..................... 3,413,899 689,053 1,346,392 103
Derivative financial instruments (Note 11) ........ 9,793,836 2,779,749 10,469,316 801
Inventories, net (Note6) ...................... 34,141,317 28,697,820 36,718,953 2,808
Other assets, net (Note 7) ..................... 10,846,749 11,271,463 12,127,200 927
Total currentassets ...t 242,293,150 209,131,239 236,698,068 18,101
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 8) ....... 466,086,773 500,434,272 501,106,951 38,321
Licenses and rights of use, net (Note 9) .......... 38,530,899 44,052,430 37,053,832 2,834
Trademarks, net (Note 9) ..................... 3,006,854 1,143,315 1,166,306 89
Goodwill (Note 9) .......... it 73,038,433 99,705,859 92,486,284 7,073
Investment in associated companies (Note 10) ... .. 54,218,023 73,116,285 88,887,024 6,797
Deferred taxes (Note 20) . ..................... 47,372,186 44,372,129 50,853,686 3,889
Other assets, net (Note 7) ..................... 15,056,421 15,729,154 17,340,282 1,326
Total assets . ... Ps.939,602,739 Ps.987,684,683 Ps.1,025,592,433 US$78,430
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term
debt (Note16a) ............ ...t Ps. 26,643,315 Ps. 13,621,806 Ps. 25,841,478 US$ 1,976
Accounts payable (Note 13a) .................. 140,423,417 141,604,957 154,137,312 11,787
Accrued liabilities (Nota 13b) .................. 30,769,767 34,005,553 36,958,922 2,826
Taxespayable ............. ... ... ... ... 28,622,319 24,944,134 22,082,241 1,689
Derivative financial instruments (Note 11) ........ 2,889,281 5,025,047 5,366,323 410
Related parties (Note 18) . .. ................. .. 2,790,307 2,523,027 2,552,337 195
Deferred revenues (Note 15) . .................. 26,248,679 23,956,939 27,016,340 2,066
Total current liabilities ........................... 258,387,085 245,681,463 273,954,953 20,949
Long-term debt (Note 16a) ........................ 353,975,487 404,048,282 464,478,366 35,520
Deferred taxes (Note 20) . ........... ... 7,310,446 8,389,943 1,628,409 125
Deferred revenues (Note 15) . ...................... 3,175,796 1,100,195 1,105,294 85
Asset retirement obligation (Note 13¢) ............... 6,387,229 7,177,215 7,516,460 575
Employee benefits (Note 12) . .. ..............cvt 73,905,997 66,439,339 66,607,874 5,094
Total liabilities . . ............ . 703,142,040 732,836,437 815,291,356 62,348
Equity (Note 19):
Capital stock . ........ ... 96,419,636 96,414,841 96,392,339 7,371
Retained earnings:
Prioryears ..........ccooiiiiiiii 79,370,886 119,968,225 122,693,933 9,383
Profit fortheyear ....................... 83,045,198 90,988,570 74,624,979 5,707
Total retained earnings . ..., 162,416,084 210,956,795 197,318,912 15,090
Other comprehensive income items ................. (28,866,810)  (61,794,165) (91,310,640) (6,983)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent ...... 229,968,910 245,577,471 202,400,611 15,478
Non-controlling interests . . ........................ 6,491,789 9,270,775 7,900,466 604
Total equUity ...t 236,460,699 254,848,246 210,301,077 16,082

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Ps.939,602,739 Ps.987,684,683 Ps.1,025,592,433 US$78,430
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AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(In thousands of Mexican pesos, except for earnings per share)

For the year ended December 31

Millions of U.S.
dollars, except
for earnings per

2011 Restated 2012 Restated share
(Note 3) (Note 3) 2013 2013
Operating revenues:
Mobile VOICe SErVICeS . ... ..ot Ps.281,952,808 Ps.287,133,858 Ps.265,039,903  US$20,268
Fixed VOICE SEIVICES . ..ottt e 139,219,344 123,778,159 111,785,611 8,549
Mobile data voice services ............ ..., 102,190,374 136,394,772 159,589,580 12,204
Fixed data services ..............c.ciiiiiiaaaai.n 72,007,127 83,628,831 85,039,329 6,503
Paid television . . ....... .. .. i 16,958,846 56,520,982 60,829,310 4,652
Equipment, accessories, computer sale and other services . . . 77,637,813 87,613,043 103,817,288 7,939
689,966,312 775,069,645 786,101,021 60,115
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of salesand services .................covuee... 289,594,015 341,123,833 358,291,177 27,400
Commercial, administrative and general expenses .. ....... 145,592,831 165,631,457 167,184,570 12,785
Other eXPeNSES . ... .v ittt 3,176,328 3,579,638 4,832,685 370
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 7,8 and 9) ......... 93,997,035 103,584,737 101,534,833 7,765
532,360,209 613,919,665 631,843,265 48,320
Operating iNCOME . . ...ttt ettt e 157,606,103 161,149,980 154,257,756 11,795
Interest income (Note 16b) . ........... ..., 6,853,900 5,776,600 6,245,323 478
Interest expense (NOte 16C) .. ........ovviiiiiinnnnnne... (20,791,606)  (24,914,596)  (30,349,694) (2,321)
Foreign currency exchange (loss) gain, net .................. (22,394,716) 7,395,154 (19,610,465) (1,500)
Valuation of derivatives, interest cost from labor obligations and
other financial items, net (Note 16d) ..................... 4,747,266 (12,535,708) (5,211,983) (399)
Equity interest in net income of associated companies
(NOEE L0) . e e 1,923,997 761,361 36,282 3
Profit before incometax ................. o i i 127,944,944 137,632,791 105,367,219 8,056
Income tax (NOte 20) . ... .ovii et 39,745,867 45,983,452 30,392,731 2,322
Net profit fortheyear ......... ... .. ... .. ... ... ... ... ... Ps. 88,199,077 Ps. 91,649,339 Ps. 74,974,488 US$ 5,734
Net profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent .......................... Ps. 83,045,198 Ps. 90,988,570 Ps. 74,624,979 US$ 5,707
Non-controlling interests ............................ 5,153,879 660,769 349,509 27
Ps. 88,199,077 Ps. 91,649,339 Ps. 74,974,488 5,734
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holders
of the parent from continuing operations .................. Ps. 1.06 Ps. 1.19 Ps. 1.02  US$0.0776
Other comprehensive income items:
Net other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent years:
Effect of translation of foreign entities . ................. Ps. 10,461,607 Ps.(33,421,104) Ps.(26,888,282) US$ (2,056)
Effect of fair value of derivatives, net of deferred taxes . ... (317,598) (239,164) (740,740) (57)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
years:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan, net of deferred
BAXES ettt (16,627,898) 2,439,641 (2,438,039) (186)
Total other comprehensive income items for the year, net of
deferred taxes . ... (6,483,889)  (31,220,627)  (30,067,061) (2,299)
Total comprehensive income fortheyear ................... Ps. 81,715,188 Ps. 60,428,712 Ps. 44,907,427 US$ 3,435
Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent . ......................... Ps. 77,446,363 Ps. 60,212,233 Ps. 45,108,504 US$ 3,450
Non-controlling interests ........... ... ... ... . ..., 4,268,825 216,479 (201,077) (15)
Ps. 81,715,188 Ps. 60,428,712 Ps. 44,907,427 US$ 3,435

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands of Mexican pesos)

For the year ended December 31

Millions of
2011 Restated 2012 Restated U.S. dollars
(Note 3) (Note 3) 2013 2013
Operating activities
Profit before incometax ... Ps. 127,944,944 Ps. 137,632,791 Ps. 105,367,219 US$ 8,056
Items not requiring the use of cash:
Depreciation (NOte 8) ... ...ttt 82,642,200 92,268,275 94,893,801 7,257
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 7and 9) .......................... 11,354,835 11,316,462 6,641,032 508
Equity interest in net income of associated companies (Note 10) ............. (1,923,997) (761,361) (36,282) 3)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment . .............. .. . 32,463 112,445 546,939 42
Net period cost of labor obligations (Note 12) ............... ... ..ot 6,611,558 10,141,672 7,292,839 557
Foreign currency exchange (gain) loss,net . .......... ... ... ... 30,971,438 (18,908,099) 10,120,083 774
Interest income (NOte 16D) . ... ...t (6,853,900) (5,776,600) (6,245,323) (478)
Interest expense (NOte 16C) ... ..ottt i 20,791,606 24,914,596 30,349,694 2,321
Employee profitsharing ............o i 4,043,350 4,377,755 4,648,304 355
(Gain) loss in valuation of derivative financial instruments, capitalized interest
expense and Other, NEt .. ... ... ... ..t (14,745,549) 2,988,396 (8,027,124) (614)
Working capital changes:
Accounts receivable from subscribers, distributors and other ................ (6,705,574) 8,624,782 (12,386,088) (947)
Prepaid BXPENSES . ..\ (1,307,557) (379,179) (1,596,241) (122)
Related parties . ... (530,500) 45,575 (628,029) (48)
INVBNEOTIES . .\ttt e (6,721,377) 4,104,304 (9,564,979) (731)
OthBr @SSELS .« .+ e (3,064,825) (3,096,301) (3,081,649) (236)
Employee benefits ......... .. . (12,769,401) (10,649,297) (13,524,328) (1,034)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................................ 20,976,860 (2,764,066) 37,754,976 2,890
Employee profit sharingpaid ......... ... . i (3,346,952) (3,354,552) (4,013,320) (307)
Financial instrumentsand other ............. ... i, 6,130,808 (924,497) (1,194,640) (91)
Deferred rEVENUES . . . oottt e e 994,315 1,809,425 2,541,976 194
Interest reCeIVed . ... o it 2,272,270 2,229,170 2,944,399 225
INCOME taXES PAIA . . .. oo oottt e (63,556,256) (47,347,341) (55,013,967) (4,207)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities . . . .......... ... ... ... .. .. 193,240,759 206,604,355 187,789,292 14,361
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Note 8) .. ............ccviiininon. (120,193,188)  (121,955,947)  (118,416,286) (9,056)
Acquisition of licenses and right of use (Note 9) ........... ...t (993,692) (7,830,248) (3,334,464) (255)
Dividends received from associates (NOt€ 9) .. ...t — 571,187 212,394 16
Proceeds from sale of plant, property and equipment .......... ... ... ... ... .... 38,312 58,006 44,045 3
Cash acquired in business combination of NET (Note 10) ...................... — 5,378,807
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (Notel0) ........................ (995,621) (2,289,018) (1,730,588) (132)
Partial sale of shares of associated company (Note 10) ............ ... ... ... ... — — 4,299,360 329
Investments in associate companies (Note 10) .. ...t (1,275,438) (71,560,918) (15,366,062) (1,175)
Net cash flows used in investing activities . .......... ... ... . . il (123,419,627)  (197,628,131)  (134,291,601) (10,270)
Financing activities
Loans obtained ... ... ... .. 87,230,827 140,094,584 126,301,382 9,659
Repayment of [0ans . ....... .. (41,222,218) (97,354,311) (60,710,863) (4,643)
Interest Paid ... ..o (18,067,293) (21,329,791) (22,654,119) (1,732)
Repurchase of shares ........... . (53,726,784) (17,836,724) (70,745,785) (5,410)
Dividends paid . ... ...t (17,042,980) (15,384,647) (15,722,576) (1,202)
Derivative financial instruments . . .......... .. 3,158,678 5,003,187 (546,770) (42)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests . .............. ... . o (67,464,370) (11,052,674) (2,567,609) (196)
Net cash flows used in financing activities ........... ... ... ... ... .. (107,134,140) (17,860,376) (46,646,340) (3,566)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ............. . ... ..., (37,313,008) (8,884,152) 6,851,351 525
Adjustment to cash flows due to exchange rate fluctuations ......................... 498,539 (4,752,644) (4,175,001) (320)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of theyear .............. . ... ... ......... 95,938,465 59,123,996 45,487,200 3,478
Cash and cash equivalentsatend of theyear .......... ... ... i, Ps. 59,123,996 Ps. 45,487,200 Ps. 48,163,550 US$ 3,683

Non-cash transactions related to:
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment in accounts payable at end of year . ... Ps. 36,319,549 Ps. 30,461,133 Ps. 15,146,947 US$ 1,161

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



AMERICA MOVIL, S.A.B. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements December 31,
2012 and 2013

(In thousands of Mexican pesos [Ps.] and thousands of
U.S. dollars [USS$], unless otherwise indicated)

1. Description of the Business and Relevant Events
I. Corporate Information

Ameérica Movil, S.A.B. de C.V. and subsidiaries (hereinafter, the “Company or “América Movil” or
“AMX”) was incorporated under laws of Mexico on September 25, 2000. The Company provides
telecommunications services in 18 countries throughout the United States, Latin America and the Caribbean.
These telecommunications services include mobile and fixed voice services, mobile and fixed data services,
internet access and paid TV, as well as other related services.

»  The voice services provided by the Company, both mobile and fixed, mainly include the following:
airtime, local, domestic and international long-distance services, and network interconnection services.

»  The data services provided by the Company include the following: value added, corporate networks,
data and Internet services.

»  Paid TV represents basic services, as well as pay per view and additional programming and advertising
services.

»  Related services mainly include equipment and computer sales, and revenues from advertising in
telephone directories, publishing and call center services.

In order to provide these services, América Movil has licenses, permits and concessions (collectively
referred to herein as “licenses”) to build, install, operate and exploit public and/or private telecommunications
networks and provide miscellaneous telecommunications services (mostly mobile and fixed telephony services),
as well as to operate frequency bands in the radio-electric spectrum to be able to provide fixed wireless telephony
and to operate frequency bands in the radio-electric spectrum for point-to-point and point-to-multipoint
microwave links. The Company holds licenses in the 18 countries where it has a presence, and such licenses have
different dates of expiration through 2046.

Certain licenses require the payment to the respective governments of a share in sales determined as a
percentage of revenues from services under concession. The percentage is set as either a fixed rate or in some
cases based on certain size of the infrastructure in operation.

The corporate offices of América Movil are located in Mexico City, Mexico, at Lago Zurich # 245, Colonia
Ampliacién Granada, Miguel Hidalgo, zip code 11529.

The accompanying financial statements are expected to be approved for their issuance by the Board of
Directors on April 28, 2014. They are expected to be approved by the Company’s shareholders on April 28,
2014. Subsequent events have been considered through April 28, 2014.

Relevant events

i) During 2012, the Company increased its direct and indirect holding of the outstanding shares of Telmex
International, S.A. de C.V. (hereinafter Telint) and Teléfonos de México, S.A. de C.V. (hereinafter Telmex) to
97.59% and 97.53%, respectively, through additional tender offers, in the amount of Ps.8,051,089. As explained
in Note 2, acquisitions of such non-controlling interests are accounted for as equity transactions.
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ii) Telmex delisted its securities in February 2012 from the NYSE and NASDAQ. It has also terminated its
reporting obligations under the Mexican securities laws and the U.S. federal securities laws. It delisted its
securities from the Mercado de Valores Latinoamericanos en Euros in Madrid, Spain.

iii) On December 7, 2012, Telmex was authorized by the “Comision Nacional Bancaria y de Valores™ to
proceed with the cancellation of its shares’ registration in the “Registro Nacional de Valores” and to proceed
with its delisting from the Mexican Stock Exchange.

iv) On March 21, 2013, the International Olympic Committee (“IOC”), awarded to AMX the right to
broadcast the XXII Olympic Winter Games in Sochi, Russia in 2014 and the Games of the XXXI Olympiad in
Rio de Janeiro, Brazil in 2016. AMX has acquired broadcast rights on all media platforms across Latin America,
except Brazil.

v) During April 2013, KPN launched a rights offering to raise up to € 3 billion of equity. Pursuant to the
Company’s agreement with KPN, the Company subscribed for a share in the rights offering in proportion to the
Company’s previous ownership of the KPN shares. Upon settlement of the offering on May 17, 2013, the
Company paid € 895.8 million (Ps.14.2 billion) and owned a total of 1,267,677,000 shares of KPN continuing to
represent 29.77% of the then outstanding shares of KPN.

vi) On July 29, 2013, the Company terminated the Relationship Agreement dated February 20, 2013 entered
into with KPN.

2. Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and Practices

a) Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements for all the periods presented have been prepared in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards , as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) (hereafter referred to as IFRS), in force at December 31, 2013.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
derivative financial instruments and the trust assets of post-employment and other employee benefit plans.

The preparation of these financial statements under IFRS requires the use of critical estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported for certain assets and liabilities, as well as certain income and
expenses. It also requires that management exercise judgment in the application of the Company’s accounting
policies. Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In addition,
América Mavil presents an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the earliest period
presented when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a
reclassification of items in financial statements. An additional statement of financial position as at January 1,
2012 is presented in these financial statements for disclosure purposes due to the retrospective application of IAS
19R, as explained in Note 3.

The Mexican peso is the functional currency and the reporting currency of the parent Company in Mexico.
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b) Business combination, consolidation and basis of translation of financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries

i) Business combination
Subsidiaries:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V. and those of
the subsidiaries over which the Company exercises control. The financial statements for the subsidiaries were
prepared for the same period as the Company, applying consistent accounting policies. All of the companies
operate in the telecommunications field or provide services to companies relating to this activity.

The investments in associated companies in which the Company exercises significant influence are
accounted for using the equity method, whereby América Movil recognizes its share in the net profit (losses) and
equity of the associate.

The results of operations of the subsidiaries and associates were included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements beginning as of the month following their acquisition.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profits or losses and net assets not held by the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and in
equity in the consolidated statements of financial position separately from América Movil’s own equity.

Acquisition-related cost is accounted as an expense in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
as they are incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred plus any non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the net value of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date.

If the consideration paid is less than the fair value of the net assets of the acquired company, (in the case of
a bargain purchase), the difference is recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

ii) Consolidation and equity method

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V. and those of
the subsidiaries over which the Company exercises control. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if the Company
has:

a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

(i) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

(iif) The Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. When necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Company’s
accounting policies. All intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it:

(i) Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

(if) Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

(iif) Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

(iv) Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

(v) Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

(vi) Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

(vii) Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Company had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

The financial statements for the subsidiaries were prepared for the same period as the holding company,
applying consistent accounting policies. All of the companies operate in the telecommunications field or provide
services to companies relating to this activity.

Non-controlling interests refers to certain subsidiaries in which the Company does not hold 100% of the
shares.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profits or losses and net assets not held by the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and in
equity in the consolidated statements of financial position separately from América Movil’s own equity.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as equity transactions. The difference between
the book value and the subscription price for acquired shares under common control are accounted for as an
equity transaction within retained earnings.

Associates:

Associates are entities over which the Company has significant influence without having control. According
to TAS 28, “Investments in Associates ”, significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. Significant
influence typically exists when an investor holds from 20% to 50% of the voting power of an investee.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognized at cost. The

Company’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment losses.
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The Company’s participation in the profits or losses of the associate after acquisition is recognized in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and its share of other comprehensive income after acquisition

is recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that its investment in

associates is impaired. If so, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the

recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value.

The Company’s equity interest in the most significant subsidiaries and associated companies at

December 31, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

Equity interest at

December 31

Company name Country 2012 2013

Subsidiaries:
AMX Tenedora, S A. deCV.(a) ... oo Mexico 100.0% 100.0%
Carso Telecom B.V. (antes Amov EuropaB.V.) (@) .............. Netherlands 100.0% 100.0%
AMOV Canadd, SAA. (8) « .o v Mexico 100.0% 100.0%
Compafiia Dominicana de Teléfonos, S.A. (“Codetel”) (b) ........ Dominican Republic  100.0% 100.0%
Sercotel, SA. de C.V.(8) .. oo Mexico 100.0% 100.0%
Radiomdvil Dipsa, S.A. de C.V. y subsidiarias (“Telcel”) (b) ...... Mexico 100.0% 100.0%
Telecomunicaciones de Puerto Rico, Inc. (b) ................... Puerto Rico 100.0% 100.0%
Puerto Rico Telephone Company, Inc. (b) ..................... Puerto Rico 100.0% 100.0%
Servicios de Comunicaciones de Honduras, S.A. de C.V. (“Sercom

Honduras”) (D) . ... Honduras 100.0% 100.0%
AMX USA Holding, SA.deCV. (@) ..........coviiiiin. Mexico 100.0% 100.0%
TracFone Wireless, Inc. (“TracFone”) (b) ..................... USA 98.2% 98.2%
AM Telecom Américas, S A.deCV. (@) ........... ...t Mexico 100.0% 100.0%
Claro Telecom Participacoes, SAA. (&) . ..., Brazil 100.0% 100.0%
Americel, SA. (D) ... Brazil 100.0% 100.0%
Claro S.A. (antesBCP, SA) (D) ... oo Brazil 100.0% 100.0%
Ameérica Central Tel, SA. de CV. (“ACT”)(b) ...........oov... Mexico 100.0% 100.0%
Telecomunicaciones de Guatemala, S.A. (“Telgua™) (b) .......... Guatemala 99.3% 99.3%
Empresa Nicaragliense de Telecomunicaciones, S.A.

CEnitel”) (D) .« .o Nicaragua 99.5% 99.5%
Estesa Holding Corp. (&) . ... Panama 100.0% 100.0%
Cablenet, SA. (D) ... .. Nicaragua 100.0% 100.0%
Estaciones Terrenas de Satélite, S.A. (“Estesa™) (b) .............. Nicaragua 100.0% 100.0%
AMX El Salvador, SAdeCV.(b) ......... ... Mexico 100.0% 100.0%
Compafiia de Telecomunicaciones de El Salvador, S.A. de C.V.

(“CTE”) (D) ottt e El Salvador 95.8% 95.8%
Cablenet, S.A. (“Cablenet™) (D) . ... Guatemala 95.8% 95.8%
Telecomoda, S.A. de C.V. (“Telecomoda™) (b) ................. El Salvador 95.8% 95.8%
Telecom Publicar Directorios, S.A. de C.V. (“Publicom”) (¢) ...... El Salvador 48.9% 48.9%
CTE Telecom Personal, S.A. de C.V. (“Personal”) (b) ............ El Salvador 95.8% 95.8%
Comunicacion Celular, S.A. (“Comcel”) (b) ...t Colombia 99.4% 99.4%
Megacanales, S A. (1) (b) ... Colombia 99.4% —
The Now Operation, SA. (2)(0) . ... Colombia 99.4% —
Telmex Colombia, SA. (B) ... .. Colombia 99.3% 99.3%
Consorcio Ecuatoriano de Telecomunicaciones, S.A.

(“Conecel”) (D) ..o Ecuador 100.0% 100.0%
AMX Argentina, SA. (B) ... . Argentina 100.0% 100.0%
AMX Wellington Gardens, SA.deCV.(@) ...........ccoovin. Mexico 100.0% 100.0%



Company name Country
Widcombe, SA. deCV.(2) .. .ooiii Mexico
AMX Paraguay, SA. (b) ... Paraguay
AM Wireless Uruguay, S A. (b) ... Uruguay
Claro Chile, S A. (D) ... .o Chile
América Movil Pert, SAC () ... Peru
Claro Panama, S.A. (D) ..o Panama
Carso Global Telecom, S AB.deCV. (@) .............co.t. Mexico
Empresas y Controles en Comunicaciones, S A.deC.V. (@) ....... Mexico
Teléfonos de México, S AB.deCV. (b)) (2) .........covvvvn... Mexico
Telmex Internacional, S A.deC.V.(b) ........... ... ... ..., Mexico
Controladora de Servicios de Telecomunicaciones, S.A.

deC. V. (D) . o Mexico
Telmex Argentina, SA. (b) ... Argentina
Ertach, SA. (D) ... Argentina
Telstar, S A (D) ..o Uruguay
Ecuador Telecom, S A. (b) ... Ecuador
Empresa Brasileira de Telecomunicacoes,

SA—(Embratel”) (D) ..... ... Brazil
Paginas Telmex Colombia, SA. (C) ...t Colombia
Claro 155, SAA (C) « v v v vt Chile
Clar0 110, SIAA (C) « o v vt Chile
Seccion Amarilla USA, LLC. (C) ... ..o vviiii i USA
Publicidad y Contenido Editorial, S A.deC.V.(C) . .............. Mexico
Editorial Contenido, SA. deCV.(C) . ... Mexico
Plaza VIP COM, SAP.L.deCV.(C) ...t Mexico
Grupo Telvista, SA. deCV. (C) ... Mexico
Net Servicios de Comunicacao, S.A. ‘“NET”)(b) ............... Brazil

Associates:

Hildebrando, SA.deC.V.(C) ...t Mexico
KoninKlijke KPN B.V. (“KPN”) (b) .. ..ot Netherlands
Telecom Austria AG (D) ... Austria

a)
b)
c)
)
)

Holding companies

Operating companies offering mobile and fixed services
Advertising, media and content companies and other businesses
Liquidated on April 23, 2013

Equity interest at
December 31

2012

2013

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
99.9%
99.9%
97.5%
97.6%

97.6%
99.6%
99.5%
99.9%
97.6%

95.4%
97.6%
97.6%
99.9%
97.6%
97.6%
97.6%
97.6%
88.9%
88.0%

35.0%
29.8%
23.7%

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
99.9%
99.9%
97.7%
97.7%

97.7%
99.6%
99.5%
99.9%
97.7%

95.7%
97.7%
97.7%
99.9%
97.7%
97.7%
97.7%
97.7%
88.9%
92.2%

35.0%
27.4%
23.7%

During 2013, certain real estate assets of Telmex were spun-off into separate legal entities. This spin-off did

not have an impact on the consolidated financial position of the Company.

iii) Basis of translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and associated companies

The operating revenues of foreign subsidiaries (those outside of Mexico) jointly represent approximately
59%, 63% and 65% of operating revenues of 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively, and their total assets jointly
represent approximately 72% and 70% of total assets at December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively.

The financial information is consolidated, as appropriate, after the financial statements have been converted
to IFRS in the respective local currency and translated into the reporting currency.
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Since none of the subsidiaries operate in a hyperinflationary economic environment and the local currency
is their functional currency, the translation of their financial statements prepared under IFRS and denominated in
their respective local currencies, are translated as follows:

« all monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the prevailing exchange rate at the period closing;

» all non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the prevailing exchange rate in effect at the
period closing;

*  equity accounts are translated at the prevailing exchange rate at the time the capital contributions were
made and the profits were generated;

*  revenues, costs and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate during the applicable period;

» the difference resulting from the translation process is recognized in equity in the caption “Effect of
translation”;

» the consolidated statements of cash flows are translated using the weighted-average exchange rate for
the applicable period, and the resulting difference is shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows
under the heading “Adjustment to cash flows due to exchange rate fluctuations”.

The difference resulting from the translation process is recognized in equity in the caption “Effect of
translation”. At December 31, 2012 and 2013, the cumulative translation loss was Ps.(7,220,700) and
Ps.(33,706,043), respectively.

¢) Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized at the time the related service is rendered, provided that the revenue may be
reliably measured, it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits associated with the transaction,
the degree of completion of the transaction may be reliably measured and there is high a certainty of
collectability.

For the postpaid plans, the amount billed to clients combines a fixed tariff for a specific quantity of services,
plus the rates use above of the specified quantities (minutes in each plan). Expenses related to these services are
recognized when the services are rendered.

The Company divides its main services into six types, as presented in the consolidated comprehensive
income statements, as follows:

* Mobile voice

* Mobile data
» Fixed voice
» Fixed data
e Paid TV

e Other related services

To recognize the multi-elements or multiple services at their fair value, the Company has established the
necessary indicators and metrics that allow it to assign to each type of element its fair value. In multi-element
plans, these indicators are based on the price offered in each package, considering the number of offered minutes
and the data plans offered to subscribers.

Voice services

*  Monthly rent in post-paid plans is billed based on the associated plan and package rates, corresponding to
when the services are provided. Revenues billed for services to be rendered in the future are initially
recorded as deferred revenues.
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»  Revenues from local services are derived from charges for line installations, monthly rent for services and
monthly charges for metered services based on the number of minutes used. These revenues depend on the
number of lines in service, the number of newly installed lines and the volume of minutes.

*  Revenues for interconnection services, which represent calls from other carriers entering the Company’s
mobile and fixed line networks (incoming interconnection services), are recognized at the time the service is
provided. Such services are invoiced based on rates previously agreed with other carriers.

»  Long-distance revenues originate from airtime or minutes used in making calls to a region or coverage area
outside of the area where the customer’s service is activated. These revenues are recognized at the time the
service is provided.

»  Revenues from roaming charges are related to airtime charged to customers for making or receiving calls
when visiting a local service area, country or region outside the local service area where the customer’s
service is activated. The related revenues are recognized at the time the service is provided based on the
rates established and agreed upon by our subsidiaries with other domestic and international mobile carriers.
See Note 23 on new regulation.

Data

*  Value added services and other services include voice services and data transmission services (such as two-
way and written messages, call information, ring tones and emergency services, among others). Revenues
from such services are recognized at the time they are provided or when the services are downloaded.

»  Revenues from internet services and the sale of point-to-point and point-to-multipoint links are recognized
on the date of installation, which is similar to the date when the respective traffic begins.

*  Revenues from corporate networks are obtained mainly from private lines and from providing virtual private
network services. These revenues are recognized at the time the respective traffic begins.

Pay television

*  Revenues from pay TV include payments for package deals, pay-per-view and advertising, all of which are
recognized at the time the services are provided.

Other related services
Equipment, accessories and computers sale

»  Sales of mobile phone equipment and computers, which are made to authorized distributors and the general
public, are recognized as revenue at the time the products are delivered and accepted by the customer and
the recovery of the amounts is probable. The distributors and general public do not have the right to return
the products.

The majority of equipment sales are performed though distributors, though not exclusively, as a portion of
equipment sales is performed through client service centers.

Marketing revenues

«  Advertising revenues earned through the publication of telephone directory are recognized over the life of
the directories.

Transmission rights

Transmission rights include exclusive rights for the transmission of the Winter Olympic Games and the Rio
de Janeiro Olympics of 2016. The related costs and expenses (amortization of its investment) are recognized
when the associated revenue is recognized.
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Points programs

Points programs are recognized as a reduction to revenues, since they effectively represent a decrease in the
price of mobile services and equipment. Upon redemption of points the deferred income is cancelled and the cost
of equipment is expensed.

Commissions to distributors
Distribution agreements have three types of commissions related to postpaid plans.

Loyalty and activation commissions are accrued monthly as an expense based on statistical information
about customer retention, sales volume and the number of new customers obtained by each distributor. Retention
commissions are paid when customers continue for a specified period. Volume commissions are paid at the time
the distributor reaches prescribed ranges of activated clients.

In all three cases the fees are recognized within commercial, administrative and general expenses, as these
fees are not reflected in the price of services and products.

d) Cost of mobile equipment and computers

The cost of mobile equipment and computers is recognized at the time the related revenue is recognized.
The costs relating to the sale of such equipment are recognized in cost of sales and services.

e) Cost of services

These costs include the cost of call terminations in the networks of other carriers, the costs to link the fixed
and mobile networks, payments for long-distance services, rental costs for the use of infrastructure (links, ports
and measured service), as well as message exchanges between carriers. Such costs are recognized at the time the
service is received by the fixed or mobile carriers. These costs also include last-mile costs and line installation
costs, which are also recognized at the time the services are received.

Last mile installation costs and decoder-related charges are capitalized at the time of installation and
depreciated over the average useful life as the customer remains active in the Company.

f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank deposits and highly liquid investments with maturities of less
than three months. These investments are stated at cost plus accrued interest, which is similar to their market
value.

g) Allowance for bad debts

The Company periodically recognizes a provision for doubtful accounts based mainly on its past experience,
the aging of its accounts receivable, the delays in resolving its disputes with other carriers, and the market
segments of its customers (governments, businesses and mass market).

Collection policies and procedures vary depending on the credit history of the customer, the credit granted,
and the age of the unpaid calls among other reasons.

The evaluation of collection risk of accounts receivables with related parties is performed annually based on
an examination of each related party’s financial situation and the markets in which they operate.

h) Inventories

Inventories, which are mainly composed of cellular equipment, accessories, tablets and other devices, are
initially recognized at historical cost and are valued using the average cost method, without exceeding their net
realizable value.
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The estimate of the realizable value of inventories on-hand is based on their age and turnover.

The difference between the sales price to the end user and the subsidized cost of equipment is recognized as
an expense in the “cost of sales and service” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, at the time
of delivery.

i) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, which in accordance with IFRS 3,
“Business acquisitions”, consists in general terms as follows:

i)  identify the acquirer
ii) determine the acquisition date
iii) value the acquired identifiable assets and assumed liabilities

iv) recognize the goodwill or a bargain purchase gain

For acquired subsidiaries, goodwill represents the difference between the purchase price and the fair value
of the net assets acquired at the acquisition date. For acquired associates, the investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on the acquisition date, net of any impairment loss.

Goodwill is reviewed annually to determine its recoverability, or more often if circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of the goodwill might not be fully recoverable.

The possible loss of value in goodwill is determined by analyzing the recovery value of the cash generating
unit (or the group thereof) to which the goodwill is associated at the time it originated. If this recovery value is
lower than the carrying value, an impairment loss is charged to results of operations.

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, no impairment losses were recognized for the
goodwill shown in the Company’s consolidated statements of financial position.

j) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed on the cost of the assets using the straight line method, based on the estimated useful
lives of the related assets, beginning the month after they become available for use.

The Company periodically assesses the residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods associated
with its property, plant and equipment. If necessary, the effects of any changes in accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively, at the closing of each period, in accordance with IAS 8, “Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.

Borrowing costs that are incurred for general financing for construction in progress for periods exceeding
six months are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. During 2011, 2012 and 2013 the borrowing costs that
were capitalized amounted to Ps.3,845,609, Ps.3,152,811 and Ps.3,002,576, respectively.

Inventories for the operation of telephone plant are valued using the average cost method, without exceeding
their net realizable value.

The valuations of inventories for the operation of telephone plant considered obsolete, defective or slow-
moving, are reduced to their estimated net realizable value. The estimate of the recovery value of inventories is
based on their age and turnover.
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In addition to the purchase price and costs directly attributable to preparing an asset in terms of its physical
location and condition for use as intended by management, when required, the cost also includes the estimated
costs for the dismantling and removal of the asset, and for restoration of the site where it is located. See Note
13b).

For property, plant and equipment made up of several components with different useful lives, the major
individual components are depreciated over their individual useful lives. Maintenance costs and repairs are
expensed as incurred.

The net book value of property, plant and equipment is removed from the statements of financial position at
the time the asset is sold or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or sale. Any gains or
losses on the sale of property, plant and equipment represent the difference between net proceeds of the sale, if
any, and the net book value of the item at the time of sale. These gains or losses are recognized as either other
operating income or operating expenses upon sale.

Annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Telephone plant in operation:

Monitoring equipment and network performance .......... 20%-33%
Base stations . ... 20%
Switching and telephone exchanges .. ................... 20%
Towers, antennas and engineering works .. ............... 10%
Measuring equipment . ... 17%
Buildings . ... 3.33%
Other assets . . ..o 10%-33%

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed whenever there are indicators of
impairment in such assets. Whenever an asset’s recovery value, which is the greater of the asset’s selling price
and its value in use (the present value of future cash flows), is less than the asset’s net carrying value, the
difference is recognized as an impairment loss.

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, no impairment losses were recognized.

k) Licenses, trademarks and rights of use
i) Licenses are recorded at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization.

Licenses to operate wireless telecommunications networks are accounted for at cost or at fair value at their
acquisition date.

The licenses that in accordance with government requirements are categorized as automatically renewable,
for a nominal cost and with substantially consistent terms, are considered by the Company as intangible assets
with an indefinite useful life. Accordingly, they are not amortized. Licenses are amortized when the Company
does not have a basis to conclude that they have indefinite lives. Licenses are amortized using the straight-line
method over a period ranging from 5 to 20 years, which represents the usage period of the assets. The payments
to the governments are recognized in the cost of service and equipment.

ii) Trademarks

Trademarks are recorded at their fair value at the valuation date when acquired, as determined by
independent appraisers, and are amortized using the straight-line method over a period ranging from 1 to 10
years.
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iii) Rights of use

Rights of use are recognized according to the amount paid for the right to carry traffic and are amortized
over the period in which they are granted.

The carrying value of the Company’s licenses and trademarks with indefinite useful lives and with finite
useful lives is reviewed annually and whenever there are indicators of impairment in the value of such assets.
When an asset’s recoverable amount, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less disposal costs and its value
in use (the present value of future cash flows), is less than the asset’s carrying value, the difference is recognized
as an impairment loss.

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, no impairment losses were recognized.

I) Impairment in the value of long-lived assets

The Company has a policy in place for evaluating the existence of indicators of impairment in the carrying
value of long-lived assets, investments in associates, goodwill and intangible assets. When there are such
indicators, or in the case of assets whose nature requires an annual impairment analysis (goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives), the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset, which is the
higher of its fair value, less disposal costs, and its value in use. Value in use is determined by discounting
estimated future cash flows, applying a discount rate after taxes that reflects the time value of money and taking
into consideration the specific risks associated with the asset. When the recoverable amount of an asset is below
its carrying value, impairment is considered to exist. In this case, the carrying value of the asset is reduced to the
asset’s recoverable amount, recognizing the loss in results of operations for the respective period. Depreciation
and/or amortization expense of future periods is adjusted based on the new carrying value determined for the
asset over the asset’s remaining useful life. Impairment is computed individually for each asset. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

In the estimation of impairments, the Company uses the strategic plans established for the separate cash-
generating units to which the assets are assigned. Such strategic plans generally cover a period from three to five
years. For longer periods, beginning in the fifth year, projections are based on such strategic plans while applying
a constant or declining expected growth rate.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations
The forecasts were performed by the Company’s management in real terms (net of inflation) and in pesos
with acquisition value as of December 31, 2013.

In developing information for financial forecasts, premises and assumptions have been included that any
other market participant in similar conditions would consider.

Local synergies have not been taken into consideration that any other market participant would not have
taken into consideration to prepare similar forecasted financial information.

The assumptions used to develop the financial forecasts were validated by the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer for each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), taking into consideration
the following:

e Current subscribers and expected growth
»  Type of subscribers (prepaid, postpaid, fixed line, multiple services)
»  Market situation and penetration expectations

+  New products and services
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»  Economic situation of each country
* Investments in maintenance of the current assets
» Investments in technology for expanding the current assets

»  Market consolidation and synergies

The foregoing forecasts could differ from the results obtained over time; however, América Moévil prepares
its estimates based on the current situation of each of the CGUs.

The recoverable amounts are based on value in use. The value in use of CGUs is determined based on the
method of discounted cash flows. The key assumptions used in projecting cash flows are: Adjusted EBITDA
(which the Company defines as operating income excluding currency fluctuations plus depreciation and
amortization), capital expenditure (“CAPEX”) / margin on revenue, the change in working capital and the
weighted average cost of capital (“WACC”) used to discount the projected flows.

To determine the discount rate, América Mdvil uses the WACC as determined for each of the cash
generating units in real terms and as described in following paragraphs.

The estimated discount rates to perform the IAS 36 “Impairment of assets ”, impairment test for each CGU
consider market participants’ assumptions. Market participants were selected taking into consideration the size,
operations and characteristics of the business that are similar to those of América Movil.

The discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into
consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of
the Company and its operating segments and is derived from its WACC. The WACC takes into account both debt
and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by América Movil’s investors.
The cost of debt is based on the interest bearing borrowings América Mavil is obliged to service. Segment-
specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors.

The beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly available market data.
Market participant assumptions are important because, not only do they include industry data for growth

rates, management also assesses how the CGU’s position, relative to its competitors, might change over the
forecasted period.
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The most significant assumptions used for the 2012 and 2013 impairment evaluations are shown below:

Discount rate

EBIDTA CAPEX (WACC)
2012:
Mexico ................. 34.76% - 53.48% 6.82% - 18.5% 6.41%
USA ... 8.94% 0.77% 7.90%
Guatemala .............. 43.96% 25.07% 10.26%
El Salvador .............. 40.67% 17.47% 9.88%
Chile ................... 14.52% 24.23% 8.19%
Peru.................... 40.80% 13.13% 8.57%
Paraguay ................ 15.17% 23.84% 12.32%
Honduras ............... 5.14% 12.83% 12.80%
Nicaragua ............... 51.90% 23.16% 13.57%
uruguay ................ 17.35% 16.72% 10.41%
Argentina ............... 35.6% 9.94% 12.11%
Brazil .................. 24.32% - 31.43% 20.13% - 24.79% 7.73%
Colombia ............... 25.37% - 47.94% 11.12% - 29.07% 7.99%
Ecuador................. 46.42% 10.72% 12.41%
Dominican Republic . ... ... 41.95% 15.59% 8.90%
PuertoRico .............. 16.09% 14.87% 7.11%
2013

Mexico ................. 33.48% - 49.74% 5.38% - 18.5% 3.75%
USA ... 9.40% 0.48% 5.42%
Guatemala .............. 44.37% 19.28% 5.59%
El Salvador .............. 40.62% 14.90% 5.64%
Chile ................... 12.75% 17.52% 4.80%
Peru.................... 40.36% 10.23% 4.58%
Paraguay ................ 18.47% 28.68% 8.77%
Honduras ............... 14.76% 10.26% 6.52%
Nicaragua ............... 42.68% 19.02% 9.53%
druguay ................ 20.14% 16.66% 6.68%
Argentina ............... 34.08% 10.56% 6.92%
Brazil .................. 18.11% - 31.37%  15.48% - 27.07% 4.27%
Colombia ............... 29.00% - 47.81%  11.63% - 16.27% 4.15%
Ecuador ................. 49.80% 9.49% 9.19%
Dominican Republic . . .. ... 39.78% 12.47% 6.68%
PuertoRico .............. 22.69% 5.05% 5.67%

Meéxico, Colombia and Brazil include fixed and mobile operations.

m) Leases

The determination of whether an agreement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the

agreement and requires an evaluation of whether performance of the agreement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset and whether the agreement transfers the right of use of the asset to the Company.

- Operating leases

Leases under which the lessor retains a significant portion of the risks and benefits inherent to the ownership
of the leased asset are considered operating leases. Payments made under operating lease agreements are charged
to results of operations on a straight-line basis over the rental period.
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Finance leases

Lease agreements that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets to the
Company are accounted for as finance leases. Accordingly, upon commencement of the lease, the asset, which is
classified based on its nature, and associated debt are recorded at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or
the present value of the lease payments. Finance lease payments are apportioned between the reduction of lease
liability and the finance cost so that a constant interest rate is determined on the outstanding liability balance.
Finance costs are charged to results of operations over the life of the agreement.

n) Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

Financial assets are categorized, at initial recognition, as (i) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, (ii) loans and receivables, (iii) held-to-maturity investments, (iv) available-for-sale financial assets, or as
(v) derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

- Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, plus directly attributable transactions costs, except for
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

- Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of assets depends on their categorization as either financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss, loans and receivables, held to maturity or available for
sale financial assets, or derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined in IAS 39. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income in the line of “valuation of derivatives, interest cost from labor obligations and other financial items”.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Company has the intent and ability to hold to maturity and
are recorded at cost which includes transaction costs and premiums or discounts related to investment that are
amortized over the life of the investment based on its outstanding balance, less any impairment. Interest and
dividends on investments classified as held-to-maturity are included within the interest income.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are recorded at fair value, with gains and losses, net of tax, reported in
other comprehensive income. Interest and dividends on investments classified as available-for-sale are included
in interest income. The fair value of investments is readily available based on market value. The currency effects
of securities available for sale are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active markets. Loans and receivables with a relevant period (including accounts receivable to
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subscribers, distributors and other receivables) are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for
accounts receivable from subscribers, distributors and others in the short term, where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

This category generally applies to accounts receivable from subscribers, distributors and other receivables.
For more information on receivables, refer to Note 5.

- Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when: the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (i) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

- Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization and when observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories based on the nature of the financial
instruments contracted or issued: (i) financial liabilities measured at fair value, and (ii) financial liabilities
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measured at their amortized cost. The Company’s financial liabilities include accounts payable to suppliers,
deferred revenues, other accounts payable, loans and derivative financial instruments. Derivative financial
instruments are measured at fair value; short- and long-term debt and accounts payable, are accounted for as
financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.

- Initial recognition

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

- Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39, “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement ”. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on financial liabilities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied. América Movil has not designated
any financial liabilities as fair value liabilities through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate (“EIR”)
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more information refer to
Note 16.

- Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.
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When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

- Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position if, and only if there is:

(i) acurrently a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and

(ii) the intention to either settle them on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

- Fair value of financial instruments

At each financial statement reporting date, the fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
determined based on market prices, or prices quoted by brokers (purchase price for asset positions and sales price
for liability positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments that are not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions,
references to the current fair value of another financial instrument that is substantially similar, a discounted cash
flow analysis or other valuation models.

Note 14 provides an analysis of the fair values of the Company’s financial instruments.

0) Transactions in foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the prevailing exchange rate at the time of the related
transactions. Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated at the prevailing exchange rate at
the financial statement reporting date. Exchange differences determined from the transaction date to the time
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are settled or translated at the financial statement reporting
date are charged or credited to the results of operations.

The exchange rates used for the translation of foreign currencies against the Mexican peso are as follows:

Closing exchange rate at

Average exchange rate December 31,

Country or Zone Currency 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012

Argentina® ... Argentine Peso 2.3410 29305 3.0055  2.0053 2.6454
Brazil ........... .. ... Real 59334 6.7605 7.4135 5.5820 6.3666
Colombia........................ Colombian Peso  0.0068  0.0073  0.0067  0.0068 0.0074
Guatemala ....................... Quetzal 1.6244 16808 15944  1.6676 1.6464
USA@ . US Dollar 12.7660 13.1663 12.4210 13.0765 13.0101
ruguay ... Uruguay Peso 0.6249 0.6568 0.6426 0.6104 0.6706
Nicaragua ....................... Cordobas 0.5164 05594 0.5536  0.5162 0.5393
Honduras ........................ Lempiras 0.6228 0.6758 0.6519  0.6304 0.6472
Chile ... ... Chilean Peso 0.0258  0.0274 0.0257  0.0249 0.0271
Paraguay ............ ..o, Guarani 0.0030 0.0030 0.0030 0.0029 0.0030
Peru ... Soles 47271  5.0952 45170 4.6769 5.1000
Dominican Republic ............... Dominican Peso  0.3052 0.3373 0.3258  0.3050 0.3209
CostaRica .............oiiinnt. Colon 0.0253  0.0259 0.0243  0.0258 0.0253
European Union .................. Euro 16.9693 16.9276 17.2666 17.9710 17.1642
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(1) Official exchange rate published by the Argentine Central Bank. The Argentine peso has experienced
significant devaluation over the past several years and the government has adopted various rules and
regulations since late 2011 that established new restrictive controls on capital flows into the country. These
enhanced exchange controls have practically closed the foreign exchange market to retail transactions. It is
widely reported that the Argentine peso/U.S. dollar exchange rate in the unofficial market substantially
differs from the official foreign exchange rate. The Argentine government could impose further exchange
controls or restrictions on the movement of capital and take other measures in the future in response to
capital flight or a significant depreciation of the Argentine peso.

(2) Includes United States, Ecuador, El Salvador, Puerto Rico and Panama.

p) Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and provisions

Liabilities are recognized whenever (i) the Company has current obligations (legal or assumed) resulting
from a past event, (ii) when it is probable the obligation will give rise to a future cash disbursement for its
settlement, and (iii) the amount of the obligation can be reasonably estimated.

When the effect of the time value of money is significant, the amount of the liability is determined as the
present value of the expected disbursements to settle the obligation. The discount rate is determined on a pre-tax
basis and reflects current market conditions at the financial statement reporting date and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, an increase in the liability is recognized as finance
expense.

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when it is probable they will give rise to a future cash
disbursement for their settlement. Also, contingencies are only recognized when they will generate a loss.

q) Employee benefits

The Company has defined benefit pension plans in place for its subsidiaries Radiomévil Dipsa, S.A. de
C.V., Telecomunicaciones de Puerto Rico, S.A., Teléfonos de México and Embratel. Embratel also has medical
plans and defined contribution plans. The Company recognizes the costs of these plans based upon independent
actuarial computations, which are determined using the projected unit credit method. The latest actuarial
computation was prepared as of December 31, 2013.

Mexico

The Mexican subsidiaries have the obligation to pay seniority premiums to personnel based on the Mexican
Federal labor law, which also establishes the obligation to make certain payments to personnel who cease to
provide services under certain circumstances.

The costs of pensions, seniority premiums and severance benefits are recognized based on calculations by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method using financial hypotheses, net of inflation.

Puerto Rico

In Puerto Rico, the Company has noncontributing pension plans for full-time employees, which are tax
qualified as they meet the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 requirements.

The pension benefit is composed of two elements:
(i) An employee receives an annuity at retirement if the employee meets the rule of 85 (age at retirement

plus accumulated years of service). The annuity is calculated by applying a percentage multiplied by the number
of years of service to the last three years of salary.
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(i) The second element is a lump-sum benefit based on years of service equivalent to approximately nine to
twelve months of salary. Health care and life insurance benefits are also provided to retirees under a separate
plan (post-retirement benefits).

Ecuador

The subsidiary Consorcio Ecuatoriano de Telecomunicaciones, S.A. has a pension plan, where the Company
purchases an annuity for the employee and is paid by the employee by means of individual funding. The
Company purchases a deferred annuity from an insurance company for which the Company pays an annual
premium. This plan is classified as a defined benefit plan. The cost of the plan for the period is disclosed in
Note 12.

Other subsidiaries

For the rest of the Company’s subsidiaries, there are no defined benefit plans or compulsory defined
contribution structures. However, the foreign subsidiaries make contributions to national pension, social security
and severance plans in accordance with the percentages and rates established by the applicable payroll and labor
laws of each country. Such contributions are made to the entities designated by the country and are recorded as
direct labor benefits in the results of operations as they are incurred.

Re-measurements of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding net interest and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), are recognized immediately
in the statements of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in
the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:

(i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

(if) The date that the Company recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest on liability for defined benefits is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset and it is recognized in the “valuation of derivatives, interest cost from labor obligations
and other financial items™ in the consolidated comprehensive income statement. The Company recognizes the

changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales and services” and “Commercial, administrative
and general expenses” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Paid absences

The Company recognizes a provision for the costs of paid absences, such as vacation time, based on the
accrual method.

r) Employee profit sharing

Employee profit sharing is paid by certain subsidiaries of the Company to its eligible employees. In Mexico,
the employee profit sharing is computed at the rate of 10% of the individual company taxable income, except for
depreciation of historical rather than restated values, and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are not
included until the asset is disposed of or the liability is due and other effects of inflation are also excluded.
Current year employee profit sharing is presented as an operating expense in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

s) Income taxes
Current income tax is presented as a short-term liability, net of prepayments made during the year.

Deferred income tax is determined using the liability method based on the temporary differences between
the tax values of the assets and liabilities and their book values at the financial statement reporting date.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to be in effect in the
period when the asset will materialize or the liability will be settled, based on the enacted tax rates (and tax
legislation) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the financial statement reporting date. The value of
deferred tax assets is reviewed by the Company at each financial statement reporting date and is reduced to the
extent that it is more likely than not that the Company will not have sufficient future tax profits to allow for the
realization of all or a part of its deferred tax assets. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are revalued at each
financial statement reporting date and are recognized when it is more likely than not that there will be sufficient
future tax profits to allow for the realization of these assets.

Deferred taxes relating to items recognized outside profit or loss are also recognized outside of profit and
loss. These deferred taxes are recognized together with the underlying transaction in other comprehensive
income.

Deferred tax consequences on unremitted foreign earnings are accounted for as temporary differences,
except to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference,
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Taxes paid on remitted
foreign earnings are able to be offset against Mexican taxes, thus to the extent that a remittance is to be made, the
deferred tax would be limited to the incremental difference between the Mexican tax rate and the rate of the
remitting country. As of December 31, 2012 and 2013, the Company has not provided for any deferred taxes
related to unremitted foreign earnings.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority.

t) Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

*  When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable.

*  Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statements of financial position.

u) Advertising

Advertising expenses are expensed as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013,
advertising expenses were Ps.17,867,455, Ps.22,652,826 and Ps.19,699,228, respectively, and are recorded in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income in the line “Commercial, administrative and general expenses”.

v) Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are determined by dividing net income for the year by the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding during the year (the common control component of the shares are reflected
for all periods presented). In determining the weighted average number of shares issued and outstanding, shares
repurchased by the Company have been excluded.

w) Financial risks

The main risks associated with the Company’s financial instruments are: (i) liquidity risk, (ii) market risk
(foreign currency exchange risk and interest rate risk) (iii) credit risk and counterparty risk. The Board of
Directors approves the policies submitted by management to mitigate these risks.
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(i) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations associated with financial

instruments when they are due. The Company’s financial obligations and commitments are included in Notes 16
and 17.

(i) Market risk

The Company is exposed to market risks from changes in interest rates and fluctuations in exchange rates of
foreign currencies. The Company’s debt is denominated in foreign currencies, mainly in US dollars, other than
its functional currency. In order to reduce the risks related to fluctuations in the exchange rate of foreign
currencies, the Company uses derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency swaps and forwards to
adjust exposures resulting from foreign exchange currency. The Company does not use derivatives to hedge the
exchange risk arising from having operations in different countries.

Additionally, the Company occasionally uses interest rate swaps to adjust its exposure to the variability of
the interest rates or to reduce its financing costs. The Company’s practices vary from time to time depending on
its judgments about the level of risk, expectations of change in the movements of interest rates and the costs of
using derivatives. The Company may terminate or modify a derivative financial instrument at any time. See Note
11 for disclosure of the fair value of derivatives as of December 31, 2012 and 2013.

(i) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the loss that could be recognized in case the counterparties fail to fully comply with
the contractual obligations.

The financial instruments that potentially represent concentrations of credit risk are cash and short-term
deposits, trade accounts receivable and financial instruments related to debt and derivatives. The Company’s
policy is designed in order to limit its exposure to any one financial institution; therefore, the Company’s
financial instruments are contracted with several different financial institutions located in different geographic
regions.

The credit risk in accounts receivable is diversified because the Company has a broad customer base that is
geographically dispersed. The Company continuously evaluates the credit conditions of its customers and does
not require collateral to guarantee collection of its accounts receivable. The Company monitors on a monthly
basis its collection cycle to avoid deterioration of its results of operations.

A portion of the Company’s cash surplus is invested in short-term deposits with financial institutions with
high credit ratings.

(iv) Sensitivity analysis for market risks

The Company uses sensitivity analyses to measure the potential losses based on a theoretical increase of 100
basis points in interest rates and a 10% fluctuation in exchange rates:

a) Exchange rate fluctuations

Should the Company’s debt at December 31, 2013 of Ps.490,319,844 suffer a 10% increase in exchange
rates, the debt would increase by Ps.48,566,612 (resulting in total debt of Ps.538,886,456), while the Company’s
net interest expense would increase by Ps.2,113,199 as a consequence of the base for interest being higher in
Mexican pesos.

b) Interest rates

In the event that the Company’s agreed-upon interest rates at December 31, 2013 increased by 100 basis
points, the increase in net interest expense would be Ps.4,506,326.
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(v) Concentration of risk

The Company depends on several key suppliers and sellers. During the years ended December 31, 2011,
2012 and 2013, approximately 58%, 55% and 64%, respectively, of the total cost of the cellular equipment of
América Movil represent purchases made from three suppliers, and approximately 29%, 20% and 21%,
respectively, of the telephony plant equipment was purchased from two suppliers. If any of these suppliers were
to cease to provide equipment and services to the Company, or to provide them in a timely manner and at a
reasonable cost, the Company’s business and results of operations might be adversely affected.

(vi) Administration of capital

The Company manages its capital to ensure that its subsidiaries continue as going concerns while
maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of their balances and debt capital to maintain the
lowest cost of capital available. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments according to
economic conditions. To maintain its capital structure the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or buy back shares, for which the company holds a reserve. In addition, the Company creates a legal
reserve, as required by law. See Note 19.

x) Derivative financial instruments

The Company is exposed to interest rate and foreign currency risks, which it tries to mitigate through a
controlled risk management program that includes the use of derivative financial instruments. The Company
principally uses cross-currency swaps and, if necessary, foreign currency forwards to offset the short-term risk of
exchange rate fluctuations. For purposes of reducing the risks from changes in interest rates, the Company
utilizes interest rate swaps through which it pays or receives the net amount resulting from paying or receiving a
fixed rate, and from receiving or paying cash based on a variable rate, on notional amounts denominated mainly
in Mexican pesos, U.S. dollars, Japanese yen, Swiss francs, Euros and Sterling pounds. At December 31, 2011,
2012 and 2013, some of the Company’s derivative financial instruments have been designated, and have
qualified, as cash flow hedges.

The policy of the Company in this regard comprises: (i) the formal documentation of all transactions
between the hedging instruments and hedged positions, (ii) risk management objectives, and (iii) the strategy for
executing hedging transactions. This documentation also includes the relationship between the cash flows of the
derivatives with those of the Company’s assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The effectiveness of the Company’s derivatives is evaluated prior to their designation as hedges, as well as
during the hedging period, which is performed at least quarterly based on recognized statistical techniques.
Whenever it is determined that a derivative is not highly effective as a hedge or that the derivative ceases to be a
highly effective hedge, the Company ceases to apply hedge accounting for the derivative on a prospective basis.

Derivative financial instruments are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value, which is obtained from the financial institutions with which the agreements are entered into, and it is the
Company’s policy to compare such fair value to the valuation provided by an independent pricing provider
retained by the Company. The effective portion of gains or losses on the cash flow derivatives is recognized in
equity under the heading “Effect for fair value of derivatives”, and the ineffective portion is charged to results of
operations for the period. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify as hedging instruments are
recognized immediately in results.

The change in fair value recognized in results of operations corresponding to derivatives that qualify as
hedges is presented in the same caption of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as the gain or
loss of the hedged item (interests and foreign exchange rate).
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y) Presentation of consolidated statement of comprehensive income

The costs and expenses shown in América Moévil’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income are
presented in combined manner (based on both their function and nature), which allows for a better understanding
of the components of the Company’s operating income. This classification allows for a comparison to the
telecommunications industry.

The Company’s presents operating income in its consolidated statements of comprehensive income, since it
is a key indicator of the Company’s performance. Operating income includes operating revenues, operating costs
and expenses.

z) Operating segments

Segment information is presented based on information used by management in its decision-making
processes. Segment information is presented based on the geographic areas in which the Company operates.

The management of América Mavil is responsible for making decisions regarding the resources to be
allocated to the Company’s different segments, as well as evaluating the performance of each segment.

Inter-segment revenues are eliminated upon consolidation and reflected in the “eliminations’ column.

None of the segments records revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounting to at
least 10% or more of the Company’s revenues.

z.1) Convenience translation

At December 31, 2013, amounts in U.S. dollars have been included in the financial statements solely for the
convenience of the reader and have been translated to Mexican pesos at December 31, 2013 at an exchange rate
of Ps.13.0765 pesos per U.S. dollar, which was the exchange rate at that date. Such translation should not be
construed as a representation that the Mexican peso can be converted to U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect
on December 31, 2013 or any other exchange rate.

z.2) Judgments, estimates and significant accounting assumptions

In preparing its consolidated financial statements, América Mdvil makes estimates concerning a variety of
matters. Some of these matters are highly uncertain, and its estimates involve judgments it makes based on the
information available to it. In the discussion below, América Mdvil has identified several of these matters for
which its financial statements would be materially affected if either (1) América Mavil used different estimates
that it could reasonably have used or (2) in the future América Maévil changes its estimates in response to
changes that are reasonably likely to occur.

The following discussion addresses only those estimates that América Mavil considers most important
based on the degree of uncertainty and the likelihood of a material impact if it used a different estimate. There
are many other areas in which América Mavil uses estimates about uncertain matters, but the reasonably likely
effect of changed or different estimates is not material to the financial presentation.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

América Movil has substantial financial assets and liabilities that it recognizes at their fair value, which is an
estimate of the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties. The methodologies and assumptions América Mavil uses to estimate an instrument’s fair value depend
on the type of instrument and include (i) recognizing cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables and trade
payables and other current liabilities at close to their carrying amount, (ii) recognizing quoted instruments at their
price quotations on the reporting date, (iii) recognizing unquoted instruments, such as loans from banks and
obligations under financial leases, by discounting future cash flows using rates for similar instruments and
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(iv) applying various valuation techniques, such as present value calculations, to derivative instruments. Using
different methodologies or assumptions to estimate the fair value of AMX’s financial assets and liabilities could
materially impact the reported financial results. See Note 14.

Estimated Useful Lives of Plant, Property and Equipment

América Mavil estimates the useful lives of particular classes of plant, property and equipment in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded in each period. América Mévil currently
depreciates most of its telephone plant and equipment based on an estimated useful life determined upon the
expected particular conditions of operations and maintenance in each of the countries in which it operates. The
estimates are based on AMX’s historical experience with similar assets, anticipated technological changes and
other factors, taking into account the practices of other telecommunications companies. América Movil reviews
estimated useful lives each year to determine whether they should be changed, and at times, it changes them for
particular classes of assets. América Movil may shorten the estimated useful life of an asset class in response to
technological changes, changes in the market or other developments. This results in increased depreciation
expense. See Notes 2j and Note 8.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

América Movil has large amounts of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, investments in affiliates and goodwill, on its balance sheet. América Mavil is required to test long-lived
assets for impairment when circumstances indicate a potential impairment or, in some cases, at least on an annual
basis. The impairment analysis for long-lived assets requires the Company to estimate the recovery value of the
asset, which is the higher of its fair value (minus any disposal costs) and its value in use. To estimate the fair
value of a long-lived asset, América Movil typically takes into account recent market transactions or, if no such
transactions can be identified, América Movil uses a valuation model that requires the making of certain
assumptions and estimates. Similarly, to estimate the value in use of long-lived assets, América Movil typically
makes various assumptions about the future prospects for the business to which the asset relates, consider market
factors specific to that business and estimate future cash flows to be generated by that business. Based on this
impairment analysis, including all assumptions and estimates related thereto, as well as guidance provided by
IFRS relating to the impairment of long-lived assets, América Movil determines whether it needs to take an
impairment charge to reduce the net carrying value of the asset as stated on its balance sheet. Assumptions and
estimates about future values and remaining useful lives are complex and often subjective. They can be affected
by a variety of factors, including external factors, such as industry and economic trends, and internal factors,
such as changes in the Company’s business strategy and its internal forecasts. Different assumptions and
estimates could materially impact the Company’s reported financial results. More conservative assumptions of
the anticipated future benefits from these businesses could result in impairment charges, which would decrease
net income and result in lower asset values on the balance sheet. Conversely, less conservative assumptions could
result in smaller or no impairment charges, higher net income and higher asset values. The key assumptions used
to determine the recoverable amount for the Company’s CGUSs, are further explained in Notes 2 | and Note 9 and
Note 10.

Deferred Taxes

América Movil is required to estimate its income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which it operates. This
process involves the jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction estimation of actual current tax exposure and the assessment of
temporary differences resulting from the differing treatment of certain items, such as accruals and amortization,
for tax and financial reporting purposes, as well as net operating loss carry-forwards and other tax credits. These
items result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in the América Movil’s consolidated
statement of financial position. América Movil assess in the course of its tax planning procedures the fiscal year
of the reversal of its deferred tax assets and liabilities, and if there will be future taxable profits in those periods
to support the recognition of the deferred tax assets. Significant management judgment is required in determining
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the Company’s provisions for income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities. The analysis is based on estimates
of taxable income in the jurisdictions in which América Mdvil operates and the period over which the deferred
tax assets and liabilities will be recoverable or settled. If actual results differ from these estimates, or América
Mavil adjusts these estimates in future periods, its financial position and results of operations may be materially
affected.

América Movil records deferred tax assets based on the amount that it believes is probable to be realized. In
assessing the future realization of deferred tax assets, the Company considers future taxable income and ongoing
tax planning strategies. In the event that the estimates of projected future taxable income and benefits from tax
planning strategies are lowered, or changes in current tax regulations are enacted that would impose restrictions
on the timing or extent of the ability to utilize the tax benefits of net operating loss carry-forwards in the future,
an adjustment to the recorded amount of deferred tax assets would be made, with a related charge to income. See
Note 20.

Accruals

Accruals are recorded when, at the end of the period, the Company has a present obligation as a result of
past events, whose settlement requires an outflow of resources that is considered probable and can be measured
reliably. This obligation may be legal or constructive, arising from, but not limited to, regulation, contracts,
common practice or public commitments, which have created a valid expectation for third parties that the
Company will assume certain responsibilities. The amount recorded is the best estimation performed by the
Company’s management in respect of the expenditure that will be required to settle the obligations, considering
all the information available at the date of the financial statements, including the opinion of external experts,
such as legal advisors or consultants. Accruals are adjusted to account for changes in circumstances for ongoing
matters and the establishment of additional accruals for new matters.

If América Movil is unable to reliably measure the obligation, no accrual is recorded and information is then
presented in the notes to its consolidated financial statements. Because of the inherent uncertainties in this
estimation, actual expenditures may be different from the originally estimated amount recognized. See Note 13.

América Mavil is subject to various claims and contingencies related to tax, labor and legal proceedings as
described in Note 17.

Labor Obligations

América Mavil recognizes liabilities on its balance sheet and expenses in its comprehensive income
statement to reflect its obligations related to its post-retirement seniority premiums, pension and retirement plans
in the countries in which it operates and offer defined contribution and benefit pension plans. The amounts the
Company recognizes are determined on an actuarial basis that involves many estimates and accounts for post-
retirement and termination benefits in accordance with IFRS.

América Mavil uses estimates in four specific areas that have a significant effect on these amounts: (a) the
rate of return América Mavil assumes its pension plan will achieve on its investments, (b) the rate of increase in
salaries that the Company assumes it will observe in future years, (c) the discount rates that the Company uses to
calculate the present value of its future obligations and (d) the expected rate of inflation. The assumptions
América Movil has applied are further disclosed in Note 12. These estimates are determined based on actuarial
studies performed by independent experts using the projected unit-credit method.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

América Mévil maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the failure
of its customers, distributors and cellular operators to make required payments. The Company bases these
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estimates on the individual conditions of each of the markets in which it operates that may impact the
collectability of accounts. In particular, in making these estimates the Company takes into account (i) with
respect to accounts with customers, the number of days since the calls were made, (ii) with respect to accounts
with distributors, the number of days invoices are overdue and (iii) with respect to accounts with cellular
operators, both the number of days since the calls were made and any disputes with respect to such calls. The
amount of loss, if any, that América Movil actually experiences with respect to these accounts may differ from
the amount of the allowance maintained in connection with them. See Note 5.

z.3) Reclassifications and other adjustments

The following balances in the consolidated statement of financial position at December 31, 2012, have been
adjusted to conform to the presentation as of December 31, 2013:

2012, 2012,
as previously reported IAS 19R Reclassifications as Reclassified
Deferred tax liabilities ....... Ps. 33,996,070 Ps. 7,295,412 Ps. 3,080,647 Ps. 44,372,129
Accounts payable ........... 184,056,080 (42,451,123) 141,604,957
Accrued liabilities .......... — 34,005,553 34,005,553
Related parties ............. 1,254,672 1,268,355 2,523,027
Asset retirement obligation . .. — 7,177,215 7,177,215
Deferred tax liabilities ....... 21,231,775 (15,922,478) 3,080,647 8,389,944

The following amounts in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2012 have been adjusted to conform to the presentation for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Operating activities
Interest expense
Employee profit sharing

other
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest received

Total operating activities

Investing activities
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired

Total investing activities
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Valuation of derivative financial instruments, net
Accounts receivable from subscribers, distributors and

Acquisition of investments in associate companies

2011,
As previously
reported

2011, as

Reclassifications Reclassified

Ps. Ps.(6,853,900) Ps. (6,853,900)
4,043,350 4,043,350

(10,692,199)  (4,053,350)  (14,745,549)
(11,287,204) 4,581,630 (6,705,574)
20,966,860 10,000 20,976,860
2,272,270 2,272,270

Ps. (1,012,543) Ps. — Ps. (1,012,543)
Ps. — Ps. (995621) Ps. (995,621)
(2,271,059) 995,621 (1,275,438)

Ps. (2,271,059)

Ps.

Ps. (2,271,059)




2012,

As previously 2012, as
reported Reclassifications Reclassified

Operating activities

INterest eXPENSE . ... Ps. Ps.(5,776,600) Ps. (5,776,600)

Employee profitsharing ........... ... ... ... ...... 4,377,755 4,377,755

Valuation of derivative financial instruments, net ... ... 5,885,869 (2,897,473) 2,988,396

Accounts receivable from subscribers, distributors and

Other . 5,077,352 3,547,430 8,624,782

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............. (1,283,784) (1,480,282) (2,764,066)

Interestreceived . ......... ... . . — 2,229,170 2,229,170
Total operating activities ................ ... ... ... .... Ps. 9,679,437 Ps. — Ps. 9,679,437
Investing activities

Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired ......... Ps.— Ps.(2,289,018) Ps. (2,289,018)

Acquisition of investments in associate companies . . ... (73,849,936) 2,289,018 (71,560,918)
Total investing activities ............................. Ps.(73,849,936) Ps. —  Ps.(73,849,936)

3. New standards, interpretations and amendments thereof

During 2013, the Company applied, for the first time, certain new IFRS amendments that required
retrospective application (restatement) of the previously reported financial statements. Most specifically, the
Company adopted IAS 1 and IAS 19 (Revised 2011), both as quantified below. Several other new standards and
amendments were also applied for the first time in 2013. However, the adoption of those IFRS standards and
amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial statements of América Mévil.

The nature and the impact of each new standard/amendment are described below.

IAS 1 Presentation of Items of other comprehensive Income Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments to IAS 1 introduce a grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”).
Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (e.g., net gain on hedge of
net investment, effect of translation, net movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-sale
financial assets) now have to be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified (e.g.,
remeasurement of actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans). The amendment affected presentation only
and had no impact on América Movil’s financial position or results of operations. Refer to the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income for a quantification of this new segregation for the periods presented
herein.

IAS 1 Clarification of the requirement for comparative information (Amendment)

The amendment to 1AS 1 clarifies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and
the minimum required comparative information. An entity must include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the minimum
required comparative period. The additional voluntarily comparative information does not need to be presented
in a complete set of financial statements.

An opening statement of financial position (known as the “third balance sheet”) must be presented when an
entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes retrospective restatements, or reclassifies items in its
financial statements, provided any of those changes has a material effect on the statement of financial position at
the beginning of the preceding period. The opening consolidated statement of financial position of the earliest
comparative period presented (January 1, 2012) and the comparative figures have been accordingly restated. The
amendment clarifies that a third balance sheet does not have to be accompanied by comparative information in
the related notes.
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IAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised)

IAS 19R includes a number of amendments to the accounting for defined benefit plans, including actuarial
gains and losses that are now recognized in OCI and permanently excluded from profit and loss. Expected returns
on plan assets are no longer recognized in profit or loss; instead, there is a requirement to recognize interest on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) in profit or loss, calculated using the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation and; Unvested past service costs are now recognized in profit or loss at the earlier of
when the amendment occurs or when the related restructuring or termination costs are recognized. Other
amendments include new disclosures, such as, quantitative sensitivity disclosures.

These modifications were effective beginning January 1, 2013, with retrospective application to January 1,
2011 resulting in the restatement of both the December 31, 2012 consolidated statement of financial position, and

the previously reported consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the years 2012 and 2011.

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and plan assets are divided in three components:

(i) Current service cost,

(i) Net interest of net (assets) liabilities of defined benefits, (finance cost over the net obligation for
defined benefits and expected return on the plan assets), and

(iii) Actuarial gains and losses (remeasurements) of the net (assets) liabilities for defined benefits.

The net interest of net (assets) liabilities is calculated using a rate of return for high quality corporate bonds for

the Company’s Puerto Rico operations, using a rate of return for Mexican Government bonds for the Company’s
Mexican operations, and using a rate of return for Brazilian Government bonds for the Company’s Brazilian

operations. The modifications require that interest on plan assets is calculated with the discount rate used to measure

the obligation, which may be less than the rate previously used to calculate the expected return on plan assets.

In the case of AMX, the transition to IAS 19R had an impact on the pension asset and employee benefits as

is explained in the table below:

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position:

At January 1,
2011 2012 2013
Decrease in net projected pension plan asset ..  Ps.(16,222,999) Ps.(22,327,733) Ps.(26,589,389)
Increase in deferred tax asset .............. 2,611,121 8,123,333 7,295,413
Net decrease inassets . ................... Ps.(13,611,878) Ps.(14,204,400) Ps.(19,293,976)

Increase in labor obligations .. .............
Decrease in deferred tax liability

Net increase in liabilities

Retained earnings:
Prioryears ........... . i

Ps. 43,636,427
(14,622,296)

Ps. 60,590,261
(15,615,665)

Ps. 54,103,632
(15,922,478)

Ps. 29,014,131

$ 44,974,596

Ps. 38,181,154

Ps. (1,828,066)

Ps. (1,828,066)

Ps. (1,710,885)

Currentperiod ...................... — 191,669 (452,311)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . .. (38,353,805) (54,034,877) (54,057,147)
Non-controlling interests ................. (2,444,138) (3,507,722) (1,254,787)
Net decrease inequity ... ................. Ps.(42,626,009) Ps.(59,178,996) Ps.(57,475,130)
Net effect attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent ........... Ps.(40,181,871) Ps.(55,671,274) Ps.(56,220,343)

Non-controlling interests ............. (2,444,138) (3,507,722) (1,254,787)

Ps.(42,626,009) Ps.(59,178,996) Ps.(57,475,130)
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended
December 31,

2011 2012
Decrease in coSts and eXPenSesS . . . ..o v it Ps.(2,830,635) Ps.(3,839,793)
Increase in finanCing COSt . ... ..o it 3,430,519 4,725,370
Deferred iNCOMe taXeS ... ...ttt (674,795) (395,239)
(Decrease) increase in net profit for the period from amounts previously
FEPOME . .ot Ps. (74,911) Ps. 490,338
(Decrease) increase in net profit for the period attributable to:
Equity holdersof theparent .......... ... ... ... . i Ps. (191,669) Ps. 452,311
Non-controlling interests . ..........o i 116,758 38,027
(Decrease) increase in net profit for the period from amounts previously
FEPOIE . .o Ps. (74,911) Ps. 490,338
Earnings per share attributable to equity holders .......................... (1.06) (1.19)

The adoption of IAS 19R had no impact on previously reported amounts of cash flows from operating, financing
or investing activities

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities.
IFRS 10 replaces the parts of previously existing IAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” that
dealt with consolidated financial statements and SIC-12, “Consolidation—Special Purpose Entities . IFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. To meet the definition of control in IFRS 10, all three criteria must be met, including: (a)
an investor has power over an investee; (b) the investor has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (c) the investor has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. IFRS 10 was adopted on January 1, 2013 and in accordance with the transitional
provisions the Company reassessed the control conclusion for its investees as at January 1, 2013 and it had no
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-73 “Jointly-controlled Entities—Non-
monetary Contributions by Ventures”. IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities
(“JCEs”) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint venture under IFRS
11 must be accounted for using the equity method.

IFRS 11 was effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company reassessed its
involvement in its joint arrangements and concluded that the adoption of this standard had no impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 sets out the requirements for disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities. The requirements in IFRS 12 are more comprehensive than the
previously existing disclosure requirements for subsidiaries. For example, additional disclosures are required
when a subsidiary is controlled with less than a majority of voting rights. While the Company has subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests, there are no unconsolidated structured entities. The Company has
provided the applicable disclosures in Note 10.
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IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does
not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value
under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted. The application of IFRS 13 has not materially impacted the
fair value measurements carried out by the Company.

IFRS 13 also requires specific disclosures on fair values, some of which replace existing disclosure
requirements in other standards, including IFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. Some of these
disclosures are specifically required for financial instruments by 1AS 34.16A(j), thereby affecting the financial
statements. The Company has provided the applicable disclosures in Note 14.

Standards issued but not yet effective and annual improvements

The Company has not early adopted any other IFRS interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is
not yet effective.

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of the IASB’s work on the replacement of 1AS 39 and applies to
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in IAS 39. The standard was
initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, but amendments to IFRS 9 Mandatory
Effective Date and Transition Disclosures, issued in December 2011, moved the mandatory effective date to
January 1, 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB will address hedge accounting and impairment of financial
assets. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Company’s financial assets, but will not have an impact on the classification and measurements of the
Company’s financial liabilities. The Company will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when
the final standard including all phases is issued.

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—Amendments to 1AS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and the
criteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting. These are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The Company has yet to quantify the impact
of these amendments.

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IFRIC 21)

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as
identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the
interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached.
IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The Company has yet to quantify
the impact of this standard on its financial statements.

IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting—Amendments to IAS 39

These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative
designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. These amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The Company has not novated its derivatives during 2013. However, these
amendments would be considered for future novations.

F-38



IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets—Amendments to 1AS 36

These amendments require disclosure of the recoverable amounts of the assets or CGUs for which an
impairment loss has been recognized or reversed during the period. The amendments are effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The Company has not recognized or reversed any
impairment loss on non-financial assets during the periods presented in these financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs—2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

On December 12, 2013, the IASB issued two cycles of Annual Improvements to IFRSs—Cycles 2010-2012
and 2011-2013—that contain 11 changes to nine standards: IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards; IFRS 2 Share-based Payment; IFRS 3 Business Combinations; IFRS 8 Operating
Segments; IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement; IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures; IAS 38 Intangible Assets; and 1AS 40 Investment Property. One of the amendments to IFRS 13 and
the amendment to IFRS 1 only affect the Basis for Conclusions for the respective standards and, therefore, are
effective immediately. The other amendments are effective from July 1, 2014 either prospectively or
retrospectively. The Company has yet to quantify the impact these annual improvements will have on its
financial statements.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At December 31,
2012 2013
Cashinbanks........................... Ps.17,225,343  Ps.22,617,446
Short-term deposits . ............ ... ..... 28,261,857 25,546,104

Ps.45,487,200  Ps.48,163,550

5. Accounts Receivable from subscribers, distributors, recoverable taxes and other, net
a) An analysis of accounts receivable at December 31, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

At December 31,
2012 2013
Subscribers and distributors . ... ... Ps. 96,136,373 Ps. 96,007,977
Mobile phone carriers for network interconnection and other services
including calling party pays ..........c.oouiiiiii i 6,780,334 6,305,459
Recoverable taxes .. ...t e 26,102,082 31,116,185
SUNAry debtors . ... 13,625,309 14,735,135

142,644,098 148,164,756
Less: Allowance for bad debts due from subscribers, distributors and mobile
PRONE CAMTIEIS . o\ ottt e e e (22,438,144) (20,292,099)

Net . Ps.120,205,954 Ps.127,872,657

b) Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and
2013 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Balance at beginning of year ...... Ps.(19,002,607) Ps.(23,358,822) Ps.(22,438,144)
Increases recorded in expenses . . . .. (12,111,915) (12,009,580) (10,417,235)
Charges against the allowance . .. .. 8,252,701 10,534,631 14,405,151
Translation effect ............... (497,001) 2,395,627 (1,841,871)
Balance atend ofyear............ Ps.(23,358,822) Ps.(22,438,144) Ps.(20,292,099)
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¢) The following table shows the aging of accounts receivable at December 31, 2012 and 2013, for
subscribers and distributors:

Unbilled services 1-30 30-60 61-90 Greater than
Total provided days days days 90 days
December 31, 2012 . . .. Ps.96,136,373 Ps.50,031,727 Ps.18,419,119 Ps.3,473,650 Ps.2,223,077 Ps.21,988,800
December 31,2013 .... 96,007,977 48,223,217 21,308,236 3,561,179 2,439,653 20,475,692

In accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for the allowance for bad debts, as of December 31,
2012 and 2013, there are accounts receivable greater than 90 days that are not impaired. To estimate the
recoverability of accounts receivable, the Company considers any change in the credit quality of the subscribers
and distributors from the date the credit was granted until the end of period.

d) The following table shows the deteriorated accounts receivable from subscribers and distributors as of
December 31, 2012 and 2013:

Greater than

Total 61-90 days 90 days
December 31,2012 .................. Ps.22,438,144  Ps.449,344  Ps.21,988,800
December 31,2013 .................. 20,292,099 814,500 19,477,599

6. Inventories, net
An analysis of inventories at December 31, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

2012 2013
Mobile phones, accessories, cards and other materials . . . . .. Ps.30,976,789 Ps.39,238,656
Less: Reserve for obsolete and slow-moving inventories . . . . (2,278,969) (2,519,703)
Total .. Ps.28,697,820 Ps.36,718,953

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the cost of inventories recognized in cost of sales
and services was Ps.95,062,633, Ps.110,465,701 and Ps.121,994,900, respectively.

7. Other assets, net
a) An analysis of other assets at December 31, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

2012 2013
Current portion:
Advances tosuppliers ............ ... .. .. ... Ps. 7,578,127 Ps. 7,999,148
Costs associated with deferred revenues . ......... 2,827,178 3,041,371
Prepaid insurance . .............. oo, 450,283 605,318
Other ... .. 415,875 481,363

Ps.11,271,463  Ps.12,127,200

Non-current portion:

Recoverabletaxes ........... ... ... .. ... ... Ps. 3,305,273  Ps. 3,269,699
Advance payments for the use of fiber optics ... ... 1,307,791 2,765,495
Prepaid expenses and judicial deposits ........... 11,116,090 11,305,088
Total ..o Ps.15,729,154  Ps.17,340,282

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the amortization expense for other assets was
Ps.398,383, Ps.244,538 and Ps.127,058, respectively.

Judicial deposits represent cash pledged in order to fulfill the collateral requirements for tax contingencies
in Brazil.
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8. Property, Plant and Equipment, net

a) An analysis of property, plant and equipment, net at December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

Cost

AtJanuary 1, 2011
Additions .. ..................
Retirements
Effect of translation

At December 31, 2011

Additions. . ..................
Retirements
Business combinations
Business acquisition of NET

(Note 10)
Effect of translation

At December 31, 2012

Additions .. ..................
Retirements
Business combinations
Effect of translation

At December 31, 2013

Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2011
Depreciation of the year
Retirements
Effect of translation

At December 31, 2011

Depreciation of the year
Retirements
Effect of translation

At December 31, 2012

Depreciation of the year
Retirements
Effect of translation

At December 31, 2013

Net book value
At January 1, 2011

At December 31, 2012
At December 31, 2013

Telephonic plant in

operation and

Construction
in process
and advances

Inventories for
operation of the
plant
(Impairment)

equipment Land and buildings Other assets to plant suppliers® Total
Ps. 336,923,824 Ps. 44,187,818  Ps. 51,312,793  Ps. 41,082,331 Ps. 12,026,165 Ps. 485,532,931
72,736,548 9,680,678 13,492,397 38,419,430 18,904,313 153,233,366
(16,186,099) (350,418) (2,262,172) (30,439,838) (13,311,357) (62,549,884)
18,527,029 1,732,445 2,912,022 1,786,354 375,886 25,333,736
412,001,302 55,250,523 65,455,040 50,848,277 17,995,007 601,550,149
104,467,913 2,434,107 9,883,676 19,730,746 11,603,283 148,119,725
(25,693,072) (1,219,353) (5,413,649) (21,177,560) (12,647,522) (66,151,156)
15,107 40,160 4,259 59,526
33,098,556 255,018 — 128,643 — 33,482,217
(56,393,038) (4,181,864) (1,977,322) (3,588,130) (925,663) (67,066,017)
467,496,768 52,538,431 67,987,905 45,946,235 16,025,105 649,994,444
116,170,134 2,567,068 22,957,505 13,085,094 12,458,316 167,238,117
(17,995,021) (3,298,197) (8,367,342) (15,326,412) (10,142,059) (55,129,031)
310 87,122 1,268 88,700
(55,763,545) (3,579,859) (4,654,256) (3,874,210) (975,281) (68,847,151)
Ps. 509,908,646 Ps. 48,227,443  Ps.78,010,934  Ps. 39,831,975 Ps. 17,366,081 Ps. 693,345,079
Ps. 58,825,288 Ps. 177,289  Ps. 14,727,856 Ps. (17,889) Ps. 73,712,544
68,660,250 1,396,102 12,581,222 4,626 82,642,200
(30,664,840) (53,910) (3,211,913) (7,988) (33,938,651)
11,130,430 318,881 1,590,024 7,948 13,047,283
107,951,128 1,838,362 25,687,189 (13,303) 135,463,376
83,905,974 1,097,460 7,282,983 (18,142) 92,268,275
(22,753,727) (306,881) (6,297,626) (24,451) (29,382,685)
(43,392,735) (1,641,993) (3,740,236) (13,830) (48,788,794)
125,710,640 986,948 22,932,310 (69,726) 149,560,172
80,867,568 1,973,707 11,994,657 57,869 94,893,801
(11,006,444) (31,133) (3,380,289) (11,121) (14,428,987)
(33,975,506) (1,322,209) (2,485,845) (3,298) (37,786,858)
Ps. 161,596,258 Ps. 1,607,313  Ps. 29,060,833 Ps.  (26,276) Ps. 192,238,128
Ps. 304,050,174 Ps. 53,412,161  Ps. 39,767,851  Ps. 50,848,277 Ps. 18,008,310 Ps. 466,086,773
Ps. 341,786,128 Ps. 51,551,483  Ps. 45,055,595  Ps. 45,946,235 Ps. 16,094,831 Ps. 500,434,272
Ps. 348,312,388 Ps. 46,620,130  Ps. 48,950,101  Ps. 39,831,975 Ps. 17,392,357 Ps. 501,106,951

(1) Construction in progress includes fixed and mobile telephone facilities as well as satellite developments and fiber optic which is being laid.

The completion period is variable and depends upon the type of fixed assets in construction. In the case of telephone
plant (switching and transmission), it takes 6 months on average; for others may take more than 2 years.

The Company is building a submarine cable system designed with 17,500 kilometers of length that will have a 100
Gigabit per second (100G) transmission. The cable extends from the U.S. to Central America and Brazil, which provides
international connectivity to all the Company subsidiaries in these geographic areas. The investment at December 31, 2013 is

Ps.4,691,102 (US$358,743).
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b) At December 31, 2012 and 2013, property, plant and equipment include the following assets under capital
leases:

2012 2013
Assets under capital leases .................... Ps. 848,622  Ps. 972,601
Accumulated depreciation .................... (409,105) (367,698)

Ps. 439,517  Ps. 604,903

c) At December 31, 2013, Embratel and Net have land and buildings and other equipment that are pledged
in guarantee of legal proceedings in the amount of Ps.1,619,109 (Ps.3,518,426 in 2012).

d) Relevant information related to the computation of the capitalized borrowing costs is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Amount invested in the acquisition of qualifying assets .. .... Ps.51,240,658 Ps.52,849,800 Ps.46,686,790
Capitalized interest .......... .. ... i, 3,845,609 3,152,811 3,002,756
Capitalizationrate . ........... . i 7.5% 6.0% 6.4%

Capitalized interest is being amortized over a period of 7 years, which is the estimated useful life of the
plant.

e) In January 2012, Star One entered into an agreement denominated in U.S. dollars with a manufacturer for
the construction and launching of the Star One C-4 satellite. The cost of the project is estimated to be
approximately Ps.3,772,929 (US$290,000). At December 31, 2012 and 2013, the amount of construction in
progress associated with this project amounts to Ps.1,386,755 and Ps.2,567,775, respectively.

9. Intangible assets
a) An analysis of intangible assets at December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

At December 31, 2011

Effect of
Balance at Acquisitions in translation of
beginning of business Disposals Amortization foreign Balance at end
year Acquisitions combinations and other  of the year subsidiaries, net of year
Licenses and rights of use . .. Ps.124,992,523 Ps.1,479,130 Ps.1,149,119 Ps.(281,397)Ps. —  Ps. 2,721,997 Ps.130,061,372
Accumulated amortization ..  (80,471,665) — — 163,060  (9,731,392) (1,490,476) (91,530,473)
Net. ..., 44,520,858 1,479,130 1,149,119 (118,337)  (9,731,392) 1,231,521 38,530,899
Trademarks .............. Ps. 12,654,899 Ps. —  Ps. —  Ps. — Ps. —  Ps. (343,019) Ps. 12,311,880
Accumulated amortization .. (8,123,022) — — — (1,225,060) 43,056 (9,305,026)
Net ...t Ps. 4,531,877 Ps. Ps. Ps. Ps.(1,225,060) Ps. (299,963) Ps. 3,006,854
Goodwill ................ Ps. 70,918,967 Ps. — Ps. 159,797 Ps.(152,285)Ps. —  Ps. 2,111,954 Ps. 73,038,433
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At December 31, 2012

Effect of
translation
Balance at Acquisitions in of foreign Balance at
beginning business Disposals  Amortization  subsidiaries, end of
of year Acquisitions combinations  and other  of the year net year
Licenses and rights_of use ......... Ps.130,061,372 Ps.7,830,248 Ps.12,414,914 Ps. —  Ps. —  Ps.(16,545,574) Ps.133,760,960
Accumulated amortization . ..... ... (91,530,473) — — —  (9,482,044) 11,303,987  (89,708,530)
Net........ooooiiiiin 38,530,899 7,830,248 12,414,914 — (9,482,044) (5,241,587) 44,052,430
Trademarks .. ... EETEERTERRRE Ps. 12,311,880 Ps. —  Ps. — Ps. — Ps. — Ps. (713,321) Ps. 11,598,559
Accumulated amortization ......... (9,305,026) — — — (1,589,880) 439,662 (10,455,244)
Net........ooovin Ps. 3,006,854 Ps. — Ps. — Ps. — Ps. Ps.  (273,659) Ps. 1,143,315
Goodwill ... Ps. 73,038,433 Ps. — Ps.31,347,978 Ps.(278,756) Ps.(1,589,880) Ps. (4,401,796) Ps. 99,705,859
At December 31, 2013

Effect of

translation

Balance at Acquisitions in of foreign
beginning business Disposals  Amortization subsidiaries, Balance at end

of year Acquisitions combinations  and other of the year net of year
Licenses and rights of use ... .. Ps.133,760,960 Ps.3,334,464 Ps. —  Ps.(2,158,796) Ps. —  Ps.(11,853,114) Ps.123,083,514
Accumulated amortization ... (89,708,530) — — — (6,271,998) 9,950,846  (86,029,682)
Net...........oevvinn, Ps. 44,052,430 Ps.3,334,464 Ps. —  Ps.(2,158,796) Ps.(6,271,998) Ps. (1,902,268) Ps. 37,053,832
Trademarks ... .. EERERRRRRES Ps. 11,598559 Ps. ~ — Ps.  — Ps. 387,926 Ps. — Ps. (285,879) Ps. 11,700,606
Accumulated amortization . . ... (10,455,244) — — — (241,976) 162,920  (10,534,300)
Net...........ooovvin, Ps. 1,143,315 Ps. — Ps. — Ps. 387,926 Ps. Ps.  (122,959) Ps. 1,166,306
Goodwill .......... ... Ps. 99,705,859 Ps. — Ps.1,200,061 Ps.(3,655,164) Ps. (241,976) Ps. (4,764,472) Ps. 92,486,284
b) The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each country are as follows:
2012 2013

Mexico (Telmex) ......... ... Ps. 9,572,007 Ps.10,729,462

USA 1,469,388 1,472,896

Brazil (Fixed, mobileand T.V.) ................. 29,435,809 22,483,917

Argentina . . ... 294,480 272,191

Colombia .......... ... . 15,642,979 14,402,035

Ecuador ...... ..o 2,155,385 2,155,385

Peru ... 2,245,717 2,209,484

ElSalvador .......... ... .. ... .. i 2,510,596 2,510,596

Guatemala ......... ... 626,940 645,525

Honduras .......... ..o 58,135 56,630

Nicaragua . .........oouiii 1,544,583 1,544,582

PuertoRiCO .......... .. 17,463,394 17,463,394

Dominican Republic .......................... 14,186,724 14,186,724

Chile ... .. 2,499,722 2,353,463

Ps.99,705,859  Ps.92,486,284

c) The following is a description of the major changes in the “Licenses and rights of use” caption for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013:
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2011 Acquisitions

i) During the first quarter of 2011, the Company won a public bid to provide mobile telecommunications
services on a nationwide level in Costa Rica. The concession obtained by its subsidiary grants the Company the
right to use and exploit the 70Mhz frequency range for a term of 15 years. The upfront amount paid was
Ps.926,000 and no further payments need to be made.

ii) As part of the business combination of Digicel Group Limited described in Note 10, América Mavil
recognized a license for an amount of Ps.1,149,119 (US$82,100).

2012 Acquisitions

i) In January 2012, Telmex Colombia acquired a new TV license for a period of 8 years, expiring in 2020.
The amount paid was Ps.253,927.

ii) As part of the business combination of Net Servicos de Comunicacéo, S.A, the Company recognized a
license for an amount of Ps.12,414,914. Given recent changes in the telecommunications law, licenses in Brazil
can be renewed indefinitely at nominal cost. Thus, these licenses are considered as indefinite life intangible and
are not amortized.

iii) In September 2012, Claro Brazil renewed certain contracts related to its licenses for the 450 MHz
frequency band, and such licenses cover the following states of Brazil: Acre, Rondonia, Tacantins, Bahia, Paran4,
Santa Catarina, Rio de Janeiro, Espiritu Santo, Sao Paulo, Amazonas, Maranha, Roraima, Amapa and Para. Such
licenses expire in October 2027.

Also Claro Brazil acquired licenses related to 4G (fourth generation) services, or broadband of 2,500 MHz
to provide 4G services in Brazilian territory, except for the Brazilian state of Amazonas. Such licenses expire
between June 2014 and October 2027.

Additionally, the licenses for the 850 MHz frequency band which expired during 2012 and 2013 were
renewed. These renewals expire in October 2027. The amount paid for these renewals was Ps.5,710,116.

2013 Acquisitions
i) In October 2013, Claro Colombia acquired a radio spectrum band of 2500 Mhz to 2690 Mhz for a period
of 10 years. The amount paid was Ps.815,488.

ii) Embratel and its subsidiaries acquired various radio frequencies and TV licenses, for a period that ranges
from 3 to 19 years. The amount paid was Ps.2,149,074.

¢) Amortization of licenses, rights of use and trademarks for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and
2013 amounted to Ps.10,956,452, Ps.11,071,924 and Ps.6,513,974, respectively.

10. Investments in Associated Companies and Consolidated Equity Investments

a) The following is a summary of changes in the investment in the Company’s associates during the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013:

Balance at Equity interest in Equity method in OCI Balance at
December 31, Disposals net income and effect of December 31,
2010 Acquisitions  / Other of associate translation 2011
NET .............. Ps.49,675,380 Ps.1,185,359 Ps.—  Ps.1,856,331 Ps.337,932 Ps.53,055,002
Others............. 864,075 155,490 — 67,666 75,790 1,163,021
Ps.50,539,455 Ps.1,340,849 Ps—  Ps.1,923,997 Ps.413,722 Ps.54,218,023
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Balance at Equity interest in Equity interestin OCI  Balance at

December 31, Disposals net income (loss) and effect of December 31,
2011 Acquisition /Other of associate translation 2012
NET ........... ... Ps.53,055,002 Ps. Ps.(53,055,002) Ps. Ps. Ps—KPN ...
............ 55,081,964 408,179 (482,669) 55,007,474
Telekom Austria .. ... 16,363,888 380,334 8,502 16,752,724
Other .............. 1,163,021 379,564 (27,152) (159,346) 1,356,087
Total .............. Ps.54,218,023 Ps.71,825,416 Ps.(53,055,002) Ps. 761,361 Ps. (633,513) Ps.73,116,285
Balance at Equity interest in Equity interestin OCI  Balance at
December 31, Disposals net income (loss) and effect of December 31,
2012 Acquisition / Other of associate translation 2013
KPN...........o.0 Ps.55,007,474 Ps.14,988,270 Ps. (6,040,933) Ps.(244,514) Ps.5,522,000 Ps.69,232,297
Telekom Austria .. ... 16,752,724 (88,461) 326,129 659,583 17,649,975
Other .............. 1,356,087 838,373 (45,333) (144,375) 2,004,752
Total .............. Ps.73,116,285 Ps.15,826,643 Ps. (6,129,394) Ps. 36,282 Ps.6,037,208 Ps.88,887,024

b) The following is a description of the major acquisitions of investments in associates and subsidiaries
during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013:

Acquisitions 2011
i) Net Servicos de Comunicagdo, S.A. (“NET”)

In 2011, the Company accounted for its holdings in NET using the equity method of accounting given that it
did not exercise voting control over NET. During 2012, given a change in the Brazilian telecommunications
laws, the Company was able to exercise an option whereby it obtained control and began consolidating NET
starting January 1, 2012.

In 2010, Embratel purchased 155,415,666 preferred shares, no par value, of NET through a public offer. A
sufficient number of preferred shares were tendered into the offer to give rise to a shareholder put right at the
offer price adjusted for inflation through settlement of the put. The period for exercising the shareholder put right
expired on January 13, 2011. A total of 49,847,863 preferred shares, equivalent to 21.81% of outstanding
preferred shares as of October 13, 2010, were tendered during the shareholder put right period, bringing the final
number of preferred shares tendered into the offer to 193,701,299. The total purchase price of all preferred shares
acquired pursuant to the tender offer was approximately R$4.3 billion (Ps.31,525,000 at the exchange rate as of
January 13, 2011) paid in cash.

At December 31, 2011, América Movil through Embrapar and Embratel had a shareholding (direct and
indirect) of 87.5% in NET.

The following tables show condensed consolidated financial information for NET for the year ended
December 31, 2011:

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year ended
December 31,
2011
ReVeNnUES . . ... Ps.45,631,540
Operating costs and expenses ... .................. 41,117,974
Operatingincome ............. ... 4,513,566
Netprofit ...... ... . i Ps. 2,005,330



ii) Star One S.A.

In July 2011, Embratel acquired a 20% interest in Star One S.A. (“Star One”) from GE Satellite Holdings
LLC and its affiliates for a total purchase price of Ps.2,716,164 (US$235,000). Star One is a Brazilian company
that provides satellite services in Brazil. Prior to that date, Embratel owned the remaining 80% interest in Star
One. Accordingly, since July 2011 Embratel owns 100% of the shares.

iii) Digicel Group Limited

In November 2011, América Mdvil acquired 100% of Digicel Group Limited and its affiliates’ (“Digicel”)
operations in Honduras and sold its operations in Jamaica to Digicel. The net amount paid was Ps.4,733,385. As
part of the acquisition, the identified licenses in the cellular industry were Ps.1,149,112.

Acquisitions 2012
i) Acquisition of Control over NET

On January 26, 2012, the National Telecommunications Agency of Brazil expressed its consent to the
transfer of control of NET. This authorization then allowed Embrapar to exercise a call option on the shares held
by GB Empreendimentos e Participacoes SA (“GB”), a company that previously controlled NET, which until that
time was controlled by Globo Cominicacédo e Particpacoes S.A. (“Globo”). Once this option was exercised,
Embrapar and its subsidiary Embratel would have voting control of NET. The ability to exercise the option
resulted in the Company effectively controlling NET.

On March 5, 2012 Embrapar exercised the option and purchased ordinary shares of GB. The acquired shares
represented 5.5% of the ordinary shares and Embrapar reached 54.54% in the voting capital of GB. As a result of
this transaction, América Movil held an equity interest (directly and indirectly) in NET of 88.0%.

América Movil obtained control of NET, in accordance with IFRS 3, Business combinations, and
recognized the fair value of NET’s assets acquired, liabilities assumed and its non-controlling interest. As part of
the business combination, América Mévil derecognized its equity method investment in NET. The difference
between the carrying value and the acquisition date fair value of the equity method investment in NET that was
derecognized was not material and accordingly, no gain or loss was recognized.

NET’s operating results were consolidated in the statement of comprehensive income beginning January 1, 2012.

The consideration transferred to acquire NET consists of the fair value of the equity method investment
previously held, plus the amount of cash required to exercise the option to control NET, as shown in the table below.

The fair value of the net assets acquired is as follows:

Other CUrTeNt @SSELS . . ..ot Ps.10,332,298
Plantand equipment .. ... . 33,482,219
Intangibles .. ... . . 19,287,138
Others NON CUMTENtS @SSELS . .. oot vttt e e e e e 2,821,826
Total of assets acquired . ..........o oo Ps.65,923,481
Liabilities and account payable short-term . ......................... Ps.16,062,621
Liabilities and account payable short-term . ......................... 6,998,214
Longtermdebt . ... ... .. .. 16,165,150
Total of liabilitiesassumed . .......... ... ... . . i 39,225,985
Fair value of net assets identified .............. ... ... .. ... ... ..... 26,697,496
Fair value of non-controlling interest . ............ ... ... ... ........ (3,798,181)
Goodwill recognized on acquisition . .......... ... .. ... i, 30,601,656
Purchase consideration transferred: . ........... . ... .. ... (47,951)
Fair value of investment in NET de-recognized at the acquisition date .... Ps.53,453,020
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The amounts of revenue and net profit of NET recorded in the Company’s 2012 and consolidated financial
statement since January 1, 2012 date of consolidation were Ps.52,722,225 and Ps.2,661,622, respectively.

ii) KoninKlijke KPN N.V. (“KPN”).

On May 29, 2012, AMOV Europa B.V. (“AMOV”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of América Movil,
commenced a partial tender offer in cash to all holders of ordinary shares of Koninklijke KPN N.V. (“KPN”).
KPN is the leading telecommunications service provider in the Netherlands, which offers fixed-line and wireless
telecommunications services, internet and Pay TV to consumers, and end-to-end telecommunications services to
business customers. AMOV offered to purchase up to the number of shares that would result in AMOV and
América Movil holding 393,283,000 shares (representing a total of up to approximately 27.7% of all outstanding
shares of KPN). The offer expired on June 27, 2012, and more than a sufficient number of shares needed for us to
reach the maximum ownership amount of 27.7% of the outstanding shares was tendered. Upon closing of the
tender offer, the total aggregate cost of the Company’s investment in KPN was approximately €3,047 million
(Ps.52,200,000).

During April 2013, KPN launched a rights offering to raise up to €3,000 billion of equity. Pursuant to the
Company’s agreement with KPN, the Company subscribed for new shares in the rights offering in proportion to
the Company’s previous ownership of KPN shares. Upon settlement of the offering on May 17, 2013, the
Company paid €895.8 million (Ps.14,200,000) and owned a total of 1,267,677,000 shares of KPN, continuing to
represent 29.7% of the outstanding shares of KPN.

In August and November 2013, the Company received dividends for an amount of Ps.88,461 and
Ps.123,932, respectively.

In November 2013, the Company sold shares of KPN representing 2.38% of KPN’s outstanding shares for
an amount of Ps. 4.3 billion. At December 31, 2012 and 2013, the Company held 29.77% and 27.39% of the
outstanding shares of KPN.

Since April 2013, the Company has had two representatives on KPN’s Supervisory Board of a total of at
least five and no more than nine members. On August 9, 2013, the Company announced its intention to make a
tender offer in cash for all of KPN’s ordinary shares that it does not already own (the “Intended KPN Offer”) at a
price of €2.40 per share. On August 29, 2013, the KPN Preference Shares B Foundation (Stichting Preferente
Aandelen B KPN or the “KPN Foundation™), an independent legal entity with the statutory goal of protecting
KPN’s interests (which includes the interests of stakeholders, such as customers, shareholders and employees),
exercised a call option in respect of securities of KPN. As a result, the KPN Foundation holds preferred shares of
KPN representing 50% of the voting shares less one share, making América Movil’s goal of acquiring more than
50% of the voting rights for KPN unachievable. On October 16, 2013, the Company announced that the
Company would not launch the Intended KPN Offer.

F-47



Ameérica Movil’s interest in KPN is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements because although the voting rights of the Company were reduced to 14.9%, its economic interests
remained at 29.77% and the Company kept its two seats on the Supervisory Board which is greater than 20% of
Board representation, which is ultimately responsible for all decision-making. Summarized financial information
of the associate, based on its IFRS financial information (adjusted for the Company’s basis in such investee) is
set out below:

At December 31,
2012 2013

Currentassets .. ........ccviiinen... Ps. 53,174,754  Ps. 93,826,748

Non currentassets ..................... 331,732,880 400,042,101

Current liabilities . ..................... 100,513,672 115,787,347

Non current liabilities .................. 298,451,457 312,336,501

Equity ... ..o (14,057,495) 65,745,001

Non-controlling interest ................ 875,375 952,465

Totalequity ........... ... i, Ps. (14,932,870) Ps. 64,792,536

20120 2013

REVENUE . . o Ps.106,086,293 Ps.143,714,146
Operative expenses and other cost ............................ 104,714,118 144,547,525
Netincome (10SS) . ..o v e 1,372,175 (833,379)
Net income (loss) attributable to the shareholders ................ 1,372,175 (833,379)
Other comprehensive income (loss) items . ..................... (1,207,623) 2,798,965
Net comprehensive income fortheyear ........................ 164,552 1,965,586
Net comprehensive income (loss) attributable to the shareholders . . . . 301,906 (966,915)

(1) AMX acquired its equity interest in KPN during the second quarter of 2012, and the equity method results
for 2012 were not material to its financial statements. This summarized financial information represents
amounts for the entire year ended December 31, 2012.

Below is a reconciliation of the equity attributable to the KPN’s shareholders in the table above with the
equity method investment as of December 31, 2012 and 2013:

2012 2013
Equity attributable to the KPN’s shareholders . ... ... .. Ps.(14,932,871) Ps.64,792,536
AMX share at December 31, ...................... 29.7% 27.39%
(4,435,063) 17,746,675
Goodwill .. ... 59,442,533 51,485,622
Total investmentin KPN . ........................ Ps. 55,007,470  Ps.69,232,297

As discussed in Note 2 b) ii), the Company’s policy is to evaluate at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that an investment in an associate is impaired. If there is a potential impairment, the Company
calculates the amount of impairment loss as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value, and recognizes the impairment loss in its share of profit or loss of the associate in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Company owned 422,559,000 and 1,169,797,301 shares of KPN, with a carrying value of
Ps.55,007,474 and Ps 69,232,297 as of December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively. KPN’s shares are traded on
the Amsterdam Stock Exchange, and the closing price for such shares was €3.53 and €2.34 per share at
December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively, equating to a Level 1 fair value of the Company’s investment in KPN
of Ps.22,600,000 and Ps.49,255,640 at December 31, 2012 and 2013 exchange rates. As of December 31, 2012
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and 2013, the carrying value of the investment in KPN was Ps.28,000,000 and Ps.19,976,657, respectively, in
excess of its Level 1 fair value. The Level 1 fair value of KPN was Ps.17,048,815 as of April 25, 2014. Under
IAS 39, either a significant or a prolonged decline of the Level 1 fair value of an equity security below its
carrying value is objective evidence of impairment. Impairment is then recognized as the difference between the
carrying value of the equity investment and the greater of its Level 1 fair value and the underlying equity
investment’s value in use.

The Company has performed a value-in-use computation for its equity method investment in KPN as of
December 31, 2013. The value-in-use computation was based in-part on KPN’s actual financial results for 2013
and financial projections for the years 2014 to 2016. Beyond the three-year period of the KPN projections, free-
cash flow was projected by the Company at 0.5% real growth rate to perpetuity (2.5% nominal, including
projected inflation). The Company applied a discount rate of 7.2% (nominal) (5.8% in 2012) to the projected free
cash flows of KPN, which is the estimated weighted average cost of capital. Based on the computation
performed, a value in use of the Company’s 27.70% (29.7% in 2012) ownership interest of Ps.139.3 billion (Ps
55.9 billion in 2012) was estimated as of December 31, 2013, thus no impairment charge was required in the
Company’s 2013 consolidated financial statements.

iii) Telekom Austria AG (“Telekom Austria”)

On June 15, 2012, the Company agreed to acquire approximately 21% of the outstanding shares of Telekom
Austria AG (“Telekom Austria”) from Marathon Zwei Beteiligungs GmbH, a wholly-owned subsidiary of RPR
Privatstiftung, a private trust established by Mr. Ronny Pecik. Under the agreement, the Company acquired 5%
of the outstanding shares of Telekom Austria, and the right to acquire additional shares. On September 25, 2012,
the Company exercised this right and acquired approximately 16% of the outstanding shares of Telekom Austria,
after receiving the required regulatory approvals. As of September 30, 2012, the Company held 22.76% of the
outstanding shares of Telekom Austria. The total aggregate costs of the Company’s investment in Telekom
Austria is approximately €954 million (Ps.15,977,000). Telekom Austria provides telecommunications services
in Austria, Belarus, Bulgaria, Croatia, Liechtenstein, Macedonia, Serbia and Slovenia.

América Movil’s interest in Telekom Austria is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements. Summarized financial information of the associated company, based on its IFRS financial
information (adjusted for the Company’s basis in such investee) is set out below:

At December 31,

2012 2013
CUMeNt @SSeTS . . o vt Ps. 30,174,699  Ps. 31,323,505
NON-CUMTENE SSELS . . . o oot e 115,560,400 122,590,497
Current liabilities . .. ... ... .. 51,286,689 51,975,813
Non-current liabilities ........... ... .. ... ... ... ... ..., 71,025,542 76,916,008
Equity attributable to the Telecom Austria’s shareholders . ... .. Ps. 23,422,868 Ps. 25,022,181

20120 2013
ReVENUES . ... Ps. 18,719,828 Ps. 73,368,514
Operating eXPENSES . .. vttt 15,747,734 71,935,798
NetinCoOmMe . . ..o 1,668,864 1,431,020
Net income attributable to the shareholders ................. 1,668,864 1,431,020
Other comprehensive lossitems .......................... (6,709) (118,744)
Net comprehensive income fortheyear .................... 1,662,155 1,312,276
Net comprehensive income attributable to the shareholders . . . .. 1,660,477 932,295

(1) AMX acquired its equity interest in Telekom Austria during the second quarter of 2012, and the equity
method results for 2012 were not material to its financial statements. This summarized financial information
represents amounts for the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2012.
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Below is a reconciliation of the Equity attributable to the Telecom Austria’s shareholders in the table above
with the equity method investment as of December 31, 2012 and 2013:

2012 2013
Equity attributable to the Telecom Austria’s shareholders .. ...... Ps.23,422,867  Ps.25,022,180
AMX Share ... 22.79% 22.79%
5,338,071 5,702,555
Goodwill ... 11,414,653 11,947,420
Total investment in Telekom Austria ........................ Ps.16,752,724  Ps.17,649,975

The Company owned 104,875,874 shares of Telekom Austria, with a carrying value of Ps.16,752,724 and
Ps.17,649,976 as of December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively, which equates to a carrying value of Ps.159.4 per
share and Ps.98.91 respectively. Telekom Austria shares are traded on the Vienna Stock Exchange; however, the
Company purchased its investment in Telekom Austria through a private transaction enabling the Company to
obtain the size of the holdings it desired. The Company purchased 21,977,284 shares in June 2012 at Ps.147.07
per share, which is the same as the trading price per share on the day of that transaction. The Company then
purchased its remaining shares in September 2012 at Ps.160.63 per share, in comparison to a trading price of
Ps.125.28 per share on the day of closing. The Level 1 fair value of the Company’s investment in Telekom
Austria was Ps.10.3 and Ps.10.4 billion as of December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively, which is Ps.6.4 billion
and Ps.7.3 billion less than its carrying value.

The Company has performed a value-in-use computation for its equity method investment in Telekom
Austria as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. The value-in-use computation was based in-part on Telekom
Austria’s actual financial results for 2013 and financial projections for the years 2014 to 2016. Beyond the three-
year period of the Telekom Austria projections, free-cash flow was projected by the Company at 1.0% real
growth rate to perpetuity. The Company applied a discount rate of 6.9% (nominal) to the projected free cash
flows of Telekom Austria, which is the estimated weighted average cost of capital. Based on the computation
performed, a value in use of the Company’s 22.33% ownership interest of Ps.20.0 billion was estimated as of
December 31, 2013, respectively, thus no impairment charge was required in the Company’s 2013 consolidated
financial statements. In addition see Note 23 for subsequent events after December 31, 2013.

Other acquisitions 2012
iv) DLA, Inc. (“DLA™)

On January 6, 2012, América Movil entered into an agreement with Claxson Interactive Group, Inc., and
acquired as of such date 100% of the shares representing the capital stock of DLA, Inc. (“DLA”). The amount
paid was Ps.615,927 (US$50,000). DLA is a corporation involved in the development, integration and delivery of
entertainment products made for digital distribution in Latin America.

v) Simple Mobile, Inc.

On June 19, 2012, our subsidiary Tracfone Wireless Inc. acquired 100% of the operations of Simple Mobile
Inc. for approximately US$118,000 (Ps.1,651,700). Simple Mobile, Inc. is a mobile virtual network operator
(“MVNO”) in the United States, with more than 2.5 million customer activations.

vi) In September 2012, the Company acquired an equity interest in other Mexican entities for an amount of
Ps.379,564.
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Acquisitions 2013

i) Corporacion Interamericana de Entretenimiento, S.A.B. de C.V. (“CIE”)

On April 30, 2013 América Mdvil, entered into an agreement with Corporacién Interamericana de
Entretenimiento, S.A.B. de C.V. (“CIE”) to acquire 100% shares of Corporacién de Medios Integrales, S.A. de
C.V. (“CMI”) for an amount of Ps.1,668,000 (US$131,300). CMI holds the media and advertising business

within the commercial segment at CIE. The goodwill is Ps.1,200,061.

ii) Shazam Entertainment Limited (Shazam)

In July 8, 2013, América Mdvil acquired 10.8% of shares representing the capital stock of Shazam
Entertainment Limited (“Shazam”), and entered into a strategic for a business development in the Americas. The

amount paid was Ps.527,536.

c) Consolidated subsidiaries with non-controlling interests

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interest are Telint and Telmex. A
summary of the consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

Telmex Internacional, S.A. de C.V. and subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31

2012 2013

Assets

CUMeNE @SSBLS . . ot e e Ps. 34,610,979 Ps. 36,069,032

NON-CUITeNt @SSetS . . ..t e 185,466,009 192,026,144
Total @SSEES . .t Ps.220,076,988 Ps.228,095,176
Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities . ... .. Ps. 42,324,984 Ps. 64,350,774

Long-term liabilities ........ ... .. ... . . 52,146,418 52,009,944
Total liabilities . . .. ... 94,471,402 116,360,718
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent ...................... 92,459,880 83,055,435
Non-controlling interest . ......... .. 33,145,706 28,679,023
Total eqUItY . ..o 125,605,586 111,734,458
Total liabilitiesand equity .. ........ . o Ps.220,076,988 Ps.228,095,176
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

December 31

2011 2012 2013
Operating reVENUES . . .. oo ettt et Ps.99,527,840 Ps.137,890,557 Ps.134,468,355
Operating costs and eXPenses . .. ......ovvveernennn... 93,642,653 125,850,174 124,931,875
Operating iNnCoMe . ... ...t 5,885,187 12,040,383 9,536,480
Netincome . ... ... 3,678,390 2,645,378 1,228,339
Comprehensive income (I0SS) .. ..., Ps. 4,038,778 Ps.(10,643,451) Ps.(12,130,741)
Net income attributable to:

Equity holders of theparent ...................... Ps. 3,445,685 Ps. 2,551,586 Ps. 320,704

Non-controlling interest ......................... 232,705 93,792 907,635

Ps. 3,678,390 Ps. 2,645378 Ps. 1,228,339

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:

Equity holders of theparent ...................... Ps. 3,805,975 Ps. (8,762,527) Ps. (8,926,543)

Non-controlling interest ......................... 232,803 Ps. (11,880,924) (3,204,198)

Ps. 4,038,778

Ps. (10,643,451) Ps.(12,130,741)

Teléfonos de México, S.A.B. de C.V. and subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Assets
CUITENE @SS & v v v vttt e e
Non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity (deficit)
Current liabilities . ... ... .
Long-term liabilities ....... ... ... ...

Total liabilities . ... ... ...
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Total equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and equity (deficit)
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December 31

2012 2013

Ps. 39,890,257
110,844,992

Ps. 40,008,522
76,269,460

Ps.150,735,249 Ps.116,277,982

Ps. 42,372,956 Ps. 31,275,189

109,565,241 78,747,388
151,938,197 110,022,577
(1,527,583) 5,883,014
324,635 372,391
(1,202,948) 6,255,405

Ps.150,735,249 Ps.116,277,982




Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

December 31

2011 2012 2013
Operating reVeNUES . . ..o v vttt et Ps.112,066,058 Ps.106,243,636 Ps.105,593,250
Operating costs and eXpenses .. .........vvurvennen... 85,085,441 88,277,034 88,807,950
Operating iNnCoOMe .. ..ot 26,980,617 17,966,602 16,785,300
NEtinCOME ...\t 12,867,326 10,752,125 7,692,975
Comprehensive (loss) income ....................... Ps. (1,302,119) Ps. 13,923,611 Ps. 917,884
Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of theparent ..................... Ps. 12,846,433 Ps. 10,760,827 Ps. 7,719,097
Non-controlling interest ........................ 20,893 (8,702) (26,122)
Ps. 12,867,326 Ps. 10,752,125 Ps. 7,692,975
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to:
Equity holders of theparent .. ................... Ps. (1,326,924) Ps. 13,933,138 Ps. 941,046
Non-controlling interest ........................ 24,805 (9,527) (23,162)
Ps. (1,302,119) Ps. 13,923,611 Ps. 917,884

11. Derivative Financial Instruments

To mitigate the risk of future increases in interest rates for the servicing of its debt, the Company has
entered into interest-rate swap contracts in over-the-counter transactions carried out with financial institutions
from which the Company has obtained the related loans. No collateral is given as security in connection with

these transactions. The weighted-average interest rate of the total debt is 3.5%.

An analysis of the derivative financial instruments contracted by the Company at December 31, 2012 and

2013 is as follows:

At December 31,
2012 2013

Notional amountin  Fair value in  Notional amount in  Fair value in
M millions millions millions millions
Swaps US Dollar—Mexican peso .............. US$1,050 Ps. 307 US$ 6,002 Ps. 7,558
Swaps Euro—Mexican peso .................. € 263 63 € 720 1,809
Swaps Euro—US Dollar ..................... € 950 79 € 945 391
Swaps CHF—USDollar ..................... CHF 230 81
Swaps CNY—USDollar ..................... CNY1,000 185
Forwards Sterling pound—US Dollar ........... £ 650 2,331
Forwards US Dollar—Mexican peso .. .......... US$ 5,375 362
Forwards Euro-US Dollar .................... € 200 83
Total ASSEtS ... ..o Ps.2,780 Ps.10,469
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At December 31,

2012 2013

Notional amountin  Fair value in ~ Notional amountin  Fair value in
Instrument millions millions millions millions
Interest rate swaps in Mexican peso ........... Ps. 23,640 Ps.(2,495) Ps. 23,640 Ps.(2,220)
Forwards Reales-US Dollar ................. R 39 (26)
Forwards US Dollar-Mexican peso ........... US$10,538 (1,827)
Swaps Euro-US Dollar
Swaps Yen-USDollar ...................... ¥ 12,000 (252) ¥ 12,000 (567)
Swaps CHF-EUro ........... ..., CHF 270 (76) CHF 270 (159)
Swaps CHF-US Dollar ..................... CHF 230 (@)
Swaps Sterling pound-Euro . ................ £ 2,720 (2,420)
Swaps Yen-USDollar . ..................... ¥ 1,000 (10)
Swaps GBP-Euro .......... ... ..o £ 1,220 (335)
Total liability . . ......... ... .. ... .. ... Ps.(5,025) Ps.(5,366)

The changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2012 and 2013 amounted to a gain (loss) of Ps.10,889,940, Ps.(5,346,179) and Ps.5,921,504, respectively,
and such amounts are included in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the caption “Valuation of
derivatives interest cost from labor obligations and other financial items, net”.

12. Employee Benefits

a) An analysis of the net liability and net period cost for employee benefits is as follows:

At December 31,
2012 2013

Liability:

MEXICO . ..o Ps.42,568,937  Ps.49,270,144
PuertoRiCO ........... ... .. .. ... 18,830,835 13,448,765
Brazil ........ .. ... . . 4,966,351 3,796,998
Ecuador .......... .. ... .. . 73,216 91,967
Total . ... Ps.66,439,339  Ps.66,607,874

Net period cost (benefit):

For the years ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
MeXiCo . ... Ps. 7,903,215 Ps. 8,656,797 Ps.7,602,818
PuertoRico ....................... (1,209,680) 1,097,942 (713,271)
Brazil ......... ... ... .. ... (94,072) 384,331 384,642
Ecuador .......... ... ... ... ... .. .. 12,095 2,602 18,650
Total ... Ps. 6,611,558 Ps.10,141,672  Ps.7,292,839
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The Company’s post-retirement obligations for seniority premiums, pension and retirement plans, and
medical services in the countries in which it operates and that have defined benefit and defined contribution plans

are as follows:

b) Puerto Rico

Pension plan

There is a pension investment fund committee whose responsibility is to verify that the funds are invested in
the appropriate instruments as approved by the committee. No employee has either the authority to invest nor
change the use of funds without approval of the committee.

The following tables show the net benefit cost and liabilities for labor obligations related to the funds and
costs associated with these pension and post-retirement plans at December 31, 2012 and 2013:

Projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning
ofyear .......... ... .. .. ... .. ...
Currentservice cost .. ................
Interest cost on projected benefit
obligation .......................
Actuarial gain (loss) .................
Other amendmentstoplans ............
Payments from trust fund .............
Benefitspaid .......................
Effect of translation . .................

Projected benefit obligation at end of year . . ..

Changes in plan assets:

Established fund at beginning of year . .. ..
Expected return on plan assets ..........
Actuarial gain (loss) on plan assets in

OCl ..
Employee contributions ...............
Benefitspaid ........................
Actuarial 1oss .. ........ ... ..o
Effect of translation ... ................
Established fund atend of year ..........

Planassetshortfall ........................

At December 31,
2012 2013
Pensions and Post-retirement Pensions and Post-retirement
sum of benefits benefits sum of benefits benefits

Ps.24,482,597 Ps. 9,633,990 Ps.23,861,498 Ps. 8,958,942

196,551 84,986 190,067 77,513
989,029 374,837 917,047 334,038
1,368,663 516,233 (1,874,057)  (1,657,720)
(41,778) 124,178 153,355
(1,755,273)
(1,418,080) (457,160)  (1,574,400) (494,681)
(1,715.484)  (1,318,122) 121,783 45,724

Ps.23,861,498 Ps. 8,958,942 Ps.21,641,938 Ps. 5,661,898

2012 2013
Pensions and Pensions and Pensions and Post-retirement
sum of benefits sum of benefits ~ sum of benefits benefits
Ps.13,925,231 Ps.13,989,605
578,265 547,276
622,294 (479,371)
1,320,525 Ps. 457,160 1,371,174 Ps. 494,681
(1,408,394) (457,160)  (1,574,400) (494,681)
(72,583) (70,613)
(975,733) 71,400
13,989,605 13,855,071

Ps. 9,871,893 Ps.8,958,942 Ps. 7,786,867 Ps.5,661,898

The actual return on plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 amounted
to Ps.1,200,559 and Ps.67,905, corresponding to the expected return and the actuarial variation, respectively.
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December 31,

2012 2013
Pensions Pensions
and sum Post-retirement and sum Post-retirement
of benefits benefits of benefits benefits
Changes in other comprehensive income:
Balance at the beginning of the year .. ... Ps.(4,048,934) Ps.(1,912,387) Ps.(4,511,596) Ps.(2,294,620)
Actuarial gain on expected return on plan
ASSELS . L e 622,294 (479,371)
Actuarial loss for changes in demographic
assumptions ... (106,293) (22,348)
Actuarial gain for changes in financial
assumptions ........... ... 2,065,437 533,867
Actuarial (loss) gain for changes in
assumptions ... (1,368,663) (516,233) (85,087) 1,146,201
Effect of translation .................. 283,707 134,000 (23,026) (11,712)
Balance at the end of theyear .............. Ps.(4,511,596) Ps.(2,294,620) Ps.(3,139,936) Ps. (648,612)

Below is a quantitative sensitivity analysis of the effect on comprehensive income of the main assumptions

as of December 31, 2013, as follows:

Pensions and Post-retirement
sum of benefits benefits
Discount rate — 100 basis points ............. Ps. 2,472,034 Ps. 787,013
Discount rate + 100 basis points ............. Ps.(2,082,791)  Ps.(640,789)

* Discount rate as of December 31, 2013 4.80% and 4.95%

Post-retirement

benefits
Applicable rates to health services — 100 basis points . . . Ps.(468,675)
Initial assumption .. ........ .. ... 4.80%
Final assumption ........... . ... . ... 3.50%
Applicable rates to health services + 100 basis points ... Ps. 570,618
Initial assumption . ....... ... ... o 6.80%
Final assumption ............ ... . ... 5.50%

Net period cost

An analysis of the net period cost for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

2011 2012 2013
Pensions Pensions Pensions
and sum Post-retirement and sum Post-retirement  and sum Post-retirement
of benefits benefits of benefits benefits of benefits benefits
Current servicecost ........ Ps. 257,771 Ps. 85,207 Ps. 196,551 Ps. 84,986 Ps. 190,067 Ps. 77,513
Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation ........ 1,105,399 464,629 989,029 374,837 917,047 334,038
Actual return on plan
assets . ... (760,904) (578,265) (547,276)
Past service costs and other .. (66,912) (2,294,870) 30,804 70,613  (1,755,273)

Ps. 535,354 Ps.(1,745,034)Ps. 638,119 Ps. 459,823 Ps. 630,451 Ps.(1,343,722)
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Actuarial assumptions
The average rates used in determining the net period cost for 2011, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

2011 2012 2013

Financial:
Discount rate and long-termrate return .. .......... 5.30% 4.50% 3.95%
Rate of future salary inCreases . ..........ovirer e 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Biometric:
Mortality: 2014 Table PPA for cases Plan B “Salaried”, “Hourly” and “Lump Sum”
was used.

The average rates and other actuarial assumptions used in determining post-retirement obligations for
medical and other services are as follows:

2012 2013
Percentage of increase in health care costs for the coming year . .......... 6.50% 5.90%
Cost percentage duetodeath .. ........ ... . i 4.50% 4.50%
Year to which this level will be maintained .......................... 2021 2027

The average rates and other actuarial assumptions used to determine the net period cost of post-retirement
obligations are as follows:

2011 2012 2013

Percentage of increase in health care costs for the following year .......... 6.70% 5.90% 5.80%

Cost percentage duetodeath .. ......... ... . i 450% 4.50% 4.50%

Year to which this level will be maintained ........................... 2021 2027 2027
Plan assets

The percentages invested in plan assets are as follows:

December 31,

2012 2013
Equity instruments . . ........ .. 18% 30%
Debtinstruments ......... ... ... i 70% 68%
Cashand cashequivalents . ............ ... .. ... ........ 12% 2%

100.00% 100.00%

c) Brazil (Embratel)

Embratel has a defined benefit pension plan (“DBP”) and a defined contribution plan (“DCP”) that covers
virtually all of its employees, as well as a medical assistance plan (“MAP”) granted to participants in the DBP.
The liabilities recognized at December 31, 2012 and 2013 under such plans are as follows:

At December 31,
2012 2013
DBPandMAP ............ ... .. .. . Ps. 4,693,469  Ps. 3,583,228
DCP .. 272,882 213,770
Total liabilities, net ....................... Ps. 4,966,351  Ps. 3,796,998




Pension plan

An analysis of obligations under the DBP and MAP at December 31, 2012 and
in such plans during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013, is as follows:

2013, as well as the changes

Projected benefit obligation at beginningofyear ........................ Ps
CUITENE SEIVICE COSE . . o v vttt et e e e e e
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ............................
Actuarial 10ss (gain) .. ..ot
Employee contributions . . . ... .
Payments from trustfund . ........ .. ... .
Effect of translation .. ........ ..

At December 31,
2012 2013
. 14,998,684 Ps. 16,830,965
(70) (89)
1,367,191 1,307,437
3,795,632 (3,053,755)
267 173

(1,135,167)  (1,069,860)
(2,195572)  (2,074,038)

Projected benefit obligationatend of year .......... ... .. ... ... ... . ..., Ps

. 16,830,965 Ps. 11,940,833

Changes in plan assets:
Established fund at beginning of year .......... ... ... ... .. .. ..... Ps
Expected returnonplanassets ...
Actuarial gain on plan assets in other comprehensive income ..........
Employee contributions . . ........ ...
Payments fromtrustfund ......... .. ... ... ..
Effect of translation .. ........ .. ... .. .

. 16,827,353  Ps. 15,384,266

1,549,809 1,181,149
413,465 970,432
192,067 202,027

(1,135,167)  (1,069,860)
(2,463,261)  (1,895,764)

Fairvalue of fundatendof year .......... ... . . i, Ps

. 15,384,266  Ps. 14,772,250

Plan asset surplus (short-fall) ........... .. .. ... .. .. ... . . Ps.

Effectofassetcelling ....... ... .

1,446,699 Ps. (2,831,417)
3,246,770 6,414,645

Net liabilities . ... .. Ps

. 4,693,469 Ps. 3,583,228

The actual return on plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 amounted
to Ps.1,963,274 and Ps.2,151,581 corresponding to the expected return and the actuarial variation respectively.

2012 2013

Changes in other comprehensive income:

Balance at the beginning of theyear . ..................... Ps.(5,261,578) Ps.(5,423,234)

Changes in the asset ceiling during the period .............. 2,450,298 (3,311,757)

Actuarial gain on expected return on plan assets ............ 413,465 970,432

Actuarial loss for changes in experience .................. (580,103) (131,636)

Actuarial (loss) gain for changes in financial assumptions .. .. (3,215,529) 3,185,391

Effect of translation ........... ... .. ... .. .. .. ... 770,213 668,291
Balance attheend oftheyear ............... ... ... ......... Ps.(5,423,234) Ps.(4,042,513)
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Below is a quantitative sensitivity analysis of the main hypothesis as of December 31, 2013, and its impact
on the PBD and PAM:

PBD and PAM obligation at present value:
Discount rate + 100 basis points . .............. ... Ps. 10,996,779

Discount rate - 100 basis points . ... 13,031,879
Mortality Rate considering that members were a year younger ... Ps. 12,238,833
Inflation rate for health services +100 basis points . ............ Ps. 12,338,294

Inflation rate for health services - 100 basis points .. ........... 11,600,293

Net period cost (benefit)

An analysis of the net period cost (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is as
follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Current Service Cost . ......oviii i Ps. 82 Ps. (70) Ps. (89)
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation . . . . .. 1,540,995 1,367,191 1,307,437
Expected return on planassets ................ (1,637,976) (1,549,809) (1,181,149)
Asset ceilinginterest . ......... ... ... ...... 568,732 256,210

Ps. (96,899) Ps. 386,044 Ps. 382,409

Actuarial assumptions

The average rates used in determining the net period cost for 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

2011 2012 2013

Financial:
Rate of future salary increases ............. ...t 450% 5.00% 4.75%
Discount rate and long-term assets returnrate . ................ 11.09% 9.00% 11.53%
Biometric
Mortality: 2000 Basic AT Table (1996 U.S. Annuity 2000 Basic) for gender.
Disability for assets: UP 84 modified table for gender
Disability retirement: 58 CSO table
Rotation: Probability of leaving the Company other than death, disability and retirement is zero
retirement is zero
Plan assets

As of December 31, 2012 and 2013, the percentages invested in plan assets are as follows:

At December 31,

2012 2013
Debt instruments . .......... 80.51% 80.64%
Equity instruments . . ......... . .. 15.56% 12.71%
Other inVeStMeNnts . ...t e 3.93% 6.65%

100.00% 100.00%
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DCP

Embratel makes contributions to the DCP through Embratel Social Security Fund—Telos. Contributions are
computed based on the salaries of the employees, who decide on the percentage of their contributions to the plan
(between 3% and 12% of their salaries). Embratel contributes the same percentage as the employee, capped at
8% of the participant’s balance. All employees are eligible to participate in this plan.

The unfunded liability represents Embratel’s obligation for those participants that migrated from the DBP to
the DCP. This liability is being paid over a term of 20 years as of January 1, 1999. Unpaid balances are adjusted
monthly based on the yield of the asset portfolio at that date and is increased based on the General Price Index of
Brazil plus 6 percentage points per year. At December 31, 2013, the balance of the DCP liability was Ps.213,770
(Ps.272,882, at December 31, 2012).

As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the cost of labor were Ps.2,233, Ps.(1,713) and Ps.2,827,
respectively.

d) Mexico (Teléfonos de México)
Pensions and seniority premiums

Telmex has an employee pension and seniority premium plan that covers most of its employees. Pensions
and seniority premiums are determined based on the salary of employees in their final year of service, the
number of years worked at Telmex and their age at retirement.

Telmex has established an irrevocable trust fund and makes annual contributions to that fund, which are
considered deductible for purposes of income tax and employee profit sharing. The most important information
related to labor obligations is as follows:

At December 31,
2012 2013
Projected defined benefit obligation:
Projected defined benefit obligation at beginning of year ... Ps. 234,225,230 Ps. 239,189,216
CUITENt SEIVICE COSt . . ottt e et e 5,050,926 4,538,825
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation .............. 20,497,290 20,978,048
Actuarial (gain) 10SS . ... (6,252,256) 2,967,200
Paymentsto employees . ......... ... . . i (11,419,974) (11,034,105)
Payments fromtrustfund .......... ... .. ... ... (2,912,000) (5,695,000)
Defined benefit obligation atend of year .................... Ps. 239,189,216 Ps. 250,944,184
At December 31,
2012 2013
Changes in plan assets:
Established fund at beginning of year ................... Ps. 184,546,619 Ps. 196,734,883
Expected returnonplanassets ........................ 16,978,289 18,099,609
Actuarial loss on plan assets inOCI .................... (1,878,025) (7,373,642)
Payments from trustfund ............ ... ... .. ... ..., (2,912,000) (5,695,000)
Established fund atend ofyear ............................ Ps. 196,734,883 Ps. 201,765,850
Liability ... o Ps. 42,454,333 Ps. 49,270,144




The actual return on plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 amounted
to Ps.15,100,264 and Ps.10,725,967, corresponding to the expected return and the actuarial variation,
respectively.

2012 2013
Changes in other comprehensive income:
Balance at the beginning of theyear ............. Ps.(69,596,308) Ps.(65,222,077)
Actuarial gain on expected return on plan assets . . . (1,878,025) (7,373,642)
Actuarial effect of changes in assumptions .. .. .. .. 6,252,256 (2,967,200)
Balance attheend of theyear ...................... Ps.(65,222,077) Ps.(75,562,919)

In 2012, the net actuarial gain of Ps.4,374,231 is mainly comprised of an actuarial loss of Ps.1,878,025 due
to the low performance of the plan assets, to the reduction in the value of the shares of the companies where the
funds are managed, and in the value of the fixed yield instruments due to variances in the reference rates, and an
actuarial gain of Ps.6,252,256 due to the fact that the number of retired employees differed from the estimated
number at the beginning of the year, and salary increases and the pensions of retired personnel were higher than
those estimated at the beginning of the year.

In 2013, the net actuarial loss of Ps.10,340,842 is mainly comprised of an actuarial loss of Ps.7,373,642 due
to the low performance of the plan assets, to the reduction in the value of the shares of the companies where the
funds are managed, and in the value of the fixed yield instruments due to variances in the reference rates, and an
actuarial loss of Ps.2,967,200 due to the fact that the number of retired employees differed from the estimated
number at the beginning of the year, and due to the fact that the salary increases and pensions of retired personnel
were higher than those estimated at the beginning of the year.

For the years ended

Net period cost 2011 2012 2013

Currentservice cost ..................... Ps. 5,036,684 Ps. 5050926 Ps. 4,538,825
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation . . . 19,418,689 20,497,290 20,978,048
Expected return on planassets ............. (16,610,124) (16,978,289) (18,099,609)
Netperiodcost ......................... Ps. 7,845249 Ps. 8,569,927 Ps. 7,417,264

The nominal rates used in the actuarial studies at both December 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

Nominal rates

Financial:
Discount of labor obligations:
Long-term average and long-term assets return .. . . .. 9.2
Salary increase:
Long-termaverage ................. ... 4.5
Post-retirement
mortality for pensioners
more than 65 years old
2012 2013
Pension plan:
Men . .. e 1.94% 1.94%
WOMEN . .. 1.94% 1.94%

F-61



Below is a quantitative sensitivity analysis of the main hypothesis as of December 31, 2013, and its impact
in the net defined benefit obligations:

Increase
Discount rate less 100 basispoints .. .............. Ps.278,723,223
Discount rate plus 100 basis points . .............. 227,452,596

Plan assets

The percentages invested in plan assets at December 31, 2012 and 2013 are as follows:

2012 2013
Debt instruments . ... 485% 46.9%
Equity instruments . . ... 51.5% 53.1%

100.0% 100.0%

As of December 31, 2013, the fair value of Telmex’s debt securities held by the plan assets was Ps.611,672
(Ps.886,907 at December 31, 2012). Also, the plan assets of Telmex include 30.7% and 30.4% of securities of the
Company and other related parties at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The purchases and sales of
these securities made by the plan were at market value.

e) In the case of Mexico (Telcel) and Ecuador, the net period cost of other benefits for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was Ps.57,966, Ps.86,870 and Ps.185,554, respectively, for Mexico, and
Ps.12,095, Ps.2,602 and Ps.18,650 respectively, for Ecuador. The balance of employee benefits at December 31,
2012 and 2013 was Ps.114,604 and Ps.91,810, respectively, for Mexico and Ps.73,216 and Ps.91,967,
respectively, for Ecuador.

f) For the rest of the countries where the Company operates and that do not have defined benefit plans or
defined contribution plans, the Company makes contributions to the respective governmental social security
agencies, which are recognized in results of operations as they are incurred.

13. Accounts Payable, Accrued Liabilities and Asset Retirement Obligations

a) An analysis of the caption accounts payable is as follows:

At December 31,

2012 2013
Suppliers ... . Ps. 91,793,858 Ps. 98,763,285
Sundry creditors . ... ... 37,195,243 42,396,889
Interest payable ....................... 6,001,435 7,203,911
Guarantee deposits from clients .......... 2,031,944 2,666,481
Dividends payable ..................... 4,582,477 3,106,746
Total ... Ps.141,604,957  Ps.154,137,312
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b) An analysis of the activity in accrued liabilities at December 31, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

Balance at - Balance at
December 31, Effect of Increase of Applications December 31,
2011 translation the year Payments Reversals 2012

Direct employee
benefits payable . ... Ps. 8,194,088 Ps. (281,748)Ps. 8,771,195 Ps.(6,811,990) Ps. (67,231) Ps. 9,804,314
Contingencies ....... 22,575,679  (2,512,084) 5,227,068  (1,029,693) (59,731) 24,201,239

Ps.30,769,767 Ps.(2,793,832) Ps.13,998,263 Ps.(7,841,683) Ps.(126,962) Ps.34,005,553

Balance at P Balance at
December 31, Effect of Increase of Applications December 31,
2012 translation the year Payments Reversals 2013

Direct employee
benefits payable .. Ps. 9,804,314 Ps. (674,149)Ps.14,047,874 Ps.(11,787,453) Ps.(186,814) Ps.11,203,772

Contingencies . . . . . . 24201239  (2,902,833) 12,419,163  (7,907,863)  (54,556) 25,755,150
Ps.34,005,553 Ps.(3,576,982) Ps.26,467,037 Ps.(19,695,316) Ps.(241,370) Ps.36,958,922

Contingencies include tax, labor, regulatory and other legal type contingencies.

c) An analysis of the asset retirement obligation at December 31, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

Balance at - Balance at
December 31, Effect of Increase of Applications December 31,
2011 Translation the year Payments Reversals 2012
Asset retirement
obligation ............ Ps.6,387,229 Ps.(537,848) Ps.1,428,729 Ps.(92,921) Ps.(7,974) Ps.7,177,215
Balance at .
December 31, Effect of Increase of Applications Balance at
2012 translation the year Payments Reversals December 31, 2013
Asset retirement
obligation ........ Ps.7,177,215 Ps.(401,382) Ps.866,480 Ps.(103,984) Ps.(21,869) Ps.7,516,460

The discount rates used for the asset retirement obligations are based on market rates that are expected to be
undertaken by the dismantling or restoring of cell sites, and may include labor costs.
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14. Other Financial Assets and Liabilities

Set out below is the categorization of financial instruments, other than cash and short-term deposits, held by
América Movil as at December 31, 2012 and 2013:

December 31, 2012

Fair value
Loans and through Fair value
receivables profit or loss through OCI
Financial Assets:
Accounts receivable from Subscribers, distributors, and
other, net ... .. Ps. 94,103,872 Ps. —  Ps. —
Related parties . ........ .o 689,053 — —
Derivative financial instruments ....................... — 2,779,749 —
Total .. Ps. 94,792,925 Ps.2,779,749 Ps. —
Financial Liabilities:
DeEbt .. Ps.417,670,088 Ps. —  Ps. —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .. ............... 141,604,957 — —
Related parties . ..... ... 2,523,027 — —
Derivative financial instruments ....................... — 4,816,589 208,458
Total .o Ps.561,798,072 Ps.4,816,589 Ps.208,458

December 31, 2013

Fair value
Loans and through Fair value
receivables profit or loss through OCI
Financial Assets:
Accounts receivable from Subscribers, distributors, and
other,net ... .. . Ps. 96,756,472 Ps. —  Ps. —
Related parties . ........ ... i 1,346,392 — —
Derivative financial instruments . ..................... 10,469,316 —
Total .. Ps. 98,102,864 Ps.10,469,316 Ps. —
Financial Liabilities:
Debt .. Ps.490,319,844 Ps. —  Ps. —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............... 154,137,312 — —
Related parties .. ........ o 2,552,337 — —
Derivative financial instruments . ..................... — 5,179,024 187,299
Total .. Ps.647,009,493 Ps. 5,179,024 Ps.187,299

Fair value hierarchy

The Company’s valuation techniques used to determine and disclose the fair value of its financial
instruments are based on the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Variables other than quoted prices in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Variables used for the asset or liability that are not based on any observable market data (non-
observable variables).
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The fair value for the financial assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents) and financial liabilities shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position at December 31, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

Measurement of fair value at December 31, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Derivatives financial instruments .. ........ Ps. — Ps. 2,779,749 Ps.— Ps. 2,779,749
Pension planassets ..................... 225,951,661 — — 225,951,661
Total ... Ps.225,951,661 Ps. 2,779,749 Ps—  Ps.228,731,410
Liabilities:
Debt ... . Ps.326,614,401 Ps.143,258,386 Ps.—  Ps.469,872,787
Derivatives financial instruments .. ........ — 5,025,047 — 5,025,047
Total ... Ps.326,614,401 Ps.148,283,433 Ps.—  Ps.474,897,834
Measurement of fair value at December 31, 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Derivatives financial instruments ......... Ps. — Ps. 10,469,316 Ps—  Ps. 10,469,316
Pension planassets .................... 230,393,171 — — 230,393,171
Total ... Ps.230,393,171 Ps. 10,469,316 Ps.—  Ps.240,862,487
Liabilities:
Debt ........ Ps.319,838,222 Ps.200,011,820 Ps.—  Ps.519,850,042
Derivatives financial instruments ......... — 5,366,323 — 5,366,323
Total ... .. Ps.319,838,222 Ps.205,378,143 Ps.—  Ps.525,216,365

Fair value of derivatives financial instruments are valued using valuation techniques with observable market
inputs. To determine its Level 2 fair value, the Company applies valuation techniques including forward pricing
and swaps models, using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including credit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate curves. Fair value of Level 2
debt has been determined using a model based on present value calculations incorporating the credit quality of
AMX.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013, no transfers were made between Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measurement hierarchies.

15. Deferred Revenues
An analysis of deferred revenues at December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

At December 31,
2011 2012 2013

Atdanuary 1, ... Ps. 29,054,414  Ps. 29,424,475 Ps. 25,057,134
Revenue deferred during the year .. ... ... 305,334,487 192,873,749 151,159,144
Recognized as revenues ............... (306,309,173) (192,437,676) (147,434,552)
NET consolidation ................... — (3,099,829) —
Effect of translation .................. 1,344,747 (1,703,585) (660,092)
AtDecember31, ............ ... ... Ps. 29,424,475 Ps. 25,057,134 Ps. 28,121,634
Short-term ........... ... Ps. 26,248,679 23,956,939 27,016,340
Long-term ...... ... ... .. 3,175,796 1,100,195 1,105,294

Ps. 29,424,475 Ps. 25,057,134 Ps. 28,121,634
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Deferred revenues consist of revenues obtained for services that will be provided to customers within a
certain period. Deferred revenues are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income when
they are earned, including points programs.

16. Debt

a) The Company’s short- and long-term debt consists of the following:

At December 31, 2012

Currency

U.S. dollars

Mexican pesos

Euros

Sterling pounds

Swiss Francs

Brazilian Reais

Colombian pesos

Other currencies

Maturity
from
Loan Rate 2013 to Total
ECA credits (fixed rate) (ii) 2.52% 2017 Ps. 1,244,992
ECA credits (floating rate) (ii) L +0.35%, L +0.50% and 2018 4,967,924
L +0.75%
Fixed-rate notes (i) 2.375% - 8.57% 2042 196,424,526
Lines of credit 6.5% and 9.26% 2019 1,555,488
Financial Leases (Note 17) 3.75% 2015 333,972
Subtotal U.S. dollars 204,526,902
Fixed-rate notes (i) 4.10% - 9.00% 2037 56,613,388
Floating rate notes (i) Cetes + 0.55% & TIIE + 2016 22,600,000
0.40% - 1.50%
Subtotal Mexican pesos 79,213,388
Fixed rate notes (i) 3.0%, 3.75%, 4.125% and 4.75% 2022 64,365,843
Subtotal Euros 64,365,843
Fixed rate notes (i) 4.375% - 5.75% 2041 40,181,043
Subtotal Sterling pounds 40,181,043
Fixed rate notes (i) 1.125% - 2.25% 2018 10,659,357
Subtotal Swiss francs 10,659,357
Fixed-rate notes 4.50% 2018 1,920,311
Floating rate notes (i) IPCA + 0.50%% 2021 343,795
Subtotal Brazilian reais 2,264,106
Fixed-rate Senior Notes (i) IPC + 6.80% & 7.59% 2016 4,561,772
Subtotal Colombian pesos 4,561,772
Fixed-rate Senior Notes (i) 1.23% - 3.96% 2039 11,409,628
Financial Leases (Note 17) 4.35% - 8.97% 2027 246,188
Lines of credit 19.00% and 19.45% 2014 241,861
Subtotal other currencies 11,897,677

Total debt
Less: Short-term debt and

current portion of long-term

debt
Long-term debt

Ps. 417,670,088

13,621,806

Ps. 404,048,282



At December 31, 2013

Currency

U.S. dollars

Mexican pesos

Euros

Sterling pounds

Swiss francs

Reais

Colombian pesos

Other currencies

Legend:

Maturity
from
Loan Rate 2014 to Total

ECA credits (fixed rate) (ii) 2.52% 2017 Ps. 973,269
ECA credits (floating rate) L +0.35%, L + 0.50% and

(i) L +0.75% 2018 3,602,208
Fixed-rate notes (i) 2.375% - 8.57% 2042 197,427,022
Floating rate notes (i) L +1.0% 2016 9,807,375
Lines of credit 7.25% - 7.75% 2023 2,183,776
Leases (note 17) 3.75% 2015 217,525
Subtotal U.S. dollars 214,211,175
Fixed-rate notes (i) 6.45% - 9.00% 2037 61,732,805
Floating rate notes (i) TIHE +0.40% - 1.50% 2016 15,600,000
Subtotal Mexican pesos 77,332,805
Fixed rate notes (i) 3.0% - 6.375%% 2073 106,927,652
Subtotal Euros 106,927,652
Fixed rate notes (i) 4.375% - 6.375% 2073 59,539,593
Subtotal sterling pounds 59,539,593
Fixed rate notes 1.125% - 2.25% 2018 15,377,226
Subtotal swiss francs 15,377,226
Lines of credit 3.0% - 4.50% 2018 2,842,941
Subtotal Brazilian reais 2,842,941
Fixed-rate senior notes (i) 7.59% 2016 3,053,941
Subtotal Colombian pesos 3,053,941
Bonds 1.23% - 3.96% 2039 10,493,312
Leases (note 17) 5.05% - 8.97% 2027 473,117
Lines of credit 19.00% 2014 68,082
Subtotal other currencies 11,034,511

Total debt

Less: Short-term debt and
current portion of long-
term debt

Long-term debt

L = LIBOR or London Interbank Offered Rate
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Ps. 490,319,844

25,841,478

Ps. 464,478,366




TIHE = Mexican Weighted Interbank Interest Rate
IPC = Consumer Price Index

Cetes = Mexican Treasury Certificates

ECA = Export Credit Agreement

IPCA = Brazil’s consumer price index.

Except for the fixed-rate senior notes, interest rates on the Company’s debt are subject to variances in
international and local rates. The Company’s weighted-average cost of borrowed funds at December 31, 2012
and 2013 was approximately 5.0% and 4.8%, respectively.

Such rate does not include commissions or the reimbursements for Mexican tax withholdings, typically a tax
rate of 4.9%, that the Company must make to international lenders. In general, fees on financing transactions add
ten basis points to financing costs.

An analysis of the Company’s short-term debt at December 31, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

2012 2013

Local BONds ... ... Ps. 1,250,808 Ps. —
Domestic Senior Notes (Certificados Bursatiles) .. ............ 9,517,467 9,000,000
International Senior Notes . ............. ... ... ... 13,576,670
Linesofcreditused . ..... ... .. 331,820 617,295
Other loans . ...... .. oo 151,807 —
Total .. Ps. 11,251,902  Ps. 23,193,965
Weighted-average interestrate .. ............ ... oo, 6.5% 5.0%

An analysis of the Company’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Year Amount

2005 L Ps. 39,123,307
2016 .. 52,790,469
2007 32,293,410
2018 .. 12,568,158
2000 L 32,716,667
2020 and thereafter ........................... 294,986,355

Total ... Ps. 464,478,366

The outstanding Senior Notes at December 31, 2012 and 2013 are as follows:

Currency* 2012 2013
US.dollars . ... ... Ps. 196,424,526  Ps. 207,234,397
MEXICAN PESOS . . . vttt e 79,213,388 77,332,805
BUIOS .o e 64,365,843 106,927,652
Sterlingpounds ........ .. ... .. 40,181,043 59,539,593
SWISSTranCs . ... 10,659,357 15,377,226
JaPaANESE VNS . . 3,749,308 3,104,287
Chinese yuans . ........ ..o 2,088,097 2,159,870
Colombian Pesos . . ..o v i 4,561,772 3,053,941
Chilean pesos .. ...t 5,572,223 5,229,155
REAIS .. 343,795

* Thousands of Mexican pesos
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During 2013, América Movil issued 3 new notes for US$750,000 due 2016 with a coupon of Libor +100
basis points, another €750,000 due 2023 with a coupon of 3.2590%, and £300,000 due 2033 with a coupon of
4.9480%. Likewise, in March 2013 AMX reopened the program of peso-denominated notes to raise
Ps.7,500,000. Since November 2012, we have issued peso-denominated notes that can be distributed and traded
on a seamless basis in Mexico and internationally. The notes are registered with both the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Mexican Banking and Securities Commission (“CNBV”). We sold Ps.15,000,000
of notes under the program in November 2012. We intend to use the program to raise a total of Ps.100,000,000
over five years to increase the share of Mexican pesos in our overall funding.

Additionally, on September 6, 2013, América Movil issued three hybrid notes due 2073 in three tranches.
One is for €900,000 and carries a coupon of 5.125% and has a first call option on September 6, 2018, and two
others for €550,000 and £550,000 pay a 6.375% coupon and have a first call option on September 6, 2023 and
September 6, 2020, respectively.

It is important to mention that these notes are unsecured and deeply subordinated obligations and rank junior
to all our existing and/or future unsubordinated and ordinary subordinated indebtedness and senior to all existing
and future classes of shares that comprises our equity. The aforementioned notes are effectively subordinated to
all existing and/or future liabilities of our subsidiaries.

(if) Lines of credit granted or guaranteed by export credit agencies

The Company has medium- and long-term financing programs for the purchase of equipment, with certain
institutions, to promote exports and provide financial support to purchase export equipment from their respective
countries. The outstanding balance under these plans at December 31, 2012 and 2013 is approximately
Ps.6,212,915 and Ps.4,575,477, respectively.

The Company has a line of credit with Banco Inbursa, S.A. (related party) as explained in Note 18d.

(iif) Domestic Senior Notes (Certificados Bursatiles)

At December 31, 2012 and 2013, debt under domestic notes aggregates to Ps.46,841,688 and Ps.37,461,105,
respectively. Some bear interest at fixed rates, and others at variable rates based on TIIE (a Mexican interbank
rate).

(iv) Lines of Credit
At December 31, 2012 and 2013, debt under Lines of Credit aggregates to Ps.3,717,659 and Ps.5,094,799,
respectively.

In May 2011, the Company entered into two revolving syndicated facilities — one for U.S.$2,000,000 and
one for the Euro equivalent of €2,000,000. Loans under the facility bear interest at variable rates based on
LIBOR and EURIBOR.

Early payment of debt

In 2012 and 2013, the Company made advance payments against its debt with third parties of approximately
Ps.23,000,000 and Ps.19,000,000, respectively.

Restrictions (TELMEX)

A portion of the debt is subject to certain restrictions with respect to maintaining certain financial ratios, as
well as restrictions on selling a significant portion of groups of assets, among others. At December 31, 2013, the
Company was in compliance with all these requirements.
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A portion of the debt is also subject to early maturity or repurchase at the option of the holders in the event of a
change in control of the Company, as so defined in each instrument. The definition of change in control varies from
instrument to instrument; however, no change in control shall be considered to have occurred as long as Carso Global
Telecom or its current shareholders continue to hold the majority of the Company’s voting shares.

General

In conformity with its credit agreements, the Company is obligated to comply with certain financial and
operating commitments. Such covenants limit, in certain cases, the ability of the Company or the guarantor to:
pledge assets, carry out certain types of mergers, sell all or substantially all of its assets, and sell control of
Telcel.

Such covenants do not restrict the ability of AMX’s subsidiaries to pay dividends or other payment
distributions to AMX. The more restrictive financial covenants require the Company to maintain a consolidated
ratio of debt to EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization) that does not exceed 4 to 1,
and a consolidated ratio of EBITDA to interest paid that is not below 2.5 to 1 (in accordance with the clauses
included in the credit agreements). Telmex Internacional is subject to financial covenants of maintaining a ratio
of debt to EBITDA that does not exceed 3.5 to 1, and a consolidated ratio of EBITDA to interest paid that is not
below 3 to 1 (in accordance with the clauses included in the applicable credit agreements).

Several of the financing instruments of the Company are subject to early extinguishment or re-purchase, at
the option of the debt holder in the case that a change in control occurs.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2013, the Company complied with all the conditions established in our debt
agreements.

At December 31, 2013, approximately 49% of América Movil’s total outstanding consolidated debt is
guaranteed by Telcel.

b) For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the interest income is as follows:

2011 2012 2013
Investment interest . .................. Ps.6,111,798  Ps.3,859,086  Ps.2,925,834
Derivative financial instruments . ........ 742,102 1,917,514 3,319,489

Ps.6,853,900  Ps.5,776,600  Ps.6,245,323

c) For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the interest expense is as follows:

2011 2012 2013
Interest related todebt ........... Ps.(19,429,275) Ps.(22,267,771) Ps.(23,950,653)
Derivative financial instruments . . .. (1,362,331) (2,646,825) (6,399,041)

Ps.(20,791,606) Ps.(24,914,596)  Ps.(30,349,694)

d) For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, Valuation of derivatives and other financial
items was as follows:

2011 2012 2013
Gain (loss) in valuation of derivatives .................... Ps.10,889,940 Ps. (5,346,179) Ps. 5,921,504
Capitalized interest expense . . ... 3,845,609 3,152,811 3,002,576
COMMISSIONS & o\ ottt e et e (1,924,477) (1,931,790) (1,839,467)
Interest cost of labor obligations (Note 12) ................ (3,430,519) (3,930,342) (3,971,100)
Interest exXpense oNtaxes . ....... ... .. (2,750,769) (1,386,410) (4,228,155)
Loss on partial sale of investment in associated company .. .. — (795,028) (896,956)
Other financial cost ........... ... ... ... .. ... .. (1,882,518) (2,298,770) (3,200,385)

Ps. 4,747,266 Ps.(12,535,708) Ps.(5,211,983)
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17. Commitments and Contingencies
a) Leases

At December 31, 2012 and 2013, the Company has entered into several lease agreements with related
parties and third parties for the buildings where its offices are located (as a lessee), as well as with the owners of
premises where the Company has installed radio bases. The lease agreements generally have terms from one to
fourteen years.

An analysis of the minimum rental payments for the next five years is shown below. In some cases, rental
amounts are increased each year based on the National Consumer Price Index.

At December 31, 2013, the Company has the following non-cancelable commitments under finance leases:

Year ended December 31 2012 2013
2003 . Ps.221,580 Ps. —
2014 154,516 278,957
2015 . 127,019 246,821
2016 .. 32,557 140,425
2007 32,557 30,552
2018 . 95,680 30,552
2019 and thereafter ....................... 59,814

Total ..o 663,909 787,121

Less: amounts representing finance charges ........ (83,749) (96,479)

Present value of net minimum lease payments . ... .. 580,160 690,642

Lesscurrentportion ............. .. ..., 205,873 246,598

Long-termobligations .. ....................... Ps.374,287  Ps.444,044

An analysis of non-cancellable operating leases in the next five years is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2014 Ps.10,494,670
2005 7,411,872
2006 L 5,400,645
2007 5,072,854
2018 4,773,648
2019 and thereafter .. ......... ... ... ... .. .. ... 17,212,837

Total ... Ps.50,366,526

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was Ps.11,658,034, Ps.14,800,464 and
Ps.16,023,781, respectively.

b) Commitments

At December 31, 2013, there were commitments in certain subsidiaries for the acquisition of equipment for
incorporation into their GSM, 3G and 4G networks for an amount up to approximately US$1,158,000
(approximately Ps.15,146,947). The estimated completion period for these projects in progress ranges from 3 to 6
months, depending on the type of project and the equipment supplier, as well as the type of asset.

F-71



These commitments will be paid as follows:

Lessthanlyear ............ccovuiiiiinnennnnn.. Ps.13,692,840
Lto3Years ... 1,454,107

Total .. Ps.15,146,947

As of December 31, 2013, the Company has outstanding purchase commitments with telephone
manufacturers for cellular phones for resale for approximately Ps.3,592.1 million (US$274.7 million), for
delivery through May 2014.

In addition, the Company’s subsidiary Tracfone has entered into long-term contracts with wireless carriers
for the purchase of airtime minutes at current market prices. The purchase commitments are with four carriers,
and at December 31, 2013, are as follows:

Lessthanlyear ...........c.coiiiiiniinnnnnann.. Ps.37,381,594
Lt 3Years ..o 42,743,496

Total ... Ps.80,125,090

c) Contingencies

Mexico

Telcel

COFECO—Monopolistic practices investigations

Radiomovil Dipsa, S.A. de C.V. (“Telcel”), is the target of two investigations into alleged monopolistic
practices originally commenced by the Federal Antitrust Commission (Comision Federal de Competencia, or
“COFECO”). One concerns alleged actions by Telcel and certain of its distributors in relation to the purchase and
sale of cellular phones from and to third parties. COFECO determined that Telcel engaged in anti-competitive
behavior, and the agency imposed fines totaling Ps.3.3 million and ordered that Telcel cease the alleged
monopolistic practices immediately. Telcel has challenged COFECO’s findings and fines in the courts. No final
ruling has been issued. The Company has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements
for loss arising from these contingencies.

The second investigation concerns alleged monopolistic practices in the mobile termination
(interconnection) market. In April 2011, COFECO imposed a fine of Ps.11,989 million against Telcel for alleged
monopolistic practices that according to COFECO also constituted a repeat offense. In May 2011, Telcel
challenged the fine through an administrative appeal (recurso de reconsideracidon), before COFECO and
proposed a series of undertakings to COFECO related to the alleged monopolistic practices. In May 2012,
COFECO revoked the fine. As a condition to the revocation of the fine, Telcel agreed to comply with the
undertakings that it proposed to COFECO. As a result of a constitutional amendment enacted in 2013, the
Federal Telecommunications Institute (Instituto Federal de Telecomunicaciones or “IFT”), is responsible for
monitoring Telcel’s compliance with respect to such undertakings. Six mobile operators challenged the
revocation of the fine through an appeal for relief (juicio de amparo), and four of such proceedings have now
been resolved on terms favorable to Telcel.

As part of the undertakings agreed upon with COFECO, Telcel issued terms of reference governing
interconnection with its network, including mobile termination rates for the period from 2011 to 2014. Such
terms are available for all operators terminating calls in Telcel’s network. As a result of changes to the legal
regime governing Mexican telecommunications services, the mobile termination rates Telcel will charge during
2014 will be different than those agreed upon with COFECO.
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The IFT will oversee compliance by Telcel with the agreed undertakings and, upon any breach by Telcel,
the IFT may impose a fine of up to 8% of Telcel’s annual revenues. Telcel is in full compliance with the agreed
undertakings.

Mobile termination rates

Mobile termination rates for the years 2005 through 2010 between Telcel and affiliated operators Axtel and
Avantel were the subject of a number of legal proceedings. The Supreme Court of Justice (Suprema Corte de
Justicia de la Nacion) addressed these disputes in a series of rulings during 2012 and early 2013, which generally
(i) determined that the Mexican Ministry of Communications and Transportation (Secretaria de Comunicaciones
y Transportes or “SCT”), does not have authority to resolve disputes over mobile termination rates,

(i) confirmed that the Federal Telecommunications Commission (Comisién Federal de Telecomunicaciones, or
“COFETEL"), has authority to determine mobile termination rates based on its own cost models, (iii) for certain
periods (2005-2007), confirmed the rates established by COFETEL, and (iv) for other periods (2008-2010),
required COFETEL to reissue resolutions determining mobile termination rates between the parties. Such
resolutions are still pending.

Several mobile operators began proceedings with COFETEL (desacuerdos de interconexion), to establish
applicable mobile termination rates and other interconnection conditions for the years 2011 to 2013. COFETEL
determined rates for 2011, but not for 2012 and 2013. As a result of changes to the Mexican telecommunications
laws, the IFT is now responsible for determining rates for 2012 and 2013. Such resolutions are still pending.

On March 26, 2014, the IFT issued a resolution imposing on Telcel a specified interconnection rate it must
charge to all operators for traffic to Telcel’s network for the period commencing on April 6 and ending on
December 31, 2014. The rate was reduced from Ps.0.3490 to Ps.0.2045. Telcel has filed an appeal for relief
(juicio de amparo), against the IFT’s resolution.

Reduction in mobile termination rates and any potential disparity between the mobile termination rates
made available by Telcel to other operators and the rates to be established by the IFT for the years 2012 to 2013
may give rise to contractual claims among Telcel and other operators for reimbursement or payment, as the case
may be, of amounts paid or owed between Telcel and such operators. The Company expects that these mobile
termination rates will continue to be the subject of litigation and administrative proceedings. The Company
cannot predict when or how these matters will be resolved. The competitive and financial effects of any
resolution could be complex and difficult to predict.

The Company has established provisions in the accompanying financial statements for the losses AMX
considers probable and estimable for approximately Ps.2,500 million, but the Company cannot estimate the
amount of possible loss.

Short Message Services (SMS)—Rates

On March 26, 2014, the IFT issued a resolution imposing on Telcel a specified SMS termination rate it must
charge to all mobile operators for the period commencing on April 6 and ending on December 31, 2014. The rate
was reduced from Ps.0.1537 to Ps.0.0391. Telcel has filed an appeal for relief (juicio de amparo), against the
IFT’s resolution.

Short Message Services (SMS)—Royalties

The Mexican Tax Administration Service (Servicio de Administracion Tributaria or “SAT”), notified Telcel
of tax assessments totaling Ps.320 million alleging nonpayment of royalties for revenues generated by short
message services during 2004 and 2005. The SAT is alleging that Telcel owes such amounts because short
message services constitute concessioned services. AMX has challenged the assessments on the grounds that
short message services are value-added services that are not concessioned services. In other proceedings,

F-73



COFETEL and more recently its successor, the IFT, have ruled that short text messages are subject to the
interconnection regulatory regime and that such services do not constitute value-added services and are therefore
concessioned services. AMX has established a provision in the accompanying financial statements for the loss
arising from these contingencies that the Company considers probable.

Trademarks Tax Assessments

In 2006 and 2007, the SAT notified Telcel and the Company of assessments related to the deduction in 2003
of certain trademark payments, which the SAT asserted should have been taken over the course of several years
and not in a single year. These claims were settled in 2013.

In December 2007, the SAT notified Telcel of an assessment of Ps.453.6 million (Ps.243.6 million plus
adjustments, fines and late fees), in connection with a deduction of certain advertising expenses in 2004. SAT
took the position that the payments of advertising expenses were not deductible because Telcel also paid royalties
relating to the same trademarks. In July 2011, SAT notified the Company of an assessment of Ps.773.0 million
(Ps.292 million plus adjustments, fines and late fees), related to the same payments described in the December
2007 assessment above. Under the consolidation regime applicable in Mexico at the time, Telcel was permitted
to take up to 40% of the deduction, while the parent company was permitted to take the remaining 60%. This
July 2011 assessment relates to the Company’s portion of the deduction. These claims were settled in 2013.

Class Actions

The Federal Consumer Bureau (Procuraduria Federal del Consumidor, or “Profeco”™), filed an action
similar to a class action in Mexican courts on behalf of customers who filed complaints before it, alleging
deficiencies in the quality of Telcel’s network in 2010 and breach of customer agreements. If the action is
resolved in favor of Profeco, Telcel’s customers would be entitled to compensation for damages.

Beginning in 2012, Mexican Law provides for class actions seeking compensation. These class actions may
arise from antitrust, consumer, data and privacy protection issues, as well as administrative, criminal and
environmental violations, and may be filed by the competent authorities or the affected groups.

Five class actions have been initiated against Telcel (i) three are related to quality of service and were filed
by consumers; (ii) one also filed by consumers is related to quality of service, but in addition compares wireless
voice, data and broadband international rates claiming that rates offered by Telcel are higher than international
comparable rates; and (iii) one was filed by Profeco and relates to a network technical malfunction that occurred
in January 2013.

The Company currently does not have enough information to determine whether these class actions could
have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations if they are resolved against us. Consequently,
Telcel has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements for loss arising from these
contingencies.

Carso Global Telecom

In November 2010, the SAT notified Carso Global Telecom, S.A. de C.V. (“CGT?”), of an assessment of
Ps.3,392 million related to the change in the scope of fiscal consolidation in 2005. SAT alleges that this change
generated a reduction in the participation of CGT in its subsidiaries, resulting in increased income taxes. CGT
has challenged this assessment in federal tax courts, and this challenge is still pending. AMX has not established
a provision in the accompanying financial statements for loss arising from this contingency.

Sercotel

In August 2011, SAT notified Sercotel, S.A. de C.V. (“Sercotel”), of an assessment of Ps.6,308 million
related to withholding taxes, interest payments and certain income that SAT contends should have been reported
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at Sercotel in 2005. Sercotel paid Ps.118 million related to withholding taxes and interest payments and
challenged the portion of the assessment related to the income reporting in an administrative appeal with the tax
authority. In 2013, Sercotel obtained a partial favorable resolution, and the SAT reduced the amount of the
assessment considerably. In May 2013, Sercotel invoked the benefits derived from a tax amnesty program
(programa de amnistia fiscal) offered by SAT and settled the claim.

In March 2012, SAT notified Sercotel and the Company of a fine of approximately Ps.1,400 million because
of the SAT’s objection to the allegedly improper tax implications of the transfer of certain accounts receivable
from one of the Company’s subsidiaries to Sercotel. AMX challenged the fine by filing an administrative appeal
with the tax authority which is still pending. The Company also expects SAT will issue tax assessments of
Ps.2,750 million relating to the same matter.

In December 2012, SAT notified Sercotel of an assessment of Ps.4,824 million related to income that SAT
contends should have been reported at Sercotel in 2006. Sercotel challenged the assessment related to the
taxability in an administrative appeal with the tax authority. In 2013, Sercotel obtained a partial favorable
resolution, and the SAT reduced the amount of the assessment considerably. In May 2013, Sercotel invoked the
benefits derived from a tax amnesty program (programa de amnistia fiscal) offered by the SAT and settled the
claim.

The Company has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements for loss arising from
these contingencies.

Telmex
COFECO/IFT—Monopolistic practices investigations

Teléfonos de México, S.A.B. de C.V. (“Telmex”) and Teléfonos del Noroeste, S.A. de C.V. (“Telnor”), are
the target of three investigations into alleged monopolistic practices originally commenced by COFECO. In the
first two investigations, it was determined that Telmex and Telnor engaged in monopolistic practices in the fixed-
network interconnection services market. Telmex and Telnor have filed legal proceedings (including an appeal
for relief (juicio de amparo), against these rulings and their cases are pending resolution. In the third
investigation, in February 2013 COFECO determined that Telmex and Telnor engaged in monopolistic practices
in the wholesale market for dedicated-link leasing (local and domestic long-distance). Telmex and Telnor
challenged that resolution and their cases are still pending.

AMX cannot predict when or how these investigations will be resolved. The competitive and financial
effects of any final findings by the IFT could be complex and difficult to predict. They may include monetary
fines or additional regulations or restrictions that may limit our flexibility and our ability to adopt competitive
market policies, any of which could materially reduce Telmex and Telnor’s revenues in future periods.

AMX has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements for loss arising from these
contingencies.

Proceedings Concerning Telmex’s Relationship with Dish México

As previously disclosed, in November 2008, Telmex entered into several agreements with Dish México, S.
de R.L. de C.V. (“Dish México”), and its affiliates, which operate a DTH Pay TV system in Mexico, pursuant to
which Telmex is currently providing billing and collection services, among others. Subject to obtaining specific
government authorizations, Telmex could invest directly in a joint venture with Dish México.

AMX and Telmex have been subject to investigations in the past related to these arrangements. Recently,
they have received new inquiries from governmental authorities on this subject including inquiries from the IFT
and the Mexican National Banking and Securities Commission (Comision Nacional Bancaria y de Valores or
“CNBV”). Although the Company cannot predict the outcome of these inquiries, AMX is confident that our
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actions in connection with our relationship with this customer have been appropriate in all respects, because the
arrangements were limited to providing services, providing financial support (in the form of leasing equipment
and committing to locate fallback financing) and agreeing to purchase and sale options that could result in
Telmex investing in the customer if specified regulatory conditions were met, including the approval from the
relevant competent authorities. The Company does not believe these arrangements have at any time been material
to our results, our financial condition or our compliance with our regulatory obligations.

However, the 2013 constitutional amendments prohibit a preponderant economic agent from obtaining direct
or indirect benefit from the free of charge mandatory “must offer, must carry” rules for cable television providers.
In March 2014, the IFT determined that Telmex is part of an economic group that is a preponderant economic
agent, and consequently Telmex may not benefit from these rules. We will ensure that Telmex does not benefit
from any application of the “must offer, must carry” rules.

AMX has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements for loss arising from these
contingencies.

Brazil
Claro Brasil and Americel
Anatel Inflation-Related Adjustments

The Brazilian National Telecommunications Agency (Agéncia Nacional de Telecomunicaces or “Anatel”),
challenged the calculation of inflation-related adjustments due under the agreements it had with Tess, S.A.
(“Tess”), and ATL-Telecom Leste, S.A. (“ATL”), two of our Brazilian subsidiaries that were merged with and
into Claro Brasil, S.A. (“Claro Brasil”), which assumed their rights and obligations.

Under the agreements with Anatel, 40% of the concession price was due upon execution and 60% was due
in three equal annual installments (subject to inflation-related adjustments and interest), beginning in 1999. The
companies made all payments, but Anatel challenged the companies’ calculation of the inflation-related
adjustments related to the payment corresponding to 60% of the concession price, alleging that such calculation
resulted in a shortfall, and requesting additional payment. The amount of this shortfall and the method used to
calculate monetary correction are subject to judicial disputes.

The companies filed declaratory and consignment actions seeking resolution of the disputes. The court of
first instance ruled against ATL’s declaratory suit in October 2001 and ATL’s consignment action in September
2002. Subsequently, ATL filed appeals, which are still pending. Similarly, the court of first instance ruled against
Tess’ consignment action in June 2003 and against Tess’ filing for declaratory action in February 2009. Tess also
filed an appeal, which is still pending.

In December 2008, Anatel charged Tess approximately Ps.1,501 million (approximately R$269 million).
Tess obtained an injunction from the Federal Court of Appeals suspending payment until the pending appeal is
resolved. Similarly, in March 2009, Anatel charged ATL approximately Ps.1,066 million (approximately
R$191 million). ATL also obtained an injunction from the Federal Court of Appeals suspending payment until
the pending appeal is resolved. In April 2013, the appeal filed by ATL with respect to the declaratory suit was
denied, and Claro Brasil filed a new appeal.

The Company calculated the amount of the shortfall based on a specific method and certain assumptions. If
other methods or assumptions are used, the amount of damages may increase. In December 2013, Anatel
calculated monetary correction in a total amount of Ps.8,317 million (approximately R$1,490 million).

The Company has established a provision of Ps.3,215 million (approximately R$576 million), in the
accompanying financial statements for loss arising from these contingencies, which AMX considers probable.

F-76



Consumer Protection Lawsuit (DPDC)

In July 2009, the Brazilian Federal and State Prosecutor Office, along with the Consumer Protection and
Defense Agency and other Brazilian consumer protection agencies, initiated a lawsuit against Claro Brasil
alleging that it has violated certain regulations governing the provision of telecommunications services. The
amount claimed by the plaintiffs is Ps.1,675 million (approximately R$300 million). In September 2013, the
relevant court ruled against Claro Brasil, and awarded the plaintiff Ps.167 million (approximately R$30 million).
The plaintiffs and Claro Brasil challenged the ruling and those challenges are still pending.

The Company has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements to cover loss arising
from this contingency, which the Company does not consider probable.

Tax assessments against Americel and Claro Brasil (PIS/COFINS)

In December 2005, the Brazilian Federal Revenue Service issued tax assessments against Claro Brasil and
Americel in respect of PIS (Programa de Integracéo Social) and COFINS (Contribui¢éo para o Financiamento
da Seguridade Social) taxes (which are levied on gross revenue), for 2000 through 2005. In addition, in March
2006, the Brazilian Federal Revenue Service issued tax assessments against ATL related to certain tax deductions
taken by ATL in connection with its PIS and COFINS obligations. As discussed above, Claro Brasil is the
corporate successor to ATL.

In January 2011, the Brazilian Federal Revenue Service issued tax assessments against Claro Brasil
regarding allegedly improper offsetting of certain tax deductions claimed by Claro Brasil in connection with its
PIS and COFINS obligations. The total amount of these tax assessments, which Americel and Claro Brasil are
contesting in pending challenges, was Ps.7,898 million (approximately R$1,415 million), including fines and
interest as of December 31, 2013. The Company has established a provision of Ps.48 million (approximately
R$8.6 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these contingencies that AMX
considers probable.

Separately, Claro Brasil and Americel have commenced lawsuits against the Brazilian Federal Revenue
Service seeking a ruling on constitutional grounds that they may exclude state value added tax (ICMS) payments
and interconnection fees from the base used to calculate PIS and COFINS tax obligations. Pending a final ruling
and pursuant to applicable Brazilian procedure, the Company paid tax based on its position in the lawsuit, and
established a provision for the disputed amounts. The total amount in dispute was approximately Ps.9,054 million
(approximately R$1,622 million).

ICMS Tax Credits

The Brazilian Federal Revenue Service has issued multiple tax assessments against Claro Brasil and
Americel alleging that they improperly claimed certain tax credits under the state value added tax (Imposto sobre
Operacoes relativas a Circulacao de Mercadorias e sobre Prestagdes de Servigos de Transporte Interestadual e
Intermunicipal e de Comunicagéo or “ICMS”) regime in each Brazilian state. The Company is contesting all of
these tax assessments in multiple separate proceedings, first at the administrative level and then in the judicial
courts, and these proceedings are at various stages. AMX has received rulings in some of these cases, including
some that are unfavorable, which the Company has appealed. The total amount of the tax assessments is
approximately Ps.15,417 million (approximately R$2,762 million), including fines and interest as of
December 31, 2013. The Company has established a provision of Ps.977 million (approximately R$175 million),
in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these contingencies that the Company
considers probable.

Tax Credit for Income Tax Withheld Abroad

The Brazilian Federal Revenue Service has issued tax assessments in the amount of Ps.1,937 million
(approximately R$347 million), against Claro Brasil alleging that it incorrectly offset tax withheld in other
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countries against some of its Brazilian tax obligations. During 2011, Claro Brasil terminated its challenge with
respect to Ps.1,379 million (approximately R$247 million), in tax assessments and paid those amounts to the
Brazilian Federal Revenue Service, to preserve the right to offset the foreign tax withheld related to such tax
assessments against its Brazilian tax obligations in future years. The total amount of the tax assessments that
Claro Brasil is contesting as of December 31, 2013 is approximately Ps.614 million (approximately R$110
million). The Company has not made a provision in the accompanying financial statements to cover loss arising
from this contingency.

EBC Funding

Claro Brasil and Americel have filed an injunction challenging a federal law that created the Brazilian
Communication Company (Empresa Brasileira de Comunicagéo or “EBC”) that is to be partially funded by
mobile operators. If Claro Brasil and Americel are unsuccessful in their challenge, the total amount they would
be required to contribute to EBC through December 31, 2013 is approximately Ps.2,406 million (approximately
R$431 million). AMX has made a judicial deposit in this amount. The Company has established a provision of
Ps.2,406 million (approximately R$431 million), in the accompanying financial statements for loss arising from
this contingency, which AMX considers probable.

FUST and FUNTTEL Funding

Anatel has issued tax assessments against Claro Brasil and Americel totaling Ps.5,805 million
(approximately R$1,040 million), relating to alleged underpayment of their funding obligations for the
Telecommunications System Universalization Fund (Fundo de Universalizacdo dos Servicos de
Telecomunicagdes or “FUST”) and the Telecom Technologic Development Fund (Fundo para o
Desenvolvimento Tecnoldgico das Telecomunicagdes or “FUNTTEL”) from 2006 to 2010. The assessments
claim that interconnection and activation fee revenues should not have been excluded from the basis used to
calculate funding obligations. Claro Brasil and Americel have challenged the tax assessments, and the challenges
are still pending. The Company has not made a provision in the accompanying financial statements to cover loss
arising from this contingency.

TFI—Installation Inspection Fee

Anatel charged Claro Brasil and Americel the amount of Ps.8,032 million (approximately R$1,439 million)
as of December 31, 2013, related to the installation inspection fee (Taxa de Fiscalizacéo de Instalac&o or “TFI”)
allegedly due for the renewal of radio base stations and handsets. Claro Brasil and Americel have challenged the
amount charged, arguing that there was no new equipment installation that could lead to this charge, and the
challenges are still pending. AMX has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements and
does not consider any loss to be probable.

Other tax contingencies

Claro Brasil and Americel have other on-going tax litigations in the total amount of Ps.1,189 million
(approximately R$213 million) as of December 31, 2013, mostly related to the Brazilian Services Tax (Imposto
sobre Servigos or “ISS”), Brazilian Economic Intervention Contribution (Contribuicdo de Intervengdo no
Dominio Econdmico or “CIDE”), income tax (Imposto da Renda or “IR”), social contribution on net income
(Contribuicdo Social sobre o Lucro Liquido or “CSLL”), public price concerning the administration of
numbering resources (Preco Publico Relativo a Administracdo dos Recursos de Numeracao or “PPNUM”) and
import tax (Imposto de Importagéo or “II”’). The Company has established a provision of Ps.104 million
(approximately R$18.6 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these
contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Other civil and labor contingencies

Claro Brasil and its subsidiaries are also party to other claims in the amount of Ps.9,260 million
(approximately R$1,659 million), including claims filed by its telephone service customers and claims relating to
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environmental matters. The Company is contesting the cases, which are in various stages. The Company has
established a provision of Ps.575 million (approximately R$103 million), in the accompanying financial
statements for the loss arising from these contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Claro Brasil and its subsidiaries are party to labor claims in the amount of Ps.5,498 million (approximately
R$985 million), filed by its current and former employees, alleging compensation for pension and other social
benefits, overtime work, outsourcing and equal pay. The Company has established a provision of Ps.737 million
(approximately R$132 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these
contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Disputes with third parties

Claro Brasil and Americel are parties to certain disputes with third parties in connection with former sales
agents, class actions (ACP’s), real estate issues, and other matters in the aggregate amount of Ps.2,757 million
(approximately R$494 million). The Company has established a provision of Ps.81 million (approximately
R$14.6 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these contingencies that
AMX considers probable.

Administrative proceedings (PADOs)

Anatel filed several administrative proceedings (Procedimentos Administrativos de Descumprimento de
Obrigagdo or “PADOs”), against Claro Brasil in the amount of Ps.586 million (approximately R$105 million),
because of alleged noncompliance with quality targets set by Anatel. The Company is contesting the PADOSs on
various grounds. The Company has established a provision of Ps.363 million (approximately R$65 million), in
the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these contingencies that AMX considers
probable.

Embrapar and subsidiaries
Implementation of the new national domestic telephone number system

As a result of alleged service disruptions caused during the implementation of a new domestic dialing
system in 1999, Embratel was fined by Anatel and DPDC, and several class actions were initiated against it. The
aggregate total amount of these contingencies is Ps.1,024 million (approximately R$183.5 million). The
Company is contesting these claims and has established a provision of Ps.161 million (approximately R$28.8
million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these contingencies that AMX
considers probable.

Administrative proceedings (PADOSs)

Anatel filed several administrative proceedings (PADOSs), against Embratel and Embrapar in the amount of
Ps.4,170 million (approximately R$747 million), because of alleged noncompliance with quality targets set by
Anatel. The Company is contesting the PADQOs on various grounds. The Company has established a provision of
Ps.125 million (approximately R$22.5 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising
from these contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Brazilian value-added goods and services tax (ICMS)

Embratel, Primesys Solugdes Empresariais S.A. (“Primesys”), TV SAT and Telmex Do Brasil Ltda.
(“TdB”) received assessments in the amount of Ps.6,955 million (approximately R$1,246 million), from the tax
authorities related to nonpayment of ICMS and alleged ICMS tax credits that were incorrectly taken. The
Company is contesting these tax assessments in multiple separate proceedings at the administrative level and in
the judicial courts. These proceedings are in different stages, and AMX cannot predict the timing of a final
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outcome. The Company has established a provision of Ps.240 million (approximately R$43 million), in the
accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Star One has received tax assessments in the amount of Ps.13,413 million (approximately R$2,403 million),
alleging that the provision of satellite capacity is subject to ICMS tax. The Company is contesting these tax
assessments in multiple separate proceedings, and the Company has obtained two appealable favorable judicial
decisions in two proceedings by second degree Brazilian Courts, although a resolution is still pending for the
majority of the proceedings. The Company has not established a provision in the accompanying financial
statements to cover loss arising from this contingency.

Brazilian Social Welfare Tax on Service Exports (PIS)

Embrapar, Embratel, Brasil Center Ltda. (“Brasil Center”) and TdB have tax contingencies of Ps.117
million (approximately R$21 million), mostly related to the contributions of PIS prior to 1995, which the tax
authorities allege were incorrectly offset. The Company is contesting these tax assessments in proceedings that
are in different stages. AMX has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements and does
not consider any loss to be probable.

Brazilian Social Welfare Tax for Service Export Security Tax (COFINS)

Embrapar, Embratel, Brasil Center and TdB have tax contingencies of Ps.1,111 million (approximately
R$199 million), at December 31, 2013 related to the payment of COFINS. The Company is contesting these tax
assessments in proceedings that are in different stages. AMX has established a provision of Ps.61 million
(approximately R$11 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these
contingencies that AMX considers probable.

FUST and FUNTTEL Funding

Anatel and the Brazilian Ministry of Communications (MINICOM) have issued tax assessments against
Embratel, Star One and Primesys totaling Ps.7,083 million (approximately R$1,269 million), relating to alleged
underpayment of their funding obligations for FUST and FUNTTEL. The assessments claim that interconnection
and others revenues should not have been excluded from the basis used to calculate funding obligations. The
companies have challenged the tax assessments, and such challenges are pending. The Company has not
established a provision in the accompanying financial statements to cover loss arising from these contingencies.
The Company has made a judicial deposit in the amount of Ps.954 million (approximately R$171 million) related
to part of the contingencies relating to FUST.

Brazilian Services Tax (ISS)

The Municipal Revenue Services have issued tax assessments against Embratel, Primesys, Brasil Center and
TdB totaling Ps.4,549 million (approximately R$815 million) arising from nonpayment of ISS in connection with
the provision of certain services. The companies have challenged the tax assessments on the grounds that such
services are not subject to ISS tax, and the challenges are pending. The Company has not established a provision
in the accompanying financial statements to cover loss arising from these contingencies.

Other tax contingencies

The Company’s Brazilian subsidiaries are engaged in a number of additional administrative and legal
proceedings challenging tax assessments, as summarized below:

+  Embrapar, Embratel, Star One and TdB have received assessments in the total amount of Ps.7,524
million (approximately R$1,348 million), mainly related to allegedly incorrect deductions for purposes
of Income Tax (Imposto sobre Renda de Pessoa Juridica or “IRPJ””) and CSLL and the nonpayment of
IRRF and CIDE over payments related to outbound traffic. AMX is challenging those assessments in
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administrative and judicial proceedings. The Company has established a provision of Ps.11 million
(approximately R$2 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these
contingencies that AMX considers probable.

«  Embratel was fined Ps.1,691 million (approximately R$303 million), by the Brazilian Federal Revenue
Service for not making certain filings in the correct form from 2002 through 2005. The Company is
contesting this fine on various grounds. The Company has not established a provision in the
accompanying financial statements to cover loss arising from this contingency.

»  Embratel, Star One, TdB and Primesys, have other on-going tax litigations in the amount of Ps.2,104
million (approximately R$377 million), mainly related to IPI, CPMF and the offsetting of IRPJ,
COFINS, CSLL and Brazilian Foreign Paid Income Tax (Imposto de Renda Retido na Fonte or
“IRRF”) against allegedly improper IRPJ credits. The Company has established a provision of Ps.56
million (approximately R$10 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising
from these contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Disputes with third parties

Embratel, TdB, Primesys and Brasil Center are parties to a number of cases on a range of matters, including,
among other things, disputes with former sales agents and disputes with former employees regarding health care
payments. The cases, which are in advanced stages of the litigation process, are for claims in the amount of
Ps.2,461 million (approximately R$441 million). The Company has established a provision of Ps.999 million
(approximately R$179 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these
contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Other civil and labor contingencies

Embratel and its subsidiaries are also party to other claims in the amount of Ps.2,858 million (approximately
R$512 million), including claims filed by its telephone service customers and claims relating to environmental
matters. The Company is contesting the cases, which are in various stages. The Company has established a
provision of Ps.268 million (approximately R$48 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss
arising from these contingencies that AMX considers probable.

In April 2009, Star One was notified of an arbitration proceeding initiated against it by two international
telecom operators seeking restitution damages for up to Ps.954 million (approximately US$73 million), for
alleged commercial losses arising from contracts executed in 2002 and 2004. In December 2012, the tribunal
issued a final decision and claimants were awarded damages in the amount of Ps.54 million (approximately
US$4.1 million), which amount includes interests and arbitration costs.

Embratel and its subsidiaries are party to labor claims in the amount of Ps.3,885 million (approximately
R$696 million), filed by its current and former employees, alleging compensation for pension and other social
benefits, overtime work, outsourcing and equal pay. The Company has established a provision of Ps.586 million
(approximately R$105 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these
contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Net
ICMS

In 2011 and 2013, Net Servicos de Comunicacéo S.A. (“Net”) was assessed by the Secretary of the Treasury
of the State of Sao Paulo for the loss of the tax benefit of reducing the ICMS base it is entitled to, alleging that
Net did not include revenues from the rental of equipment in the ICMS base. The amount of this assessment as of
December 31, 2013 was Ps.2,026 (approximately R$363 million). The tax authority claims that from (i) January
2008 to November 2009; and (ii) January 2010 to December 2011, Net should have paid the ICMS on pay TV
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services revenues at a rate of 25% instead of the rate of 10% actually applied by Net. In the tax authority’s view,
Net lost the rate reduction benefit allowed by ICMS Agreement N0.57/99 because Net did not include “locacdo
de equipamento” (rental of equipment) in its revenues. Net based its calculation on the interpretation of the
Brazilian Superior Court that the rental of equipment should not be confused with a subscription TV service, and
therefore cannot be taxed by ICMS and, consequently, Net should not lose the tax benefit, as alleged by the tax
authority. However, there is no specific precedent (at either the administrative or judicial levels) on the issue, and
it is not possible to predict the outcome of this matter. The Company has established a provision in the
accompanying financial statements.

In 2008 and 2010, Net Brasilia Ltda. (“Net Brasilia”), a Net subsidiary, received tax assessment notices
from the State Internal Revenue of the Distrito Federal in the amounts of Ps.1,149 million (approximately
R$155.4 million and R$50.5 million), respectively, as of December, 2013, relating to the ICMS tax. The tax
authority claims that during the period from January 2003 to June 2009 Net Brasilia should have paid the ICMS
on Pay TV services revenues at a rate of 25% instead of the rate of 10% actually applied by Net Brasilia. In the
tax authority’s view, the rate reduction benefit allowed by ICMS Agreement No. 57/99 expired on December 31,
2001. The Company has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements to cover loss
arising from these contingencies.

Net Rio Ltda. (“Net Rio”), a Net subsidiary, received a tax assessment notice from the State Tax Authority
of the State of Rio de Janeiro in the updated amount of Ps.1,367 million (approximately R$245 million) relating
to the ICMS tax. The tax authority alleged that as a result of delays in the payment of its ICMS tax during the
period from November and December 2001. Thus, Net Rio lost its rate reduction benefit until September 2002.
Net Rio has recorded liabilities related to the period from November and December 2001 in the amount of Ps.210
million (approximately R$37.6 million). Based on analysis performed by legal counsel after an unfavorable
decision from the lower court Net Rio made an additional provision to the period from January to September
2002 in the amount of Ps.1,150 million (approximately R$206 million), as of December, 2013.

CSLL/IRPJ

In 2009, Net Sdo Paulo Ltda., a Net subsidiary, received a tax assessment issued by the Brazilian Internal
Revenue Service questioning part of the expenses considered as deductible in its calculation of IRPJ and CSLL
from 2004 to 2008, amounting to Ps.3,053 million (approximately R$547 million). In October 2010, a first
instance decision reduced this amount to Ps.2,071 million (approximately R$371 million). As of December 31,
2013, the total amount dispute is Ps.2,657 million (approximately R$476 million). Net has determined that a loss
is possible but not probable and accordingly AMX has not established a provision in the accompanying financial
statements.

In 2012 and 2013, Net received a tax assessment in the amount of Ps.770 million (approximately R$138
million) issued by the Brazilian Internal Revenue Service. The tax assessment questioned part of the expenses
considered as deductible in our calculation of income tax and social contribution bases for the period between
2007 and 2008 related to its subsidiaries Net Belo Horizonte Ltda, Net Rio and Net Brasilia. Net has determined
that a loss is possible but not probable and accordingly AMX has not established a provision in the
accompanying financial statements.

Imposto sobre Operacdes Financeiras (I0OF)

Net and its controlled companies have centralized cash management and cash transfers made under a current
intercompany account. Management determined that such transfers are not subject to financial transaction tax
IOF charges. However, the Federal Revenue Service may deem such transfers to be inter-company loans. In the
event such transfers are deemed to be inter-company loans, AMX may be subject to IOF, on the amount of the
loans. IOF applies to loans between non-financial entities at a maximum rate of 1.5% per year where the
principal amount and the term for repayment is fixed, and at a daily rate of 0.0041% on the outstanding balance,
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without limit on the total amount of tax payable, if the principal amount of the loan is not fixed. In view of
certain adverse court decisions as to the applicability of this law, the Company has established a provision of
Ps.569 million (approximately R$102 million) as of December 31, 2013.

Other civil and labor contingencies

Net and its subsidiaries are also party to other claims in the amount of Ps.2,484 million (approximately
R$445 million), including claims filed by its Pay TV, internet access and telephone service customers. The
Company is contesting the cases, which are in various stages. The Company has established a provision of
Ps.636 million (approximately R$114 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from
these contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Net and its subsidiaries are party to labor claims in the amount of Ps.3,349 million (approximately R$600
million), filed by its current and former employees, seeking additional compensation for performing high-risk
acivities and for overtime work and commissions. The Company has established a provision of Ps.625 million
(approximately R$112 million), in the accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these
contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Ecuador
Conecel
Tax Assessments

During 2008, the Ecuadorian Revenue Services (“SRI”), notified Conecel of tax assessments in the amount
of Ps.1,804 million (approximately US$138 million) (not including interest and penalties), relating to special
consumption (ICE), value-added, income and withholding taxes for the years 2003 to 2006. In March 2008,
Conecel paid SRI Ps.183 million (approximately US$14 million), for these tax assessments (including fines) and
filed challenges with the SRI with respect to Ps.1,661 million (approximately US$127 million). In December
2008, SRI notified Conecel of a resolution that denied the challenges and in January 2009, Conecel filed a
lawsuit before a Tax Court in Guayaquil challenging the tax assessments and providing a bank guarantee of
Ps.170 million (approximately US$13 million), which represented 10% of the contested amount. The Tax Court
issued its final resolution in March 2012. The Tax Court’s resolution was favorable with respect to Ps.314
million (US$24 million), of the disputed amount. The Company has appealed the unfavorable portion of the
resolution before the National Court of Justice (Corte Nacional de Justicia), and in July 2013, Conecel made a
partial withdrawal of its appeal and as a result made a payment to SRI for an amount of Ps.1,216 million
(approximately US$93 million considering the payment of the accrued interest). A resolution for the remaining
portion of the tax assessment (approximately Ps.709 million (US$54.2 million)) is still subject to the Court’s
decision.

In addition, in 2011 and 2012, SRI notified Conecel of tax assessments in the amount of Ps.1,556 million
(approximately US$119 million), relating to income taxes for the 2007, 2008 and 2009 fiscal years. Conecel filed
lawsuits before a Tax Court in Guayaquil challenging the tax assessments and such lawsuits are still pending.

The Company has established a provision of Ps.392 million (approximately US$30 million) in the
accompanying financial statements for the loss arising from these contingencies that AMX considers probable.

Fine imposed by the SCPM

In February 2014, following a regulatory claim filed in 2012 by the state-owned operator, Superintendency
of Control of Market Power (Superintendencia de Control del Poder del Mercado or “SCPM”), imposed a fine
on Conecel of Ps.1,809 million (US$138.4 million), for alleged monopolistic practices related to five locations
which the state-owned operator argues that Conecel has exclusive rights to deploy its network preventing others
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from doing so. In March 2014, Conecel challenged the fine and posted a guarantee for 50% of its value. Through
a judicial order issued during the same month, the competent court admitted Conecel’s lawsuit and suspended the
effects of the contested fine.

The Company has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements to cover loss arising
from this contingency.

Peru
Claro Peru
OSIPTEL—Monopolistic practices investigations

Along with another mobile operator, América Movil Pert, S.A.C. (“Claro Pert™), is the target of an
investigation into alleged monopolistic practices conducted by the Peruvian National Regulatory Authority
(Organismo Supervisor de la Inversién Privada en Telecomunicaciones or “OSIPTEL”), related to mobile
international long distance rates. As part of the ongoing investigation, OSIPTEL has requested certain
information from Claro Per( and a resolution is expected to be issued in the fourth quarter of 2014. If OSIPTEL
determines that Claro Perd engaged in monopolistic practices, it could impose a fine up to a 12% of the total
annual revenues generated by Claro Peru.

The Company has not established a provision in the accompanying financial statements to cover losses
arising from this contingency.

18. Related Parties

a) The following is an analysis of the balances with related parties at December 31, 2012 and 2013. All the
following companies are considered associates or affiliates of América Movil since the Company or the
Company’s principal shareholders are also direct or indirect shareholders of the related parties.

2012 2013
Acchunts receivable:
Sanborns Hermanos, S A. . ... i e Ps. 149,010 Ps. 235,075
Sears Roebuck de México, S A.deC.V. ... ... . 245,075 353,724
ATET Corp. (AT&T) . oot 56,445 80,438
Patrimonial Inbursa, S.A. . ... . 164,267 245,318
Othr .o 74,256 431,837
Total .o Ps. 689,053 Ps.1,346,392
Accounts payable:
Fianzas Guardiana Inbursa, SA.de C.V. ... ... ... ... . i, Ps. 231,678 Ps. 212,765
Operadora Cicsa, SSA. de C.V. ... e 272,293 280,374
PC Industrial, S A. de C.V. . ... . 187,111 176,095
Microm, S.A. de C.V. .. o 77,354 77,690
Grupo Financiero Inbursa, SAB.deC.V. ... ... ... i i 63,269 36,366
Conductores Mexicanos Eléctricos y de Telecomunicaciones, S.A. de C.V. . .. 53,265 52,268
Acer Computec México, S A. de C.V. ... i 28,886 32,214
Sinergia Soluciones Integrales de Energia, S A.deC.V. .................. 74,541 35,826
Eidon Software, S A. de C.V. ... . 34,660 25,461
ATET Corp. (AT&T) .ot 1,275,193 1,039,043
Other . 224,777 584,235
Total L Ps.2,523,027 Ps.2,552,337

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties.
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b) For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the Company conducted the following

transactions with related parties:

2011 2012 2013
Investments and expenses:
Construction services, purchases of materials, inventories
and property, plant and equipment® .. .............. Ps. 5,391,385 Ps. 6,014,441 Ps. 4,631,435
Insurance premiums, fees paid for administrative and
operating services, brokerage services and others( . . .. 2,354,859 2,411,663 2,349,494
Call termination costs(i .. ... ... .. ... ... .. .. ... 10,145,981 10,983,962 14,470,985
Interconnection costv) .. ... ... ... ... L 3,919,841 250,426 308,483
Other Services ...t 371,807 981,496 1,142,771
Ps.22,183,873 Ps.20,641,988 Ps.22,903,168
Revenues:
Sale of long-distance services and other
telecommunications services .. ..., ... .. Ps. 5,266,597 Ps. 352,086 Ps. 277,522
Sale of materials and other services .................. 523,795 447,390 439,091
Call termination revenuest) .. ........ ... ... ... ..... 512,897 486,230 617,058

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
v)

(vi)

Ps. 6,303,289 Ps. 1,285,706 Ps. 1,333,671

In 2013, this amount includes Ps.4,441,279 (Ps.5,867,810 in 2012 and Ps.5,171,398 in 2011, respectively)

for network construction services and construction materials purchased from subsidiaries of Grupo Carso,
S.A.B. de C.V. (Grupo Carso).

In 2013, this amount includes Ps.765,097 (Ps.704,200 in 2012 and Ps.708,088 in 2011, respectively) for
network maintenance services performed by Grupo Carso subsidiaries; Ps.555,984 in 2013 (Ps.599,784 in
2012 and Ps.584,254, in 2012 and 2011, respectively) for software services provided by an associate;
Ps.627,945 in 2013 (Ps.669,118 and Ps.605,373 in 2012 and 2011, respectively) for insurance premiums
with Seguros Inbursa, S.A. , which, in turn, places most of such insurance with reinsurers; and Ps.130,765 in
2013 (Ps.130,101 and Ps.160,080 in 2011 in 2012, respectively) of fees for management and operating
services due to AT&T Mexico, Inc. and Inversora, which is a corporation under common control with
América Movil.

Includes the cost of buying airtime, long-distance services and megabytes navigation for value added
services of Ps.14,326,300 in 2013 (Ps.10,937,396 in 2012 and Ps.9,963,570 in 2011) from AT&T
subsidiaries.

Includes interconnection costs for calls from fixed telephones to mobile phones paid to NET subsidiaries.
Revenues from billing long distance and other telecommunications services of Ps.4,641,231 in 2011 from
NET; and Ps.200,791 in 2013 (Ps.235,804 and Ps.135,302 in 2012 and 2011, respectively) from AT&T
subsidiaries.

Includes costs and revenues of voice services with AT&T subsidiaries.

c¢) During 2013, the Company paid Ps.920,244 (Ps.942,090 and Ps.726,524 in 2012 and 2011, respectively)

for short-term direct benefits to its executives.

d) In November 2010, the Company entered into a revolving credit agreement with its affiliate Banco

Inbursa, S.A., Institucion de Banca Multiple, Grupo Financiero Inbursa. The agreement provides a line of credit
to the Company and/or its subsidiaries for up to Ps.5,230,600 (US$400,000), of which no amounts are
outstanding.

19. Shareholders’ Equity
Shares

a) At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s capital stock was represented by 70,475,000,000 shares

(23,424,632,660 Series “AA” shares, 680,805,804 Series A shares and 46,369,561,536 Series “L” shares) and
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75,841,000,000 shares (23,424,632,660 Series “AA” shares, 712,842,183 Series A shares and 51,703,525,157
Series L), respectively (these figures reflects (i) the stock split effected in June 2011; (ii) the merger with
AMTEL in 2006; (iii) the placement of 8,438,193,725 Series “L” treasury shares resulting from the tender offers
for Carso Global Telecom, S.A.B. de C.V. and Telmex Internacional, S.A.B. de C.V., which were completed on
June 16, 2010; and (iv) the exchanges (conversiones) of Series “A” shares for Series “L” shares made by third
parties through S.D. Indeval Institucion para el Deposito de Valores, S.A. de C.V.).

b) The capital stock of the Company consists of a minimum fixed portion of Ps.397,873 (nominal amount),
represented by 95,489,724,196 shares (including treasury shares available for placement in accordance with the
provisions of the Mexican Securities Law), of which (i) 23,424,632,660 are common Series “AA” shares;

(ii) 776,818,130 are common Series “A” shares; and (iii) 71,288,273,406 are Series “L” shares, all of them fully
subscribed and paid.

c) At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s treasury shares available for placement in accordance
with the provisions of the Mexican Securities Law, were represented by 25,014,724,196 shares (25,007,472,235
Series “L” shares and 7,251,961 Series A shares), 19,648,724,196 shares (19,642,211,887 Series “L” shares and
6,512,309 Series A shares), respectively (these figures reflects (i) the stock split effected in June 2011; and
(ii) the placement of 8,438,193,725 Series “L” treasury shares resulting from the tender offers for Carso Global
Telecom, S.A.B. de C.V. and Telmex Internacional, S.A.B. de C.V., which were completed on June 16, 2010).

d) The holders of Series “AA” and Series “A” shares are entitled to full voting rights. The holders of Series
“L” shares may only vote in certain circumstances, and they are only entitled to appoint two members of the
Board of Directors and their respective alternates. The matters in which the shareholders who are entitled to vote
are the following: extension of the term of the Company, early dissolution of the Company, change of corporate
purpose of the Company, change of nationality of the Company, transformation of the Company, a merger with
another company, as well as the cancellation of the registration of the shares issued by the Company in the
National Securities Registry (Registro Nacional de Valores), and any other foreign stock exchanges where they
may be registered, except for quotation systems or other markets not organized as stock exchanges. Within their
respective series, all shares confer the same rights to their holders. The Company’s bylaws contain restrictions
and limitations related to the subscription and acquisition of Series “AA” shares by non-Mexican investors.

e) In accordance with the bylaws of the Company, Series “AA” shares must at all times represent no less
than 20% and no more than 51% of the Company’s capital stock, and they also must represent at all times no less
than 51% of the common shares (entitled to full voting rights, represented by Series “AA” and Series “A”
shares), representing said capital stock.

Series “AA” shares may only be subscribed to or acquired by Mexican investors, Mexican corporations and/or
trusts expressly empowered for such purposes in accordance with the applicable legislation in force. Series “A”
shares, which may be freely subscribed, may not represent more than 19.6% of capital stock and may not exceed
49% of the common shares representing such capital. Common shares (entitled to full voting rights, represented by
Series “AA” and Series “A” shares), may not represent more than 51% of the Company’s capital stock.

Lastly, the combined number of Series “L” shares, which have limited voting rights and may be freely
subscribed, and Series A shares may not exceed 80% of the Company’s capital stock. For purposes of
determining these restrictions, the percentages mentioned above refer only to the number of Company shares
outstanding.

Dividends

f) On April 25, 2012, the Company’s shareholders approved, among other resolutions, the (i) payment of a
cash dividend of $0.20 pesos per share to each of the shares of its capital stock series “AA”, “A” and “L”,
payable in two equal installments of $0.10 pesos; and (ii) increase in the amount of funds available for the
acquisition of the Company’s own shares by Ps.30 billion pursuant to Article 56 of the Mexican Securities
Market Law.
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g) On April 22, 2013, the Company’s shareholders approved, among other resolutions, the (i) payment of a
cash dividend of $0.22 pesos per share to each of the shares of its capital stock series “AA”, “A” and “L”, payable
in two equal installments of $0.11 pesos; and (ii) increase in the amount of funds available for the acquisition of the
Company’s own shares by Ps.40 billion pursuant to Article 56 of the Mexican Securities Market Law.

Retained earnings and other reserves distributed as dividends and the effects derived from capital
reductions, are subject to income tax at the rate at the date of distribution, except for the restated stockholder
contributions or distributions made from the net taxed profit account (Cuenta de Utilidad Fiscal Neta
Consolidada or CUFIN).

The dividends paid in excess of the account are subject to income tax on a grossed-current base rate. Since
2003, this tax may be credited against income tax for the year in which the dividends are paid and the following
two years against the income tax and estimated payments. The payment of dividends described above comes
from the balance of the Company’s CUFIN.

Legal reserve

According to the Mexican General Mercantile Corporation Law, companies must appropriate from the net
profit of each year at least 5% to increase the legal reserve until it reaches 20% of capital stock at par value. This
reserve may not be distributed to stockholders during the existence of the Company. At December 31, 2012 and
2013, the legal reserve amounted to Ps.358,440.

Restrictions on Certain Transactions

The Company’s bylaws provide that any transfer of more than 10% of the combined A Shares and AA
Shares, effected in one or more transactions by any person or group of persons acting in concert, requires prior
approval by our Board of Directors. If the Board of Directors denies such approval, however, Mexican law and
the Company bylaws require it to designate an alternate transferee, who must pay market price for the shares as
quoted on the Mexican Stock Exchange.

Payment of Dividends

Dividends, either in cash or in kind, paid with respect to the L Shares, A Shares, L Share ADSs or A Share
ADSs will generally be subject to a 10% Mexican withholding tax (provided that no Mexican withholding tax
will apply to distributions of net taxable profits generated before 2014). Nonresident holders could be subject to a
lower tax rate, to the extent that they are eligible for benefits under an income tax treaty to which Mexico is a

party.
h) Earnings per share
The following table shows the computation of the basic and diluted earnings per share:

For the years ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Net profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the
PArENT . . Ps.83,045,198 Ps.90,988,570 Ps.74,624,979
Weighted average shares (inmillions) .................... 78,599 76,150 72,866
Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the
PANENL . Ps. 1.06 Ps. 1.19 Ps. 1.02

20. Income Tax and Asset Tax
1) Mexico

América Movil, S.A.B. de C.V. was the controlling company in the tax consolidation in accordance with
prevailing corporate and tax law through December 31, 2013, and as authorized by the tax authorities in 2002.
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From 2002 to 2013, the Company determined its income tax for each year on a consolidated basis, which in
simple terms consisted of including the taxable income or tax loss of each subsidiary in AMXs tax results as the
controlling company, in proportion to a given percentage of América Movil’s equity interest in each subsidiary.

As a result of the 2014 Tax Reform, on December 11, 2013 a new Law on Income Tax was issued, and the
Law of the Business Flat Tax was eliminated.

Tax Consolidation

In 2010, Mexico’s tax consolidation regime was significantly amended to establish a maximum deferral
period for current year income tax of five years while requiring previously applied tax consolidation benefits to
be reversed (commonly referred to as “recaptured”) and remitted to the tax authorities in installments over the
sixth to tenth years subsequent to the year in which the benefits were taken.

Therefore, in 2010, the Company calculated the income tax it had deferred through 2004, while in 2011,
2012 and 2013, it calculated its income tax corresponding to 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Similarly, these
taxes must be remitted in 5 annual installments.

Tax consolidation benefits resulted from:

i) Tax losses applied in the tax consolidation that would not have otherwise been carried forward
individually by the entity that generated them; and

ii)  Other items (apart from tax losses) that give rise to tax consolidation benefits, including losses on sales
of shares not deducted individually by the entity that generated them; special consolidation items
related to transactions carried out between consolidating entities; and dividends declared by
consolidated subsidiaries as of 1999 that were not paid from the balance of their CUFIN or the Net
reinvested taxed profits account (CUFINRE).

The individual CUFIN and CUFINRE balances of the group’s entities can result in taxable profits in
conformity with the Mexican Income Tax Law (MITL). These amounts are referred to as “CUFIN differences.”

The deconsolidation effects with respect to tax losses that were carried forward under the consolidation
regime amounted to Ps.3,279,356, which is being paid by AMX in the amounts and terms set forth in the law.

Optional Regime

The new Income Tax Law establishes the optional regime for corporate groups to defer the remittance of the
deferred income tax of the group’s subsidiaries, under the terms and conditions established in Articles 59 to 71 of
the MITL. In addition to the above, the Company meets the requirements for adopting this regime under
Article 60 of the MITL, and accordingly, the Company filed its notice of incorporation into the optional regime
under the terms and conditions published by the tax authority on February 17, 2014. Also, in conformity with
rule 1.3.22.8 of the Miscellaneous Tax Rules, the Company has declared its intention to the option contained in
such rule, which allows companies with unused tax losses at December 31, 2013 to carry forward these losses
under the new regime.

Corporate tax rate
The income tax rate applicable in Mexico for 2010, 2011 and 2012 was 30%.

On December 7, 2009, a tax reform was approved that increased the corporate income tax rate from 28% to
30% for the years from 2010 to 2012 and was scheduled to be decreased to 29% in 2013 and 28% in 2014 and
thereafter. However, the Mexican Federal Internal Revenue Act enacted in December 2012 established that the
corporate income tax rate will remain at 30% in 2013 and that the income tax rate reduction to 29% will take
effect in 2014 and to 28% in 2015 and thereafter. The effect of the change in the corporate income tax rate on
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deferred taxes as of December 31, 2012 resulted in an amount charged to deferred tax expense of Ps.155,599 in
2012. Furthermore, for fiscal year 2013, the Mexican Federal Internal Revenue Act, enacted in December 2013,
established that the corporate income tax rate is 30%. The effect on the change in the tax rate was Ps.138,849.

An analysis of income tax charged to results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and
2013 is as follows:

2011 2012 2013
In Mexico:
Current year income tax ........ Ps.31,933,880 Ps.27,123,124  Ps.20,396,868
Deferred incometax ........... (5,679,173) 781,410 (5,936,699)
Effect of changes intaxrate .. ... (99,763) 155,599 138,849
Foreign:
Current year income tax ........ 18,940,637 21,047,770 17,955,532
Deferred incometax ........... (5,349,714) (3,124,451) (2,161,819)

Ps.39,745,867  Ps.45,983,452  Ps.30,392,731

A reconciliation of the corporate income tax rate to the effective income tax rate recognized by the
Company is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013

Statutory income tax rate iNnIMexico . . ... 30.0%  30.0% 30%
Impact of non-deductible and non-taxable items:

Tax inflationeffect ....... ... . 2.1% 4.0% 5.7%

Operations of foreign subsidiaries ............. . ... ... (1.0%) (0.3%) (0.7%)

Tax loss on sale of financial asset restructuring ........................ — — (8.3%)

L 13 (0.4%) (3.9%) (4.6%)
Effective tax rate on Mexican operations . .............. i, 30.7% 29.8% 22.1%
Change in estimated realization of deferred tax assets in Brazil ............... (1.5%) (0.3%) 0.9%
Useof tax credits in Brazil .......... .. .. .. . i, (0.4%) (1.1%) (0.3%)
Foreign subsidiaries—other items, net .. ........ ... .. ... .. .. 2.3% 5.0% 6.1%
Effective tax rate ... ... 311% 33.4% 28.8%
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An analysis of temporary differences giving rise to the net deferred tax liability is as follows:

At December 31,
2012 2013
Def :rred tax assets
PrOVISIONS . o e Ps. 3,691,556 Ps. 6,960,414
Deferred reVENUES . . ..ot e 2,129,829 2,186,987
TaX J0SSES v ittt 2,726,614 533,610
O el o 96,236 1,541,245

8,644,235 11,222,256
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment . .......... ... .. .. Ps. (8,312,837) Ps. (9,288,481)
Licensesandrightsof use . ...... ... ... i (2,761,970) (1,437,216)
Deferred effects of tax consolidation in Mexican subsidiaries . ......... (7,169,028) (4,164,355)
O her 903,658 1,872,237
(17,340,177) (13,017,815)
Plus:
Effectof changesintaxrate .......... .. ... i, 305,999 167,150
Total deferred tax liabilities, net . ............ .. ... ... ... i, Ps. (8,389,943) Ps. (1,628,409)

An analysis of the effects of temporary differences within the deferred tax that was charged or (credited) to
results of operations is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Provisions . ... Ps. 1,832,791 Ps. 177,449  Ps. 3,268,858
Deferredrevenues . ..................... 1,319,623 (993,322) 57,158
Tax1osses . ... 275,777 (1,489,907) (2,193,004)
Other ... ... ., 1,455,280 121,480 1,445,009
4,883,471 (2,184,300) 2,578,021
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment ............ 375,249 (1,934,691) (1,099,239)
Inventories ........... . ... i 4,261 326,893 —
Licenses and rightsofuse .. .............. 85,110 447,645 612,132
Other ... ... (1,256,440) 7,028,218 456,201
(791,820) 5,868,065 (30,906)
Plus:
Effect of changes intaxrate .............. (67,387) 155,599 (138,849)
Income tax from tax consolidation ......... (107,445) 35,822 3,004,672
Total deferred tax benefit .................... Ps. 3,916,819  Ps. 3,875,186  Ps. 5,412,938
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The effects of temporary differences giving rise to the deferred tax asset at December 31, 2012 and 2013 is
as follows:

At December 31,
2012 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued liabilities . ................. Ps. 16,261,385  Ps. 14,008,504
Deferred revenues .. ................ 2,520,687 3,820,067
Employee benefits. . ................ 15,772,716 17,606,276
Tax1osses ..., 15,826,663 14,179,102
Other ... ... i 3,494,131 9,274,546
53,875,582 58,888,495
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment ........ (11,911,939) (12,358,022)
Licenses and rights ofuse . ........... (490,497) (188,567)
Inventories ....................... 2,738,119 4,048,858
Other .........c i 160,864 462,922
(9,503,453) (8,034,809)
Total deferred tax assets ................. Ps. 44,372,129  Ps. 50,853,686

At December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the above table includes the deferred tax assets of Mexico, United
States, Puerto Rico, Argentina, Colombia, Honduras, Guatemala, Nicaragua, Uruguay, Ecuador, Peru and Brazil.

An analysis of the effects of temporary differences within the deferred tax that was (charged) or credited to
results of operations is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued liabilities .............. Ps.1,176,059  Ps.(1,357,053) Ps.(2,252,881)
Deferred revenues .............. 303,386 1,173,893 1,299,380
Employee benefits .............. (767,091) (1,472,849) 2,596,157
Taxlosses . .....coviiennn.. 1,719,089 (493,024) (1,647,561)
Other..............covivi.. (377,265) (2,783,330) 1,082,493

2,054,178 (4,932,363) 1,077,588
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment . . . .. (542,340) 1,205,725 (446,083)
Inventories .................... 5,400,000 (2,640,266) 1,310,739
Licenses and rights ofuse ........ 104,660 71,018 301,930
Other......... ..ot 195,333 233,258 302,058
5,157,653 (1,130,265) 1,468,644

Total deferred tax benefit . ............ Ps.7,211,831  Ps.(6,062,628) Ps. 2,546,732
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Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, net:

2011 2012 2013
Opening balance as of January 1, ...................... Ps. 7,590,607 Ps.40,061,740 Ps.35,982,186
Deferred tax benefit (expense) for the year and effect of

changes in tax rate recognized in profitorloss ........... 11,128,650 (2,187,442) 7,959,670
Deferred tax benefit recognized inOCI ................... 21,342,483 (125,868) 586,000
Deferred taxes acquired in business combination ........... (1,766,244) 4,697,422
Closing balance as of December 31, .................... Ps.40,061,740 Ps.35,982,186 Ps.49,225,278
Presented in the consolidated statements of financial

position as follows:
Deferred income tax assets .. .......coviiiiiiiiii Ps.47,372,186 Ps.44,372,129 Ps.50,853,686
Deferred income tax liabilities .......................... (7,310,446) (8,389,943) (1,628,409)

Ps.40,061,740 Ps.35,982,186 Ps.49,225,277

The deferred tax assets are in tax jurisdictions in which the Company considers that, based on financial
projections of its cash flows, results of operations and synergies between subsidiaries, the Company will generate
taxable income in subsequent periods.

The Company does not recognize a deferred tax liability related to the undistributed earnings of its
subsidiaries, because it currently does not expect these earnings to be taxable or to be repatriated in the near
future. The Company’s policy has been to distribute the profits when it has paid the corresponding taxes in its
home jurisdiction and the tax can be accredited in Mexico.

At December 31, 2012 and 2013, the balance of the contributed capital account (“CUCA”) is Ps.387,806,147
and Ps.417,052,837, respectively, and the CUFIN balance is Ps.379,500,778 and Ps.415,327,853, respectively.

I1) Foreign Subsidiaries
a) Results of operations

The foreign subsidiaries determine their taxes on profits based on their individual taxable income, in
accordance with the specific tax regimes of each country. The combined income before taxes and the combined
provision for taxes of such subsidiaries in 2011, 2012 and 2013 are as follows:

2011 2012 2013
Combined income beforetaxes ......................... Ps.42,011,515 Ps.42,628,730 Ps.29,270,337
Combined tax provision differences not deductible-not
cumulative in the Foreign Subsidiaries ................. 13,590,923 17,923,319 15,793,713
iii) Tax losses

a) At December 31, 2013, the available tax loss carryforwards recorded in deferred tax assets of the
subsidiaries of América Movil are as follows:
Balance of available tax

loss
carryforwards at

Country December 31, 2013 Tax benefits

Chile ...... ... o Ps. 1,390,741 Ps. 236,426
Brazil ....... ... . ... L 38,879,043 13,218,875
MeXiCo ... 3,102,006 930,602
Peru ... 423,372 127,012
United States . ..................... 3,046 1,066
Colombia .......... ... i, 602,217 198,731
Total ... Ps.44,400,425 Ps.14,712,712




b) The tax loss carryforwards in the different countries in which the Company operates have the following
terms and characteristics:

i) The Company has accumulated approximately B$7,057 million in net operating loss carry-forwards
(“NOL’s”) in its various Brazilian subsidiaries, equating to approximately Ps.38,879,043 as of December 31,
2013. Through December 31, 2013, the Company’s Brazilian operations are concentrated in its subsidiaries
Claro, Embratel and Net, each having varying levels of NOL’s. In Brazil there is no expiration of the NOL’s.
However, the NOL amount in each year may not exceed 30% of the taxable income for such year. Consequently,
in the year in which taxable income is generated, the effective tax rate is 25% rather than the 34% corporate tax
rate.

In Brazil, deferred tax assets are recognized for tax losses to the extent that the realization of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable, as well as for other temporary items. The benefit in income
taxes expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, attributable to the change in estimate over
the recoverability of the tax loss carryforwards, was Ps.0, Ps.1,200,520 and Ps.2,321,679, respectively, and is
shown as a credit in deferred income tax.

Through December 31, 2013, the aforementioned Brazilian subsidiaries did not file tax returns on a
consolidated basis, although the Company has initiated strategies to merge the entities in the near term so as to
recover the NOL’s currently recorded. The Company believes that it is more likely than not that it will recognize
the benefit of unreserved NOL’s in future periods, primarily through continuing merged operations, tax planning
strategies and other sources of taxable income.

ii) In Chile, tax loss carryforwards have no expiration date and the corporate tax rate in that country is 17%.
Consequently, at the time tax losses are realized, taxpayers obtain a benefit of only 17% of the amount of the loss
generated.

iii) In Mexico the tax loss carryforwards expire in ten years on a stand-alone basis.

21. Segments

América Mavil operates in different countries. As mentioned in Note 1, the Company has operations in
Mexico, Guatemala, Nicaragua, Ecuador, El Salvador, Costa Rica, Brazil, Argentina, Colombia, United States,
Honduras, Chile, Peru, Paraguay, Uruguay, Dominican Republic, Puerto Rico and Panama. The accounting
policies for the segments are the same as those described in Note 2.

The CEO, who is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?”), analyzes the financial and operating
information by geographical segment, except for Mexico, which shows América Movil (Corporate and Telcel)
and Telmex as two segments. All significant operating segments that represent (i) more than 10% of consolidated
revenues, (ii) more than the absolute amount of the reported 10% of profits or loss and (iii) more than 10% of
consolidated assets, are presented separately.
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(1) Mexico includes Telcel and corporate operations and assets

(2) Southern Cone includes Argentina, Chile, Paraguay and Uruguay

(3) Andean includes Ecuador and Peru

(4) Central America includes Guatemala, Costa Rica, EIl Salvador, Honduras, Nicaragua and Panama
(5) Excludes Puerto Rico

(6) Caribbean includes the Dominican Republic and Puerto Rico

22. Components of other comprehensive income

An analysis of the components of the other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013
is as follows:

2011 2012 2013
Controlling interest:

Valuation of the derivative financial instruments, net of
deferredtaxes ......... ..., Ps. (276,748) Ps. (253,428) Ps. (741,321)
Translation effect of foreign subsidiaries . ........... 10,358,985 (32,899,915) (26,485,343)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan, net of deferred
BAXES ot (15,681,072) 2,377,006 (2,289,811)
Non-controlling interest of the items above .......... (885,054) (444,290) (550,586)
Other comprehensive income (loss) ................ Ps. 6,483,889 Ps.(31,220,627) Ps.(30,067,061)

23. Subsequent Events

a) On January 16, 2014, the Company, through its subsidiary Tracfone Wireless Inc., acquired the assets of
Start Wireless Group, Inc. (known commercially as “Page Plus”), a mobile virtual network operator located in
the U.S. Page Plus provides services to approximately 1.4 million subscribers and offers prepaid plans for voice,
SMS and data services. The amount paid for these assets was approximately US$120,000.

b) On March 7, 2014 the Company received a resolution issued by the Federal Telecommunications Institute
(Instituto Federal de Telecomunicaciones, or “IFT”) which determined that an economic interest group
comprised of AMX and its operating subsidiaries, including Radiomaévil Dipsa, S.A de C.V. (“Telcel”) and
Teléfonos de México, S.A.B. de C.V. (“Telmex”), as well as Grupo Carso, S.A.B. de C.V. and Grupo Financiero
Inbursa, S.A.B. de C.V., constitutes the preponderant economic agent in the telecommunications market, and
which imposed certain asymmetrical regulations, among which are the following:

(i)  Interconnection: Regulation of interconnection, including the imposition of (a) asymmetric rates to be
determined by the IFT; and (b) an interconnection framework agreement (convenio marco de
interconexion);

(it)  Sharing of Infrastructure: Regulation of other operators’ access to and use of the Company’s passive
infrastructure, including towers, sites, ducts and rights of way, at rates to be negotiated amongst the
operators and, where agreement cannot be reached, to be determined by the IFT using a long-run
average incremental costs methodology;

(iif) Local Loop Unbundling: Regulation of local loop unbundling, including the imposition of rates to be
determined by the IFT using a long-run average incremental cost methodology;

(iv) Leasing of Dedicated Links: Regulation of dedicated-link leasing for interconnection services and
local, domestic and international long distance services, at rates to be negotiated amongst the
operators and, where agreement cannot be reached, to be determined by the IFT using a retail minus
methodology, except for dedicated-link leasing for interconnection services, where a long-run average
incremental costs methodology will be used for determining the applicable rates;

(v) Roaming: Regulation of the provision of wholesale roaming services, at rates to be negotiated
amongst the operators and, where agreement cannot be reached, to be determined by the IFT using a
long-run average incremental costs methodology;
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(vi) Elimination of National Roaming Charges: The elimination of national roaming charges to the
Company’s subscribers;

(vii) Mobile Virtual Operators: Regulation of mobile virtual network operators’ access to services provided
by the Company to its subscribers, at rates to be negotiated amongst the operators and, where
agreement cannot be reached, to be determined by the IFT using a retail minus methodology;

(viii) Certain Obligations on the Provision of Retail Services: Certain rates for the provision of
telecommunications services to the Company’s subscribers shall be subject to rate control and/or
authorization by the IFT, using a series of methodologies related to maximum prices and replicability
tests that are currently under analysis. The measures also impose a series of obligations relating to the
sale of services and products, including the obligation to offer individually all services that are offered
under a bundle scheme; limited exclusivity on handsets and tablets; and the obligation to unlock
handsets;

(ix) Content: Regulation of content, including the prohibition on acquiring transmission rights for any
territory within Mexico on an exclusive basis with respect to relevant content (contenidos
audiovisuales relevantes), as determined from time to time by the IFT, including without limitation
national soccer play-offs (liguilla), FIFA world cup soccer finals and any other event where large
audiences are expected at a national or regional level; and

(x)  Information and Quality of Service Obligations: Several obligations related to information and quality
of service, including the publication of a series of reference terms (ofertas publicas de referencia) for
wholesale and interconnection services that are subject to the asymmetric regulations imposed by the
IFT, and rules regarding accounting separation.

The resolution issued by the IFT is currently being analyzed by AMX and its subsidiaries from an
economic, technical, regulatory, operating and business perspective in order to be able to evaluate its
effects.

¢) On March 18, 2014, the Company reported that its Board of Directors decided to submit a proposal to the
shareholders during the ordinary sharcholders’ meeting expected to be held on April 28, 2014 to (i) pay a cash
dividend of Ps.0.24 from the consolidated CUFIN account, payable in two installments, to the holders of the
Company’s series “AA”, “A” and “L” shares that were outstanding at the dividend payment date (including the
preferential dividend corresponding to “L” series shares), subject to subsequent share repurchase or reissue
adjustments, among other corporate events that could vary the number of outstanding shares at the payment date
of the dividend; and (ii) allocate Ps.30,000,000 for share repurchases in conformity with Article 56 of the
Mexican Securities Trading Act.

d) On March 28, 2014 the IFT issued a resolution, whereby AMX’s rates will be determined asymmetrically
for interconnection, termination and transit services, with respect to mobile and fixed services provided by Telcel
and Telmex, as applicable, beginning April 6, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

This resolution was issued by the IFT following a prior resolution in which the Institute determined that an
economic interest group comprised of AMX and its operating subsidiaries, including Telmex and Telcel, as well
as Grupo Carso, S.A.B. de C.V. and Grupo Financiero Inbursa, S.A.B. de C.V., constitutes the dominant operator
in the telecommunications sector, and in which the IFT imposed specific asymmetric measures.

The asymmetrical rates that apply to Telmex’s services during the period from April 6, 2014 to December
31, 2014 are as follows:

» Interconnection within the same regional node: Ps.0.02015 per minute

» Interconnection between regional nodes that depend on a national node: Ps.0.02258 per minute

» Interconnection between regional nodes that depend on different national nodes: Ps.0.02340 per minute
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»  Traffic within the same regional node: Ps.0.00864 per minute
»  Transit between regional nodes that depend on a national node: Ps.0.01108 per minute

»  Transit between regional nodes which depend on different national nodes: Ps.0.01190 per minute

The asymmetrical rates that apply to Telcel’s termination services (for voice and SMS) during the period
from April 6, 2014 to December 31, 2014 are as follows:

»  Termination for mobile users under “calling party pays” arrangements: Ps.0.2045

»  Termination rate for short messages (SMS) sent by mobile users: Ps.0.0391

This resolution was issued by the IFT in its capacity as an independent Constitutional body after a bill was
submitted to Congress to establish the new Federal Law on Telecommunications and Broadcasting, and the
resolution represents a substantial reduction in interconnection, termination and transit rates compared to other
operators in Mexico. Management believes fees referred to in the resolution are comparatively lower than those
prevailing for the same services in most countries in the world.

e) In April 2014, the Company filed a challenge (juicio de amparo) to the decision issued by the IFT,
through which it determined that an economic interest group comprised of AMX and its operating subsidiaries,
including Telmex and Telcel, as well as Grupo Carso, S.A.B. de C.V. and Grupo Financiero Inbursa, S.A.B. de
C.V,, constitutes the dominant operator in the telecommunications sector, and through which the IFT imposed
specific asymmetric measures. AMX operating subsidiaries Telmex and Telcel also filed challenges to the
resolution.

f) In March 2014, the Company purchased shares representing 3.1% of the outstanding shares of Telekom
Austria from Inmobiliaria Carso and Control Empresarial de Capitales, S.A. de C.V, which may be deemed for
certain purposes to be under common control with the Company. As a result, as of March 31, 2014 the Company
directly or indirectly owns 26.8% of Telekom Austria’s outstanding shares.

g) On April 23, 2014, the Company entered into a sharecholders’ agreement (the “Sharcholders Agreement”)
with Telekom Austria’s largest shareholder, Osterreichische Industrieholding AG (“OIAG”). The Shareholders
Agreement is subject to certain regulatory approvals. As a result of signing the Shareholders’ Agreement, the
Company is required by Austrian law to purchase all the outstanding shares of Telekom Austria not held by the
Company, OIAG or Telekom Austria (the TA Offer). Under the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement, the
Company and OIAG have agreed to vote in favor of, and contribute to, a capital increase for Telekom Austria of
€1 billion. The capital increase is subject to the closing of the TA Offer.

24. Supplemental Guarantor Information

As mentioned in Note 16, the Company has issued senior notes in the United States. These notes are fully
and unconditionally guaranteed by Telcel.

Consolidating Condensed Financial Information

The following consolidating information presents condensed consolidating balance sheets as of
December 31, 2012 and 2013 and condensed consolidating statements of income and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2013 of the Company and Telcel (the “wholly-owned Guarantor
Subsidiary”). These statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS with the exception that the subsidiaries are
accounted for as investments under the equity method rather than being consolidated. The guarantees of the
Guarantor are full and unconditional.
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The Company’s consolidating condensed financial information for the (i) Company; (ii) its wholly-owned subsidiary
Telcel (on standalone basis), which is a wholly and unconditional guarantor under the Senior Notes; (iii) the combined non-
guarantor subsidiaries; iv) eliminations and v) the Company’s consolidated financial statements are as follows:

At December 31, 2012, restated

Wholly-owned Combined
Guarantor non-guarantor Consolidated
Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . .. Ps. 27,269,924 Ps. 1,325,939 Ps. 16,891,337 Ps. 45,487,200
Accounts receivable, net . ... ... 75,389,317 12,096,177 35,500,209 122,985,703
Related parties . .............. 138,169,930 27,703,098 192,498,010 Ps. (357,681,985) 689,053
Inventories, net .............. 553,334 11,116,645 17,057,888 (30,047) 28,697,820
Other current assets ........... 703,717 10,567,746 11,271,463
Plant, property and equipment,
net ... 11,154,013 21,379,116 467,901,143 500,434,272
Investments in associated
companies and others ....... 513,502,840 112,103,513 91,822,348 (644,312,416) 73,116,285
Intangible assets and other non-
current assets, net .......... 4,851,377 10,642,576 189,508,934 205,002,887
Totalassets ..................... Ps.770,890,735 Ps.197,070,781 Ps.1,021,747,615 Ps.(1,002,024,448)Ps.987,684,683
Liabilities:
Short-term debt and current
portion of long-term debt .... Ps. 6,165,849 Ps. 7,921,521 Ps. (465,564)Ps. 13,621,806
Current liabilities .. ........... 159,964,142 Ps.176,074,489 249,411,871 (353,390,846) 232,059,656
Long-termdebt .............. 355,666,397 48,381,885 404,048,282
Other non-current liabilities . . .. 3,516,876 2,320,277 81,125,163 (3,855,623) 83,106,693
Total liabilities .................. 525,313,264 178,394,766 386,840,440 (357,712,033) 732,836,437
Equity attributable to equity holders of
parentcompany ................ 245,577,471 18,676,015 606,636,548 (625,312,563) 245,577,471
Non-controlling interest ........... 28,270,627 (18,999,852) 9,270,775
Totalequity ..................... 245,577,471 18,676,015 634,907,175 (644,312,415) 254,848,246
Total liabilities and equity . .. ... .... Ps.770,890,735 Ps.197,070,781 Ps.1,021,747,615 Ps.(1,002,024,448)Ps.987,684,683
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At December 31, 2013

Wholly-owned Combined
Guarantor non-guarantor Consolidated
Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ... Ps. 15,818,207 Ps. 1,227,994 Ps. 31,117,349 Ps. 48,163,550
Accounts receivable, net . .. .. 44,885,269 12,962,566 80,494,138 138,341,973
Related parties . ............ 147,109,666 15,509,108 165,344,115 Ps. (326,616,497) 1,346,392
Inventories, net ............ 448,408 19,933,734 16,373,268 (36,457) 36,718,953
Other current assets . ........ 607,696 11,519,504 12,127,200
Plant, property and equipment,
net ............ ... ... 8,852,264 36,416,986 455,837,701 501,106,951
Investments in associated
companies and others .. ... 610,075,358 109,257,851 96,096,875 (726,543,060) 88,887,024
Intangible assets and other
non-current assets, net . . . .. 6,925,695 12,869,281 179,105,414 198,900,390
Totalassets ................... Ps.834,114,867 Ps.208,785,216 Ps.1,035,888,364 Ps.(1,053,196,014)Ps.1,025,592,433
Liabilities:
Short-term debt and current
portion of long-term debt .. Ps. 14,228,350 Ps. 12,216,885 Ps. (603,757)Ps. 25,841,478
Current liabilities .. ......... 186,048,150 Ps.199,125,611 184,541,352 (321,601,637) 248,113,476
Long-termdebt ............ 425,530,317 38,948,049 464,478,366
Other non-current liabilities . . 5,907,439 2,486,212 72,911,945 (4,447,560) 76,858,036
Total liabilities ................ 631,714,256 201,611,823 308,618,231 (326,652,954) 815,291,356
Equity attributable to equity holders
of parentcompany ............ 202,400,611 7,173,393 717,119,500 (724,292,893) 202,400,611
Non-controlling interest ......... 10,150,633 (2,250,167) 7,900,466
Totalequity ................... 202,400,611 7,173,393 727,270,133 (726,543,060) 210,301,077

Total liabilities and equity Ps.834,114,867 Ps.208,785,216

Ps.1,035,888,364 Ps.(1,053,196,014)Ps.1,025,592,433
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 31, 2011 (restated)

Wholly-owned Combined
Guarantor non-guarantor Consolidated
Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Total revenues .................... Ps.102,598,076 Ps.127,108,045 Ps.590,431,027 Ps.(130,170,836) Ps.689,966,312
Total cost and operating expenses . . . . . 57,092,568 116,587,293 488,263,365 (129,583,017) 532,360,209
Operating (loss) income ............ 45,505,508 10,520,752 102,167,662 (587,819) 157,606,103
Interest (expense) income, net........ (6,537,358) (9,675,128) 2,278,785 (4,005)  (13,937,706)
Foreign currency exchange (loss) gain,
et .. (19,497,182) (646,502) (2,251,032) (22,394,716)
Other financing cost,net ............ 2,433,267 2,342,530 (28,531) 4,747,266
Taxesonprofits . .................. 9,316,862 1,223,610 29,205,395 39,745,867
Equity interest in net income of
associated companies ............ 70,457,825 1,350,663 326,175 (70,210,666) 1,923,997
Net profit (loss) foryear ............ Ps. 83,045,198 Ps. 326,175 Ps. 75,658,725 Ps. (70,831,021) Ps. 88,199,077
Distribution of the net profit (loss) to:
Equity owners of holding company ... Ps. 83,045,198 Ps. 326,175 Ps. 68,119,592 Ps. (68,445,767) Ps. 83,045,198
Non-controlling interest ............ 7,539,133 (2,385,254) 5,153,879
Net profit (loss) ................... Ps. 83,045,198 Ps. 326,175 Ps. 75,658,725 Ps. (70,831,021) Ps. 88,199,077
Other comprehensive income items:
Net other comprehensive income (loss)
to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent years:
Effect of translation of foreign
entities ........ ... Ps. 10,358,985 Ps. 2,235,365 Ps. 10,353,947 Ps. (12,486,690) Ps. 10,461,607
Effect of fair value of derivatives,
net of deferred taxes ......... (276,748) (190,559) 149,709 (317,598)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent years:
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plan, net of income tax effect .. (15,681,072) (16,627,898) 15,681,072 (16,627,898)
Total other comprehensive income
items for the period .............. (5,598,835) 2,235,365 (6,464,510) 3,344,091 (6,483,889)

Total comprehensive income for the

period Ps. 77,446,363 Ps.

2,561,540 Ps. 69,194,215 Ps. (67,486,930) Ps. 81,715,188

Comprehensive income for the period
attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Ps. 77,446,363 Ps.

2,561,540 Ps. 64,925,390 Ps. (67,486,930) Ps. 77,446,363
4,268,825 4,268,825

Ps. 77,446,363 Ps.

2,561,540 Ps. 69,194,215 Ps. (67,486,930) Ps. 81,715,188
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 31, 2012 (restated)

Wholly-owned Combined

Guarantor non-guarantor Consolidated
Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Total revenues .................... Ps.158,576,797 Ps.136,378,076 Ps.618,561,116 Ps.(138,446,344) Ps.775,069,645
Total cost and operating expenses . . . . . 87,525,232 131,836,240 532,740,660 (138,182,467) 613,919,665
Operating (loss) income . ........... 71,051,565 4,541,836 85,820,456 (263,877) 161,149,980
Interest (expense) income, net........ (15,945,879)  (10,030,650) 6,836,011 2,522 (19,137,996)
Foreign currency exchange (loss) gain,

NEL oo 14,182,855 1,640,474 (8,428,175) 7,395,154
Other financing cost,net ............ (919,171) (11,620,355) 3,818 (12,535,708)
Taxesonprofits . .................. 16,473,632 442,558 29,067,262 45,983,452
Equity interest in net income of

associated companies ............ 39,092,832 879,423 (3,411,474) (35,799,420) 761,361
Net profit (loss) foryear ............ Ps. 90,988,570 Ps. (3,411,475) Ps. 40,129,201 Ps. (36,056,957) Ps. 91,649,339
Distribution of the net profit (loss) to:

Equity owners of holding
company ... Ps. 90,988,570 Ps. (3,411,475) Ps. 35,037,764 Ps. (31,626,289) Ps. 90,988,570
Non-controlling interest ........ 5,091,437 (4,430,668) 660,769
Net profit (loss) ................... Ps. 90,988,570 Ps. (3,411,475) Ps. 40,129,201 Ps. (36,056,957) Ps. 91,649,339
Other comprehensive income items:
Net other comprehensive income (loss)
to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent years
Effect of translation of foreign
entities .......... ..., Ps. (32,899,915) Ps. (4,822,249) Ps.(32,512,828) Ps. 36,813,888 Ps.(33,421,104)
Effect of fair value of derivatives,
net of deferred taxes ......... (253,428) (435,458) 449,722 (239,164)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent years:
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plan, net of income tax effect .. 2,377,006 2,439,641 (2,377,006) 2,439,641
Total other comprehensive income

items for the period .............. (30,776,337) (4,822,249)  (30,508,645) 34,886,604 (31,220,627)
Total comprehensive income for the

period . ........ ... Ps. 60,212,233 Ps. (8,233,724) Ps. 9,620,556 Ps. (1,170,353) Ps. 60,428,712
Comprehensive income for the period

attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent .. ... Ps. 60,212,233 Ps. (8,233,724) Ps. 9,404,077 Ps. (1,170,353) Ps. 60,212,233
Non-controlling interests .. ...... 216,479 216,479

Ps. 60,212,233 Ps. (8,233,724) Ps. 9,620,556 Ps. (1,170,353) Ps. 60,428,712
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Wholly-owned Combined
Guarantor non-guarantor Consolidated
Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Total revenues ................... Ps.177,392,370 Ps.147,484,740 Ps.634,406,203 Ps.(173,182,292) Ps.786,101,021
Total cost and operating expenses . . .. 103,305,197 145,880,447 552,650,315 (169,992,694) 631,843,265
Operating (loss) income ............ 74,087,173 1,604,293 81,755,888 (3,189,598) 154,257,756
Interest (expense) income, net ....... (19,499,075)  (10,232,219) 5,715,815 (88,892)  (24,104,371)
Foreign currency exchange (loss) gain,
et ..o (5,715,711) (205,605)  (13,689,149) (19,610,465)
Other financing cost, net ........... 4,407,649 (9,633,565) 13,933 (5,211,983)
Taxesonprofits .................. 9,420,673 (1,473,226) 22,445,284 30,392,731
Equity interest in net income of
associated companies ............ 30,765,616 (41,170) (7,401,474) (23,286,690) 36,282
Net profit (loss) foryear............ Ps. 74,624,979 Ps. (7,401,475) Ps. 34,302,231 Ps. (26,551,247) Ps. 74,974,488
Distribution of the net profit (loss) to:
Equity owners of holding
company ............iin.n. Ps. 74,624,979 Ps. (7,401,475) Ps. 33,737,205 Ps. (26,335,730) Ps. 74,624,979
Non-controlling interest ........ 565,026 (215,517) 349,509
Net profit (loss) .................. Ps. 74,624,979 Ps. (7,401,475) Ps. 34,302,231 Ps. (26,551,247) Ps. 74,974,488
Other comprehensive income items:
Net other comprehensive income (loss)
to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent years
Effect of translation of foreign
entities ......... ... ... Ps. (26,485,343) Ps. (3,442,578) Ps. (26,485,343) Ps. 29,524,982 Ps. (26,888,282)
Effect of fair value of derivatives, net
of deferred taxes . ............... (741,321) (658,570) (833,613) 1,492,764 (740,740)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent years:
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plan, net of income tax effect . ... .. (2,289,811) (3,874,354) 3,726,126 (2,438,039)
Total other comprehensive income
items for the period ............. (29,516,475) (4,101,148)  (31,193,310) 34,743,872 (30,067,061)
Total comprehensive income for the
period ........ ... . Ps. 45,108,504 Ps.(11,502,623) Ps. 3,108,921 Ps. 8,192,625 Ps. 44,907,427
Comprehensive income for the period
attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent . . . .. Ps. 45,108,504 Ps.(11,502,623) Ps. 3,309,998 Ps. 8,192,625 Ps. 45,108,504
Non-controlling interests ....... (201,077) (201,077)

Ps. 45,108,504 Ps.(11,502,623) Ps. 3,108,921 Ps. 8,192,625 Ps. 44,907,427
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2011 (restated)

Operating activities:
Profit before taxes ............
Non-cashitems ..............
Changes in working capital:

Net cash flows (used in) provided by
operating activities

Investing activities:
Acquisition of plant, property
and equipment . ............
Acquisition of licenses
Dividends received ...........
Investment in associates and
business combinations . .. . ...
Proceeds from fixed asset
sales ... L

Net cash flows provided by (used in)
investing activities . . ............

Financing activities:
Bank loans,net ..............
Acquisition of no controlling

interest ........... ... ...,
Interestpaid .................
Paid-Incapital ...............
Repurchase of shares and

others ....................
Payment of dividends .........
Financial instruments

Net cash flows (used in) provided by
financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Adjustment to cash flow for exchange
rate differences ................

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the period ..........

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
theperiod .....................

Parent

Wholly-owned
Guarantor
Subsidiary

Combined

non-guarantor
Subsidiaries

Eliminations

Consolidated

Total

92,362,060 Ps. 1,549,785 Ps. 104,864,120 Ps. (70,831,021) Ps. 127,944,944

(58,286,212) 13,623,630 107,372,061 70,214,525 132,924,004
67,986,792 1,647,322  (137,882,656) 620,353  (67,628,189)
102,062,640 16,820,737 74,353,525 3,857 193,240,759
(3561,842)  (5,360,109)  (111,271,237) (120,193,188)
(993,692) (993,692)

80,074,790 1,379,999  (81,454,789)
(123,626,353) (991,358) (1,279,701) 123,626,353 (2,271,059)
38,312 38,312
(47,113,405)  (6,351,467) (112,126,319) 42,171,564  (123,419,627)
61,811,634 (15,803,025) 46,008,609
(64,458,586) (3,005,784) (67,464,370)
(9,487,535)  (7,955,780) (623,978) (18,067,293)

123,626,353  (123,626,353)
(52,368,010) (1,358,774) (53,726,784)
(13,807,550)  (1,379,999)  (83,306,363) 81,450,932  (17,042,980)
3,158,678 3,158,678
(78,310,047)  (9,335,779) 22,687,107  (42,175421) (107,134,140)
(23,360,812)  1,133491  (15,085,687) (37,313,008)
498,539 498,539
52,558,770 878,843 42,500,852 95,938,465
29,197,958 Ps. 2,012,334 Ps. 27,913,704 59,123,996
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2012 (Restated)

Wholly-owned Combined
Guarantor non-guarantor
Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries

Eliminations

Consolidated

Total

Operating activities:

Profit before taxes Ps. 107,462,202 Ps. (2,968,917) Ps.

69,196,463 Ps.(36,056,957) Ps. 137,632,791

Non-cashitems .............. (17,700,336) 13,469,502 89,101,098 35,803,277 120,673,541
Changes in working capital: (142,895,497) 9,638,378 81,315,870 239,272 (51,701,977)
Net cash flows (used in) provided by
operating activities . ............. (53,133,631) 20,138,963 239,613,431 (14,408) 206,604,355
Investing activities:
Acquisition of plant, property and
equipment . ... . 17,059 (9,869,257)  (112,103,749) (121,955,947)
Acquisition of licenses . .. ...... (7,830,248) (7,830,248)
Dividends received ........... 26,421,133 (571,187)  (25,278,759) 571,187
Acquisition of investment in
associates and business
combination ............... (8,060,283) (73,849,936) 8,060,283 (73,849,936)
Proceeds from fixed asset
sales ... 58,006 58,006
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
investing activities .............. 5,378,807 5,378,807
18,377,909 (9,869,257)  (188,918,307) (17,218,476) (197,628,131)
Financing activities:
Bank loans,net............... 89,462,233 (46,721,960) 42,740,273
Acquisition of no controlling
interest ................... (10,871,455) (181,219) (11,052,674)
Interestpaid ................. (12,868,552) (7,036,101) (1,425,138) (21,329,791)
Paid-In capital ............... 8,060,283 (8,060,283)
Repurchase of shares and
others .................... (17,836,724) (17,836,724)
Payment of dividends . .. ....... (15,057,814) (3,920,000) (21,700,000) 25,293,167 (15,384,647)
Financial instruments . ......... 5,003,187 5,003,187
Net cash flows (used in) provided by
financing activities . ............. 32,827,688  (10,956,101) (56,964,847) 17,232,884 (17,860,376)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cashequivalents ................ (1,928,034) (686,395) (6,269,723) (8,884,152)
Adjustment to cash flow for exchange
rate differences . ................ (4,752,644) (4,752,644)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the period .......... 29,197,958 2,012,334 27,913,704 59,123,996
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
theperiod ..................... Ps. 27,269,924 Ps. 1,325,939 Ps. 16,891,337 Ps. 45,487,200

F-104



Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Wholly-owned Combined
Guarantor non-guarantor
Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries

Eliminations

Consolidated
Total

Operating activities:

Profit before taxes ............ Ps. 84,045,652 Ps. (8,874,701) Ps.

56,747,515 Ps.(26,551,247) Ps. 105,367,219

Non-cashitems .............. 43,845,079 15,791,372 63,265,973 23,286,691 146,189,115
Changes in working capital: (34,873,415) 7,885,804 (40,043,987) 3,264,556 (63,767,042)
Net cash flows (used in) provided by
operating activities ............. 93,017,316 14,802,475 79,969,501 187,789,292
Investing activities:
Acquisition of plant, property
and equipment . ............ 69,274 (16,044,251)  (102,441,309) (118,416,286)
Acquisition of licenses ........ (3,334,464) (3,334,464)
Dividends received ........... 212,394 212,394
Acquisition of non-controlling
interest . .................. (341,966) (1,730,588) 341,966 (1,730,588)
Fixed assetsales ............. 44,045 44,045
Acquisition of investments in
associates and business
combination .............. (15,366,062) (15,366,062)
Net cash flows provided by (used
in) investing activities . ... ... 4,299,360 4,299,360
(272,692)  (16,044,251)  (118,316,624) 341,966 (134,291,601)
Financing activities:
Bank loans,net .............. 70,907,667 (5,317,148) 65,590,519
Acquisition of no controlling
interest . ......... ... ..., (72,016,331) 69,448,722 (2,567,609)
Interestpaid ................ (16,839,948) 1,143,831 (6,958,002) (22,654,119)
Paid-Incapital ............... 341,966 (341,966)
Repurchase of shares and
others.................... (70,745,785) (70,745,785)
Payment of dividends ......... (15,501,944) (220,632) (15,722,576)
Financial instruments ......... (546,770) (546,770)
Net cash flows (used in) provided by
financing activities ............. (104,196,341) 1,143,831 56,748,136 (341,966) (46,646,340)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cashequivalents ............... (11,451,717) (97,945) 18,401,013 6,851,351
Adjustment to cash flow for exchange
rate differences ................ (4,175,001) (4,175,001)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the period . ......... 27,269,924 1,325,939 16,891,337 45,487,200
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
theperiod .................... Ps. 15,818,207 Ps. 1,227,994 Ps. 31,117,349 Ps. 48,163,550
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